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Brainerd

L

Lumbering

Lunbering operations in Mimmesota begen in 1837, but they were confined
to the St.Croix valley until 1847, In that year, Frenklin Steele put in a
claim on the unsurveyed govermment land et St.Anthony's Falls and Began trying
to interest cepital for its develorment. David Stanchfield was sent on en
exploring expedition for timber and after eruising as far north as Mille
Lacs, by way of Rum river, he reported that there was a practically unlimited
supply of white pine. Eastern capitelists agreed to advance $10,000 for
developing Steele's proposition, and a large crew of men were located at
Dutehman's Grove, about three miles from the present village of Cambridge.
Another group wmxm was sent up the Mississippi to Swen River to get out some
extre large timbers for the mill dam. (1) One member of this party wes

Williem Hicholson, who was an early resident of Crow i#ing and who afterward

settled in Morrison county. (2)

Both groups succeeded in getting out their timber and started it toward
St.Ainthony early in November 1847, But unseasonable storms lashed the timber
out of control and both drives went over the Fallse OSteele was very much
discoursged and gave up hope of being able to run a mill during 1848, but
Stanchfield copvinced him that a suitable dam could be constructed of round
herdwood logs, which grew in great abundance on the proposed site, and that
this round log dam could be planked over with timber brought from the
S t.Croix mills. A dam could be constructed, but the more important problem
was where to get logs for the 1848 run. Rum River wes so full of dead heads
that it was impracticable to try to get any more from that quarter. Steele
and Stanchfield went to H.M.Rice, who was about to start for his @row Wing
post, and the latter promised to see Hole-in-the-Day, chief of the Gull River
bend of Chippewa, end buy enough timber for the 1848 run, Without waiting

to hear from Rice, Stanchfield took a large crew and started northe He
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left them camped on the Nekaysippi, while he went forward to Crow Wing and
mede the necessary arrangements for securing the timber. That winter, they
cut 2 million and a half feet of logs just south of the mouth of the Crow
Wing river, besides enough timber to make a boom a mile and a half longe (3)
So the first run of logs at the St.Anthony's Falls mill was secured in what

is now Cpow Wing county.

During 1848, logs for the St.Anthony mill were gotten out of the Rum
River, which had been cleared of dead headss There seems to have been no
lumbering done in this part of the country during that year, but in 1849,
the influx of settlers led to the establishment of a mill at Little Falls,
This was buglt by James Green, but in 1850 it had passed into the hands of
H.M.Ricee The census of 1850 states that the mill was valued at $7000,
employed 12 men and had a capacity of 2000 feete 5.B.Ojmstead settled
opposite Fort Ripley in 1849, te become the first resident lumbermen of
Crow Wing county. He afterward operated under the firm neme of Olmstead

& Amese(4)

The t reaty of 1855 opened the great territory of Cass county to white

settlement, and by 1856, a number of loggers were operating in this part

of the country. Kelly had a camp at the fobt of Long Lake; Lambert &

Trask were logging on the Leaf River; David Chapman, operating under the
neme of Chapman & Company, was probably on Gull Lake; John J.Howe, afterward
a prominent Brainerd lumberman, was operating somewhere in the upper
Mississippi valley; although he was not the first man to log above the

Crow %“ing river. Joseph Libby was the firktto cut on the upper Mississippil
wiiile his brother Asa Libbyy was the second to go so far northe . In
1856, Anson Northrup built a mill at & & Swen River, which was in operation
for only two years. (5) The govermment built a mill at Leech Lake in 1858,

but this was destroyed soon after.
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During the sixties, lumbering was the main occupation in this part of
the country, Crow Wing was a booming settlement--tle last place the lumber-
jacks could get a drink on going into the woods and the first place where
they could slack their thirst on coming out of the woods. Captain George
Houghton, who for mamy years supplied the lumber cemps located betwcen
Crow Wing and Pokegema Falls, began his steam boat career in 1869, when
he begen running north from his headquarters at Crow Wing. (6) So when
the Northern Pacific railroad laid out their route through this part of
the country, they were coming into a territory where lumbering had been

the chief and only occu.ation for meny yearse

With the development of the C{giiggg, there was an immediate and
pressing need for lumber. Stuart Seelye, who was in charge of building
the boarding house for the men to be employed in the mill, probably was
in charge of bﬁilding the first mill in Brainerd, or Crow ¥ing countye.
It was located on the east bank of the river, just north of the railroad
bridge. It must have been a very small mill, as the topography of this site

would prevent the erection of a very large buildinge This mill wes in

operation early in 1871, but its ownership seems to be e matter of dispules

A history of S t.Paul's &piscopal Church/ says that the first services

were held in the log house built as a boarding house for the men employed
in the mill of Bassett, Cobb & Co. (7) The History of the Upper Mississippi
Valley ssys that the first mill was erected in 1872 for Barrows, Prescott
& Bassett. (8) The personal property tax list for 1871 lists Barrows, Cobb
& 60., J.B.Bassett and A.D.Prescott separatelye.

An article in the S t.Paul Daily Press, published Janwary 26, 1872,

about conditions in Brainerd: '

has this to say:f" The menufacturing of ties has been carried on very

satisfactorily this winter, the principal contractors being C.L.Ramely,
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Bassett & Chandler. The greatest drawback hes been the went of a nurber

of good axmen. It has been reported that Ramely & Bassett intend putting

up a new sawmill for the purpose of cutting ties, and may they be success-
ful in their undertakinge" To add to this confusion of names, J.B. Knapp
of H stings visited Brainerd in 1882 and said that he used to own the sawmill
that stood near the railroad bridge. (9) As his name does not seem to appear
in any other loeal records, he was probably assoeiated with this milling

proposition beflore 1872,

In 1871, General William LeDuc was in charge of this first sawmill.
Joseph Kiebler, a pioneer of Brainerd, says that his father moved here in
1871 to work as head sawyer at the mill of General LeDuc. Although Gene
LeDuec had active management of the mill, it was operated under the name
of the N,V.Manufacturing Co,. The history of the N.P.Manufacturing
Co. is the history of General LeDue, easily the most prominent resident of
early Brainerd. He may have come to Brainerd to manage the property, but

by 1873, he was sole owner. (1D) The name chosen for this company evidently

led many to believe that the Northern Pacifie railroad was operating the

mill, for even as careful a reporter as M.C.Russell, editor of the Brainerd
Tribune, said that: " The steam sawmill at this place, belcnging to the
railroad company, has been doing an immense business and turns out lumber
products for the N.P." (11 ) General LeDuec, beside being one of the pioneer
lumbermen of Mimmesota, also served as United States Commissioner of
Agricultures He left Brainerd in 1873, the panic of that year probably
causing him to =ximx shut down the mille Before he left, he had gotten a
charter for a bank, raised $560,000 capital in the east, and secured

brick for a two=story, fire-proof buildinge. Vihen he went to Canfield to

buy the lots on the corner of Sixth and ¥pont Streets, the latter wanted
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$3000 for them. LeDuc would not pay that much, so he cancelled the charter
and disposed of his Brainerd interests. (12) The property stood idddé for
several years, eand in May 1876, E.H. Bly purchased the machinery and moved

it to his Boom lake mill. (13)

HyD.Pettibone was employed by the N.P.Manufacturing company, for in a
court action of 1872, he was named as agente (14) He was said to have
been bookkeeper for the company, and was called "Father of the Pythian
Lodge." (15) A son borm to lire and Mrs. Pettibone in 1873, became the
well lknown owner of Pettibone Lodge at Detroit Lakes, one of the pioneer
summer resorts of the state. (16) Mr. Pettibone was undoubtedly one of
the firm of Pettibone & Knapp who built the first sawmill at Red Wing
in 1855. General LeDuc built the first mill at Hastings in 1856, and
later in that same year, a second mill was built in that village by

Phelps, Graham & Knapp. (17)

In Jgnuary 1872, another company preparéd to enter the field. Lyman

Bridges of Chicago, who had the contract for erecting nearly all of the
depots and other buildings for the Northern Pacific Railroad, arrived in
Brainerd and made arrangements to establish a "mammoth factory" such as
he had in Chicage. (18) By the end of February, he had established an
office on Broadway end was advertising as a dealer in building materials. (19)

By April, he had a sawmill in operation. Beside building material, he
advertised ready-made houses for sale. (20) In later years, the sale of
ready-made houses became quite an industry throughout the country, but
this is the first mention of it in this county. In August, the industry
was incorporated as the Brainerd Lumber & Mfg. Co., with a capital of
$50,000, The incorporators were: Lymsn Bridges end James S.Campbell of
Brainerd, Francis Bridges and Wm.H.Parks of Chicago, and Henry S.Chase
of Malone, N.Y. (21) This was the first corporation to be formed and

registered in Crow Wing countye.
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Although this company and the Northern FPgeific Mfg. Coe were two dis-
tinet businesses, yet they were often confuseds The Brainerd Ilribune, in
May 1872, said that the N.FP.Mfg. Co., in addition to two fine sawmills, would
soon have a mammoth planing mill on their ground just east of Braadway,
where they would produce Bridges Ready-lade Housess The only members of
the company knownto the editor were Lyman Bridges end General LeDue., (22)
The Brainerd Lumber & Mfg. Coes owned lots on both sides of Front Street,

between Eight and Tenth streets. (23)

The panic of 1873 hit the Brainerd Lumber & Mfg. Co. as hard as it did
most other businesses, and the plant was shut doww. In lMarch 1873, Lyman
Bridges returned from Chicago and paid up ell his bills. It was said that
he paid out about §75,000 along the Northern Pacific line. From Brainerd,
he went to Vienna, Austria, where h e built a replica of an American school
house to house the American exhibit at the international exhibition. (24)
A letter published in August 1873, says that dull times in Braineérd might
have been expected as it should hardly have seemed possible for Lyman
Bridges to have several hundred men in his employ all the time, doing
construetion work for the Northernm Pacific railroad. (25) The buildings
housing the mill stood vacant until 1878, when E.M.Weed purchased them
end moved them to Sherwood's corner--the so@thwest corner of Fifth and

Front streets--and remodeled them into store buildings. (26)

Beside George Hoyt, who had been in the retail lumber business in
1871, there were probably no other lumber dealers in Brainerd until 1872.
During that year, Farnham & Lovejoy and Renwick & Yaeger were both selling

lumber at retails The firm of Farnham & Lovejoy was comyosed of Eunice E.

Farnham, James A.Lovejoy and Ashley C.Morrill, (27)
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A great many logs were teken out of the pineries during 1872, but the
run was almost megxikis negligible compared to the millions of feet cut
in later dayse. In May , 1872, there were 16 or 18 million feet of logs
at rokegama and 25 million feet in Pokegama Lake, hung up on account of
low water. “cott & Stanchfield had taken a million feet out of Leaf
River, while Fannin & Lovejoy were driving down the Long Frairie river with
7 or 8 million feet, leaving 2 million feet Immgxyx hung upe (28) There

C’t;f“ bes ' best

were no big lumber operators working in bhés‘gbunty as thexmrmmm of the

-

timber corop had elready been harvested, but tie cutting was a major

industrye Hundreds of thousands of ties were being made. O.E.Garrison

of 5t.Cloud, afterward a pioneer of Garrison township, had 33,000 ties
for sale (29), probably in the southeastern part of the county, where he
had large holdings. While no other large operatogsappear to have been
active in this part of the country, there were probably a large number
of ‘small independent operators, or sub-gontractors, who got out ties for

the Northern Pacific.

Times were dull during 1873, but in August it was announced that definite
arrangements were on foot for putting in a $60,000 mill at Boom Lake, to be
ready for operation by the early spring of 1874 "There will another
similar mill follow close after, and then this particular place can bid
adieu to #'village life! and commence to don the habiliments of a manufac-
turing city--Brainerd's NATURAL element." (30) But neither proposition
moterialized as expected and it was several years before there was a
savmill in operation in Brainerd, although R.S5.Knapp did run a shingle
mill during the latter part of 1873, and part of 1874, He may have been
using the machinery of the Brainerd Lumber & Mfg. Coe, as his mill was

located at the "fine mill corner" of Broadway and the railroad tracks. (31)
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The next sawmill operator to try his luck in Brainerd was Eber H.Blye
He bought one of the mill sites on Boom Lake in 1874 (32) and erected a
building, for in 1875 he peturned from Bismarck with the machinery for
a mill. (33) The winter of 1874-1875, he had four camps operating near
Brainerd and got out 5 million feet of logs. The camp at Fine River was
in charge of Dennis McNannay, that at Gull Lake was in charge of Reuben

7 t«[/ ﬁ)?r

Gray, Robert lcKee was at Rebbit River, while@ Dean was en the Missis- QJ

\
sip % (34)

In spite of having a sawmilland several million feet of logs, Bly did
not begin operations wntil May, 1877. (35) 1In April 1876, he had added
he machinery from the old LeDuc mill to that which he had brought from
Bismarcke The delay in getting started was probably due to thef act that
the Northern Pacific rei:ﬁsed to put'in a track t; tho;Bl;Smill, even though
he offered to do the grading and trestle worke All he asked the railroad
to do was to lay the iron, and as they had plenty of it on hand that they
had removed from those parts of their line subject to very heavy traffic,

they could have laid the track at a cost of $400 to Bly's $12,000. (36)

Whatever differences there may have been between the railroad company

S
and Mr. Bly, they were ironed out uliimately aﬁwg track was laid to the

mill,

In July 1878, it was announced that L.Day & Sons of Minneapolis,
considered the largest loggers in the state, contemplated leasing the Bly
mill and menufacturing their lumber there. (37) The following month, it
was announced that Bly planned o;—improvéég his equipment by putting in a
first class gang saw, (38) But he changed his plens and in September sold

the mill to Jones Brothers of Minneapolis. (39)
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The early timber operators might be considered as belonging to the ranks
;.

#

of small business men. With a supposedly unlimited amount of standing%hite
pine, the question of securing stumpage presented no difficulties. The
government held its first timber sale at the St.Cloud Land Office in 1873,

but only six or seven thousand acres of timber were solde The average price
was about $1425 an azcre, although = little of it brought $2.50. (40) By

1875, the Brainerd Tribune vaised its voice against the timber thieves, and
accused C.A.Gilmen of St.Cloud of being at the bottom of the "ring" formed

to secure pine lands. (41) - He was the hubband of the Hester Gilmen who had
secured much of the land contained in the townsite of Brainerde. There were
2i;e§ery common methods of securing timber land. The simplest, but most
dangerous,was to buy one forty and log off all or many of the surrounding
forties. Another was to buy Indian seripe. By the various treaties made with
the Indiens, they, as well as the half-breeds and missionaries, were given
serip with which they could locate practically any land open to homesteads

The lumbermen bought the scrip at very low prices, averaging a dollar an acre,
and lccated property containing good stands of white pine. Another method was
fzx for the lumbermen to advence enough money to a man to enable him to home-
stead a piece of lande As soon as the patent had been secured, the company

would buy the property, deducting of course, the amount of money advanced.

Another vhase of this ownership of timber lands ceme up in the proceedings
of the Crow W ing county commissioners at their meeting of Feb. 29, 1876
The minutes state: "A comsiderable discussion took place on a lot of pine
lands in Crow Wing county belonging to D.lMprrison--a petition from said
Morrison having been received by the board to have said texes abated because
he had not yet received his deeds from the Northern Pacific Railroad Co,
for said lande The board instructed the auditor to transmit the petition

to the state auditor and the attorney general for instruction." (42)
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Two years later, George Hylland represented Aitkin county in a cese against
Morrison which had been carried to the Supreme Court. In Aitkin county, too,
Morrison had refused to pay taxes on land he had bought from the Northern
Pacific railroad, as kkxxkX he claimed iﬁs title had not been perfected and
still rested with the United Sﬁates);géiﬁ;;-thereforgjaét taxables Byt

A / ﬂq "{i(«u‘/t‘;u{;/ C{"L_,___
the Court held that the equitable title rested with llorrison and % » ¢

—fere t‘&xM’@(&iﬁ)

Most of the timber land, either sold for a nominal sum or with a very
small down payment, was logged off and then left to return tothe state as
tax delinquent property. At an auditor's sale of delinquent lands located
in Crow Wing, Cass and Itasce counties, which was held in Brainerd in
September 1877, D.0.Goulet, a brother of F.X.Goulet, county auditor, bid it
all in for what was named "a very nominal sum," less than $25 for some
20,000 acrese (44) But this sale was set aside, for in December 1878,
"Judge Stearns rendered a decision in the case of the State of Mimmesota vs
D.0.Goulet, brought in Crow Wing county, to set aside a certain pxmksndsdxd
Ealm ‘retended tax sale of lands to the defendant, situate in Crow VWing and
Cass countiese The decision is in favor of the plaintiff, and in effect
decides that the sale of these lands in 1874 to the State for delinquent
taxes, is wvalid, and that under such sale the State acquired a good title
thereto, but set aside the special sale made to the defendant under chapter
134 of the general laws of 1877 of this states" (45) The government was
trying to put a stop to the wholesale theft of standing timber, but a news-
paper comments that while the government agents had caught a number of the
smaller timber thieves, they had succeeded in doing nothing against the
big operators, (46) and it seems that before the government was able to
take any very effective action against the timber thieves, practically all of

the white pine had been logged off.
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The last big drive of white pine from Crow iing county was probably that
of 1879, when E.R.French, Clark & McClure, Dougas Brothers and ¥k liolanson
took five and a half million feet down the Nokesippie. (47) | Beside what little
tie cutting may have been dene during the late seventies, the influx of
settlers into the county outside of Brainerd, led to the establishment of
smaller mills in country districtse f The first mill outside of Breinerd was
probably that established at Deerwood in 1877 by Ira Torreye (48) Text to
Brainérd, Deerwood was the first settlement in the county along the Northern

Pacific linee In 1879, it was believed that a Sioux CwLy5f1rm were g01n%¥to ¥
(40 &( yaan ~{,A/)u
put in a steam sawmlll et Deerwood, to employ about 75 men,/ﬁut nnvhlngawa
ALy 4 f’, J 4
‘)done aboux~1tv~ /It was 1880 before enother mill was este bllshed in the

- \L~ \\

countxg andsidunmdduy4ﬂnm;b4nt}l~waa~erecte%gbn the Wokasippl river in \\\\

2 \
it Mathlas/townghlp. — )
- _‘___.—-—"* . "

ff;n the feall Of-ivﬁg John Gorst began the srection of a sawmill im ™\
/\ -
section 32, township 43, range 31lm, end a real settlement grew up around //
waACZIuAiiJ :
this industry which became known as Gorstfs Mill or orstv1llezm John Gorst

was born in St.John's, New Brunswick in 1838, He moved to Morrison tounty
in 1855, but three years later returned east and lived there until the
Civil Var. He served in a Maine regiment until January 1865« He then
returned to lMinnesota and settled on a farm in Belle FPrairie, although

he devoted most of his time to lumberinge. He married Lorinda, the
daughter of Reve and Mrs. 0.A.Coe, pioneer missionaries of Minnesota. (50)

His mill had a capacity of three thousand feet per day. (51)

Jones Brothers, who had bought out Eber H.Bly's mill in September 1878,

had the reputstion of b eing very sctive businessmen, but it was lay 30, 1879
: Ir( ‘T‘t\uf‘
before they steamed up for the fir t_timq@ ;ihheugh they were rushed with

3 My LADT .
business &hem. (52) R : were energetic lumbermen,L;z'

they seem to have been threatened with much competition. In January, 1880,
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negotiations were being made for a first class sawmill to be located just
above the railroad bridge, (53) and the following month it was announced
thet the great mill of Smith Bros. & Company was assured for Brainerde The
Jones Brothers were to get out the lumber for the erection of this new

competitore. (54)

With the prospect of & second mill in Brainerd, the future of the city

as a great lumbering, menufecturing and resort center seemed assureds As a
lumber center, it had the advantage of being 125 miles north of Minneapolis
and just that much nearer the great wheat centers to the north and northweste.

t was the closest point to the inexhaustible pine timbered area of Northern
Einmesota that had facilities for the transportetion of the manufactured
material to the middle west where this commodity wes in such great demand.
And it was estimated that by manufacturing the logs into lumber at Brainerd,

a saving of $3 per thousand could be effected in &he cost of driving end

saﬁ7ﬁng. (55)

A second sawmill was not erected in Brainerd at this time, but a competitor
appefaed in Cass countye. August 22m 1879, Col. J.H.Burgoyne broke ground for
a large sawmill at Gull éiver, about six miles west of Brainerds This was
for the mill of Chase, Pillsbury & Cos of which he became mansgere Theirs
was the largest mill that-was erected in central Minnesota during the eighties,
having a capacity of 90,000 feet per daye. A town of 300 sprung up around the

mill, for the company erected 22 dwelling) heuses 3 a large boarding houses

It was es%#imated that Chase, Pillsbury & Coe owned 250,000,000 feet of

" timber on Gull Lake, or tributary to that body of watere (56) In the spring
of 1880, they leased land and water power to a company for the ereection of a
sash, door and blind factory, to be located just south of the mill on Gull
Rivere (57) This was the plant which the History of the Upper Mississippi

Valley says was operated by Horr, Seelye & Co., (58) although this is un-
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doubtedly the firm of Seelye & Orr, who advertised as sash and blind manu-
facturers and contractor, lucated in Brainerd in 1883. (59) How Brainerd

\
regarded this competitor may be judgé‘fvam a contemporary newspaper com-
ment: "As the matter standfnow, Gull River is to be to Brainerd what Lowell
is to Boston, Newark to New York, or liinneapolis to St.Pauls It is only
six miles from Brainerd, why not consolidate before Gull River gets to be

a larger towm than Brainerd? It is worthy of consideration." (60)

In October 1880, Chase, Fillsbury & Co. bought a mill site on Rice
Lake and proposed to build a plant there with the same capacity as their
plent on Gull River, (61) but by Jenuary of the following year, they announced
a change in their plans (62) and it was more than ten years latersbaﬂﬂxg—thﬁ¢

this mill was moved to Brainerd.

e

Jones Brothers had continued to operate their mill on Boom Lake, but
in 1880 they sold it to the J.A.Davis Company of liinneapolis for $25,000.
The new firm consisted of J.A.Davis, Fernham & Lovejoy, and E.Renwicke (63)
J.A.Davis served for many years as U,S.land examiner and was then associated
with A.S.Davis & Coe of Hinneapolise The J.A.Davis Compeny was orgenized
in April 1880, (64) Beside the Boom Lake property, the company bought
a block of land in Brainerd--that lying between Front and Laurel, Eighth
aﬁd Ninth Streets. It was amnounced that théy intended to put in a planing
mill, sash and door factory there, (65) but when they built the planing

mill the following winter, it was built on the curve of the railroad track

about 600 feet northwest of their sewmill. (66) One of the Jones Brothers,

W.E.Jones, remained in Brainerd for a short time after selling the mill,
making preliminary arraengements to build enother mill on Rice Lpkes He and
R.N.Goodsell of Grand Rapids, llichigen, were interested in this proposition,

but they zave up the idea soon after. (67)
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Crow Wing Cownty

Endowed with tremendous natural resources, the territory now ineluded in

Crow Wing county, of which Brainerd is the county seat, had countless generations

of inhabitants, but its earliest recorded history of the white man goes back

less than two hundred yearss. The trading era came first, when the fur-bearing
animals haunting the great forests, provided pelts that found world-wide mar-
ketss Then came the lumbering era, when the supposedly inexhaustible forests
of white pine were cut off and driven down river to help build the homes of a
nation. During this era, a great transcontinental railroad, finding in this
county the most suitable mix site for bridging the Mississippi river, ereoted
its shops and developed a citye The present, or industrial era, followed the
reilroad end lumbering eras Now, once-hidden ores help supply e highly mechan-
ized society with iron and steel; the railroad shops, larger than ever, employ
a amall army of men; a new and different lumbering industry, manufacturing
plants, well-developed farms, and hundreds of tourist resorts, all contribute

to the gemeral welfare of the city and of the county.

Vihen white explorers firkt reached the head of Lake Superior, they found
the Sioux controlled the country to the west and south. Soon the Chippewa, an
eastern hation, pushed westward by advancing white civilization, began to drive
the Sioux before them. By the middle of the eighteenth century, the Chippewa
had conquored the country east of the Mississippi river as far south as Mille
Lacse Fifty years later, they had oarried their conquests down the w est side
of the river as far south as the mouth of the Crow Wing rivere Thus this Crow
Wing country became a borderland and often a battlegrounds When the tribes were
at peace, traders would come here and put wp a log housem without floors, win=-

dows or chimmey, and spend a winter trading for furse Sometimes they could

return for a second or a third year, but this was a rare occurrences
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By the treaty of 1837, the whites obtained from the Indiens all that
territory east of the Mississippi and south of a line drawn through the north
mouth of the Crow Wing river. In 1841, this immense territory was organized
as St.Croix county, Wisconsine It was probably that same year William Aitkin
moved to Crow Wing and established a trading poste Although Aitkin was in
charge of the Fond du Lac department of the /merican Fur Compeny from 1826
until its dissolution in 1848, yet he seems to have spent a great deal of his
time in the fields In 1842, the St.Croix county ocommissioners established
e voting precinet at the "Crow Wing Settlement," the voting place to be at
_the store of William Aitkine A few months later, the American Fur Company
went into the hends of a receivers Allan Morrison, one of its primncipal
traders, settled opposite the south mouth of the Crow Ving river, to become
the first permenent white resident of this county. Early in 1844, William
A itkin left Crow Wing and Donald MeDonald seems to have taken his place, either
in partnership with Allan Morrisom, or associated with the latter in the
menagenent of the post for the American Fur Company. Henry M. Rjce had
established a post at Crow Wing by 1847. He spent a great deal of time at
Crow Wing, although the post was in charge of Jeremiah Russell during 1848

and 1849,

The treaty of 1847 made a great change in conditions on the Mississippie
The Indians ceded a large strip of territory lying east of that river and
north of the area ceded in 1837; as well as another strip ly@ng between the
Crow VWing and Watab rivers and extending west and north to the Canadian
boundary, with the agreement that the govermment should build a fort south
of the mouth of the Crow Ying river. The Chippewa had been receiving their

payments et LaPointe, near the present Bayfield, Wisconsin, but their lands

were being constently trespassed upon by the whites, who found rich iron and

copper”m&ﬁé% theres This oreated a great deal of friction and the government
decided to move the Indians westwards By a new treaty, the Indians agreed to

receive their paymenets somewhere on the Mississippie In 1848, the Americen
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xxx Fur Compeny was disorgenized snd their employees prepared to enter new
fields, Williem Aitkin moved to Swen River. In 1849, Clement and Paul
Beaulieu, Ro bert Fairbenks end Williem Whipple Warren moved to Crow iinge
That smae year, Samuel Bgldwin Olmstead, en easterner, settled opposite

the site of Fort Gaines, afterward Fort Ripleye. He had the contraet for sup=

plying the fort with meat and vegetables and was the first resident lumberman

of the countye

Vhen Minmmesote Territory was esteblished in 1849, that part of the present
Crow Wing county lying east of the Mississippi, was ineluded in Benton countys
VWhen the commissioners of that county met in Januery 1850, they established =
this area as the Crow Ving precincts The census of 1850 shows that beside the
femilies elready mentioned, residents in this precinct included the families
of Antoin Bisson, George Fairbanks, Augustine Belonger Sre, Augustine Belonger, Jres,
Charles Charette, Joseph Comptoins, and Joseph Montreuil, and a number of single

men, including Themas Cathcart and Joseph Tesrows

The government finally decided upon the location of the Chippews. Agency,
end in 1861 selected a spot where the Gull River joins the Crow Wing, about
six miles above the settlement.s The Indian payments were the greatest and
almost the only cash resource in Minnesote during the fifties and so the
little Crow Wing settlement was favorably located to monopolize the very
lucrative Thippewa tradee A post office was established in 1852 with John H.
Fairbenks as postmaster, That same year, Rev. Jemes Lloyd Breck esteblished
an Episcopal mission at St.Columbe on Gull Lake, while Father Franz
established his mission at Crow Wing, Business in the settlement was
greatly inoreeased by the treaty of 1855, which opened to white settlement
a great traet north of the Crow Wing and West of the Mississippi riverse

fhite settlement meant the lumbermene
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The population of Minnesota Territory increased so repidly that, in 1856,
Benton county wes reduced to its present size, Sherbourne and Morrison counties
were established, end the remaining territory of the original Benton county
was attached to Ramsey countye This creaied a great deal of confusion in the
Crow-hing area, Many considered it still a part of Benton county, others con=
sidered it part of Mprrison county, while still others rightfully considered
it & part of Remsey county. Probably to cleer up this situation, May 23, 1857,
the legislature established Crow'Wing countye. It included only that part of
the present county lying east of the Mississippi riverd, and Crow Wing was
named the county seat "pro tempore", although it wes the only settlement

in the county at that timee

Crow Wing county was probably orgenized at the November election, as officers
were functioning by December 1857. F.M.Ceampbell was elected register of deeds;
Dennis Shoff, judge of probate; C.H.Beaulieu, auditor; Robert Fairbanks,
treasurer; John MeGillis, justice of the peance; and Allan Morrison, John H,

Fairbanks end Samuel Baldwin Olmstead, county commissionerse

The finencial vanic of 1857, which brought so much hardship to Minnesota,
we.s probably felt less at Crow Wing then at many other places, for the govern-
ment still continued to make their peyments to the Indians. In that year, too,
Rev. Ottomar Cloetter, a German Lutheran missionary, went up the Mississippi
to the mouth of what is now Migsion Creek in Center township, to establish a
missione He continued te work there until 1862, when he abandoned the mission

end moved into Crow VWing, where he continued his work until 1868,

Crow Ving reached the peak of its prosperity in 1860, when the census
shows there was a resident population of 269 persons, living in 49 houses,
eight of which were located at Long Lake. There were two churches in the

settlement, the Catholic church established by Father Pierz in 1852, and an

Episcopal church established by Rev. E.Steele Feake in 1858. There were two

schools, one a seleet and the other e private sohool; and business houses and

eraftsmen to supply all of the ordinary needs of a frontier communitye There
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were several resident lumbermen in the county, and the settlement wss the
outfitting point for lumbering operations which already extended far up the

CrOW'Wing and Leaf rivers,

The Civil War brought numkerous changes. Many young men enlisted, and
new comers took their placess But it was the uprising of 1862 that changed
the history of the little settlemente The ceuses that led to this uprising
date back to the very beginning of the relationship between the Indians and
the whitese The whites wanted the Indian lands, they made treaties by which
they bought these lands and agreed to pay for them, partly in cash and partly
in goods, end guaranteeing the Indians certain well defined rights. The
traders got most of the c¢ash; sometimes the Indians received their goods,
sometimes they failed to appear, and they were nearly alweys of such in=-
ferior quality as to be prectically worthless; Indian rights were ignored,
govermment promises broken--discontent gradually grew into bitterness. Then
came the uprisinge Ink this part of the state, it was under the leadership
of Hole =in-the-Day the Youngers. This chief, although one of the youngest,
wes the most powerful among the Chippewas The immediste effects of the up-
rising were of little importance: the fromtier population received a bad
scare; the buildings at St,Columbe were destroyed by the Indiens; Hole-in-
the-Day's House at Crow Wing was burned by the whitess But the aftermath
of this revolt vitally effected the history of the settlemente

Commissioner Dole, sent by the govermment to re-establish relations
with the Indians, failed to negotiate a successful treatye Later the
govermment proposed to limit the Indians to small reservations, and desig-
nated six sites on Leech, Long and Winnibigoshish lakes, for the future
homes of the Chippewas, These six sites msmxkx contained in all, only 180
aores of arable land and this the government considered suffiocient for the
support of more then two thousand men, women and children, This plan, which
would have condemned the Indians to virtual starvation, aroused a great deal
of oppositione Finally, Hole-in-the~Day, eaccompenied by several other chiefs,

went to Washington and negotiated the treaty of 1867 By this treaty, the




Town of Brainerd
Crow Wiing County Page 6

Mixx¥kxiixk Mississippi Chippews received from their brethern, the Red Lake

Chippewa, that tract of land now comprised in the White Earth Reservation.

Between 1862 and 1867, conditions at Crow Wing were very unsettled--no
one knew what the Indian policy was going to be. June 4, 1868, the first group
of Indians left for White Earth and they now observe fune 14 as the date of
their arrivel theres. June 27, 1868, Hole-in-the-Yay was murdered. He was
attacked by nine Pillagers while on his way to his farm et Gull River from a
business trip to Crow Wings. The govermment had no jurisdietion in the cese and
it was some time before en effort wus made to arrest his murderers, The evidence
at the hearing was thet they had been paid to kill the chief. Hole=in=-the~Day
had fought desperately against allowing the mixed bloods, who had so degenerated
the pure-blooded Indiens by selling them liquor, being allowed to go to the
new White Earth reservation. After his opposition was removed, the mixed bloods
moved to that reservation, but it is pleasant to add that the havoe they had

wrought at Crow Wing was not repeated at White Earth,.

Even though the Chippewa Agency was removed to Leech Lake and meny of the
Mississippi Chippewa had moved to White Earth, yet the little Crow Ving settle-

ment continued to be a very lively town. After the Civil War, the lumber in-

Vfdust:y was one of the first to revive and Crow Wing was ideally situated to

take adﬁﬁntgge of this businesse In the spring of 1868, Captain Houghton,

' who for many §Ears operated a steamboat between Brainerd and Grand Rgpids,
began operating a steamer up river from his headquarters in Crow Wing. Every
spring, millions of feet of white pine came down the Mississippi and Crow Wing
rivers. During the drives the town was alive with lumberjacks, end in the fall,

it was the last stopping place before the men went into the woodse

The Crow Wing county of 1870 was less populous than t£é£;of 1860s There
was a total of 200 inhabitants, living in 39 houses, There was one private
school, serving 28 out of 84 pupils of school agee. The Episcopal church was

practically defunet, the Catholie church was still funetioning under the aged

Father Pierz, who was occasionally assisted by a younger preist from Belle
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Prairie. There were five farmers in the county: Timothy and D.S.Moocers at
Fort Ripley; Allan Morrison opposite the mouth of the Crow Wing river; David
MeAirthur at what is now the Crow Wing reilroad siding; and Wallace Beane,
living east of the settlement. Charles Dorby's name is not mentioned in this

census, although he was living in the county at that time.

Business men and women in the Crow Wing of 1870 included: Frederick W.
Peake, Joseph W.Wpkefield, George Fairbanks, William Fairbanks and Clement H.
,Beaulieu, drygoods; Williem Wade, Edward B.Lynde and Charles F.Pardee, groceries;
Charles H.Beaulieu, John H.Fairbenks, and Robert Aitkin, clerks; John G.Mor-
rison, Clement and Albert Fairbanks, saloon; Henry Whipple, John Bishop end
Mps, Sarah Chepman, hotels; William S.Wekefield and Feter Kelly, lumbermen;
John MeGillis who is enumerated as a sculptor; Scofield “rrington and Charles
Gravelle, carpenters; Henry M.Mixter and Zebides Sutherland, blacksmiths;
Semuel Trebby, livery; Nazare Morin, ferry; Cyrille Beaudette, wagonmaker;
John Sloen, cooper; John Barmon, stage driver; Josette Chaboillez, Jemima

Thompson, Emma Fairbanks, Agnes and Charlotte MeGillis, Madeleine Tiarren and

Sophia Dufort, seamstresses; Mary Berry, washing. Yrancis Campbell was listed

as auditor and Thomas Cathecart as judge of probate, so they seemed to make full
time occupations of these offices.
In the three decaggs ke that elapsed between the time Williem Aitkin
first established sxiiiﬁiﬁgxguxt at Crow Wing, and 1870, the settlement
had passed from a trading post to a lumbering town. 1t entered the
seventies with every prospect 6f continuing to be one of the important
lunmber towns of the upper Mississippi valley, but Fate ruled otherwise
and the beginning of the railroad era marked the decline of a unique

eivilization.

(Sumaerized from "0ld Crow Wing")
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Township 45, Range 31

Township 45, range 31 seems to have remained part of the primeval wilder-
ness until 1856, then Joseph Wekefield arrived in Crow Wing county, becoming
one of the best known and most colorful characters of the frontier. He was
born in Cherryfield, Maineim, in 1835. His great-grandfather, Samuel "atts,
had come over from England as a King's officer to investigate conditions in
the colonies. He married the chawmiwg daughter of a colonist, left the King's
service, and fought for the colcnise/ His son, Samuel Watts, Jre.g was a
hero of the War of 1812, The latter's daughter became the mother of William
and Joseph Wakefield. Both men were employed in the woods and mills of liaine
wntil their early manhood. Williem came to Minnesota in 1854 and scon afﬁer
esteblished himself as & lumbermanm,making his home in Crow "ing in the early
sixties. Joseph came to Minnesota in 1856, He went first to Crow "ing, but

finding that settlement well supplied with business places, he went on up the

river and established a post on the present site of Brainerde (1)
{ )

-~ §

Following tﬁé uprising; ﬁgﬁéfieid moved to Crow Wing and became associated
in business with & F.W.Peake snd Vin. Thompsome In April 1868, he left Crow “ing
with his teams, to prepare a place at Vhite Earth for the Indians who were to
be removed to that rewervation. He had the contract for clearing and plowing
the land and banking the ngL./ Peake & Wakefield established a store in Brainerd
in 1871 (3), but they aissolved partmership soon afterward. (4) Mee Wakefield
went to Aitkin first, then to Grand Rapids, where he was in the hotel business
from 1878 until 188l. He moved to Aitkin then and became asscoiated with his
brother, William, in the hotel business, but his lumbering interests soom oe-
cupied all of his attention. When he retired, he moved to Jacobson, Aitkin
County, where he spent the rest of his life on a farm. He was married twice,

his first wife being a Beaulieu, (4), while his second wife was Miss Eliza

Morey of Aitkin county. (5)
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Joseph Wakefield's stay in township 45, range 31 probsbly explains the
mystery of the "0ld Trading Post." This wes the name applied to a trading
post operated by J.H.Hallett from about 1880 until his death in 1904. This
building was located just north of the railroad tracks and a little west of
First Streets It faced south and one of the old treils of early Brainerd
came west on Laurel and turned morth around the post. (6) It wes & two-
story frame building, with a store front, and was undoubtedly erected in
1870, (7); although it was named the "0ld Trading lost"™ before it had stood
there ten years. Just west of this frame building, so close as to seem con-
nected to it, stood a long log building that had fallen into decey by the
early ninetieses It was a low building, constructed of great #ound logs, and
it also faced south. Mr. Hallett used part of it for an ice house and part
for storing hides and furs. (8) Jefferson Saunders, who settled at Gull
Lake in 1869{ said that there were only two buildings on the site of Brainerd
in that year: the old trading post and Charles Darby's home. (8) There is

no doubt that a log building, erected in 1856, even though praetiecally aban=-

doned in 1862, could/have‘easily}beéktfitted for use in 1870, And this

|

building, constructed of great round logs was certainly not the hewn log
building erected by Stuart Seelye in 1870, so it seems very probeble that it
At least ope other man opabed

was actually the post erected by Joseph Wakefield in 1856 the Fost before Hallett,
A.F.Scheffer, who afterward moved to Califormiae. (9a)

Between 1853 2nd 1857 & number of railroads were incorpvorated in Mimnesota
lerritory end large gremts of land were made to theme. No construction work
seems to have been dome in this part of the territory, but it is very certain

that preliminary surveys were made., Uhen the townsite boom was at its heighth,

in 1857, James Lackey, the last surveyor of the original Benton county, platted
a townsite which he named North Crow "inge The originel plat has disappeared,
but J.F.Smart, auditorg of Crow Wing county from 1807 unti; 1914, saw the

plat in the Morrisonfggunty court houéﬁ. He said that North Crow Wing was
undoubtedly located oé»the present site of Brainerd. I, & deed dated August 3,

1857, J.M.Lackey sold an undivided one-fifth interest in this property to A.B.
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Smith of Little Falls for $8,000, The townsite is described as being locuted
in Crow Wing county,

on the Missis®ippi river at the junction of the N.F.R.R. with the Lake Super=
ior R.R. (100 During July 1858, J.M.Lackey widower, and A.B.Smith "batcheldor"
neme Horth Crow Wing as their residence, when they sold Emil Newburger of

Chicago 22 blooks of the townsite mx for $1100. (11)

Lots in NorthCrow Wing sold in many eestern states at what might be con=
sidered rather exorbitant prices. A.firight Turner of Chicago bought seven
lots for $1000. (12) Benjemin R. Watson and Attmore R.Wright of Chicago
peid $130 for two lots. Joseph Stancliff of Buffalo, N.Y. paid $176 for
three lots. W.G.Goldsmid of Chieago bought two lots on the cormer of Spring
Street and California Avenue, and one on Market Street, for $300s Alfred
Pierce of Buchansn, Michigan, paid $100 for a lot 50 feet wide and 140 feet
deep. (13) The finenecial panic of 1857 put an end to reel estate speculation

and the townsite of Nerth Crow Wing wes probably left to its sole inhabitent,

Joseph Wakefield.

The fact that very few of the early townsites were located by towmship

and renge is not surprisings. 1t was 1856 before any towmships in tnfs_county

were surveyed and 1859 before Township 45, renge 31 was laid out by govern-
ment surveyorse In the spring of that year, King & Wilmer not only surveyed
this township, but the present townships of Garrisom, Bay lLake, Nokay Lake
and Ok lewn as well. It was while makimg & survey in Nokay lLake township
that they noticed that the presence of bog irom greatly deflected their
compass needle. The members of this survey crew were: Josias R.King end
Bugene Wilmer, deputy surveyors; 0.B.Sturtevant, compassman: Orin Snow,
J.F.Gaslin, Alfted Colburn, Edgar S.Dowd, chaimmen: A.M.McKinney and John

MoDonald, axemen, (14)
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Charles Darby probably made the next effort to establish a home on the
present site of Braimnerd--at least he is given the homor of having erected the
first building on the townsite. Charles Darby was a resident of the Crow Wing
settlement in 1860, (15) A few years later he married Naflete Chouniard,
the widow of Lucien Chouinard. Mpre and Mrs. Chouinard hud been members of
Father Pierz' parish as early as 1853+ According to their grenddaughter, Mrs.
Demas Foroier of Brainerd, Lucien Chouinard was drown/in Leke Superior. He
had been born in Candada. After his marriage, Charles Darby probably took
out a homestead with the idea of developing it into a farme He made a
Declaratory Statement on a traet of 160 acres, described as the Ex of the
SE, SW-SE and SE-SW of section 24, towmship 45, rﬁgl 3le /This included all
of what is known as ¥The Fill", as well as considerable lamd north of it,
and all of that part of Breinerd lying east of Fourth Street between Grove

a line about halfway
Street and khmxxtisy between Kingwood snd Juniper streets. His log home
stood very near the smxmsrxaf southwest corner of Ninth and Juniper. ( 17)
This would have been a very desirsble location for a farm as "The Fill" was
probebly a hay meadow, a great asset to a farmer in a demsely wooded country.

The date of the Declaratory Statement made by Charles Darby has been
é:::;nmx&. A eertain number of years after a patent has been issued on
government land, the declaratory statements are destroyed, f£ifix but it seems
certain that Barby was located on his homestead as early as 1869. Although
this preliminary applicstion for homestead rights had been made by Darby (18)
the St.Cloud Land Office sold the property to Thomas Canfield smxmxEmziimxkm
Seriifizaknzxfi§} Morch 23, 1871 (19) In an agreement mude Nove 15, 1872
between Cenfield and Darby, the latter exchanged his equity in his homestead
for lots 20 snd 21 of block 69, Original Plat of Brainerd. (20)e These are

the lots now occupied by Turcotte Brothers store on South Sixth Streets

Charles Parby made s precarious living in Brainerd until 1882, when he

was so badly frozem that he became a c¢ripples The following year he was

sent to an asylum, where he died. His widow k¥ passed away at the home of




Town of Brainerd
Township 45, range 31 Page 12

her daughter, Mrs. James fugh, in 1902, at the age of 756 yearse. (21) Mrs.
Pugh is now a resident of Portland, Oregon, while James Darby, the only

living child of Charles Darby, lives in British Columbias Another of Mrs.

Darby's daughters, Delia Chouinard, married Joseph Brondin in one of the

Pirst ceremonies performed or registered in Brainerd, and a number of her

descendants ere still living in the citye. (22/

There is no contemporaneous description of township 45, range 31 as it

was in the early spring of 1870, but it seems reasonable to suppose that

~ R 1: {‘ / o=
Charles Darby was the only inhabitant of the township, and outetde—of his

farm buildings, the only other structure was the abandoned trading post

high up on the bank of the Mississippi -river.

(1) Duluth Hepald, July 12, 1916.
(2) ™01d Crow Ving'
(3) Brainerd Tribune, Febs 10, 1872
(4) Brainerd Iribune, Fobe 8, 1879
(8) Daluth Herald, July 12, 1916.
&5 Brainerd Tribune, Oct. 10, 1874
6) A.A.Weaver, Brainerd.
(7) Biography I.U.White, Crow Wing Co, Hyst. Museums
EB) A.A.Weaver, Bruinerd.
93 Jefferson Saunders bloge Crow fing Co. Hist. Museum.
(9a)Brainerd Dispateh, Auge 11, 1893
glo) Deed A, p-321, Morrison Coe
11) Deed Ae p-4§,Crow “ing Coe
(12) Deed Ao p-440, Morrisom Co.
(13) Deed A, pp56=75, Crow Wing Coe
tl&) The Cuyuna Range, p-3.
15) Census report 1860.
18) U.S.General Land Office recordse
Biog. Joseph Kiebler, Crow 'ing Co. Historical Museum.
Letter U.S.General Lend Ufprice, Septe. 19, 1941l.
Deed A, p=273e
Deed E, p=60l.
Braiperd Dispateh, March 17, 1902,

et

Mrs., Demas Forcier, Brainerds
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A Land Office Business

In the spring of 1870, surveyors appeared in the northern part of Crow
VWing county. They were surveying a line for a railroad and while they may
have attracted considerable attention in the county seat down the river,
they probably worked with speed and secrecye. There are few records of their
earliest activities, but their work was to change the whole history of the
county. The traditional account of this period is that given in the
"History of the Upper Mississippi Valley." This was written within ten
years of the time the surveyors first went throught the county, and is
said to have been given by one of the partieipants in the movements de-

seribed. It states:

"The Northern Pacific Railro:d was surveyed to the present site of this
town, and the railroad erossing of the Mississippi river determined in
June, 1870 A few days after the surveying party had passed Little Falls on
their way north, O.W.Sylvester, Lewis Hamlin, William H.Horn, Alfred Tanner,
Robert A.Beggs, loses Lafond, and perhaps others, formed a temporary company
and sent part of thier number up the river to secure the ground for a town
site, at the place where the surveying party should determine to eross the
rivere Froceeding to Crow Wing by wagon, thence in canoces, they reached

this point about the time the surveyors were completing their worke Under

pretext of hunting, they remained im mear by until the surveyors left, then

loeated and marked out a claim embracing what they deemed sufficient for a
town, and railroad purposess They then returned to Little Falls, and soon a
part of the compeny visited the claim and constructed two or three temporary
residences, and divided the ground, each member Reing assigned his parte
Some of these were evidently sold to Mrs. Hester Gilman, who entered part

of the present site of Brainerd, the patent bearing the date of record
December 10th, 1870, The same record shows a transfer of her righﬁs to the

Puget Sound Company on the 13th of August, 1870s The remaining members of
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the original elaimants scld their interests to the same Companye. About this
time Charles Darby "jumped" a portion of the town site not included in lrs.
Gilman's claim, and built the first house of round logs, completed as a per=
manent dwelling, near the Bround now occupied by the railroad shops, in bloek
eighteen. Soon after, he also sold to the Lake Superior & Puget Sound Company."
This account given by one of the actors in the drama of settlement, is
slightly modified by vabious legal recordses In an instrument dated xigigi:?’
1872m, the Northern Pacific Railroad fulfilled an agfeement made Auge 24, 1870
with Vim. H.Horn, Robert A.Beggs, #lfred Tanmer, 0.W.Sylvester, Louis Hamlin,
Moses Lafond, F.X.Gravelle, Newberry Briggs and Vm. L.Dow , whereby the latter
were to seleet lots in various parts of Brainerd.éiinxnhxugnxfnxxxklixannity
in June 29, 1872, J.D.LaChance, attorney in fact, wmx sold six-tenths interest
in lots 1 to 18 bloeck 144; lots 1 to 4 Eimmk and 21 to 24 of bloeck 158, and
lots 1 to 4 of block 160, to Joseph D.Weed of Sauk Rapids. I,is trensferred
the interests of Louis Hamlim, Newberry Briggs,smst William L.Dowe, Joseph
Lafond, Franecis X.Gravel amd Oghea W,Sylvesters. (3) August 12, 1872, F.M,
Foster of Morrison county trensferred a one-tenth interest in these lots to

J.D.LaChance (4), and on October 25, 1872, J.D,LaChance transferred an un-

divided one-tenth interest to lMary J.Tamnere (5).

Beside the above records, the general land office reports that Robert A.
Beggs filed a declaratory statement on the property claimed by Charles Darby
in his declaratory statement. The Bates of these declaratory statements amenot
preserved. From this evidence it would seem that the Little Falls men filed

on property already claimed by either Darby or the Northern Facifie Sailroad.

The Lake Superior & Puget Sound Co., which developed all of the townsites

along the Northern Facific in Mimmesote, except Vetroit Lakes, was organized
Jane 29, 1868 in Maine. It was named the Western Iransportation & Mining Co.
at that time, but the name was probably changed soon after, although it was

March 6, 1871 before they were authorized to do business in Mimnesota. The

(1)
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Minmnesota Legislature stipulated that the compeny sppoint a resident agent who

was to reside in Brainerd.

The first record of property acquired by the Lake Superior & Puget Sound Co.
in township 45, range 31, is that made in an agreement dfted Auge 13, 1870,
whereby they obtained from Hester Gilmam lot Xk 1 of section 23; lots 2,
3 and 4 of section 24; E%-NW; E% of SW and lots 1 to 4 of section 25; and
lots 1 and 2 of section 2. (6) DMrs. Gilman was the wife of Bharles A.Gilman,
a prominent resident of St.Cloud, who was at that time in charge of the U.S.
Lend Office at St,Cloud, Gilman was in a position to file on all available
land as soon as its desirability became known, and was probably very well
posted on the Northern Pacific survey activities. There is no evidence that

he ever tried to file on the property claimed by Charles Darby.

The agreement with Hester Gilman is dated Aug. 13, 1870, that with the
Little Falls men was made August 24th, and another agreement involving land
in township 45, renge 31 was made September 19, 1870. This was one made between
the N.P.R.R. by Ira Spaulding, Chief Engineer of the Minnesota Division, and
R.G.Schryver, Paseal Lachappelle, Henry Venderwater, D.A.Burgess and Charles
R.Woods By the terms of this imstrument, the Northern Pacifiec agreed to
give these men one block in a townsite to be platted west of the river, in
exchange for their equity im all of the lands where the Northern racifie
erossed the Mississiypi river, which was described as being all lemd within

22 miles of the center of section 25, township 45, range 3l. (7)

There seems to be no further evidence in the above transfer, and the men
nsmed do not appear again in early Brainerd history. But these men may have
been a party of lumbermen or hunters who saw the surveyors and tried to ﬁget
in on the ground floor" in townsite speculetion. From the fact that their
agreement seems to have been made solely with the Northern Faeific, without

any reference to the Lake Superior & Puget Sound Jesd Co., in might not be

too fer fetched to presume that these men were camping on what was to become
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railroad right of waye. The "0ld Trading Post" stood almost om the right of
way, and & group of hugters or lumbermen might have been using this building
when the surveyors arrived., At least their claim to lend in township 45,

renge 31 was not very valid.

In December, 1870, Thomas Canfield of Chittenden Co., Vermont, president
of the Leke Superior & Puget Sound Co., and George Follett of Kings county,
New York, one of the officers of the compeny, acquired 2ll of the land in
township 45, range 31, that had not already been claimed by Charles Darby
or Hester Gilman, Thomas Canfield bought all of the land wast of what is
now Seventh Street, up to and ineluding Fourteenth Street, and extending
from halfway between Kingwood end Juniper Streets on the north to Willew
S treet on the south. George Follett bought all of the township that
remained, being that area whish extended between the north line of Charles

Darby's property and the Mississippi river.

The land compeny seemed determined to own all of the township, so on

March 23, 1871, Thomas Canfield went to the St.Cloud land office and bought

the property on which Charles Darby had made his declaratory statement. (8)
In spite of Darby's lack of education or political influence, he still must
have had some legal rights to the property, for it was Nove 15, 1872 before
he settled with Canfield. At that time he agreed to accept lots 20 and 21
of block 69, original plat of Brainerd, in lieu of his equity in his 160 acre

homesteads (9)

The Lake Superior & Fuget Sound Company must have staked out some sort
of a townsite, for settlers began coming in as early as September, but it
wes over a year before a plat was made and accepted. It seems probable that
Lymen P,VWhite, the compeny's resident agent, might have staked out the first
building lots, for the Crow Wing County Historieazl Museum is in possession of

a surveyor's chain which he is said to have used in laying out the townsitee
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The surveyors must have chosen the location for the crossing of the
Mississippi wriver in June 1870, for by July they were working northward
in Cass county. A party of about thirty men were boarding at Bull Lake,
about half of them were stopping with George Wilson, while the rest were

living at the Reub?n ?ray home, Among those staying with George Wilson
10
was Moses C.Kimberley,/who returned to Breinerd about 1871 to become

prominently identified with the Northern Pacifie, in whose service he
spent most of his life. It was August before the Lake Superior & Puget
Sound Company completed any agreement for land for townsite purposes, but

within a few weeks thexm rush of settlers to "The Crossing" was under way.

History Upper Mississippi Valley, p=639.
Bond Record A, p-344, .

Deed Record A, pp 622-624.

Deed Record p-625.

Deed Record A, p626e

Deed Record p=-250,

Bond Record p-247,

Deed Record p=273

Deed Record p=601.

U.S.Census Report for Cass County, 1870
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The Crossing

It would be hard to determine how soon after the surveyors had located the

site of "The Crossing" before settlers begam pouring im, but J.M.Martin, one

of the prominent politicians of Crow Ving county in the seventies and eighties,
arrived at the Crow Wing settlement in the summer of 1870, He went up to

the Crossing and found men living in a duge~out in the bank near the present
railroad bridge, waiting for construction work to start. They had kmock-down

wheelbarrows and were supplied with shovels and pickse (1)

The History of the Upper Mjssigsippi Valley seys that Charles Derby's house
wes the first in Brainerd, while the secondwas built by Stuart Seelye, and was
of hewed logse It stood a few yards morth of the railroad bridge and was used
as a boarding house. (2) According to David S tewart, a piomeer of the new
settlement, S tuart Seelye had arrived from Minneapolis in August 1870 and
begun the comstruction of a hewn log house, which was finished October 138th «(3)
A history of St.Paul's Emkzmopak Church of Brainerd says that this £ixxk log
house, in which the first Episcopalservices were held, had been built as a
boarding house for the mem building the mill for Bassett, Cobb & Co. (4)

A sowmill would have been one of the most importent industries of a new
settlement, so it was natural that & boarding house for the men bhilding and
operating it should be erected as soon as possible. This log building was
destroyed by fire im during the week of March 22, 1873. At that time it was
said to have belonged to the Townsite Company and was not insured, (85). It
was first used as a boarding house, but in 1871, it became the home of Deamiel

MeDonald, one of the first Northern Pacific rumdxhuxsmxxmxak employees. (8)

Stuart Seelye was a member of a prominent family of Maine lumbermen and
millwrights who had settled neer Anoka in the early fifties. He probably
was a member of the firm of Seelye & Morton, who were operating at the Crossing
during 1870 and 1871. (7) He evidently left Brainerd soon after for no further

records of his activities appear to exist.
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The third buflding to be erected was said to have been a shack used as a

saloon, while the fourth was the residence of L.,P.White, (8) According to the

History of the Upper Mississippi Valley: "Gen. Lyman P,White is appropriately

denominated the "Father of Brainerd," by its inhabitants; while the Indians

throughout this entire region eall him the "Big White Fakher." e is a man

of powerful frame, six feet high, broad shoulders, corpulent, and of a remarkably

fine physique. Born in Vhiting, Vermont, in 1811, and one of a family of

eleven children. His father was a Revolutionary soldier and partieipated in the
battle of Bunker Hill, Soon after peace was declared, he became one of the
earliest settlers of Vermont, after whom Vhiting was named. Gen. Vhite's early
advantages were only equal to the majority of New Emgland!s sons of that day;
but his natural ability, quiek perception and sound common sense placed him in
the foremost ranks in business or political circlese He soon became a leader
in his Statee For several years he was a member of the State Legislature, and
at various times declined important positions offered him by the United States
govermment, choosing rather a business than a political life. « o Gen. Vhite
came to Chicago in 1859, emtering largely into business there, and in the year
1870 came to Brainerd as the general agent of the Lake Superior and Fuget Sound
Compeny, with Thomas Canfield as president, which position he still retains. .
He 1laid out the towmsite of Brainerd and the other places on the Northern Pacific
railroad, and is more closely identified with this locality than any other mane
His beautiful and spacious residense in Brainerd was the first frame dwelling
house in that plece; the wing built at that time is now his offices The lumber
was drawn by teams, a distance of seventy miles, about amne year and six months

prior to the completion of the railroad to this point. " £&f3x (9)

About six weeks after Stuart Seelye had begun building the hewn log house,
the scene had chenged considerablye A very vivid desceription is given by
I.U.White, who said: "On September 20, 1870, I =mxrkwm reached Bruinerd, the
beautiful eity of pines, consisting at that time of ome small frame building,

(used as a townsite office by Lyman F.White as agent for the Lake Superior &
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Puget Sound Coe) and numerous tents and lean-tos constructed with a piece of
two-by-six nailed to two trees, and new boards with slab battens. One of these
was my first resting place on my arrival from Crow Wing, which city I reached
from Sauk Rapids by stage. From Crow Wing I proceeded by foot, via the Leech
Lake trail, to the Frenchman's Crossing, six miles west of Brainerds There

I was told to follow the grade stakes khm by which the surveyors had marked the
traile I followed these stakes until I came to the hill where the Northern
Pacific Hospital later was locutede I could see all the tents over on the
other side of the river, but thought it would be a pretty good swim to get
acrosse After looking around a little, I saw a fellow pulling a wangan with a
rope, so I erossed the river on that ferry. The first thing which attracted
my attention upon reaching the east bank of the river was my father's coat
hanging on one of the outer corners of a little lean-to, Depoditing my
'luggage', I began to make my way to the top of the river bank, where I could
hear numerous hammers and saws at work, and at the first building at the top
of the hill, I found my father, in charge of the construction of e building

for Fuller aend Huestises That building still sbtands; it is the old Indian
trading post, and has been used for fifty=-two years as saloon, hotel, trading
post, and dwelling. Hundreds of carloads of blueberries, and tons and tons

of deer saddles passed through its doors during the meny years when James Hallett
had it as a trading poste This was the first frame commercial building in the

grewing city." (10)

My, White was wreng abeut the ownership ef the old trading pest, as Nr.
Huestis did not arrive in Brainerd until 1878 (11), although Mr. Fuller may
heve been interested in it. There seems to be no further records of Mr. Fuller's
activities, and he may have been one of the magy early residents who drifted

into the new settlement mmd seeking fortune, and then imEkxwikimwk disappeared

without leaving a trace of their passing.
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At the general election held im November 1870, the new railroad camp was
already in a position to challenge the domination of the county seat, Crow Wig .
During 1870 the county offieials hmoxkmsmx were: F.M.Campbell, auditor; Charles
HeBeaulieu, register of deeds; Thomas Cathecart, judge of probate; E.B.Lynde,
treasurer; Villiam Wade, sheriff; John MeYillis, justice; Vm.L.Wakefield,
assessor; Wallace Besne, Frederick W.Peake, and Hemry Vhipple, county com-

missionerse The 1870 election was undoubtedly held at Crow Winge H.L.Dow

was one of the judges of election, while Henry ~ ressen was a clerke

The county was operating under ax $1000 budget, of which smount $200 was
set aside for state taxes, while the remainer was for school, bridge and
general county expenses On Mareh 1, 1870, the county treasury had $50 cash
on hands During the ensuing year, they collected $147.36 in county revenue;
$895.10 frok licenses; and $18.,80 from penalties on licenmes. At the end

of that fiscal year, they had $487.10 on hand.

The results of this November election seem rather confusings Aeccording to
the records of the Seeretary of State, the following were named to assume office
on January 1, 18713 J.M.Ayers, register of deeds; J.M.Dumn, atiorney; F.S.
Lgstman, surveyor; and Charles P.Thayer, coroner. W.P.McElroy was named as
auditor to assume office March 6, 1871. There is not the slightest evidence
that any of these men, with the possible exeeption of C.P.Thayer, ever served
in the offices to which they were named. Vhen F.M.Campbell Besigned as
auditor, W.W.Hartley was named in his place. Thomas Cathcart died in 1871
and Mr, Hartley wes appointed to complete his unexpired term of office.
C.H.Beaulieu served as register of deeds as late as September 1871, while
E.B.Lynde remained treasurer until 1872, George Holland received $200 for
legal services to the county during 187l The entire slate, as named by the
Seeretary of State, were Brainerd men, and the fact that none of them really
discharged the duties of his office would seem to indicate that in spite of

the political strength of the little railroad cemp, it had net yet been able
to overcome the lead of the county seat town of Crow Wing. (12)
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Beside being mentioned as county officials, the names of the men listed
in the Secretary of State's records do not appea r very prominently in the
early history of Brainerd.s J.M.Ayers lived in Brainerd longer than any of the
others and seems to have been quite active pcliticall§, but except for the fact
that he was the first pmestmaster at Green Lake, Meeker county, when that office
was established there in 1857, (13) wvery little &s known of his life.
Charles PgThayer may have been a brother of Dr. S.W.Thayer, but he probably

He, as well as

left Braimerd at a very early date./ %he other men were undoubtedly employees

of the Northern Facifie railroad.

That the early residents of Brainerd numbered a large group of "floaters"
ean hardjy be doubted, but even in this shifting population, EmxramExxaf
a few of the more stable ecitizens can be namede Tallace Beane, wmho had
settled at the Chippewa Agenecy in 1856, moved to Crow 'ing in 1860, and
who became one of the best lmown men in the county, moved to Brainerd in 1870,
He took a farm a mile and a half southwest of the village and made his home
there until his death. (18) John B. Conant, born in New York state in 1827,
lived in Iowa from 1855 until moving to Brainerd in 1870, excert for his
Civil War service. He served both as justice of the peace and court commissioner.
He lived in Wadena during 1871, where he managed a hotel, but returned to Brainerd
where he died in April 1882. (15) Paul D.Davenport, born in New York in 1821,
came to Minnesota and became a resident of Benton county in 1856 He remained
there until 1870, when he and his son, Levi, engaged in the freighting business
between Sauk Rapids and Brainerde After the railroad was completed, they

RxD,Davenport

started a grocery store. (16). HNm served as a director of the school distriet

end for many years ran the ferry across the Mississippi rivere

Vm. Falconer was one of the earliest hotel keepers in Brainerd. Very little

is known of him, except that he was chairman of the board of county commissioners
017)
in 1873fand in July, 1875 moved his family to Bismerok, vwhere he went into

business with Macnider and Melean, (18) who had also been early Brainerd

residentse
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Narcisse Uravelle, born in Lower Canada in 1838, learned the carpenter trade
with his father theres. He ceme to linnesota in 1858 and made his home at Crow
Wing, elthough he was employed on govermment projects at Red Lake and White
Earth and other pointse He built a house in Brainerd in 1870, owning lots
13 and 14 of block 65, the southeast corner of Fourth emd Laurel streeta. (19)
His daughter said that he established the lMerchants Hotel at that tgig} although
he sold out shortly afterward and this name was later imimmxhyxummihsex used as

the nesme of another hotel. In 1876, he moved to Morrison eounty, where he re-

mained uptil his death. (21)

John Hess owned & log house on the west end of Front street, which he sold to
the first school board for $50 (22), after which he seems to have moved awaye
C.T.Hobart, a prominent Northern Pacific official, was also very active in church
work, and was sne of the founders of St.Paul's Episcopal Churche (23) John B.
LaFond, born at Three Rivers, Canddd in 1848, went to Michigan when he was six=
teen years of age and worked there for a short fime before Boing to Morrison
county. He was engapged in the meat business in Brainerd from 1870 until 1877,
when he returned to Morrison county to spend the rest of his lifee (24) His
daughter, Delina, is probably the first white child born in Brainerd, at leest
the first one of recorde She was born Dec. 5, 1870 at %rainard's Crossiné'
and was baptized there Feb, 21, 1871 by Rev. Father Joseph Buh. Narcisse
Grenier and Justine Grenier were her sponsors. (25) Narlbert Lafond, either
a brother or cousin of John Lafond's, was another early resident. He squatted
near where the present ges house is located. L.P.lthite objected to e locution

of his shack,

as it was not in accordance with the lines staked out for lots, and had it moved

offe Lafond moved it back to the location he preferred. hixxmmmxxkimm White

had the 8lsack moved three times, until lafond tired of the process and moved

into Long Leke township, (26)
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Dennis MeNanney was one of the earliest business men at the Crossinge
His wife was said to have been the first white womsn to move there. (27)
He was a lumbermen by prcfession, although he owmed a restaurent on Front
S treet. In 1875, he managed the Pine River camp for u.H.B§§?}hnd that summer
he farmed 180 ascres at Crow Wing=-probsbly the Hole-in=the-Day farm there. (29)
He moved to Bismarek in 1878 (30) Peter Ort was a ocarpenter who came to
the Crossing from Sheboygen, Wisconsin in 1870, After five years of that work,
he became clerk at the Headquarters Hotel until 1880, when he opened a billiard

perlor at the corner of Fifth and Laurel streetse (31) He was also interested

in a brewery, which was destroyed by fire in July 1886, (32)

David S tewart, one of the very esrliest arrivals, ssé was named "Squire"
Stewar® i&#¥y end kept an office for the transaction of his business. (33)
He took a n active part in political affairs until 1876, when his office was
destroyed by fire (34)e After that, he seems to have left Bruinerds Dr.
S.W.Theyer wes the Medical Director for the Northern Facifiec Railroad, and
probably the most influential man in Brainerd during his stay there. Ie was

the first postmaster, Hddd the moving spirit in the establishment of the first

chureh, St.Paul's Episcopal church, and ccroner during 1872, HP and Mrs.

Thayer returned to their old home at Burlington, Vt. during the winter of
1872-1873 (35/ and in July 1873, retmrned there to make his permanent home. (36)
There is considerable confusion between S.W.Thayer and C.F.Thayer, but they were

both doetors and both seeminly residents of Burlington, Vt.

J.C.Walters was a liquor dealer who took a very active part in polities,
He suffered greatly from the frequent fires that swept the settlement, and ¥kx in
March, 1872, he began to rebuild his limquor store after it had been destroyed
for the third time. (37) In May 1872, he was honored by being appointed an
alternate to the Republiean National Convention being held in rhiladelphia. (38,
He was & captain of Campany Ee& Third Regiment, Minnesota National Guards, of (39)

Brainerd, as well as the first justice of the peace of Brainerd township, Mrs.
Welters was a talented woman and painted portraits in oil. (40)
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The Crossing boasted a very large number of Whites, belonging to at least
three separate femilies, Beside the Lyman P.#hite family, there were two
brothers, Robert and George White, among the very early settlers. Robert was
one of the first justices of Brainerd towmship. (41) He and his brother George
operated a billiard parlor and saloon on lot 9, block 47. (42) In November 1871,
they sold their building end bar to Frenk Dumm. (43) A third Vhite femily was
that of Edward Vhite. He was born in Pomfret, Conmecticut im 1812, Learning
the carpenter trade in his native town, he moved to Worcester, Massachusetts
and followed his trade for four years, He made his home in Illinois until 1860,
when he moved to Glencoe, Mimnesota. In 1863, he w.ent to Franconia, where he
served as postmaster for five years. He arrived at the Crossing in July 1870,
and was in the employ of the Northern Pacifie Railroad for several years. He
then went into the contrecting business, teking his son, Isasc, into partnership
with him. (44). This femily remained in Brainerd and have been prominently
idenfified with the life of the city from the earliest days until the present

time.

A men who was one of the most active and publie-spirited citizens of the
county during the seventies, may not have lived at the Crossing in 1870, but
he was keenly interested in county affeirs end must have spent a great deal of
his time there. He was W.W.Hartley, a young man born in Canddd, who left there
to accept a position in a condensed milk fabtory in Illinofse In 1870, he
received a letter from a friend in Crow Wing, saying there was a lot doing there
and advising him to come up to Minnesotas On his way up to Crow Wing, he met a
men in St.Paul, who had a team at Crow Wing, doing nothing, and offered Hartley

the use of ite Hartley made only one trip before the men sold the team, The

young men accepted a job as teamster at $12 a month, (45) He continued to reside

at Crow Wing and by 1871 held practicaslly all of the political jobs in the county.
During 1871, he was Judge of Probate, Auditor, and Clerk of Courtse He also
served a s deputy for several other officialses He held the offices of Judge

and Auditor during 1872, and in 1873 wes elected Clerk of Courts again, an

offiece which he held mmkkixi&& through 1879,
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Lumbering was a major industry in Crow Wing county from the time

Pra TR . : ; h p
Frenklin Steele and his associates had taken the first Timber off, in

1847, until the Brainerd Lumber Company mixsmd shut down its mill in

1904. From the time the industry ceme into being in this part of the
country, until Brainerd finally became a e¢ity, in 1881, there was an
almost unbelievable growthe A million end a half fget of logs were cut
in 1847. 1In 1881, 275 million feet were taken from this log district,
which comprised the upper lississippi and its tributaries, and the

fed “iver and its tributaries, This timber cut increased until almost
400 million feet were cut each year, but the stand of white pine was not
inexhaustible, as Ik early lumbermen considered, and by 1904 whaet re-
meined was so far to the north of Brainerd that a mill at this point
probed unprofitable. The lumber jack days were among the most colorful

in Minnesota history, but the after effects of this period were deplorable
and even to the present day cut-over lands, uncontrolled flood waters,

and very large areas of tax delinquent property add to the cost of living
for every resident of the state, and have made the fineancisl mikwax condition
of some of the north counties almost unbearables

Lumbering on the Upper Mississippi by David Stanchfield.

History of Upper Mississippi Valley, p-616.

Lumbering on the Upper MKiss.
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By 1872, Hartley had moved to Brainerd. Beside his political offices, he
sold lumber (46) and was interested in a store with his brother, B.F.Hartley
and Conrad Rains, for they sold this building in 1872 to V.C.Strauss for $1500. (47)
He was strongly interested in the cause of temperance, and as early as 1874
was delivering free lectures on this subjecte (48) 1In 1875, he bought the
Brainerd Tribune and edited it untl 1881, (49) He was postmaster from 1879
through 1885 and it was while holding this office that he established the first

telephone exchenge, with offices in the post office. (50) He left Brainerd

shortly after his term as postmaster expired, and moved to Californias

six
D,ring the ##w months that elapsed between the time the surveyors deter=

mined the location of the Northern Pacific Crossing, until January 1871,
these were the men who came to the new railroad camp and helped shape itwm

de stiny.
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An Organized Community

The Crossing was booming by December 1870--a sprawling, unorganized rail-
road construction camp. December 27, 1870, a post office was established
with Dr. S.W.Thayer as postmasters §1) Dr. Thayer at that time owned lots
17 and 18 of block 42, First Addition to Brainerd (i4 2) the present site
of the Brainerd Public Library, the northeast cormer of Seventh end Washing=
ton streets. He probably had his medical office and the post office on that

cCOoIr'ner.

The name "Brainerd" was used officially for the first time with the
establishment of the post office. Brainerd was the maiden name of the
wife of J.Gregory Smith, former governor of Vermont and the first president
of the re-orgenized Northern Pacific Reilroad. "Really there is a romance
about Brainerd. Governor Smith was not only a railroad builder--but was a
lover, and when his wife gave up her pretty ancestral name of Brainerd for
the common one of Smith, he caused to be laid out this towm, and compensated
her by giving it her name, making her name immortal," said Thos. B.Shoaff. (3)
lr. Shoaff was o newspeper publisher at Shelbyville, Illinois for many years,
but had come to Brainerd in 1871 to marry liss Ellen Lytle, the daughter of
Wm., Lytle, manager of the Headquarters Hotel. He remained in Brainerd for
several months, assisting Mr. Lytle. The Brainerd femily seem to have had

little acquaintance with the townsite nemed in their homor, but Lawrence

Br:inerd undoubtedly Iived here for several months, as he is named in the

personal property tax list of 1872. *e also owned considerable real
estate, including the southeast corner of Fifth and Front streets, part of
the present Armory site, and the northeast corner of Kingwood and Tenth

streets., (4)
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Although it seems that Brainerd residents attempted to gain control of
the political machinery ofthe county at the November elections, their efforts

failed and the Crow Wing settlement retained its dominatione. But by February

1871, the power of the Northern Pacific was felt, and the legislature passéd

en act authorizing the removal of the county seat from Crow Wing to Brainerd,
provided kkm a majority of the voters approved this action at the general
election to be held in November 1871, (5) A few days later, the legislature
detached Crow Wing from Morrison county for judieial purposes and established
a Distriet Court to be held annually. &l1l cases pending in Norrison county
were to be keturned to Crow Wing county. (8) Crow iing county had been at-
tached to Morrison county in 1867 for judicial and record purposes. (7)

Yhile there is abundant evidence to support the claim that this county had
never observed the act attaching it to Morrisom county for record purposes,
yet this act has never been repealed. Another act affecting this area, also
pessed by the legislature in 1871, was one which prohibited the sale of
liquor within five miles of the located line of the Northern Pafific railway. (8)
This sct was observed as little as the one attaching the county to Morrison

for record purposes.

With strong prospects of becoming a county seat, the voters of Brainerd met
to orgenize the townshipe As the officers elected served until March 1872, (9)
it may be presumed that the election was held in March 1871. The voters
probebly elected a full slate of officers, but availeble records give the
names of only two of them: J.C.Walters and Robert White, who were nemed
justices of the peece.(1®) At least three congressional townships were in=-
cluded in this new town of Brainerd--township 45, ranges 29, 30 and 3l. (11)
This would include not only the present city of Brainerd, but Oak Lawn and
Nokay Lake townships as welle. School District No. 2 was probably organized

about the same time as the township.
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The settlement of Brainerd was the result of the building of the Northern
Pacific railwey, yet the rails did not reach the Mississippi until IR¥%
Merch 1871, and it was September of that year before regular service was
esteblished. On March 11, the first train drew into the new town. It was
a special train and William P.Spalding was the conductor. Mr. Spalding was
e native of Lowell, Massachusetts, having been born there in 1823. He lived
on a farm until 1850, when he went to work as a conductor on the Rutland &
Washington road. During the Civil Var he held the offices of Lieutenant and
Captain in the Fifth Vermont infantry. He farmed in Illinois until 1870,
at which time he came to Minnesota and went to work in the comstruction
department of the Northern Pacific reilroad. He was not only conductor of
the first special train in March, but of the first regular train in Septem-
ber. After retiring from active service, he became the company's claim

agent in Brainerd. (12)

Another special train came in on March 14, 1871. Adam Brown was the
engineer end he says: "I was the engineer of the locomotive that pulled
the first passenger train into Brainerd. This waes the 14th day of March,
1871e I remember the circumstances. Ve could not turn arcund here end hed
to back to the Junctions It was extremely cold end the fireman and I suf-
fered muche We had no curtains to break the winde J.Cooke, who financed
the building of the road, was on the trein, with many officers and friends
from St.Paul and New York city." (1#) Mr. Brown settled in Breinerd,

end made his home here until his death.

Sylvester V.R.Sherwood was another of the early conductors. Born in

Uonnecticut, in 1822, he Rived there until 1870, when he entered the em~

ploy of the Northern Pacific railrcade. He wes the conductor of the
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second regular train for that comjany. He left the reilroad service in
1872 and engaged in the drug business for a time, but subsequently changed
to books and stationery and smokers' Buppliese (14) He also servied as
the second postmaster of Brainerd, holding office from 1873 until - 1879
His drug store was located on lots 7 and 8 of block 47, the southwest core
ner of Fifth and Front streets, (15) so the postoffice was undoubtedly

moved to that locatione

During April 1871, a young telegraph operator named Frenk Johnson, lived
in Brainerd, trying to find a job. His diary gives & very vivid account of
his experiences. e was given & letter of introduction at St.Paul,zmd to
Yy, Morferd in Duluth. (This was the lr. Morford who was one of the very
early residents of Deerwood: } lr. Morford sent him teo lr. Hobart in Brain-
erd. Johnson got a train to Morrison's cemp and from there Mr. Campbell
gave him a ride on a hand car to Brainerd. It was a sixty mile ride and
he helped pump the car all the wey. He says that they ro¥de over some

queer old road, mostly corduroy. It sounded like going over a bridge.

4 . 3 3 1
here wepe no stations on the road, but there were weater tenks here and

there., Vhen he got to Brainerd he was promised the first job on the linee.
He put up at the Brainerd House, which wes only a tent with a wooden
freme, end he paid $10 a week, in advance, for boarde There were about
one hundred houses in the settlement, all constructed of rough boards, or
tents, and about half of them were saloons or gembling housess He says
that there was a good bridge across the Mississippil but the only build-
ing m® worthy of note waes & two-gtory freme building in which the civil
engineering corps lived, but where no other boagers were taken, No treins
ren into the <town during the month he was there end there was not much

doing. Lots of men were looking for work and the railroad could get all
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the men they wented to work on the grede for $2 a day. Mr. Johnson was
offered the job of helping his landlord, Mr. Hazelton, in excheange for his
room and board and $25 a month, but the next day he lost the job to a man
who would do the work for his board only. Johnson looked all over Brainerd
for work and among others, asked Bly for a jobe. Lots of the men were home-
sick and before the end of the month, Hazelton had bought his partner out
and then sold his whole outfit for a team of mules and started home To see
his wife. May third, Johnson was offered the job of telegraph operator at

Crow Wing and left immediately for that place. (16)

Mrs. Ida Cowley Forsythe was a small child when she arrived in Brainerd
in 1871, with her perents, Mr. and Mrs. Robert Cowley, but she remembers
stopying at the Falconer House on their arrivale. Mr. Cowley was a section
boss for the Northern Pacific and the census of 18785 shows thet he lived
in what is now East Brainerd. He was transferred in 1878 » to James=
town, H.D and lived +there until his death. Mrs. Cowley died in 1872 and
her funeral was the first to be held in Brainerd. She was buried in the
Northern Pacific yards, but when Evergreen Cemetery was opened, her body
was re-interred there. Until she was sent east to school, lirs. Forsythe
lived with her uncle and aunt, lMr. and Mrs. Daniel lMxcDonald, in = log
house on the river bank that was afterward burnede This was undoubtedly

the log house that had been erected by Stuart Seelyes. She says she

pleyed with Alice Richardson, who lived in the long log house just beyond

the 01d Trading Post, towerd the river. "It wes low and long and pretty--
all fixed up with stuff they brought from Chicago,"she saide MNr. Richardson
was probably a railroad employee, as was Daniel McDonald, who was said

to have been the first seetion boss in Brainerd. UNr. MeDoneld was trans-
ferred to a western division later, His wife died in Verndale in 1928,
Their one daughter became the wife of F.B.Thompson, county register of

deexds from 1876 until 1879, (17)
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A photograph of Front Street in 1871 is in the possession of the Crow
Wing County Historical Society. It is undoubtedly a picture of block 47,
thet part of Front Street i;;;;tggtween Fourth and Fifth streetse The
building in the foreground, lying on the southeast corner of Fourth and
Front streets, is the establishment of H.A.Bk¥¥ix Hills. He was one of
the most prominent of the eerly merchantse He seems to have put in a
large stock of goods, groceries, liquors, drygoods, country produce,

furs, etc, and operated uné er the name of "The Peoples' Store." (18)

He financed, or advanced credit, to many of the early contractors and

business men and the panic of 1873 forced him into benkruptecye (19)

He did e privete benkinxgbusiness (20) and was probably the first man

in Breinerd to take care of the banking needs of the communitye

The next building wes Milton Askew's Billiard Parlore It looks
more like an early dey village hall then it does like a billiard parlor,
and this building may have been the "Albert Hall" used as & public
gothering place in 1871. He was probably in partnership with a W.W.Dunn,
for the latter transferred his half interest in the building to Vr.Askew
June 7, 1871, and then Mr, Askew rsold = . out to E.C.Winnie, (21) although
he remained in Brainerd for some time efter this sale as he wes elected
supervisor of the township in March 1872, (22) and he was foreman of the
first fire department, which was orgenized in November, 1872. (23) Mr.
Winnie was elected county treasurer , but served only a short time in

1872 before resigning (24), and probebly leaving Brainerds

Just east of Askew's Billiard Parlor, was a small building with a
lesn-to on the side, which belonged to P.H.Trudell. P.H. and T.M.Trudell
were brothers who were very active in the communitye T.M.Trudell was an

officer of Colfax Lodage of the I.0.0.F. when it wus organized in 1872 (25)
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P.H.Trudell wes the first eity recorder (26) and a second lieutenant in the
militia company. (27) Both must have been interested in athletics for tThey

were elected as two of the three officers of the Cass Baseball Club, the
first organized sport to appear in the new settlement. (28)e T.M.Trudell was
associated with William Aylmer in a"pop factory™ (29). Mr. Aylmer was not
only interested in this factory, but was associated with Noel Sicotte in
operating the Sicotte House. (30) He left in 1873 for either Bismarck or
Sdwinton to engage in the manufacture of "Cronk bead." (31) and the Irudell
boothers may have gone with him as they seem to have left Breinerd sbout that

timee

Peake & Wekefield owned the building east of Trudell's place. They were
both early residents of Crow Wing and had come to Brainerd in 1871 and bought
out Hannauer & Newmiii} This latter firm, who may have been there as early as
1870, consisted of Gustave Hannauer and Maier Newman. (33) Peake & Wake-
field established a store in Aitkin about the time they opened their place
in Brainerd, but dissolved partnership in 1873. (34) The Brainerd store was

destroyed by fire in August 1876 (35) end then Mr. Peake seems to have

severed his business comnections in this countye.

Next to the Peake & Wakefield store was the Falconer House, owned and
operated by Williem Falconer. It was noted as being one of the few two-
storied buildings in the settlement. The two lots east of this holel are
shown as being occupied by tentse These lots belonged to Dennis lecNamnay
and H.M.Mixter. MNoclNannay operated & hotel end this may have been one of
the tent hotels described by Frank Johnson. H.M.Mixter was an early Crow
Wing residents  The 1870 census shows that he Wad been born in New York,

was 29 years of age, married, and had one sone He was 2 blacksmith by trade,
and when he moved to Brainerd, he established a shop on Front Streete He
sold an interest to Leopold Zipf and they operated under the name of Mjixter

& Zipfe. (38) 1In 1873, he and Charles H.Beaulieu were in business in Bis-

marck, but dissolved pertnership that same year.($&). Mr. Mixter may
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have remcined in Bismarck, as his name does not appear in Breinerd

records after 1873.

Frank Dunn owned the lot next to Mixter's, while John Bishop owned a
lot just east of Dum'se Dumn also owned another lot east of Bishop's,
while S5.V.R.Sherwood owned the two lots on the southwest corner of Fiftk
and Front streetss In 1871, Frank Dumn had bought out Robert and Geogre
White's barroom, which was located between Sherwood's and Bishop's lotse (38)
He also operated a livery stable on Fifth Street.(39) He was in business

until 1876, when a disastrous fire destroyed his Front Street building. (40)

John Bishop not only owned a store building on lot 10 of block 47, but

he operated the Bishop House just a block west of his store, on Front S treet

between Third and Fourth streets. He was a very influential resident of
Crow Wing county, having come to this part of the state in 1857. At that
time he was employed as a laberer in Wadena and Otter Tail City. (41) He
married one of John McYillis' deughters and by 1870 he was & hotel keeper
at Crow Wings He had been born in New Brunswick mmixwxx in 1832. (42)
He moved to Brainerd early in 1871 and in partmership with Charles F.
Pardee, who had also been a Crow Wing resident, he established the stores
In July, Mr. Pardee sold his interest to J.I.éiilin,/hnd the store was
operated under the firm neme of Bishop & Martin for some time. (44) Nr.
Bishop lived in Brainerd until the early eighties, when he moved to his

place on Gull Leke, where he remained until his death.

J.l.Martin had arrived at Crow Wing in 1870, end the following spring
moved to Brainerd, where he was employed in the sawmill until he beceome
interested in merchandisinge In 1874, he was operating the Shades Billiard
Hall. (45) 1In 1875, he sent for his family, who had remained in Yazoo,
lowa, end they went to live in what had been the Nicollet House, which

stood on the present site of the county jail. (46) He was among those
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whose buildings were destroyed in the disastrous fire of August 1876 (47)
end soon after that he settled on a homestead on Crow Wing Lake, where he
spent the rest of his lifes. He was county commissioner from 1875 until

1877 end from 1881 until 1888,

Although H,A. Hills was probably the first merchant and banker to do any
considerable amount of business in Brainerd, yet enother merchent who was to
play a very important part in the development of the township and c¢ity of
Brainerd, arrived early in 1871, He was Eber H.Bly. Mr. Bly started
business in Brainerd as one of the firm of Fletcher, Bly & Co. The other
menbers of this firm were L.Fletcher, C.M.Loring and Sandford Newell (48),
all of whom were probably Minmeapolis lumbermene Mr, Bly had served several
terms in the Wisconsin legislature before moving to Mimnesota, end in 1878,
when he was a candidate for the liinnesota senate, he promised, if elected,
to consolidate Crow VWing and Cass countiese (49) He was the first mayor of
the eity of Brainerd, and county treasurer Im 1873 end 1874. His first
store was located on Fifth street between Laurel and Front streets, but in
March 1872, he hegan the construction of a large store on the southwest
corner of Sixth and Front streetses The second stroy was Bly Hall, for many
yvears the most important public gathering plaece in Brainerd. (50) His very

extensive lumbering operati®f8 began in 1874, but by 1876, he had become

interested in property in Bismirck, where he plamned to build a $25,000

hotel as soon as the townsite question was settled. (51) He moved to Bis=
march in February 1878, efter having sold his Brainerd lumber business to
Clark & McClure, and his grocery store to Smith & Cempbell. (52) By 1880,

he was called the bonanza king of the Northweste. His Sheriden House at
Bismarck was bringing him an income of $1000 e month, he was heavily in-
terested in the Crookston townsite, had large rentels from Brainerd property,

and had signed & contract with the Northern Pgeifiec to furnish them with
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ten thousand tons of coal from his "Bay Mine,28" (53) which was located

about forty miles west of Bismarck. (54) The following year, he sold all

his Breinerd real estate to B.F.Hartley. It consisted of ten lots, two

stores and a house. (55) That transaction ended his business connections

with Brainerde.

Willism Schwarts was another active merchant of early Brainerds He had
a store on Front S treet and advertised that he sold home made shirts,
drawers and socks, also tobaccos and confectiomery. (56) In October 1878,
he had located a bed of brick clay east of Brainerde He bought it of George
Hol1end end ordered machinery and equipment for & brick making plant. (57)
During June 1879, the first load of brick from the Schwertz & VWeist yems
was hauled into towne. It was cream-colored brick end C.F.Kindred was the
first purchaser. (58) This yard, although located "east" of Brainerd, was
really in Northeast Brainerd, and in 1880, Mr. Schwartz negoiated with the
railroad for a branch line to his yard. (59) 1In July of that year, he
had finished 33 800,000 brick; half that many more were in process of
manufacture, and he expected to finish another 800,000 before the end of
that season. (60) During 1881, he planned on burining three million brick, (61)

but after that, there is no more mention of his operations.

B.F.Hartley was in business in Brainerd even before he bought the Bly
propertye He was a native of York county, New Brunswick and was born in 1850,
He came to Brainerd in 1871 and for two years acted as chief clerk for H.A.Hillse
Then in company with Major Whitehead (who was his uncle), he took a contract

for surveying the Leech Lake and White Oak Point reservations. From 1875

until 1880, he had the government contrazct for carrying mail between Brsasinerd
and Leech Lake, establishing a stage line end putting the first Concord coach
on the roade He lived in Cass county for several years, where he was exten-
sively engaged in the lumber business. He built the first brieck building in

Broinerd, the Hartley Bloeks (62)
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David Slipp, & prominent Brainerd merchant for a lifetime, came from

New Brunswieck in 1871 and opened & grmocery store which he operated until

1880, when he went into the herdware businesse (63) A.N.Peach had a store

on Front Street in 1871, but sold out and moved to Wadena that same year,
although he returned to Brainerd in 1878 to marry lrs. Elizabeth Stone. ( 64)
She was probably the widow of the John A.Stone, who lived in Brainerd

in 1871. (65) James Dewar was in Brainerd in 1871, and he lived here
until his death in 1902, after heving gained the reputation of being one of

the most poyuler and highly respected business men in the countye

Next to the merchants, the hotel keepers seemed to be the most influen=
tial business men. These included: Vim. Lytle, menager of the Headquarters
Hotel; L.B.Coombs of the Northwestern Hotel; E.Ericsom; Lars Frederickson;
P.Creene of the S t.Pgul House; Aylmer & Sicotte of the Sicotte House;
NeR.Brown of the Globe Hotel; James D.Campbell; William liick; and T.C.Bivins
who was in the hotel business for many years although he did not begin his
operations until 1872, a year after he had arrived in Brainerd. E.Stiles
was the owmer of the Northwestern Hotel, although he wax probably was not

engaged in operating ite

There were comparatively few professional men in the Brainerd of 1871,

C.P+Thayer was undoubtedly associated with him. These men were probably
brothers and the records often confuse their initials. Dr. John Rosser
arrived in Brainerd in 1871 to begin practice as an independent physicians
He was & Virginian who had been graduated from Jefferson Medical College

in 1867, after he had served for four years With the Twentym-Eighth Texas
Volunteerse He practiced medicine in his native town until moving to Brain-
erd (66) where he continued to practice until his death, except for short

periods at White Earth and Grand Rapidse.
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George Holland kmat was the first attorney in Brainerd, and he remained
here until his death, becoming one of the most prominent citisens of the
countys T.F.EKnappen was the second attorney to practice heree He took en
active interest in public affeirs and was chairman of the Republican county
committee (67), beside being delegate to district and state conventions.
He represented this distriect in the legislature during 1873, after which he
geems to have left Brainerd. His son was the first child to be baptized in

St.Paults Episcopal Church.

Brainerd was the headquarters of a number of timber contractors, as well
as of men engeged in the retail lumber business. A.D.Prescott was interested
in the lumber business. He had kasx lived at the Chippewa Agency in the late
sixties (68) and after his arrival in Brainerd he had been very active in
promoting educational activities. His home was on the southeast coener of
Norwood and Fifth streets. (69) George Hoyt was also engaged in the retail
sale of lumber. (70) J.D.Bassett, the Minmeapolis lumberman, is named in
the 1871 kmxxkix personal property tax list, as are Barrows, Cobb & Co.
Edward Morse was a contractor, as in 1874 he was named one of a committee
of three men appointed by the state to lay out a road from Brainerd to ¥hite
Osk Point, (71) but he died October 27 of that same year. (72) The tax list
8lso shows that the Northwest Construction Co, were in Brainerd in 1871, as
well as the firm of Seelye & Morton. This latter firm were undoubtedly com-
posted of Stuart Seelye and E,.B.Morton, who was elected second assistant of

"Hook & Ladder Company No. 2" at the election held in November 1872. (73)

Among the other business men of 1871 were: Eugene Briggs, boot and shoe
maker, with a shop on Fifth Street next to the St.Paul House; J.FP.Dunn,
druggistlifth and Front streets; Williems & Towne, who were in business

on lot 18 of block 49. (T74) This latter firm sold out to L.H.Bunnell

in July. (76) 1lir. Bunnell was agent for the Northern Pgoific, (76)
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probably being the first man to hold that position, gnd he also served

o« LYT)

as register of deeds for Crow Wing county during 1872 and 1875,

J.W.Reed operated a saloon located in the Northwestern Hotel (78), while F.
Tidvall was probably one of the early teamsters or draymen. (79) There were
very few women in business in the new settlement, but lrs. Annie Thompscn,
afterward Mrs. John Egan, operated a boarding house in a kog building on
Fourth and Laurel Streets, oprosite the present court houses She was said

to have been the first woman in Brainerd to own land in her own name. (80)

C.T.Hobart, for meny years, a prominent Northern Pacifie official, occupied
a very important position in Brainerd (81) besides being actively interested
in community welfere, particularly through the agency of the Episcopal Church., (82)
Henry Depew was sheriff during 1871, while A.P.Knight was his deputy. (83)
The personal property tax list for that year mentions other residents, whose
nemes seem to appear in no other records: Ertroustine & Co.; Lyons & Bullj;
Jno.E.Bull, Joseph Erbee, George Hays and H.i.Nelsone Merritt Tuttle, probably
& railroad employee, was very active politically. He was elected county come
missioner in November 1872, and in December beceme one of the first board of
aldermen of the cily of Brainerd. He passed away in Janwary 1873, just two
days after attending his first meeting of county commissicners. He had moved
to Brainerd from Duluth in January 1871, having buried his wife there., Ie
was survived by his father, living in Waupaca, Wisconsin, and a sister living

in Minneapolise (84)

The first marriage to be recorded in this county, was that of Joseph Gron-
din to Delina Bhouinard, who were married June 12, 1871 by Robert White, justice
of the peace. The groom was 23 years of age, while the bride was 14 years old.
She was a daughter of Mrs. Charles Darbye. County records do not show any
births during 1871, but the records of the Catholic church at Belle Prairie
show that Rev. Father Buh baptized John Robert Riley, the son of Thomas Riley

end Lizy TinndE born Aug. 12, 1871. His sponsors were James Butler and
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Mary Linghan. He also baptized Marie Crescentia Stermen, daughter of
ligtilda Stermane The sponsors were William Perry and Crescentie liayers.
A daughter, Rosalia, was born to lir. and Mps. toine Bourgois on Janu-
ary 1, 1872, end baptized January 12, Her sponsors were Prefleur and

Marie Ebeur (undoubtedly Mr. and Mrs. Treffle Abear).

Among the Brainerd residents of 1870 and 1871 were a large number of
"floaters"--lumberjacks, transient laborers, adventurers--but amon: the
hundreds who came to try their luck in the new railroad camp, about thirty
men or families, remained to "grow up with the town." Besides those
already mentioned, a number of others arrived in 1871. Most of them were
young, and Breinerd developed from a town into a e¢ity before their in-
fluence was made manifest. Some of them hmym passed away without leaving
descendants to take their place, but their himstories are preserved with
that of the eity of Brainerd. Among these early arrivals, most of whom

later became very prominent in eity affairs, were: Ireffle Abear, Timothy

Brady, Peter Early, A.J.Forsythe, James Gardner, Nathan Heath, John William

Jones, Joseph BLiebler, Peter M,Lagerquist, J.R.Pezg, Eugene St.Aubin and
his step-son, George Gendron, and Seth Temnis. (85) They ceame into a ecrude
frontier town of tents and shacks and left it a city of well established

business places and beautiful homes.
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Lyman P,lhite probably laid out a few blocks and streets soon after he
arrived in Brainerd, but it was September 1871 before a plat of the original
town of Brainerd was filed. The plat was made by Joseph E.Turner of Benton
county, who dated it September & 19, 1871e It was filed on September 25,
1871 with C.H.Beaulieu, Jr., register of deeds of Crow Wing county. The Lake
Superior & Puget Sound Company were named as proprietors of the propkerty.
Gregory Park is shown on this plat; Block 102 was marked as a church and
school block, this being the present site of the Episcopal church, and at the
time the plat was made, the first St.Paul's church was already located there;
then blocks 98, 110 and 159 were reserved as school blocks, the latter being
the original site of the Sixth Street School; the Headquarters Hotel site was
shown as being on the present site of the Northern Pacific depot, the south-
west corner of Sixth and Washington streets; while the north quarter of block
78, that block which lies on the south side of Juniper street between Zighth
and Ninth, was reserved for a coumthousee Water Street led to the Steamboat
Landinge. This street turned southwest from Third Street just below Laurel
street, cutting off the southeast corner of Block 61 as it turned toward the

rivere (1)

The first term of distriect court to be recorded in this county wes held
October 24, 1871 at Peake & lYiakefield's store in Crow Wing. James W.McAelvey
was the judge; W.W.Hartley was clerk; and Henry Dressen acted as sheriffe
As there were no oriminal cases, no jurors were callede There was one ocivil
case, John Bishop vs Dennis Stack, but as the defendant failed to appear, the

case was continuved., (2) _JeHh Bishop had sold his Crow ¥ing hotel property to

3
Dennis Stack and was probably suinmg for payment. ($)

The election of 1871 was & great svent in the historyof-Brainerd. —At-{that
time—bhevoters-were: to decide whether Brainerd or Crow Wing should be the

county seate Iwo hundred and eigghty-three votes were cast: 161 Republican
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and 122 Democratic. (4) Hew the vote on the selecbien—of—the county seat was

—<dimpidedais. not recorded, but Brainerd got that heoner. T, e election held in

1870 had left the county offickes in a rather confused state. I he men named to
office, with one exception, failed to serve, But the results of the election
held in 1871 were far more definites Wallace Beane and F.W.Peake held over as
Bounty commissioners, and W.M.Falconer was the new member of the board. Chase He
Beaulieu was replaced by L.H.Bunnell as register of deeds. Mr. Bunnell was the
agent for the Northern Pacifie railroad, (a) W.W,Hartley hedd a number of of-
fices. He had been appointed judge of probate in 1871 to fill the unexpired
term of Thomas Catheart, who had died; he was appointed auditor in March 1871
although W.P.McElroy had been declared elected. A% Hertley was elected auditor
for the 1872 term. In this election he was opposed by Joseph Hare. flzs Hare
was a partner of E.R.Fremnch and afterward went to Bismarck, where he bcame a
police judge. (b) My Hartley was appointed clerk of courts by Judge lickelvey
at the first term of court held in October 1871, and while he was not elected
to this office at the November election in 1871, he served as deputy for khm
W.M.Lytle, who was elected but who served only a short time. At Hartley
finished the 1872 term and was then elected to this office, which position he
continued f£o hold through 1879, E.C.Winnie was elected treasurer, but served
only until April 27, when he resigned and H.A.Hills was appointed. (cJ)

part of

During/lu?l, Henry Uressen,at that time operating a hotel in Crow Wing, served
as sheriff, and Henry Depew also filled this office for a few months . J.M.
Ayers acted as a deputysheriff. (d) ﬁut the eloctionﬁput John Gurrell in that

office. =/

!mr. Gurrell had a difficult job on his hands, and seems to have fulfilled
it satisfaotorily. M.C.Russell said: "We think Crow liing county can boast of
as accomplished,zmit faithful and umtiring & Sheriff ds any county in the states
Sheriff Gurrell has had an extended exverience as an officer of the law, prin-
cipally in the country west of the Missouri River. All the way from llexico
to Montana, and from the Missouri to the Pacifie, he is well known as a terror

to all evil doers. He was City Marshal of Cheyenne during its bloodiest histor%’
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end U.S.Marshal in Wyoming and other of those gold-bearing territories, be-
sides serving a long term as a U.S.0fficer in Utah among the lormonse He has

a jeil-pet confined in our county jail that he has arrested before in three
different territories west of the Missouri. Sheriff Gurrell has, probably a
better kmowledge of all the roughs, and their deeds end character, that have
been or will be along the Northern Pacific Railroad during its comnstruetion,
than any other men in this country. We fe#l grutified, with the entire com-
mmity, that we have an officer in Mr. Gurrell who knows his duties and is
willing to perform them to the letter.” (e) He was severely criticized for his
attitude during the excitement of the lynching of two Indians accused of the
mugder of Bllen McArthur, end he sued the Detroit Record for libel. (f)

In 1874, he and Mrs. Gurrell adopted a little girl whose mother kept & brothel .
Soon after this, they moved to rembina, Dakota Territory, where he died July 12,

1875. (h)

George W.Hylland was elected county attorney. He was one of the very early
residents of Breainerd, having come here from Otter Teil City in 1871 (i) and
one of those who remained the rest of their livess Dr. S.W.Thayer was coroner,
although Dr. C.P.Thayer had been elected to this office for the 1871 terms
There was no superintendent of schools elected for 1872, and this office re-

mained an appointive one until November 1877, The first su,erintendenﬁfwus

appointed in 1873, -He=wms (J.S.Campbell,) M.C.Kimberley, who had been in charge

of the crew who surveyed this section of the Northern Faeific in 1870, was sur-

veyor during 1872. J.C.Walters, who had been a court commissioner in 1871,
continued to serve during 1872+ (j) The county was fortunate in its selection
of officisls, as they seem to have been a very exceptional group for a small

frontier countye
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mm&mga@m@@mmmmm@mﬁ Less than eighteen
months after the railroad surveyops had determined the location of "The Cross-
ing," it was an organized township and a county seaty and claimed a popu=
lation of 1300 inhabitantse How it appesred to em outsider may be judged
from the following deseription: "Everybody has beard of 'Brainard' on the M.P.
railroad; but few are aware that this little 'City of fines' 1s a go-ahead
place of 140 houses, and a population of 1300, bus such is the fact. That its
jnhabitants use considersble 'hard sguff' may be judged by the fact that there
are only 40 gih mills in it. As for eating houses, there are only 26« The
'Headquarters' is about finished, and ere long the traveling public will have

the pleasure of satisfying the 'immer Mgn' at the largest establishment of its

kind on the Northern Pacifice Sometimes rowdies kick up & musse To punish such,

the authorities have let a econtruct for building a courthouse with a jalil ate
tached. Brainerd owes its ﬁganks to W.W.Hartley, Esqe, county auditor, for his
exertion in having it builte The sale of lots has been lively for some weeks
past, and the principal business men propose moving a littlenearer the depote
With the building of more sawmills, machine shops, foundries and the estab=
lsihment of a newspaper, which latter is the most important feature of Brain-
ard!s progress, she is bound to be a place of no small notee The menufacturing
of ties has been carried on very satisfactorily this winter, the principal con-
tractors being C.L.Ramely, Bassett & Chandler. The greatest drawback has been
the want of a number of good axemene It has been reported that Ramely & Bassett
intend putting up a new sawmill for the purpose of cutting ties, and may they

be successful in their undertaking." (5)

The establishment of the newspaper was, historically speaking, a very jxm=
portent step in the town's progress, and the first issue appeared Februaiy 10,

1872+, M.C.Russell was the editor and publisher of the»Brainerd Tribune, the
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first newspaper to be established along the line of the Northern Pacifice

This first issue was printed at the S5St.Cloud Journal office, with C.W.Kingsbury
as foreman, and George Allen, "devil." Three hundred copies were printed and
sent by express to Brainerd, where they readily sold for 1o¢'a COpPY » It was
several ﬁ::iﬁ; beforeyK;5 Russell installed a printing outfit at Brainerd.

The subseription rutgs ﬁefe two dollars a year and the advertising rate for

1 full column for three months was $35.00. (6)

M.C.Russell was an exceptionally fine editor, and his influence extended
fer outside his locad territory. His efforts to secure decency and good
government must be admired, and his courage can only be measured when one
realizes what it must have meant to take an open and fearless stand on vital
issues so out of harmony with the life of a wide-open railroad camp, and so
opposed to the business interests of the Ybig lumbermen.¥ Before estab-
lishing the ;f}bune, M%} Russell had been in pagtemmeship with his brother,

E.U.Russell, in the hotel businesse (7) The publishing business may not have
January 1873
been as progperous as he expected, for in Mxxmit he bought out N.R.Brown and

began merchandising. (8) Mrs. Russell, associated with Mrg. Gorhsm, had con-

ducted a dressmaking parlor during 1872. (9) In November 1873, he must have
he never
been a candidate for revresentative in the legislature, but IxExKnxxxsm served

gurimgxknkzxk 50 his announcement of his eleetion was a little premature. (10)
£

In August 1874, he went into partmership with ~.P.Wall of Audobon, who had been

publishing the Audobon Journal before joining M, Russell. (11) Shortly before

Christmas, of that year, fire destroyg@ not oﬁly the office building, but his
entire outfit. 'Mfi Russell left for £ﬁ§:cities to buy e new outfit and during
his 'absence, his friends bought a buiiding 18x30' in size and moved it onto

a couple of lots lir. Russell owned at the corner of Front street and Browdwaye.
They even had the Tribune sign in place before he returned. (12) This loss

was such a blow to the business that the partnership betweenwﬁf& Ruseell and

% all was dissolved, as there was room for only one man in the business. (13)
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During 1875, M5 Russell was elected as mayor of the e¢ity of Brainerd and
as county auditor, but the last of April 1875, he sold The newspaper plant to
W.W.Hertley, although he retained the job office equipmente (14) He went to

Duluth to assist®X "Brother Presnell” in publishing the Duluth Herald (15),

but returned to Bruinerd later. In January, 1876, he sold;ﬂf,”Hartleﬁ,his
) 2 ﬂ

|

job priniing equiymeht:(l6) and moved to Lake City, where he bought an interest

in The Leader. (17) In Ogtober 1879, he left Lake City and returned to Yuluth,
where he joined the Duluth Tribune force, (18) later reciéiving an apointment
in the Duluth Lend Office. (19) Brainerd was indeed fortunate in havig as one

of its early leaders, a msn who was honest, fearless and public spiriteds

The advertising columns of the newspaper give some idea of the names and
oceupations of the principdd business men of Brainerd. The names of those
appearing in the first issue include: Theo. F.Knappen, attorney, office on
Front Street; Frank Dumn, livery stable, Fifth 8treet; C.F.Stearns, house and
sign painter and graining, opposite Bishop House on Front Street; James Con-
nell, fashionable barber and hair dresser, at Globe Hotel; Nelson, Allen & CoOa,
the Fashioneble Rerber Shop, first door east of Bishop & Martin's store on
Front Street; Jacob Wilhelm, Mechsnics Home Saloon, Frmmixsxkrr Fourth Street;
Joseph Folta, sausage factory at Mechenics Home Seloon; Sicotte & Aylmer,
Sicotte House, corner Fifth and Laurel streets; F.Miller, New Bakery, Fifth
Street; W.W.Hartley, auditor, judge of probate and deputy clerk of Distriet
Court, office opposite drug store; G.W.Holland, attorney; John B.Conant,
justice of peace, office over jail; John Lenihan, Chicago House, Fifth Street;
John Hofmann, Brainerd Brewery, Fifth Street; Lxcelsion Laundry, lest house
emrst on Main Street; T.M,Jordan, Jre., saw filing; N.R.Browm, Globe Hotel end
Oyster Saloon, corner Laurel &nd Fourth streets; Martin & Co., meat market;
H.M.Mixter, blacksmithingm, Front Street; I.Green, St.Paul House; Milt
Askew's Billiard Farlor, Front Street; J.C.VWalters, wholesale liquors; Russell

Brothers, American House; H.A.Hills, the People's Store, Fourth and Front;
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St.Charles Restaurant, Front Street; Vim, F alconer, Fine Restsurant, [Front
Street; Demnis lMeNannay, City Restaursnt, Front Street; Bishop & Martin, gen-
eral merchandise, Front Street; Vm. Schwartz, home made clothing, ete, Front
Street; J.P.Dunn, druggist, Fifth and Front streets; C.W.Brayton, b T e w il g
shomxmukeryx watchmeker, Front Street; Eugene Briggs, boot and shoe maker,
Fifth S treet, next door to St.Paul House; Peake & Wakefield, general merchan=-
dise,"our place of business iff’at the old stand of Hannauer & Newman,=m bain

Street."

During the next few months, a number of new advertisers appeared in the

columns of fhe Iribunes In meny instances, it would be difficult to determine

whether they were newly arrived in Brainerd, or memely new to the advertising
columns. Among them nmewcomers were: Dr, Peter Pillard, office at Bishop
House; David Mullen, Live and Let Iive Saloon, cormer Fourth and Front;

Lyman Bridges & Cos., ready-made houses, Broadway; A.T.Waterbury, contractor and
builder, at St.Charles Restaurunt; John A.Wagner, professional well digger, at
Lumbermen's Hotel; Duclos & Brose, brickyard:‘refer to F.X.Goulet of rioneer
Meat h&rﬁe{; Wick & Srickson, hotel; Fioneer Meat Market, Lafond & Goulet;
Beaulieu & Hemningson, merchants (C.H.Beaulieym, Jre, and Chris Henningson);
E.H.Davie, Fifth Street, hardware and tinning; W.0.Curtis, harness shop, Fifth
between Front and Laurel; Morrison & Fairbanks, grocery; E.H.Bly, merchant;
Mrs, Gorhem snd Mrs. Trudell, ice cream parlor on Front Street; A.S.Thompson,
art gallerys C.T.Bivins, Bivins House; Anderson & Hollgren, pdasterers and
masons, first door north of Hotel Stockholm; Henry Dressem, hairdressing, Front
Street, next door west of Holland's Office; R.K.Whiteley, real estate and
surveyor; E.B.Lynde, merchant, first door east of Wallersk Red Store;

Cole & Douglas, photograph gallery; Trudell & Aylmer, pop factorys (20)

The personal property tax list for 1872 eontains a number of names that
do not appear in the advertising columns. A flew nemes are those of people

who afterward mede their homes in Brainerd, but many left only their neme
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as a memento of their stay in the City of Finese This list includes the fol=
loving pbded: Milt Askew, John Andrews, J.M.Ayers, Ben Askens, John Bishop,

Eber H,Bly, N.P.Brown, Lyman Bridges, Eugene Briggs, Felix Battles, Beaulieu &
Henningson, Bish op & Martin, T.C.BiVins, l.J.Brown, L.Breinerd, Cerlton Curry,
Sally Campbell, C.Christianson, W.H.Chamberlain, A.B.Calendar, T.P.Cantwell,
Cantwell & Cos, H.G.Coykendall, John B.Conant, Bailey, Barker & Coe, John
Blackburn, Alfred Blackburn, Paul D,Davenport, E.H.Davie, Frank Dunn, Henry
Dressen, George Dyer, C.Darby, Sem Donner, M.Dorward, T.H.Duggan, Lyman Deal,
Peter Early, Mrs. John Egan, Frederickson & Morin, E.S.Fowler, W.M.Falconer,
Fosback & Sturm, V,Gruvelle, John Gurrell, Frank H,Goulet, Mrs. Pat Green,

Thos., Giibort, Burney Griffin, J.A.Hannauer, H.,A,Hills, T.Hireen, Holmes Brose,
C.3.Hazen, G.W.Holland, W.W,Hartley, Jas.Hurt, Geo. Hartley, C.T.Hobart, Jase
Hopkips, --Hewitt, (or Hevit), W.S.Heathcote, Nelson Hanson, John Hoffman, John
Hogun, T.M.Jordan, Jre, R.L.Jones (frof.), Geo. Johnson, C.Johnson, Otto Johnson,
Andrew Johnson, George Klock, Frank F.Keating, T.F.Knappen, Chase E.Kimball,
C.D.Keene, Joe Kiebler, H.A.Keely, Lafond & Goulet, Aupust Lettau, Nelson Lof-
strom, Herbert Lafond, John Lewis, John Lafond, Ida Lewis, Brad Lufkin, C.Liv-
ingstone, John Lenihan, H.M.Mixter, A.B.Meyers, Ed.Morse, M.P.Martin, John lMeyers,
Morrison & Fairbanks, W.Menn, S,E.Miller, John Murghy, C.W.Mead, Dennis MeNannay,
Micheel McLean, A,F.McKay, D,M.McDonald, Michael bcliahen, Lawrence McfFherson,
John McCarthy, :N.P.Mfg. Coe, Ylson & Morin, E.R.Perry, W.A,Peterson, Henry

raul, Mrs, 0.S.Perry, Joseph folta, Thos., Parrott, J.R.Pegg, B.Le.Perry, J.C.Provo,
M,L.Pollard, D.O.,Preston, Jos.W.Reed, E.U.Russell, H.H.Richardson, Niel Ras-
mussen. John Reynolds, ¥im,Schwartz, S.V.R.Sherwood, Spicer & Carlisle, Z.L.
Strauss, J.L.Starcher, N.Sicotte, W.P.Spalding, Vin.Simpson, Thos. Shuw, Geo.H.
Bmith, Washington Snyder, Nellie Thurston, Trudell & Aylmer, Henry Tull, $aesx

Kxkicoixinkexkixy Theo, W,Wakelie, C.B.Wiley, J.C.Walters, Edward White,

Wick & Mahlum, R.K.Whiteley, L.P.White, John White, Mrs, Youny and Celia

Blacketters
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Several men who conducted substantial merchandising establishments ap=-

Q

peared in Brainerd during 1872, Among these were Thomas Cantwell, V.S.Strauss,

E.B.Lynde and
J.L.Starcher, H.G.Coykendall,/ﬁas.H.Hallett. F.X.Goulet went into partnership
with John Lafond in a butcher shop; Warren H.lLeland, for many years one of the
leading hotel men of the city, arrived in 1872; Henry VUressen opened a barper
shop; Ed R.French and Jos. Hare, Jr., established lLeBon Ton . And it was
during 1872 that so many business people of the Crow liing settlement moved

by the early partef 1871

inte Brainerd. The Crow Wing residents who had moved to Bruinerd mxrIxximxI&¥X
included N.Gravelle, Charles Darby, John Bishop, Peake & Wakefield, H.M.Mixter,
Chas,.F.Pardee, and W,W,Hartley, although the latter had been a resident of Crow
Wing only a few months before moving to Brainerd. Then came C.H.Beaulieu, Jr
and Chris Hemningson, who operated under the firm name of Beaulieu & Henningson;
Morrison & Fairbanks; Edwerd B.,Lynde; Mrs. Sarah Chapman and her brother-in=law,
Tyler Chapmen; lipg, Chris Grandelmeyer and her sister, Miﬁﬁ Rachel Morrisonj
Henry Dressen; Mr. and Mrs. Charles “undine, who had been‘employed by lr.
Dressen in his Crow Wing hotel; and George Whitneys. Mﬁi Whitney, mhb;éevvodﬁas
sheriff of Crow Ving county SréM*IS76-throufh—167%9, married Mrs. Beulah Ferrell

who had moved to Brainerd in 1873, and whose daughter, Isabelle Ferrell, be-

came Mrs., Henry Spaldinge

F.X.Goulet , a Canadian lumberman who moved to Morrison county in 1867,
remained in Brainerd from 1872 until 1878. He was a member of the first eity
council of Brainerd smd was auditor of Crow Ying county from 1873 until he
left the county. He represented this district in the legislature durimg Lo
ia%Gxomd 1876s He purchased (his brother, D.0O.Goulet's, interest in the mills
and store at Belle Prairie in 1678 and spent hhe rest of his life at that

place. (21)

One of the first industriesj' bgside the railrcad shops and Li¥e sawmills, )

to be established in Brainerdy was a brickyard. The advertisement of Duclos

& Brose briockyard appeared early in lMarche g&nixxxidxxxxxnnxxgi!znxasx

They—used the neme of F.X.Goulet as a reference. (22) As=llll Goulet was—
L )
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married gio-diwsAdelaide Duclos, hesmay-hawve been.ratiier biased/aé'u-referenoe. (20)

f\

" A few months later, R.S.Knapp exhibited the first bricks made at the N.l.Mfg.

Compeny's yardse Their first kiln had a capacity of 75,000 bricks, &methe

second MTTIWAS ALl roady- 6o be burncdy-medd 150,000 brickse (24)A Mr. Knapp
returned to Brainerd in 1882, and stated that he had owned and operaved the mill
that stood just above the bridges His'initiaiépwere J « B+, insbead—of=the RS,
of Fhe—=forezoing, so he was probably not the same man, although R.S.Knapp had
been in the lumbering business since 1853, before acting as superintendent of the

N.P.Mfg. Company in Brainerd. (25)

Bailey, Parker and po-’é;£ublished a foundry in 1872+ It was going "full

blast" by Auguste (26j BﬂiuBuileyﬁﬁ&s tise local manager, but the business was
S5 oparsiilin akly's Dewimaths:’ Yo the Dante dE THTS shaseteibibiin aul i A0
mever re-opened as & foundrye It‘ﬁa& ﬁhé largest building in the city, .eamd .

sboed at the corner of Laurel and Tenth Streets.’ #t stood vdcent for several
years and then(Fr,,Shupe converted it into a theatre building, "Shupe's Theatre."
During the last-ﬁeek of Agust, 1878, the building wes complete} destroyed by
fire. (27) E.H.Davie put up a large building, which he sold to T.C.Bivins,
but he did not leave Breinerd, but acquired another building and put in a
hardware and tin shop., (28) C.D.Wiley was master mechanic at the shops, and
W.S.Heathcote was emplcyed there. The former invented & bolt-making machine,
wnile the latter invented a special dry=kiln. (29) Later,gﬁg} Heathcote
moved to Deer Creek, where he acted as justice of the peaces. During his
residence there, he killed a man named W,T.Barnes, but was ascquitted of the
murder and returned to his judioial duties. (30) Lawrence MePherson was
foreman of the Northern Pacific roundhouse, and lived in Brainerd until the
eighties. (31) Chas,.E.Kimball was proprietor of the St.Charles Restaursnt,
which he sold in November 1872, to M.T.Saulsberrye. It was located on lots
7 and 8 of block 47. (32) A.F.McKay was elected sheriff of Crow Wing county
in November , 1873 In order to keep the Indians from getting liquor in

Brainerd, he made it the policy of his office to keep them out of towne This
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caused considerable dissatisfaction, as the compleint was made that thls
exclusion policy hurt business. (38) Mr. McKay did not finish his term of
office, as it was discovered that he had never become e naturalized citizen.

George Whitney was chosen to finish the term. (34)

There is a tradition that Crow Wing county owned a courthouse at Crow
Wing, but the first public building of record is the two-story building“that
was used as & jail and a courthouses It was & building 18x28 feet in size,

built of seantling, lying flate L.P.White took the contract for $971460,

but David E.West did the actual worke The fist story was used as a sheriff's

office and jail, while the second story was a court roome. "Limpy Jack & Cos"
were the first inmates of the county jail, taking possession two days before
the building was completeds They were Jack Langdon and John Chisholm, who
were accused of entering John Morrison's warehouse and stealing forly pairs
of blankets. (35, The real estate tax list for 1873 shows that lot 8 of
block 65 was the site of the county jail. fhis is the site now occupied by

the garage building located on Fifth S treet between Laurel and Maple streets.

Quite an imposing private residence was finished in February 1872, 1t was
the home of A.T.Waterbury, the builder and contractor, and was located on
Laurel, just west of Broadway. (36) In March, W.0.Curtis of Minneopolis
opened a harness shop on Fifth street, between Front and Laurel. (37, But
the most important event of March 1872, was the town electione George Clapp
was elected chairmen of the board of supervisors; Milton Askew and William
Wick were t e other two members of the board; Henry Trudell was clerk;

John P, Dumn, treasurer; W.M.,Falconer, assessor; J.C.Walters end J.B.Conant,
justices; lichael McClear and Dennis lMcNannay, constables; and F.Green,

overseer of highwayse. (38)
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J.M.Hannaford, a very prominent official of the Northern Facific railroad,

arrived in Brainerd in May 1872, to/take the position of secretary to(ilry/ Chsse;

the freight agent. (39) Captﬁln Houbhton of the stoamcr,‘ioke”ama/ besen muk-’
ife his headquarters in qulrcrd QS soon as regular freight service was estab-
lsihed. He had begun making trips up the Mississippi as far as Pokegama, as
early as 1867, when he made his headquarters at Crow iing. (40) He would go
up river in the spring,<tring¥ng down lumbermen from the upper woods, gnd then

e 3 s
in the fallf he wouid-begin-making tris-wp-river, carryiaer supplie§ to the

9 LA
camps (41) The ‘shesffie™ was a wood burner end it -met@@mly stopped often to

re—fuel‘ but it was sometimes necessary for both erew and passengers to get out
and cut the fuel as well as load ite Vhile he still made his headquarters at
Crow Ying, Captain Houghton wrote, "I give you the principal items of our first
trip from Crow Wing to Pokegama Falls. Ve left this village on Saturday, June
25 (1870) ¥mit with a good passenger list and a few tons of freipght for Sandy
Leke and Fokegema, and made the round trip in six days, laying up nights and
stopping to cut and carry all our wood aboards Vi made 90 miles the first day
without accident except kmocking down one of our smoke stacks in the eveninge
We topped and rigged up a derrick the same evening, end put the stack in

place early the next morninge o « I expect in a few days to meke a personal
e:{zmliniution of Dandy Lgke and River, and Rice Lake and River, with a view of
transporting freight by steamboat and barges through those lakes end rivers

to within a very few miles of the Northern Facific Reilroad, about midway
between the Dalles of the St.Louis River and the Mississippi Rivere I am
setisfied that I can transport all their supplies by this route much cheaper
then they cen get them any other way." (42) Nothng came of this scheme,

but the captain continued his trips until 1877, 1In December of that year,

the Pokegems burned near Aitkin, (43)
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Two other interesting men who Jived.inABrainerd in 1872 were L.B.Lynde
and Mark Kellogge ‘M§. Lynde hed come i&éovﬁhis county before 1860, to work
for his brother, J.W.lLynde, Indian Agent and tradere. Later, he established a
grocery store at Crzﬁ'sing, in partnership with &dlliam,wade.ﬂbfhé§ dissolved
partnership in 1872,;§nd,then iy, Iynde moved to Brainerd, where he bought the
building and lot 11, block 49, from Erick Erickson and VWilliam Wicke (48) He
opened a store there with what was said to be the biggest stock of goods ever
displayed in Brainerd. (46) A son, his one end only child, was born in Bdainerd
in November 1873, (47) 1In 1874, he went to Cedar Rapids, Iowe, to visit at the
home of his father-in=law and to recuperate his shattered healthe. He died there
June 8, 1874, age forty years, (48) smmmrimg From the reputation he made during
his stay in Crow Wing county, he was a man of exceptionally fine character. His
wife returned to Brainerd and made her living first as a milliner (49) eand later

kept o boarding house on south Ninth S treet. (50)

Mark H.Kellogg was employed as a train dispatecher and operstor at Braierd

by the Northern Pacifice Associated with W.W.Hartley, he pub‘ished/”The Daily
~Greelyy Weve," a presidential campaign paper issued in Brainerd during 1872.

In that year, he was also a liberal candidate«aélﬁ meiiber-of the state legis-
latu;e,‘being defeated for.this-office by T.F.Knappeny with-e very smali-majore
ity. (51) He took & very active interest, mot only in politics, but in all
.public affsirs. He served as secretary of the first fire department (52);

was a corporal in Compeny E of the militia (53); eand served as deputy olerk
of court in 1872. (54) He probebly left for Bismarck about 1873, end wes there

in 1876, llhen General Custer went on his last campaipn, My Kellogg ac-

companied him as a correspondent. The.reghler—eernespendentfor-the New York

Heral%f\C.».Lounsberry ) was—unable-6e-—£oy sghﬁii-hellogg substituted. The

Herald afterward paid Mrs. Kellogg $3500  as comyensation, adbiwengh at that time

4his=was an almost unprecedented pkdee of generosity. (55)
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Brainerd was booming during 1872, but Crow Wing county wes nelfleumishing,

finunci&i;y. in Mareh, 1871, W.W.,Hartley, county auditor, reported that the
county had a cash mbalance of $487.10. (563 The financial statement of 1872
was not so rosye During 1871, the ccmmissioners had allowed claims to the
amount of 33408499, They had paid out $1770,03, and the county owed $163896.
Their-receipvs hed been TUW,—lhoweyer. Taxes collected during 1871 amounted to
only $430436e. (57) During the year ending March 1, 1871, the county had col=-
lected the-sum of $1111.26, mostiefart-from licenses issued. Evidently the
officials serving during 1871 had been yery poor collectors. But the news-
peper could s till boast that "county orders are worth their face wherever

known." (58)

The "good old days" seem to meny people to be far superior to the turbulent
anid terrible present, but to those who lived in Brainerd in the early seventies,
the world also had its forbidding aspeets. As M.C.Russell said: "Bleodshed
seens to be rempant in all the world at present. Every paper from far and near
is laden with blood=-curdling accounts of--to say nothing of aceidental terrors--
mirder, assassination, smicide, homicide, massacres, arson, etce., until one
almost dreads tc take up a paper to reads A mighty people, must, in some wise
manner, in this country, take up measures to check this growing mania for

bloodshed--it is awful.," (59)

County politiecians were very active in the spring of 1872. The Republican
county orgenization met and organized. T.l'.Knappen was appointed chairman of
the executive committee, assisted by J.C.Walters and Williem ificke Adf. Knappen
and Mr, Walters were elected delegates to the state convention held at Min=-
neapolis, At that convention, hf; Walters was honored by being nemed an alter-
nate to the National Convention to be held at rhilddelphia. (60) Local town-
ship officials were chiefly concerned with sidewalk construction and the pro-

blem of a Sunday closing ordinances. It seemed impossible to close business
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houses by law, but a group of progressive merchants advertised that they would
close at noon on Sunday, providing that all other stores, except salooms, would
do the seme. These merchants were: Cantwell & Cos, H.A.Hills, E.H.Bly, Beaulieu
& Henningson, John F,Dumn, .H.Davie, Brown & Parkinson, Paul De.Davenport and
J.C.Walterse (61) But it was several years before stores in Brainerd made a
habit of closing on Sundays. - - Buwt—sidewalks were another mabter. / By July,
1872, Brainerd could boast aR "a splendid new sidewalk has been laid all the
way down Front Street between Fifth and Sixth, (62) This splendid sidewalk
seoems to have served the community until the following year, when consturction
of a sidewalk was begun that would furnish a promenade "on both sides of

Laurel Street, from end to end." (63) So at a very early date, Laurel Street

began wresting kmxhmmaex from Front Street) the honmor of being the main

thoroughfare of the community.
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Court Minutes, Vol. A, p-ll.

Deed Record A, p-243.

Brainerd fribune, March 16, 1872.
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Broinerd Tribune, May 11,1872,

Clerk of C.urts, Civil Cases, No. 2.
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The McArthur Case

e —— . - —

The disappearsnce of Helen MeArthur end the "Blueberry War" were the #dost
exCiting events of 1872, in fact, there has never been anything in the history
of Brainerd to equal them. A bare recital of the facts, as they appear to us
after the lapse of muxmxxkam seventy years, would fail to arouse the tense
emotions that swayed the Bruinerd of 1872 A far more realistic description
can be obtained from contemporary newspaper records, The following account
is token from the pages of the Brainerd Tribune.

July 13, 1872

"Wle have heard a naked rumor that the body of Miss McArthur, who so myster-
jously disappeared from home two months ago, has been found in the Crow Wing
_River - &hat it was evident she had been murdered, and that three half breeds
have been arrested at Oak Lake as the perpetrators of This awful deed. This is

but rumor as we have said.

"Since writing the above we have been enabled to gather a few further par-
ticularse Several days ago, as we are informed, the parents of the missing
young lady, (who reside two miles this side of Crow iing, ten miles south of

Brainerd), heard that their daughter was at Leech Lake, among the rfillager

Indians - having been kidnapped and carried off by one of this miserable band

of wretchess Accordingly, parties were sent to Leech Lgke authorized to ascer=
tain the facts and retake her. Upon their arrival the Indiens told them that
the 8irl had never been brought there, but said that two half breeds were then
at Leech Loke, who had told in a bragging manmmner that they had murdered Miss
MeArthur near Crow Uing Village on the day of her disappearance, after ravishing
her. They also kmkdxim had said that after the deed they took her shawl, tied
it full of stones, end attaching it to her waist sunk her body in a slough

near the place that they had committed the deed, and but a little way from where
she had parted with her sisters The parties, upon this information, ferreted
out the two half breeds and arrested them. They arrived at Oak Lake, on the

NeP., with the prisoners on Thursday and telegraphed to Sheriff Gurrell to
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come out and get them, and bring them to Brainerd for safe keeping « OUn
Thursday night our sheriff sent out a deputy who could speak the Chippewa

Language, snd by yesterdsy's train from The West they arrived, and were turned

over to him and locked upe A great crowd of our citizens gathered at the de=
E &

pot to see them and followed them en masse to the jail, muttering many threats
against the supposed perpetrators of this awful deed, the character of which
causes one's heart to almost sink within him. They will probably be brought
up for a hearing to-day or Monday, and should they be proved guilty, we
course
cannot say what may be the ¥xusm of an indignant and outraged publice This,
coming upon the heels of the Cook femily tragedy, is calculated to excitethe
most orderly and law abiding community to take the law of self-preservation
into their own hands. lie hope, however, that they may permit the law to take
its course, and if found guilty they will meet their just reward, though we
are aware that the perpetration of such a deed in our midst is & hard thing
to be patient over. The half breeds are both young and about The same agee
At the trial, the parents, friends and neighbors of the young lady will pro
bably be khere, and the tragedy, so long shrouded in mystery will doubtless

[
cleared up, when we shall publish the particulars.

July 20, 1l872.

"Tuesday last at two o'clock was the day and hour set for the examination
of the two half breeds oonfined in jail here, charged with the murder of liiss
Helen McArthure The family of the murdered girl, together with a large num—
ber of citizens of Crow Wing and Little Falls were present, and as the hour
drew nigh for the examination to commence, the court room was packed with
citigens to witness the proceedingse The prisoners were brought up from the
cells below by Sheriff Gurrell, the complaint read, to which they both
pleaded "Hot guilty." The defense for one of the priscners, Te=-be-ko-ke-

shick-wabe asked further time, or en adjourmment, in order that certain wit-
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nesses might be procured which it was alleged would establish the innocense

of this Indien - or half breedes After some argument u.on points of law gov=
erning adjourmments, etc., the court was adjourned until Thursday, the 25th
inste, when a full exemination into this case will doubtless be had., There was
8 very evident disappointment on the part of the crowd of spectators, at tThe
adjournment, as the case is one fraught with horrible details, without a

doubt, and one in which the deepest and fin@e% feelings of sympathy of

thousands of people are enlisted - in the fate of this estimable young ladye

"The citizens of Brainerd, by private subscriptiocn, have raised about

two hundred dollers, which they offer, (in posters, now being circulated)

to any person who will find and produce the body of Miss lMcirthur, supposed
to have been murdered by the two half breeds now in custody here. This is

right, liberal, and just as it should be.

"On llednesdey last a large party of citizens went from here and Crow iing,
to search for the remains of Miss MeArthur, in the neighborhood of where she
was last seen, which was a short distance this side of the latter villapee
It had been learned through Indien sources that the murderers, after accom-
plishing their vile purposes had murdered her and sunk her body in one of the
adjacent sloughse Or, rather, tramped it down into the soft, marshy soil
on the border of one of them. But as two months have intervened since then,
the mershes and sloughs hsve grown full of grass and other vegetation, little hope
was entertained, of finding the remains, to start with, unless by mere ac-
cidente The search was vigorously prosecuted until towards evening, when it
was abendoned, end they returned. Even under the most favorable circumstances,
however, little hope could be entertained of finding it , as so long a time,
at this season of the year, would have left nothing more than the bones, to

be found.
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"It was not entirely unexpected on Tuesdey evening last, by our citizens,
when a long and continuous shout arose from the corner of Front and Fourth
streets, which at once signifiied that the talked of mob had organized for

the purpose of h;égng the two half breeds confined in our jail, charged with
/‘

the murder of Miss Helen MeArthur - a tragedy which has heretofore been re-

corded in these columnse, Although it has been noised about for two or three
deys, however, that they would be hung, our citizens were not lcoking for so
sudden an outbreak, and as a consequence all-those not in the secret were
taken by surprise, not to say alsrmed at the simultaneous uproar, and soon
over a thousand people outside the mob proper were in the streets to divine
the exact reason of the rumult, It seems that fifty or more persons had
orgenized quietly near the place designated, and after a hkmm shout or two
proceeded up Front to Fifth and down Fifth to the jasile By the time they had
reached it the street for nearly two blocks was packed with people, to witness
the strange sight they kmew was about to be enactede Upon the arrival of the
head of the column at the front door they promptly smashed it in with a stick
of timber which they curried for the purpose, and ere Sheriff Gurrell (who had
had been sitting at his desk writing) was scarcely aware of what was going on,
he found himself completely in the power of the mob. They got hold of the
keys to the cells and in another instant the two prisoners were in the street,
marching under a massive guard back to the big pine tree at the corner of
Front and Fourth streets, in front of the "Last Turn" saloon, which has two
large limbs reaching over the sidewalk. Upon their arrival at the fatal

spot they were allowed a few minutes for prayer, instructed and lead by a
minister, and =fter considerable trouble in getting the rope over the limb
one of these supposed murderers was strung high above the heads of the wvast
assemblage. He died hard and it was many minutes ere death relieved him of

his agony. robably ten minutes elapsed before the other one was made ready
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for his gallows flight, during which time he plead pitewusly to be spared =
telling many stories of explanation, ete., but we could not hear, f rom where
he stood, what all he had to offere. Soon his arms were secured behind him,
a handkerchief tied over his eyes, when he wes run up beside his dead com-
paniones In the first struggle he tore his arms loose from the thongs, and
spreng along up the rope to the limb above. Just as he reached it, howwwer,
a shot from a revolver below brought him down with a heavy shock to the end of
the ropes The first shot was quickly followed by mamy others, snd in a short
space he too was a dangling corpses They were left handing until morning when
weveral photographs were taken, when they were cut down, placed in a box and
carted away. And thus ended, by a fearful scene, the lives of two young half
breeds, acknowledged on all sides to be very bad Indians, and believed, by a
majority of this community, to be guilty of the crime for which they were hunge
0f course there was a great diversity of opinion as to the justice or injustice
of the deed, but it is generally acceded that they were deserving of the fate
they met, on general principles, snd outside the last offense mhx with which
but
they stood chargede Although the carrying out of such law cannot/be deplored
by all good citizens, so long as there is a hope that justice may be done by a
regular course of lawe A higher power, however, we leave to judge of the

righteousness of this deed done in our city on Tuesday night laste

"On Thursday night last, in answer to a telegram sent by Sheriff Gurrell,
Y g - ¥

a detachment of seventy-five soldiers arrived from St.Paul on the train from
the east, under the command of Ceptain Buckner. Upon their arrival they seemed
somewhat sur rised at finding but some half dozen solitary redskins, getting out
of town as fast as they could at one end as soon as they saw the soldiers com-
ing in at the other, They landed on the platform at the Headquarters, and

after forming in rank, and showing the citizens what they knew about Indian
fighting, marched, four abreest, to Bly's Hall, where they took up their
@uarters for the nighte The next (Friday) morning, fifty of the detabhment

returned to StePaul, and the remainder are still here, awaiting furbher eventse
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"We have just returned from abroad, whither we went, with others, to allay
the fears and secure the comparative happiness of our familys. The whole State
at this moment has its eyes and ears turned toward Brainerd, awaiting from hour
to hour the news from this place with reference to the probably outbreak of
the Chippewe Indians, in retalitation fov the hanging by a mob of two Pillager
half breeds, suspicioned of the murder of Miss Helen lMcArthur, as chronicled
elsewhere in our paper. That there is a good and sufficient reason for a
"secare" in Brainerd we admit and believe, especially when we know, as we do, the
Totally Unorgenized condition of its citizens, the contiguous position of sev=
eral bands of Indiens, and the undue haste in the execution of the two half
breedse. In the first place there are a thousand expressed opinions upon the
necessity of any precautions against a raide UMeny laugh and jest at lhe idea
of any being frightened; many say they can "lick a dozen of the best men in
the tribe," ©thers that we can "clean out the whole Chippewa Nation in an

hour}" Others again, that, "There is Enough Men In Brainerd To Make Unly a

Breakfast-Job of the Whole of Tyem," etce, etce Now, all this is the very

vilest of %mXk cheap talk, and most mischievously adulterated at &hate These
are the men who lknow least about it, care least about the safety of the citi-
zensm, are the very first men to back water in en emergencye It is generally
acknowledged that the presence of the soldiers, who have been so kindly end
promptly sent us by the Governor is needless, provided there was The ghost

of an organization of our citizens for Self-Frotectione Very true, we have
men enough in Brainerd to "Clean out the whole Chippewa Nation," if there was
en organized mode of action; as it is, they would be the most worthless cypher
before an attack of even a hundred Indians during the dark hours of night.
jhat We Want, What We Need, and What We Must Have, is an immediate organizastion
of at least two compemies of our citizens into a militia force, apply to the

Governor for arms, let them be received and duly receipted for, let the arms -
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say two hundred stand with plenty of ammunition - be distributed among the
members of these two companies, to be teken to their respective homes end
kept rirht at hend, end then all that remains to be done is to have a signel
understood snd a rendegvous sppointed where they may come together, in any
emergency, and protect life or property from any possible raid, either in or
sbout the tovm, or enywhere among isolated settlers in this section of the
organization
frontiere. We positively assert that this oggmizmkimm is needed, not on ac-
count of the men in town, but to save and prevent the mxxam agonizing fear and
dread thet is so bitterly felt in the bosoms of & large proportion of the
estimable women and children of our towne To live in such eruel dread, as
we lmow meny of them do every hour in Brainerd, of late, is a shame to the
thoughtless men, who have so Bimple and easy a remedy at their command to

completely remove and prevent ite The state has been also put to more ex-

pense already in the present "scare", than would have kept up an effective

home organization for the next twenty years, and had our private counsels
heretofore (with those of a few others) been listened to and acted upon, there
would not have been the slightest need for soldiers from abroad, though a
thousand Indisns might have threatened the places Very soon the handful of
soldiers now here will be taken away, and then we waill agmin commence that
accursed feeling of dread and uncertainty among femilies of women and chil=~
dren, which will make our homex scenes nearer that of mourning than of
happiness and peaces In the present state of our town we would Jjust as

lief have but ten citizens, as the nearly two thousand that are here, for as
a score of drunken or murderous Indianx outlaws would scatter the populace
like a flock of frightened sheep and now that we are speaking of 1t, we most
emphatically ask and demand, for the reasons herewith given, the formation
of at least two companies of our citizens, that security may be felt in our
town, and safety be assured to defenseless settlers in this section, or mark
our words, the "scare" just experienced will not be the last that will go out

ds 1 . 1 - 3. - 2 wn 4= £ - : Il s 3= 2
to the world to the great detriment of this country, and the almost ruimation
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of timid families who will flee from the dangers they imagine exkstse. Ve

h.ve other reasons (though kindred in character) than the ones filed above,
for demanding immediate action in the matter, but yet have faith to believe
that there is sufficient common sense and foresight, and regard for the

peace of our women and children, among at least the better class of our citi<
zens to stimulate them to do their duty in the matter, and prevent any possible
misfortune in future, and save the reputation of our country along the line
from condemnation abroads There will be other "scares" and plenty of them
unless something is donee We do not wish to be understood as intimating that
there is danger of an attack on Brainerd, now or in the future; but whey we so
strongly urge the formation of these Militia companies is, that our families
here may enjoy e feeling of safety, and to bring to a speedy punishment any
@#runken outlaws among the redskins who might pounce upon isolated families
anywhere about this section of country, from any motives of revenge, or from

pu® drunken Indian cussedness.

"Sheriff Gurrell is said to have ordered Indians in and about town to
leave the community, on Wednesday, but they had refused to gos Thereupon he
telegraphed the Governor for tropps to make them go, which was strictly im
accordence with the commends of the Governor's proclamation in relation to
of'ficers ordering the Indians on to their reservation. If he did order them
to leave, and they refused to go, he did Just right to send for assistance
to meke them goe. And now, we want to sse them sent to their reservationx

and made to stay there by Governor Austine

" Some one, who says he know, tells the following about the half-breed

hang ng: 'The two half-breeds hung in Brainerd on Tuesday night, died bravely--

showing not the leust sign of fear, either while going from the jail or under
the gallows tree. Lven when one had hung till he was dead, the other one
laughed and jested with the crowd in a 'devil may care' manmer, s aying that
the one they had hung was dead, and asking why they didn't take him dowm.

It may be that he had some desire to oling to life a little longer, for just
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before being strung up the tree, he hinted to the crowd that he could find the
head and feet of the girl, but it was of no avail, for he had scarcely uttered
the words when he was dangling in the aire. The manner in which he tore the
thongs from his hands, and the swiftness with which he climbed the rope for
the limb above, showed that he was not prostrated with fear. He had nearly
reached the limb, when several pistol shots put an end to his miserable exis-
tencees lihile preparations were being made To hang them they confessed several
dastardly crimes of which they were guilty. Among them were the murder of a
lumberman west of this pluce, last winter, and several others of minor im-
portances Thus, even if they could be proven innocent of the crime for which
they were hung, there was sufficient justification for the strict measures
that were carried out by our citizens. It has been rumored since they were
hung, that Miss McArthur is not dead, and has been seen at the 'Junctiont,
but as this is only rumor there can be no foundation for the statement.
The whole tragedy is veiled as deep in mystery as ever, and as the thing now
stands, there is no hope of the true facts of the case ever being brought to
light. And thus, by taking the lives of the only persons who are supposed
to know herm whereabouts, the fate of the unfortunate girl may forever remain
a mystery - a hidden thing - and pass into history as one of those strange,
unaccountable disappearances, which some times, but not often, have to be
recorded.

August 3, 1872,

"The attempt of the St.Faul Fioneer to ridicule Gove. Austin for his very
prompt response to the call for troops at Brainerd, is to say the least, very
sillye The Governor did just as any good man and faithful Governor should do,
he deserves and does receive the praise and heartiest feelings of fheanks from
all good citizens, of whatever political party, or wherever locatede This is
but a perfect svecimen brick, however, of the arguments and policy of the
lexzders and journals of the opposite party, and such articles as the one
alluded to in the Pioneer is enough to curse it, as an influential, fair-

dealing journal. Ithenever a State officer or Govermment officer endeavors
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to do his whole duty to the people in any way, then look out for slander from
the 'Democratic'! press, and a struggle to make it appear before the people as
a 'political dodge,' or an 'extravagant and useless expenditure of the
people's money.'

August 10, 1872.

"Editor Brainerd Tribune:

"Dear Sir:-The 'Weekly Record,' Detroit, of July 27, and =k August 3, dips
rather heavily in a matter upon which it is either not posted, or wilfully
misrepresents; and for its benefit we would scribble a few lines, to set it
right if it will be set and at any rate to correct its falsehoods, let them
come from whatever sources The articles we refer to are the ungentlemanly
attacks in the issue of the Record above referred to upon John Gurrell, Sheriff
of this county, touching his proceedings in the late lypching affair here and
its connectionse In reading the first article we were led to suppose that a
false report of the affair had reached the ears of its hasty editor; mm and

we locked in vain for an apolog ¥y in the next issue, thinking that another week
would be sufficient to supply him with the necessary fucts of the case. In-
stead, however, he had three spasms of angry spleen, during the week, and

has given vent to each by a separate editorial in each of which his chief
object appears to berate Sheriff Gurrell,'the hero of the blueberry war,!

as he is pleased to call him, Now for our part we do not know that Sheriff
Gurrell cares in the least what the Record says or thinks of himd or his
official aocts, yet we term its attacks ungentlemenly and false, and deenm

ourselves able to sustain the term, Says the Record, '1t was he, who unadvised
2

by the citizens of Brainerd and without any real or apparent danger from the

berry peddlers of Gull Lake, telelgraphed to Governor Austin for troopss’'
Now that is false everybody knows who knows anything about it. There was

in reality no immediate danger of trouble with the Indians, nor did Sheriff
Gurrell intend or expect to create any such impression by sending to the
Governor for troopse The whole sensational aspect of affairs grew out of

unfortunate circumstances entirely beyong the control of either sheriff
5/ N
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Gurrell or Gov. Austin, and the injudicious manner in which the request was
madee Now the question arises, did Sheriff Gurrell or some one else send for
the troops? Let us review the affair a little. About an hour after the In-
dians werehung a man came in from the west on a hand-car and reported about
400 Indians between this place and Gull River, and stated that they were un-
usually sullen and restive, and that he met two white men and a number of
Indians on a hend car going out from Brainerd at great speed, as he supposed
to the encampment of Indians, and that the two white men were partiuillarly

identified with the Indians, and more to be feared. This report spread like

wild fire, and coming from a reliable source carried great weight and g@ve

ground for strong suspicions. In consequence a very large number of our
citizens spent a sleepless night, expecting every moment to hear the war whoope
Judging from the time the two white men and Indians were seen, at such break-
neck speed making for the Indian encampment, the conclusion is that they were
carrying the message of the hanging of the Indians, and we do not lknow, even
yet that those Indians were not assembled for the express purpose of receiving
the prisoners from the mob when they should attempt to hang them, and that

they were baffled by the Indians being hung earlier in the evening than they
had anticipateds Early the next morning a number of families were making
hasty preparations for leaving the town, and they did leave on the noon train.
This came to the ears of Judge Walters, who called in an interpreter, and in
company with a number of citizens he interviewed a few Indians who were camping
round the town, end finally directed them to leave and go to their reservaticn,
in pursuance with the proclamation of Gov. Austine They refused to go, saying
they had as much right to remain in town as he hade Now what does the Governor's
proclamation direct under those circumstances? Does it order the peace of-
ficers to take them by the collar and forcibly compel them to go to their
reservations? Noe It directs them to call upon him for assistance, which was

done, It may be and doubtless was the case that the troops were sent for the
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double purpose of having the Indians removed according bto the Governor's
proclamation, and to give the people of the town a feeling of security, and
thus prevent a stampedes Justice Cponant, after consulting Judge Walters, wrote

out the dispateh which was received by the Governor from the Sheriff, and

signed his own nmnelfo it as the Justice of the Peace, and started toward the
1Ts

telegraph office witﬁ? On Bis way there he met Sheriff Gurrell, who was very

busy preparing to leave on the next train for the Junction, on some official
business, and stopped him in the street. Ile asked him to sign the dispatch
with him. Gurrell was about to do so when some of the bystanders advised that

-

Gurrell sign it alone, and after a little comsultation Cﬁnunt strucl: his own
name from it, and took the dispateh, signed by the Bheriff, to the ltelegraph
office and sent it to the Governore No one for a mement supposed the State
Militia would be sent here, but expected that the Governor would order a few
soldiers either from F,rt Ripley or Fort Smmlling to come here and remain a
week or so until the excitement died out, and in the meantime carry out the
provisions of his proclamation, thinking they might as well eat Uncle Sam's
bread in Brainerd as at the Fortes But the excitement over the lynching affair
was far greater in St.Paul then at Brainerd, end teking the Sheriff's dis-
pateh in comnection therewith it was supposed that an Indiean outbresk in the
fullest sense of the term was about to burst upon use. T¥hen the soldiers
reached Brainerd they very soon found their mistake, however, and all re-
turned the next morning, excepting twenty-five, who remained wntil quiet was
restoreds Now we are of the opinion that the thanks of the citizens of
Brainerd are not only largely due Governor Austin and the troops who came
here to protect us, but also Sheriff Gurrell, for their prompt action in this
matter. Therefore we feel proud of them, and it cannot fail to give the
people of this vicinity at least, & feeling of security, keretofore un-
experienced, to know that we have officers so prompt in their duty, end that
in caese of any future troubles we can so readily be placed in perfect secur-
itye We do not uphold lynch law as a principle, but we do believe that if

those two Indians were guilty of the crime alleged against them they were too
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mercifully treated, and that under the circumstsnces the law could have

found no charge against them owing to certain technicalities in the law re-
lating to evidence, and they would have gone scot free, emboldened to commit,
if possible, a2 fiercer and more brutal crimes But that Sheriff Gurrell aided
or encouraced the lynching of his prisoners, as alleged by the 'Record,' is a
falsehood of the barest sort, to which, it is hoped by many, its editor shall
be obliged to answer in a legal tribunale e may ask to trouble you again
upon this point, so thanking you kindly, Mr. Editor, for bearing with us in so

5 AT I - S AT AR
lengthy & commmication, we are your, etce, An Eye VWitnesse (1)

The telegram sent to Governor Austin end signed by John Gurrell, read as
follows: "Brainerd, July 24, 1872.
"Governor Austin: Please sedd troops immediately; town full of Indisns and
have been ordered to leave but dont. Three white families leave today. ZTwo
Indians hung last night by a mob breaking jail and taking them oute.

John Gurrell,"

Governor Austin certainly took prempt and efficient action. He not only
commissione® Adjutant General Mark D.Flower to assemble and dispateh a force
of National Guardsmen te Brainerd, but he telepgraphed Major General V.5, Han-
cock, commanding the Uepartment of Dakota, to ship out a squad of soldier§s
although he belkeved there was no probability of a fight. The commending
officer at Fort Ripley was ordered to teke his entire garrison, with pro-
visions enough for thirty days, and proceed to Vhite Earthe The three com-
panies,xndxkem consisting of four officers and sixty-six men, were under the
command of Captain Bunker, but General Flower accompanied them to Brainerds
At two o'clock on the morning of the 28th, the sheriff demanded a parade of
soldiers to quell a riot in a Swedish boarding house. Three men were wounded,
one badly, and it was thought he would die. The railroed men seid that they
would lynch the priscners taken by the soldierse But the wounded men recovered

and no lynching took places By the 28th, only one officer and ten men remained

in Brainerd, and on the 29th, even this rear guard returned to St.Paule (2)
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The Brainerd Tribune wus rather reticent on the subject of the trouble at
Svea Hotel, merely stating that the trouble was not what the c¢ily papers
said it was. (3) But George W.Holland, the well known Brainerd attorney
and judge, gives a fuller account of both the lynching and its aftermath. He
said that the half brepeds had been taken down to Crow Wing and that they showed
their jailers where ledlen Mc.rthur h:zd been murdered and where they had cre-
meted the body. The party accompanying them to Urow Wing reported that they
had exumined the remains of the bonfire and had discovered traces of human

bonese On the evening of the lynching, Mr. Holland, W.W.Hartley and Mark

Kellogg, who at that time was the local representative of the New York Herald,

were standing on the corner of Fourth and Front streets when they saw the mob
bringing the half breeds toward theme His account of the lynching coincides
with the printed account, except that he nemes fev. Gilfillan as the minister
who offered preyer. He also said that when the firing commenced, the people
were ignorant as to its cause, but Thought it came from lndians outside the
crowd., "In a few secodds after the firing commenced, not more than eight or
ten persons could be found about the tree. Ke also adds considerable detail
to the account of the trouble at the Svea Hotele This hotel, owned by Antog
Mahlum and his brother-in-law, William Wick, stood on the corner of Broadway
and Laurel, where the Xmxmmx Mahlum Lumber Coe. yard was formerly located. On
the night of the trouble, an opening dance was being held in the dining room.
A disagreement arose and almost instantly the lights were shot out und many
of those present were cut or shot during the meleee. Sheriff Gurrell called
the soldiers, but by the time they got to the hotel, lessrs. VWick and dahlum
were the only persons present. They were promptly arrested and held for a
time as military prisomers. Uenry Theviot, for meny years a resident of
Bruinerd, was at that time one of the soldiers who helped arrest the hotel

men, (4)
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As & result of all the trouble and excitement following the lynching,
a militia company was actually organized in Brainerd. Company E of the Third
Regiment, Mimmesota National Guards was mustered in the week of October 26, 1872,
with J.C.Walters as ceptain. At that time they had already constructed an armory
on Sixth Street. (5) In Jenuary, 1873, the county commissioners instructed the
county attorney to"commence suit forthwith on the bond of John Gurrell, Sheriff
of Crow Wing County, to have the same forfeited, on the grounds of fraud, de-
ceit, and oppression, in the discharge of his official duties and for corrupt
practices in office."” (6) Nothing more wes done about this resolution, and
so the licArthur case smied for many years, remained s mystery, and the
"Blueberry Wer" remecined a sore spot in the minds of meny prominent citizens

of Bruainerde

then on Tuesday afternoon in the middle of June 1877, the city was

startled when the news spread around that the remains of lelen lMecArthur had
been found. On Sunday afternoon, some boys had gone hunting near Crow Wing
end found the bones, wrapped in a plaid shawl. The sheriff, George VWhitney,
and the merchant, Mr, Martin, hed gone out to Crow VYiing with a team and
brought in the bones, and they were on exhibition in Mr. Martin's store.
Mrs, Sarah Chapmsn, who had known Helen McArthur all her life, identified the
shawl, as well as the buttons thut had been sewed on her dress. The remains
had been found within two miles of the licArthur home, and very close to the
spot to which the supposed murderers had directed the searching pearty. X
After the remains had been identified, a letter was sent to Mre. and Mrs,.

MeArthur at Crow Wing, that the bones had been found. (7)

The boys who discovered the body included Arthur and Vincent Strauss, Jucob

and William Peine and Joseph Liebler. (Fd) The remains were found under & brush

pile on the farm belonging to Charles Qtty/tne southeast of section 18, town-

hih AL 51 ) west half of the
shii s o i} ?l,. i 3 A8 . b e S ¥ . !
3 s range Sl The McArthur home was im the/northwest of Bsoiion 20
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of the same township, so the body was hidden less than a mile from the homes
Early in May, 1872, Helen had left home, sccompanied by s young sister, to
welk to Crow Ving for a visit at the home of her mother's sister, Mrs, Clement
H.Beaulieus Her sister sccompanied her only e short distance and then re-
turned home. The following Fridey, Bob Beaulieu stopped at the Mcirthur

home and they asked him how much longer Helen was going to stay. lihen he
replied that she wasn't at his home, and had not been there, the search for
Helen begen, (10) to end over five years later with the discovery of her

bonese

Mrs. McArthur had failed in health after her daughter's disappearance, and
she died June 2, 1879, and was buried in Evergreen cemetery. (11) The remaines
of her daughter had been interred on the McArthur homestead, just a few rods
north of the house. The grave can still be found on account of the lilsec bushes
that were planted upon it. Shortly after lrs. MeArthur's death, Mr. MeArthur

went to Detroit to live with a son, ¥k®x leaving the Crow VWing place in charge

of his son-in-law snd deughter, Mr. end Mrs. F.0.Sibley. (12) Three years

later, the home, the store and the post office were all destroyed by fire, mmd (13)
and soon after the Sibleys moved to White Earth. With their departure, the last

of the McArthur femily moved from Crow Ving countye

Brainerd Tribunee 9Yuly and August, 1872.
History of Minn. by Folwell, pp-79 and 8U.

Brainerd Tribune, Mxemk August 3, 1872.

Brainerd Tribune, Septe 2, 1910,
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The Towms of Br;ingrd
Trom Towns to City

From Town to City

Bruinerd grew fast during the summer of 1872, and in spite of the
"Blueberry 'ar" civie development continued. During the early part of
August, there was considerable agitation for a plan to incorporate Brainerd
as a oity (1), but no definite steps were taken. In October, the sheriff
took 8 census which showed that there were 2,217 Rmmkiimx residents in the
town of Brainerde This comprised 161 families, with 304 children of sbhool
age and 43 ummarried girlse (2) A county election was held in Novermber
that brought some new faces into the political scenee onlPreston was
elected judge of probates Ir. Freston had e rrived in Brainérd in April, to
become associated with T\Fk@nuppen in a law office. (3) He went to Bismarck
in 1877, after having held the office of probate judge from the time he as-
summed office in 1E73. (4) LXB{:erry, the lumberman,was elected court com-
missioner; J:H}Bly, treasurer; R\K)ﬁhiteley, surveyor; and Merritt Tuttle,
county comnissianer. (56) |

A few days later, arrangements were made To incorporate Braoinerd as a
city. u}L.Hartley, judge of probate, issued a notice dated November 18, 1872,
of the proposal (6) aend December 23, 1872 was set as the date for voting on
the propositiones A call for a caucus was issued (7) ond it evidently attracted
a great deal of attention, for over fifty candidates registered for the twelve
offices to be filled. As the editor stated, "If this isn't a free fight, then
what is?" . Judge Hartley named the following as judges of election: Pirst
Ward: J\g;Ayer, nﬁh)‘alooner, ﬂ}Qruvelle; S econd Ward: TJCy,Bivins, George
Klock, J.L;‘.)\Starohcr; Third Ward: Z.LaFowler, TaiM4Jordan, Jr., Edward Vhite, Sre (8)
From then on, the newspaper seems to have lost interest in the election and
the incorporation of the city, although it did publish the first five ordi-
nances to be passed. But the record of the first meeting of the new city's

officials is still preserved. Tpey met January 11, 1873. Eber H.Bly was

mayor; P,H.Trudell, recorder; Alderment Eyman Pithite, h&iuttle, w.d\ﬁeath-
\

cote, William Murphy, Anton Mahlum and FeX.Goulets. lir, White was named
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tenporary chairman, and was later made permenent presidents Iir. Tuttle was
chosen vice presidentes A committee of three was named to make an estimate of

the financial resources of the city. This committee was composed of Messrse

Heathcote, Tuttle and Goulets CABJSleeper was named c¢ity attorney at a salary

of $50 a monthe (9) On January 13, 1873, the council met againe They accepted
the bond of Robert MeNider, treasurer. W.W.Hartley qualified to serve as city
justice, and Attorney Sleeper took office. The committee reported that fines

and licenses should net the city $2000 a year. The aldermen urged the selection
of a chief of police, but Mgyor Bly insisted that ordinances dealing with law
violations be passed firste (10) At a meeting held January 14, the following
five ordinances were adopted:

le To regulate and license the sale of liquor. Licensed dealers paid
;756 a year for their permit and could not sell on Sundays or after midnight
on week dayse Fines of $15 to $50 were to be imposed for first offenses, to
be increased to $25 to $100 for succeeding offensese

2¢ Prohibiting disturbance of the peace and drunkmess or congregating
for unlawful purposese

3¢ An ordinance to punish the careless use of fire arms, fire crackers, etce.
in The citye

4, Yreventing indecent conduct or exposure or lewd conducte This or-
dinance also stipulated that "Any person who appears in a dress not belonging
to his or her sex s+ « shall be fined or imprisoned.”

5¢ Preventing gaming or gambling within the city limitse (11)

A brief meeting was held January 18, to pass a resolution of sympathy
in honor of Merritt Tuttle, who died that morning. (12) The next meeting
was held on Jgnuary 23« At this meeting, AaF{Mchay was appointed chief of
police; MJC\Russell, city printer; and Alderman Heathcote was elected vice
president tolsucceod the late Alderman Tuttle. The city recorder's salary
was set at $500 a year, and it was decided to hold meetings every londay
during January, February and March. (13) The first annual city election was

to be held in April, but no more meetings are recorded before April 7, 1873.
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The death of Mr. Tuttle also made a chenge in the board of county com-
missioners, and Yr. Heathcote was appointed to fill the vacancys. The com=
missioners appointed W.W.Hartley coroner, in place of Dr. S.li.Thayer.

There had evidently been some misunderstanding about the man elected county

auditors The newspaper had failed to publish the name of the auditor in its

list of newly-elected officials, but &k their meeting of January 27, 1873,
the commissioners appointed County Auditor C.B.Sleeper and WeSsHeathcote, &
comuittee to wait on WiWiHartley, late auditor, and obtain all books, and
stationery and documents, appertaining to the office of County Auditor. (14)
The county financial statement was published in April and it showed that the
county had issued orders to the amount of $8519.92. It had allowed bills for
which no orders had been fissued, to the amount of $28,00, It had redeemed
orders and juror's certificates to the amount of $6554.12. (15) That a small
gublic debt of $1993.80 8hould produce the effect of making county orders
valuable "ehiefly for stuffing horsecollars, at a cent a pound, or something,"
seems peculiar, but there seems to be a very strong suspicion that the orders
issued had been drawn upon an enpty treasurye But such little details failed
to discourage the spirits of Brainerd boosters, and they launched a movement
to have Brainerd made the state capitals The strongest argument they could
advance in favor of this move was that the State Ireasury, during its stay in
St.Paul, has been a "regular filch=box for a majority, and nearly all, of

its most successful business men." (17)

The absence of council proceedings for the months of February and March
can undoubtedly be attributed to the fact that there were some very grave
doubts as to the legality of the proceedings by which the city had been in-
ecorporated. An appeal to the legislature settled the matter. On lMarch 6,
they passed an act declaring Brainerd a duly amcorporated city, pursuant to
the proclamation of the Judge of Frobate dated Nov. 18, 1872; and declaring
further that the election held December 23, 1872 was legal and that the actions

of the officers elected then were, from that time, legal and valide. (18)
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This act cleared the way for the annual city election, and late in Merch
sandidates were named for the various oity offices. "The primary meetings of
the two factions in Brainerd, for the nomination of candidates for the various
city offices were churacterized throughout by a disorderly and apparently
lawless spirit that was pitiable to behold," (19) and the election itself
was exeiting, to say the leasts The newspaper announced that ﬂ\Héply had
been elscted mayor; Robert Macnider, treasurer; and F.X{Goulet, ﬁecorder. (20,
When the city council met on April 7, there wasn't a dufl moment, An affidavit
was present by ¥ ;~'v‘-f‘;1Hartley, saying that "votes had been bought in the first
ward by one I%C{W&lton, for Eber Hi@ly for mayor." He also contended that
many voters had failed to register before the polls opened and that their ad-
dresses were unknown to the judges of elections Early in the meeting, Alder=-
man F.X\Goulet had introduced a motion approving of the election of lir., Bly
as mayor. - L.:.White, president of the board, ordered the recorder to take a
yea and nay vote, but the latter refused to do so as the motion had not been
seconded. A second time Vhite made the smme order and a second time the re=-
corder refuseds Then Aldermen Murphy and Mahlum moved to have the charges
brought by Mr. Hertley referred to a committee of two, but lir. White refused to
put the motion before the council. Finally, Aldemuun Heathcote moved that all
elecotion returns be not accepted for these reasons: first, that they were not
made out in legal form; second, that poll lists had not been posted ten days
prior to the electiog; third, registry had not been conducted as the law dir-
ected; fourth, judres permitted voting by person who were not registered and
whose places of residence were not known. Aldermen Heathcote, lMiajglum and
Murphy voted in favor of this motion, while liessrs. Vhite and Goulet voted

against it. (21/

Then come the case of the State of lMinnesota ex rels of Eber H;Bly vs the

Common Council of the City of Bpainerd. It was filed April 12, 1873 with Vim.

Lytle, Clerk of Court, by WX@Qﬂurtley, deputys Imsign & Stearns and Preston
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& Steele were attorneys for the relator. They state that at an election held
December 23, 1872, Eber H.Bly was elected mayor; .a‘l‘-‘\.m.‘";ﬂe&t}lcotﬁ, Anton Mghlum,
Vin. Murphy, Lyman :\White, F::!X"‘.\Goulet and C.DiTuttle were elected aldermens
kir. Tuttle has since died. T,ese men were eiected to hold office until the
next annual election, which was held the first Tuesday in April, 1873. The
following men were candidates for office and received votes as follows:

Candidate Firdsg Second Third Total
Ward Wexrd Ward

Mayor--E JH\Bly 208 125 42 373
WS \Heathcote 82 93 116 291
Recorderer--F.X\Goulet 209 135 41 385
PaHiTrudell 81 89 117 287
Ireasurer=--Robert MaclNider 118 106 120 548
J\L\Starcher 172 119 37 328
Aldermen--N.Gravelle 195
Long Term)E\B)lynde 88
. Milton Askew 125
William Murphy 90
J \R JMur phy
No competition
Aldermen----JaStiles
Short Term) W)\/\Falconen
AMMahlum
JaEiWilson
& D i ley
City Justioe-—SRTHLEROLe
David Stewart
liglicMahon
JaoCalalters
L\McInnes
JBiConant
TN\ Hyreen 41
FaP\Sumners 111

" The election officials were: First Ward--Clerks: John Morrison and Mid.

Edgerly; gJudges: G.\-..‘l{{oll.;xnd, TiMiTrudell and Peter Lckford; Second Ward=-
\ Ak

Clerks: Vim. Wick and .m\H:\\I.,ull; Judges: DiLiToner, James Hamilton and CJA.

Johnson; Third 'ard--Clerks: C."{i.\(\}Ole and ;{Ella\;.‘hiteley; Judges: Lyman sza-mite,
end James M.{lhitex und Jas&{)é\_Campbell. The instrument further stated that
properly cerﬁifiod returns wére presentgi:o the common council on April 7,
1873, but the latter refused to consider thems The court decided that the
votes should be canvassed, and ordered the council +to perform this duty on

April 14, 1873. (22)
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lhen the council met on April 14, they accepted the canvass as presented
to the court. They proceeded to organize, naming ;\D{yettibone as president
and JXBhwurphy as vice president. Iany neW'aDpoihnénts were made. TaR.
Hyreen was named chief of police, after the salary had been cut from $50 to
$40 a month, D\F.Lreston replaced C.B.Sleeper as city attormey. i\C%Bivins
was named assessor at $3 a day and u}K*ﬂhiteley was named surveyor =t $5 a

\ \
daye The salary of the recorder was cut from 500 a year to $400, Early in
June, Mr. Hyreen resigned as chief of police and A\NQChaSQ wes appointed te
this offices His salary was set at $76 a month, an& in addition to his police
duties, he was to serve as street commissioner end as fire wardene The city
recorder, in meking a report of expenses for the months of January, February
and March, 1873, geve & total of $695.73. Several ordinances were passed,
Ordinsnce Noe 8 being one "to prevent and punish immoderate driving or riding
in streets and to regulate the spped of locomotives." As first drewn, the
ordinsnce set the spped limit for locomotives at four miles per hour, but this
was afterwerd raised to six miles. There were several other changes in office
made during 1873, J*fvhu;hy, the third ward aldermsn, moved out of town in
\

August and at a special election held August 21, Joseph m;Turner was elected

to this office, five voters registering their choice. Mr, Bivins refused to

act as assessor and ”XFKHartley was appointed in his places DNJKProsﬁon wass
\ T
A A

removed from office and JAJXFtoele was appointed eity attorney in his places

But the most important change in office was made in September, when Robert
MecNider resigned as treasurer and Thomas ,ACantmell was appointed in his

place. At this same meeting, the salary of treasurer was set at five per

cent of the money collected and sk two per cent of the money disbursed. (23)

As there was $2.45 in the treasurery when Mr., MacNider resigned, the treasurer's

prospects for a lucrative salary seemed rather fainte (24)
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}7795hort1y after the middle of September 1873, news reached Brainerd of the

failure of Jay Cooke & Cos While this failure and the"panie of 1873" had

8 tremendous effect on the history of the new ecity, yet the financiel de-
pression had begun months before. A movement had already been stmrted to

have the city form of government changede As The Brainerd Tribune said:

\mt the time of the organization of our city govermment it was belkeved to

be a step in the way of progress that was fully warranted. Money was plentiful,
trade was rushing. The town was headquarbers for hundreds of those who had
little respect for the laws Now times have changed and the floaters have
gones The returnable property of the city and county amounts to only $20U,000
end taxes will be excessively high in keeping up & county organization alone.
ihe city government is very expensive. "But when we consider that Brainerd is
Crow Wing county, end Crow Wing county is Brainerd, in the matter of keeping
up a treasury, and that taeking the whole together, we are .oor at best, as out
county lines now run, it does seem quite ridiculous fcr us to be keeping up
one expensive form of government more than we need." He suggests that the
legislature made the city, now let it repeal the acct. (25) In December, the
taxpayers met to discuss the propriety of suspending the city government, but

nothing more was done at that time. (26)

Population greatly diminished during the last half of 1873, although the
men with femilies seemed to be the omes to stay with the community. There had
been a total of 63 births and 9 deaths registered during 1873, (27) Among the
femilies to whom children were bornm during 1873, will be found those of:
George Gendron, latrick Uarney, Alex Browning, engineers: Edward BiLynde,
E\ﬁk@ly, Thomas Pl@antmell, Jerome G)godd, merchants; Joseph Grondin, Nelson
Lofstein, Morton Léwis, Wm, Doormen, Nilson Loberg, Thecdore Viakeley, James
Hopkins, August Lettan, ¥“dward Olson, earpenters; Thomas Rielly, Charles C.
Whittiker, mnxDﬁFalconer, Dennis lMcNanmnay, hotel keepers; larcisse Gravelle,
Samuel H\Humilt;n, William Fayne, lumbermen (Dennis McNannay was also listed

as a lumbermen); Nathaniel Brown, farmer; Maurice Ciﬁussell, Richard Parker,
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printers; Edward RXFrench, oyster saloon keeper; John Reynolds, teamster;
\

Joseph York, pattern maker; Hemon Dxrettibone, Chas. Ed. Fromst, bookkeepers;
\
iilliem Hayford, policeman; Samuel J\Wallace, bridge builder; John MeCarthy,
baggageman; Lawrence McFherson, machinist; Benje Askins, Thomas Jones, Henry
M;mixter, blacksmiths; Horatio Coykendall, contruetor; Harry Brintwell, con-
ductor; Thomas Bason, coppersmith; Joseph Turnmer, Robt. Kxﬂhiteluy, M)@. Kim=
berley, civil engineers; Lover V#)Ford, l\-l\r.‘.‘-‘\auditor; Hedvy G\ersm MJE\mini s-
\ ‘ | |
ter, and Samuel- » Longregational minister (this was undoubtedly ugmuel
Ingreham); Theodore Flgnappen, attorney; Almond A. Vhite, wood dealer;
Frank X, =, butcher (Frank X,Goulet), Joseph Folta, Joseph Mabey,
butchers; Chas. Darby, laborer; Odilon Yueclos, brickmaker; Conrad Jaichner,
merchant tailor; Arthur MecKsy, sheriff; Edwin Buckmaster, stage driver; Aadey

Bellmigh, pastry cooke. (28)

The election of November 1873 had made quite a change in the list of
county officials. F)XJ\Goulet was elected auditor; s.FiMcKay, sheriff; CAF.
v\ e

: ¢ " X & - 1 P |
Darling, register of deeds; W.W\Hartley, clerk of courts; G4W.Holland, county
v b( ) !
attorney; Dr. Jkd\uosser, coroner; David MeArthur commissioner second district;

\

R.Khﬂhiteley, commissioner third distriecte (29) w\uqFalconer, the third com-
\ \ N

missioner, acted as chairmen of the board, (30) Rev. h\d\willjums was ap-
pointed superintendent of schools at a salary of $4 a day ”#hen he works." (31)
When they met on January 19, they resolved that all of the county offices musé
be removed to rooms in the jail building, as no more rent would be xmis paid
for the use of buildings for county offices after thet date. (32) Economy was
becoming absolutely necessary, as county funds were not only lacking, but worse
then that, there was a yawning abyss of debt fronting the commissioners., In
March, the legislature passed an act authorizing Crow Wing county to issue bonds
in the amount of $6000, to pay outstanding orders that had been issued prior to
the third Tuesday in March, 1874. (33) This measure aroused a good deal of
opposition as it was felt that if bonds haed to be sold at 50¢ on the dollar,

as They would certainly have to be, that it would be & dear refunding. (34)
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A petition was presented to the commissioners, praying that they do not issue
the bonds authorized (35) and the following year, the legisluture repealed
the act for issuing $6000 in bonds--but authorized the issue of $16,000 in
bonds to pay floating indebtednesse (36) By June 1874, county orders were
worth about 35¢ on the dollar, and the county was plunging deeper and deeper

into debt. (37)

The oity government functioned with em ordinary smount of friction. An

election was held in A ril at which Lymsn Piihite wes elected mayor, Frenk X.

72

Goulet, recorder; and Thomas k:C&ntwell, treasurer. (38) One of their acts

was to pass an ordinance to compel all places of business to close on Sunday. (39)
In spite of strong opposition (40) this ordinance remmined in force, although
perhaps not always in effect. The tax assessment for Bruinerd for 1874 pre-
sents some interesting figurese It shows the total assessed value of real

estate as $237,413; value of personal property, $71,062; Walue of real estate
exempt from taxation, $16,132; total value of texsble property, $292,333. (41)

On this property, the following rates of taxation were levied: state purposes,
2,33 mills; general county purposes, 10 mills; Bpecial Independent School

Distriot Nos 2, 2 mills; poor fund, 3 mills; roed end bridge fund, 2 mills;

interest on debts, 6 mills; eity purpcses,6 mills; total, 32.33 millse (42)

The railroad played a very important part inthe life of Brainerd, but in
those days, railroad companies treated the public in a very high-handed mesnner.
Lews passed in an effort to curb this domineering tendency antagonized the
companies to the point where they advertised that if any of thelr agents were
prosecuted for failing to obey the new laws, the railroads would shut down theie

run
stations, withdraw their men, end gbwxtheir trains through the towns without
stopping. (43) There seems to have been no trouble, locally, between the
railroad and the communitys While the local Northern Pacific agent seems to
have made little imppession on the community, yet the company was represented
in Brainerd by a men who was extremely popular and influential--Charles F.

Kindred. Mr., Kindred had come to Brainerd to take charge of the land de-
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partment of the Northern Pacifice He bought a large house that BML;Perry had
built, and moved it to the corner of S5ixth and Kingwood streets, (4i) Besided,
his job as land agent, he and his brother, n\F\Kindred, developed a silver

mine at Elizabeth, Ontario. It is said they discovered this property while
they were working on a survey contract which they had along the internmational
border, (45) He was a big, good-natured fellow (46) and in November 1878, he
was apxmimkm elected county commissioner (47), a posiﬁion he held until January
1882, By 1879, he had bought a 1200 acre"farm" on Sylven Lake, and he built

a large sumner home there, which he opened to his friends, on the European
plan. (48) He intended to start a chain of summer hotels, conmecting them with
the railroad by means of a steamer on Gull Lakes To get this steamer to sxkhim
within a short distance of the railroad, he planned on digging a eanal to con=
nect Sylvan and Gull lakes. (49) He did have a canal dug, the teaces of which
mey still be seens It was about thirty feet wide at the top, but when it was
dug, it was discovered that Sylvan Lake level was four feet higher than the
Gull Lake level, and so much of Sylvan lake drained into Gull, and the canal
was so shallow that only in times of high water could a boat of any kind get
from one lake to the other., (50) While still a resident of Brainerd, he

(51)

opened up a large wheat farm at Alsop, west of Jgmeston, Ll@.,/ﬁus elected
president of the First National Bank of Valley City, North Dakota (52) and
was appointed assistant land agent for the Canadian Pacific Hailroad. (53)
Although one of the most prominent men in Crow iing county during the last
half of the seventies, it was in the early eighties that his in&luence be-
came so strong that this period of Brainerd history can very properly be

called the "Kindred era.”

E

nad

\
Charles Aguffee was another prominent resident of Brainerd. He

been a merchant at old Crow Wing. From there he had moved to Cass county,
residing at the old Chippewa Agency, which he purchased. He was there in
1870, and in 1872 he was appointed auditor of the newly organized Cass

county, although he does not seem to have acted in this capacity. During
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the latter part of 1873, he was taken sick and for many months was taken care
of by Mr. and Mrs. Trumen Mooers. (54) That fall, he was a candidate for the
legislature as a representative from Cass county. He was accused of being &
carpet bagger and a Democrat, but the Brainerd Tribune rallied to his support.
It snswered these charges by saying that Mr, Ruffee had lived in Cass county
for several months, owing to the fact that he was very ill and could getx
better care there, but that he had never given up his Crow Wing county resi-
dence, (55) But Mr, Ruffee was defeated, although he still retained a great
deal of political influence. In 1875, he was elected register of deeds for
Cass county, and acted in this capacity. (66) 1In 1378, he was appointed
Agent for the Chippewa for the Leech Lake reservation. The following year,
the Leech Lake, Red Lake and White Earth reservation were put under the same
administration, and "Major" Ruffee was promoted to this position. (57) Fol-
lowing his services as Indian agent, he took up his residence in Brainerd,
where he remained the rest of his life. Very little is kmown of the early
life of Mr. Ruffee, but from such records and recollections as may be obkained,
he seemed to have most of the characteristics of a "remittance man," emcept
for the fact that he was self-supporting, although his business dealings

were, asccording to tradition, rather shadowye.

MiC\Russell, editor of the Br:inerd Tribune, tried to rouse public in-

terest in humanitarisn principles. Cruelty to animals was rife in Drainerd,
&lthough there seems to have been some excuse for an attitude of disapproval
at the number of animals loose in the settlement. He said, "Of all the dog-on
towns for dofs, this town knocks 'em all; what little room is not entirely
taken up by dogs, is crammed with hogs, and so, between dogs and hogs, the
streets are a continual hub-bub and squeal, while cats supply accompanying
duets from beneath every house and barn and sidewalk, that stand six inches
from the ground." (68) At another time, a drove of forty head of cattle
belonging to NoPaClarke of St)Cloud was being taken to Bismarck to apply on

\
lr. Clarke's beef contract with Fort Lincoln. While being tuken trhough
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Brainerd, the drovers exhibited such unbelievable cruelty that a Brainerd
man, T.H.Ward, had one arresteds But his action failed to meet with popular
approval and the justice released the prisoner without any notice being given
the complainant. (59) Tkﬁhﬂard was a doctor who had practiced im Brainerd
for some time, but left in July 1876 to become govermment physician at Fort
Berthold. (60) Oruelty to animals ledto cruelty to human beings. A sight
that would be difficult to imagine happening today occurred when a party of
about forty men discovered an Indian lying drunk on the ground. They pelted
him with briecks and snowballs until they had him aroused. Then he drew a
knife and rushed the mob, The&broke and ran, but one of them drew a revolver

and shot the Indisn, breaking his leg. (61)

A tempersnce movement created quite a bit of excitement during 1874, TIrying
to combat the too liberal use of intoxicating liquor had been a problem from

very early days. The first temperance movement in this _art of the country

was undoubtedly that fostered at Stk?olmdba. There the missionariems made

strenuous efforts to induce the Indians to abstain from the use of liquors.
The first pledge was date Nove 6§, 1854, and reads: "We, whose names are here
underwritten, have resolved to abstain altogether from the uses of Fire-water
from this 5th of November 1854 to the lst of January, 1855, and have asked
their missionary, Rev. J;Lloyd Breck in the presence of the Interpreter of the
Mission, Mr, dohn Johnson, to write their names in this place. (Signed )"

" Que=wi-sen-sish  (His mark) "

" O-gah (her mark) "
The Indiens would sign pledges to abstain from liguor for periods extending
from one to six months. Their dates were often indefinite: for two moons,
until the leaves begin to fall, until after the rice harvesting, but a few
Pledged themselves for long periods. Two men promised to ebstain, "forever,
of for one year by the help of the Great Spirit." (62) By the time Brainerd
was established, what Indians were left in this purt of the country, had no

missionaries to act as restraining influences, and while it was strictly agxzimx
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contrary to law to sell liguor to the Indians, the latter were able to get

it without much trouble. They could not go into a saloon and buy ligquor over

the bar, but there were a number of places in Brainerd where they could creep

up to the back of the buildinge There they would find two holes. They would

put their hand, containing the nezmessary amount of money, into one hole. The

liguor would then be handed to them from the other hole. Thus the buyer never

saw the face of the seller. (63) By February 1874, the women of Brainerd

decided to take a more active part in the crusade for temperance, and planned

on going in groups from saloon to saloon and praying in each pluce. (64)

That they carried out this intention in at least one saloon, may be deduced

from a card published in the DBrainerd Tribune. It reads: "Mr, Editor,--

I wish, through your paper, to thank the ladies for the kind and considerate

manner in which they conducted themselves while wvisiting my place on last

Friday eveninge I also thank the citizens of Brainerd and employees of the

Ner sRsR. for their gentlemanly conduct throughout the religious services of

the evening, and assure all it will not soom be forgotten. (Signed) J\Mimartin
Shades Billiard Hall." (65)

From then on, the ladies seem to content themselves with attending temperance

lectures. .mong the speakers is to be found the name of W.W.Hartley, a man (668

who espoused the cause of temperance in a rather hopeless field.

?;%%e years 1873 and 1874 had been hard ones in the little c¢ity of Brainerd, but

with the beginning of 1875, conditions slowly began to improve, although it was

many years before the city enjoyed another boom.

o
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@oyZendull in May, 1875, shows how the

The census of Br.inerd m ade by H.J
hard times had affected the eity. The cemsus shows a total population of 931
persons, 503 males end 428 females. There were 181 houses visited. A%

time there were five churches in emistence, valued as follows: EPiscopal
church, $2700; Congregational church $2200; M.E.Ghurch, $1062; Baptist church
$920; Catholic church $800. (1) Vital statistics for 1873 and 1874, show a
large number of naturalizations, During those two years, 93 persons received
papers admitting them to c¢itizenship. Of these, 23 were from the British
provincess-10 from England, 1 from “cotland, 6 from Ireland; 1l from Norwsay;
80 from Sweden; 9 from Demmark; 1 from Germany; llfrom France. There had been

23 marriages in 1873, and only 1l in 1874« There were 10 divorces in those two

yearss, During 1874, there had been 39 births and 12 deaths. (2)

Up until January 1, 1875, Brainerd had not only been conmnected by ruil with
Duluth, but it had been connected with Sauk Repids and S t&Ploud by stage. Sauk

ds was the end of the reilroad from Minneapolise. Then the stuge line "done
quit, The fact that the railroad was to be in o eration between Sauk Rapids

end Brainerd by spring, made it seem advisable to drop the service during the

rest of the winter, (3) when passengers were probably few and roads indescribably

bad. But the public demand for trensportation was insistent enough to lead U{H.

Hall into establishing a new stage line for passengers, mail and packages. (4)

- o

this was advisable, for in March, the legislature extended the time in which Xk

\ \

the StaPaul & Pacific RMR. could extend its lines from Wateb to Brainerd, to

"‘! pees o

10st a year later before the road was in

\
J

December 1, 1876 (5) and it was a

operation,

The financial condition of the county seemed to be going from bad +to worse
and early in January 1875, a mumber of Brainerd citizens met at Bly's Hall to
talk over the situation. First they discussed the causes that had led to

its "terrible condition." These causes included: "Too much court, too many
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poor relations (p@up@rs) during its ﬁiamy days, when it should have been laying
up a few dollars for a rainy day, as well as too many jail birds that had also
drifted in upon us during t he years of Crow Y“ing's early life, and which,with
paupers of the whole frontier from the Zenith City to Pike's Peak, which she
was expected to provide for, and which she did provide for." The county was
$13,000 in debt, with a total assessed valuation of $350,000, Some favored an
act of the legislature to fund the debt; others proposed that Cpow Wing be
attached to Cass county, "if Cass county would be generous enough to take us inlt;
others thought that the county itself Bould fund the debt; while still others
were opposed to every move. %8 The editor of the Brainerd Tribune proposed that
thet crOW‘Hing residents petition the legislature to "add a little slice of
Cass county to our county," so that Crow Wing could be attached to Itasca county.
But he apolbgized to the residents of Cass county, stating that it had been his
idea that only a few insignificant township of Cass county intervened between

1

Crow Wing and Itasca, but when he found out that the "most valuable portion of

Cass county" intervened, he withdrew his motion. The meeting appointed a com-
mittee of five to study what could be done about the matter and to report at an
adjourned meeting., This committee consisted of Messrs. Coykendall, Sleeper,

Bly, Pettibone and Goulet. (6) This adjourned meeting must have caused or
fostered considerable controversy, for the editor of the Brainerd Tribune said
that "knowing we could not favor a majority of our readers, we are leaving the
settlement of the county question to private consultaion among those interested.”
And he announced that a third meeting would be held, when Cass county authorities

would be consulted on the proposition of ammexing Crow Wing county. (7)

The legislature did act to remedy the situation, and in March, repealed the
act of the previous year authorizing Crow Wing county to bond itself for $6000
and, instead, authorized it to bond itself for $16000, with which to pay float-

ing indebtedness. (8) The state also agreed to refund the county $500 @i the

money it had spent on the trail of Justice Wilson. (9) Justice Wilson wesa son

\ \ 3 1. L3
of J\i\Lilson of StaCloude During the spring of 1873, he had killed a men in .
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that rose over a dispute about a $2 steke in a card game./ The murdered

!

named Egan. Wilson was declured mot guilty, and released. (11) The
comaissioners decided to fund the county for $16,000, with interest at
12 per cent, payable in eipght years. They must have acted promptly, for at the
same meeting, "The Board proceeded to countgx the cancelled orders being in the
office of the Auditor, ond having found $16,057.24, destroyed the same by
fire." (12) A county financial statement was published, but Emfmwxm in the
seme issue of the Brainerd Tribune in which it appeared, Auditor FiXiGoulet
explained some of its more importent items. He said that actual expenses for
the fiscal year had been only $6,409.48. The $622 spent for roads and bridges
would not have to be repeated as there would be no new ones for a year or twoe
Court terms have been reduced to one term each year. FPoor support for the
coming year should not be over 3800, The big sums of the past year were largely
spent for the support of a paralyzed man, who waxxkmmx had since been sent to
relatives in Canada, end this expense included the cost of an escort for him. (13)
ilhen the Board of Audit met in July, they reported that the county had $404469
cash on hand. They found the bond account as follows: Amount deposiied in the
treasury by the board of commissioners fro redeeming county orders outstanding,
$15,000; orders redeemed by said bdﬁﬁ cancelled and turned over to county
auditor in presence of this board, $13,400; 8o0old by commissioners to pay judg=-

m

ment against the county, $500; bonds on hand, $1,100; total $15,0004 The Board

of Audit was com_.osed of R.Kilhiteley, chairmen of the commissioners; Rkﬁiﬁing,

deputy county auditor; and h\@#ﬁnrtle* clerk of courtss (14)
£ £l A\ J 2

\ \

In order to raise taxes ©to pay current expenses and funded indebtedness, im

the Comuissioners sel the following tax levy: interest on bonds «008; general

county tax, +010; road tax «002; poor tax .U03. From this levy, they expected

a1

to raise the following emounts: for court expenses $1000; jail and board of
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prisoners $250; printing $200; books and stationery $200; fuel and lights $200;
salaries of officers 32000; incidental ex enses 21503 total $4,000, At this
neve L.3.Williams resigned as county superintendent of schools and
was ap ointed to that office. (15) Mr. Follett had come to Brainerd
gen in lay 1874, trying to benefit his health. (16) In August 1877, he
He
served in this capacity through 1880. In lcbl, Richard Parker was elected, but
evidently resigned. In April, Mr. Follett was legally notified as to his ap-
pointment as probate judge and hmi filed his bondse With four estabs whiting
to be probated, the commissioners had failed to act on his bonds. (18) At an
extra session of the board held the last week in April, his bonds were ap-
proved. "Comments unnecessary," said the newpa,ef. (19) 1r. Follett died in
Brainerd in 1885 tnd the remains were teken east for burial. (20)
ate
Ramkyg in Mpril 1875, General Custer went through Brainerd on his way east.
He said that he would start on his Black Hills expedition as soon as the grass

got good. (21) General Custer was not the only resident of Bismarck to be in

Brainerd that year. In June, Alex lickenzie, the political boss of Horth Dskota,

.

who was than sheriff of Burleigh county, stopped here long enough to reminisce

I

with the publisher of the Brainerd Tribune. He stated that he had been a for-
(22)
mer deputy sheriff in Crow Wing county. /lir. lichenzie's history compared to the

&
available records in this county, would indicate that he probably served in this
county during the late sixties. Many of the pioneer residents of Brainerd
were among the pioneer residents of Dismarck. Mark Lellogg, who had gone to
Bismarck in 1873, was killed with Custer in 1876, The noles he made during the
expedition that ended so fatally, were found on his body end preserved. They

)

were given to his best friend in Bismarck, John PJJumn, whose wife and daughter

b3 -

(23) There was a J;m;punn in Brainerd in the early days,

and it may have been the seame man. Irs. Dumm said that no trace of Mr. Hellogg's
amily had ®ver been found, although it was said he had two daughters somewhere

in ITowa. Yet Col. Lounsberry, for whom lir. Kellogg worked, said that the
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New York Herald had paid his wife $3500. BxhﬂBly was very prominent in early
Pismarcik. He built the Sheridan House there, one of the most famous hotels in
the United States. Ie operated it until 1893, when it was leased to Ed. Pate
terson, and his partner, E.5.Allen. At that time it was heated by 165 lignite
stoves. The building was 136x138 feet in size, with two wings, one 90 feet long
and the other 40 feet long. In 1900, the Northern Pacific railroad acquired
the lots on which the hotel stood for their depot. Ur. Patterson had the
puildin‘ moved to the corner of Fifth and lMain streets and changed its name
to the Northwest Hotel. It was later destroyed by fire. lir. Bly was one of
the first residents of Burleigh county. He was a native of Ticonderoga, I,\Y.
\

although he was reared in New York city. He w o railroad contrector and as
such, built one of the first sawmills in North Dakota, on Apple Creek, near
Bismarck, where he produced both ties and lumber. (It was the machinery from

this mill that he later moved to Brainerd,)

Wm. Falconer, whco ovmed the Faleconer Hotel, one of the first two-story
buildings to be erected in Brainerd, also lived in Bismarck, although he did
not move there until 1875. (25) Norman ®alconer, who lived in West Brainerd
and was elected a Cass county commissioner in 1875, seems to have moved to
Bismarck, too. His younger brother, J)g\rhloonor, became one of Bismarck's
foremost residents, and en authority on pioneer days in Bismerck and North

Gleng
was bron in 1859, in Bemgar& county, Ontari®, one of a

y
children. Hie mother was the second wife and was named
Jane licLellan Falconer. His father died the year he was born and his oldest
brother, Norman Falconer, became the family provider. Norman worked on reilrosd
construction erews and helped build the Union Pacific. Then he was stationed
at Creighton's Camp, his mother snd younger brothers and sisters joined him.

year to go back

<=

= \ \ . 5 1 R 4 .
In 1871 NANalconer came to Brainerd, but left the following

to Nassena Springs, EXX. to attend school. In 1874, he went to Bismarck, wher

s a boy of fifteen, he worked in the general store of Meleen & MacNider. (26)
oth of these gentlemen had been picmneers of Brainerd. In 1880, lir. Mclemn

sterted a Democratic paper in Bismarck to boost his congressional aspiratins. (27)
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General Thomas L.Rosser was & pioneer of both Brainerd and Bismarck. He
was born in Virginia and educated at West Point, where he was a classmate of
General Custer. The men fought against each other in the Civil Wer, but never
lost their personal friendship for each other. t the close of the war, General
Rosser came to Minnesota, where he got & job as axeman on a survey crew working
for the Mississipyi & Lake Superior railroad. He brought his family to Braine rd
in 1871, while he accompanied the expedition that completed the Northern Pacifiec
survey through the Dakotas to Yellowstone Park. In 1881, he became chief
engineer for the Canddian Pacific railroad. (28) VWhile his family remained in
Brainerd only a short time, yet General Kosser remained in toueh with Brainerd

through his brother Dr. J.C.Rosser, who spent the rest of his life hare.

Demnis McNannay went to Bismarck in 1878 (29); D.0.Preston in 1877 (30);
while during 1876, a large number of families left Brainerd for that place. (31)
¢.W.Darling, who was register of deeds during 1874 and 1875, moved to Fmt Ber-

thold in 1875, where he received the appointment as Indian Agent. He was ac-

companied by R.D.King, who had taken an active part in city politics here. (32)

Dr. T.H.lard hkxx also left Brainerd to become physicien at Fort Berthold (33),
and John Haselhurst, who had been post trader at Fort Ripley for a long time,
was transferred to Fort Abercrombie. (34) Another prominent Erainerd pesident
who located in the Dakotas was Ur. A.S.Cempbell, who went to Valley City in
1880, Born in Torcnto, he had graduated from Irinity University and then come

H

to this country, vhere he had served as an army surgeon in the Civil War. le
medical

came to Brainerd as/director of the Northern Pacifie railroad, (35) He served

as coroner of Crow Ving County during 1879. Nany other local residents moved

west, constantly driven on by the pioneering spirit that first brought them ®
2 N 64 - f o

settlement.
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The city election held early in April 1875, seemed to pass off very
quietly. M.C.Russell was elected mayor; Thomas F.Cantwell, treasurer; and

F.X.Goulet, recorder. (36) The last week of that same month,

sold The Brainerd Tribune to W.W.Hartley and a few weeks later,

Duluth, He resigned his office and a special election was called lay 28,
1875, to £ill the vacancy. MNr. Hartley described the election

farce
had its #xom, as usual, and as Jones, the Negro barber, has left the

e

eity, poor old Thomas Lanfhan was made the hobby of those who, haviéng no
special interest in the cily or its respectability--avail themselves of every
opportunity to expose it to ridicule. The idea of discontinuing the eity
organization may have influenced some, but the editor points out that it
would be impossible to disorganize the city government, Even if a1l the

council resign, nothing could be done but elect new ones. As all could not

resi;n at once. C.B.Sleeper got 58 votes ;5 Lanihan 64; L.C.Currier 6, and
scattering 2." (37) A few deys later, the newspaper published the fol-
lowing item: "We are credibly informed that the mayor's lady was on her
muscle last llednesday night, and put the meyor and all the little MRy ors
out of doors, and enjoyed the 'Brainerd White House' in delightful and

happy solitude. 'Whoop 'er up 'lLiza Jane.!'

At a meeting of the City Council held about a month sfter election, "the

meyor was asked what action he intended to take in regard to the Dog Ordi=-
nence--if he intended to enforce it. He thought not, he would not bother the

LiC

dorgs. lhereupon a motion was made and seconded to 'impeach the mayor for
- iy 3 E | 1 2 4.1 . iy, o

ing to encorce the ordinances of ti y This frightened lir, Mayor
pretty badly, and he was very agile in declaring his intention to enforce
the ordinance and everything else they asked him to the letter. He after-

tated that he 'thought he had lost his office sure.!¥ (39) A few
later, the meyor discharged bothex the chief of police and the night
o o £

for failing to enBorce the city ordinances. (40) At the meeting

1ld on June 28 875, E.Romes filed & petition asking that the night
F ] 2 ¥ o o
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.C.Biins, be discharged for "base and wkkaxx villianous conduct."
the meeting, lr. Lenihan presented lir. Romes' name as his appointee
office. The failed to approve of this sele n,(41) whiech
over until the next = Then Dennis MeNannay moved "that the

impeached for mnot enforcing the ordinances. The motion

put and cerried, when his honor very pertinently moved to 'lay that over to

"

3! Y {/ A
next meeting.'" (42)

o e

meeting of July 19, 1875, Mr, Bivins read a formal charge, in which
he asked removal of the mayor for (1) f
ing the sale of spirituous wine and liquor; (2) failing to enforece the licen—

(=] i - 4 3 o

sing of dogs; a 3) failing to compel the closing of business houses on Sunday.

= o

i i

he council acted on this char and set July 30, 1875, a ie r on which the
1 1 1 A\ ™ L M o 1 14
mayor's hearing should be held. (43) But before this hearing was held, an

event occurred that totally obscured ke public intere

Tuesday, July 27, 1875, the railrocad bridge

pitated a whole freipght train of 23 cars

river. The engineer, firemen and
of the injured to receive assistance was lis iz Herriman,
of D.5.Moocers of Fort Ripley. ©She was ghtly injured. lirs. liadel
an elderly Indian woman of White Harth died three hours after the asccident.
Miss Abbie Johnson died a few hours after the aceident. She was the daughter
of Mr. end Mrs. William Johnson, end the granddeughter of Colin Priéstly, of
Motley. DBorm in Aroostoock county, lisine, she was sixteen years of age.
Feterkin, the engineer, was a native of foughkeepsie, ¥.Y., age 25
and ummarried. His body was taken east for burial. James Grandon, the
out fifteen minutes. He was single and was buried in Brainerd,
although he was survived by a brother living in Omaha. Mrs. lMatilda LaFontain,
daughter of Mrs. Aitkin, and the mother of Tyler Warren of White Earth, was
slightly injured. The last passenger to be removed was dxx Buk=guan-ja

Indian woman, and the sister of lrs. Aitkin., An inquest was held and the jury
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found that the deceased had come to their deaths x through
over & bridge that was known to be constructed of umseasoned

erial. (44)

When the bridge fell, ve cars of merchandise and eleven carloads of
reils destined for railroad construction further west, went into the
river. Barrels of flour, caddies of tobacco, and groceries of all kinds,

4

went floating down the river, or were stranded along the shore. f&ix Anton
Mahlum,

HSEsEX, mxx o prominent Brainerd resident for meny years, was then employed
as a car repatier for the Northern Pacific, and was one of the first to reach
the scene of the accident. He was living at the time at a tar-papered boarding
shack which stood just to the northeast of the old depot, on ground khemx lat
occupied by Depot Park. He stated that he could hear the crash plainly, the
sound of escaping steam and other noises incident to the catastrophe. Grab-
bing a botel of brandy which chanced to be close at hand, he rushed down to
the river. The ceboose literally broke in two in the middle. Three men who
were riding in it were left umharmed on one of the piers. The roof of the
caboose parted over their heads and part fell to each side. Judge George
W.Holland, who was then serving as County Attorney, distinetly recalled the
event. H "Is was just after supper and I was walking up Sixth street
when suddenly I heard a terrific corash dovn toward the river and knew that
some aceident had happened. Irecéegding thither which some of the crowd, we
procured a boat and rowed out to the center pier to remove the survivors to
shore. I stepped out at the b the pi end helped them into the boat
until it was full and about & tarts I said, 'You are loaded too heavy;

I guess 1 won't go this time.' Omne of the men, Olson by name, a shoemaker

plenty of room; jump in.!

in town, replied, 'Oh, we're all right; there's

"I had no more than done so when something happened. The telegraph wire,
which had been strung along the bridge, was down and now hung just about two

feet above the water, Just as I jumped in, this wire caught one of the men
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the boat, heavy lade dipped with the strong current, and--

flip, we were all in the water.

1 3 I z E- . A 5
'The poor shcemaker couldn't swim, end as I came tc the surface I made o

lunge end grabbed him by the collar to help him ashore. lWhereupon, he, being
excited, got such a grip on me that we were both going down t« hers 1
truggled to free myself and finally succeeded in breaking loose. Luckily we
were all drifting toward shore. The current set pretty strong toward our side,
especially by reason of the wreckage in the opposite channel, and soon I felt
the ground beneath my feet. A most welcome touch it was, for I was well=-nigh
exhausted and choking for breath. The whole boat load was saved, all being
gathered in by some of the crew. The shoemaker has been dead and gone these
always
meny years now, but so long as he lived he mxwkagx greeted me on the street
with a hearty hagd clasp, declaring that I had saved his life, and expressing

gratitude for the deed in & way which, in after years, it is pleasant to

remember," (45/

A week after the accident, a pgroup of scientifiexpm experts examined the
remains of the bridge and declared it had been well built. They ascribed the
xaxckdaxkxka wreek to some accident that had happened to a flat car loade d whth
rails. M.C.Kimberley was the resident engineer for the Northern Pacific at the
time. (46) Three wecks after the catastrophe, the newspaper reported that the
three men who had been left stranded on the railroad pier were all improving.
They were: Dr. J.C.Lamb of Watervliet, Michigan; Louis Thirgart of ldoorhead;

and A.J.Sawyer, & traveling salesman of Duluth. (47)

This accident caused the death of af a real pioneer of Crow Ving county=—
“rs. Madeleine Aitkin, the widow of William Aitkin. ©She and her sister, Buk-
quan-ja, are bothax buried in Evergreen Cemetery. Mrs., Aitkin's oldest daughter,
who was Yrs. Matilda LaFontain, had been married to William vhipple Warren, the
historian. JShe survived the accident, but her niece, lMiss Lizzie Herriman, of

fhite Earth, passed away in May, 1879, never having recovered from the effects
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of the injuries received when the bridge was destroyed. (48) Although the
fireman, Richard Grandon, had been buried in Evergreen Cemetery, in Cectober of

1875, his remains were disinterred and sent to (maha for burial. (49)

The railroad company began the construction of a combinationwood and
steel bridge. This was completed March 31, 1876 (50) and served the Nor-
thern Pacific railroad until about 1900, when the present steel structure
with concrete piers and abutments was swang into place without the loss of a

single day's traffiec. (51)

1

City affairs seem to have quieted down after Meyor Lanihen had been tried
and found satisfactory, although there must have been a little activity, for
in September the newspaper reported: "There will be terrible times among the
pines, in the resignation of liayor Lanihan, to ses who'll get his place," and
"We learn that his honor, lMayor Lanihan, is sbout leave us, to go onto his
claim near Fargo, in Dakota." (52) But the majy didn't leave Brainerd then,
and in November he and his wfie had a fight. The mayor was arrested and thrown

into jail, where he was held without bail. Even his opponents admitted this

was done to gratify a petty spleen, but whose spleen is not mentioned. (5%
o J b Y, > b

At the election held in November 1875, F.X.Goulet was elected %o represent

districet in the state homxaxafxweprax lesislature He seems to have been

a very active member of the house and got a number of bills affecting his dis-
trict passed during the early part of 1876. The most important of these was
one to disorganize the city of Brainerd. his bill was passed February 11,
1576, and provided for the disorganization of Brainerd as a city and its in-
corporation into a townshipe. It provided that the city officials were to uct
as township officers until the election to be held the second lMonday in March,

876.(54) The election, held the second Tuesday in March, resulted in the
election of the following officers: E.H.Bly, cheirman, N.Gravelle and G.G.
Hartley, supervisors; L.l.White, overseer of hig ways; Wm.Paine, assessor;

H.D.Follett and Jos.Hare, justices; John B.Conant and Jas.Dewar, constables. (55
2
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F.XGoulet was elected clerk and B.F.Hartley, treasurer. H.D.Follett also served

as city attorney. (56) The city officials who had continued to act as Township

officials, turmed their books over to the newly elected township officials on

March 21, 1876. And so the first city organization of Brainerd passed into
history after a short but eventful career and the town of Brainerd began the

ent that finally led it back to the status of city--a slower but much

growth than had been the wild young days of its pioneering

more permanent

period.
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he second town of Brainerd was inaugurated without any of the bubbling

The

enthusiasm that must have marked the orgamization of the first town.
own of 1300 people by

+ ha
al

tlemen d grown from the wildermess of 1870 to a ©

A census taken late in September 1872, showed a population
F] LV

1875 shows

Then came the panic and depression, and the census of
a population of only 93l. When the city was disorganized in 1876, its popu~
lation was probably than a thousand. Then began the steady climb that was
to develop the towmship into a city--a city that was To prove an

substantial organization.

he township organization seemed to operate without too much- friction. In

F.Hartley both moved from Brainerd, and thwe

October 1876, Narcisse Gravelle and B
chairman of the board of supervisors, named their successors. Ile ap-
and J.M.dartin ¥n their places. (3) Under the city charter,

pointed W.H.Leland

there had been three wards and three voting places. VWith the return To town-
o i s A AR £ o TAn A Tapaa amd ~doarad Tl
yvernient, Luiie board aces and oraered vTie
rear 1876, the

Clle

were certainly not over-

paid as Mr. Bly received $7; while aldermen G Hartley each received
L D, wis A

:2; and Aldermen Leland and Martin re

)
i

Crow Wing county's financial affairs did not seem to improve. The work
1e various officit evidently increase en extent that
provided in and courtl amped . At
1876, the county commissioners »5 a month

for the clerk of courts, the auditor, the regi

the treasurer and the judge of probate. (6) County politicans were
sbout for ways of improving the financial situation, and one of their
to attach Itasca county to Crow iing county. Hepr tative Goulet

Q

plans was

pxgacxeek introduced a bill to authorize this enddrgement, but it failed to
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pass, even with the assurance given Ltasca county residents that:

against the orgeni

caesg,as in fact this

a
5]

of Crow VWing, the tex payers of

"burden? of a county organization

out a helping disaster must ul

trated, our -with its

a
“

al1n
aLlll

naint ing a county org

reason why the t

consent and even aid, in the project, and

dens of a separale organization at probab

The coun inanciel statement, for

serves to illuminate the situation. It

been built i 872 at a cost of

(this had

age); wood on hand, $40; i

hisago county, $407.14;

will S

gnd unpaid, $4807.86.

$15,000; and county orders outstanding

eXpenditures were recapitulated

digtrict court, $1287.22; county

nm

The county had eoll

8 exclusive of penalties, interes

had the sum of $203.84 cash on hand. (8)

mentioned above, was for the care of

an

asylum

condition, his residence could

f'ound to be Chisago county, Cr iing

was

county claimed that it was not responsible

1881,

\,‘.‘.; 148

the state bursed Lrow iing

ation of fromtier counties cannot be
is an entirely different thing.
the former

within a

7650,000 valuation--is equal
anization

dsca~--unaer

3971.60 and evid

furniture,

.
the

ected t©
t and costs, the sum of
The
Elof Holt,
found freezing and starving
= = 3 r 4 & 2 | P =
not be fletermined for

councy
v

county

properly

=} 4. s
Ov makine
A “LuLJ;,_IJU

Itasca

"The srgument
applied to this

a part

are not called upon to assume the

weak neipghboring

«

coun

« As has

+ « Hence, we can

the circum

thereby escape the chances

I3 atand dad i
no distant date.

(7)
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tys where with-
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conceive of no

not gladly

and hur-

ending March 1876,
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32692,23; by taxes d
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R st
amount of $3026.22¢

s 3

idental, $1264.23;

‘JC
&

Or e Xpenses,

officers laries,

1 a
Sa.1c

axes during the year

+10,

he account against Chi:

who escaped from

in Crow wing county.
some time,

sued that county

offx for Holt's escape,

in the of $429.99

sum

ently imp

and

ail $1500
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o
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During 1876, two of the pioneers of Brainerd moved away. Thos. E.Can-
president of the Lake Superior & Puget Sound Company, to
devote himself to his large farm holdings in the westerm part of the state.
He settled on a fa nea alkke Park and spent the rest of his life there. (10)
Although Mr, Canfield may not have spent all of his time in Breainerd, he was
here much of the time and seemed to consider it his headquarters. M.C.Kim=-
berley, the civil engineer who was in charge of the crew which made the final
survey for the Northern Pacifiec, returned to Brainerd to become that com any's
resident engineer. In Beptember 1876, he resigned from the Northern Pacifiec,

and accepted a position with the Missouri, Kansas and Teéxas Railway, (11)

although he returned to the employ of the Yorthern Pacific in later years.

7 ¥

The second towmship election was held March 13, 1877. E.H.Bly, W.H.Le-
land and L.P,White were named supervisors; F.X.Goulet, clerk; Newton McFadden,

treasurer; frank Keating, justice; John McNaughton, constable; H.D°*Follett,

=3

assessor; and John B.Conant, overseer of highways. A levy of 2 mills was set
general purposes, while another mill was collected to pay a judzment which
city of Brainerd had incurred. Every voter was assessed a $2 poll tax,
for which he could substitute a day's worke In July, the board instructed
1

the overseer of highways to see that "no shade or other trees along the high-

ways in the towm of Brainerd be cut" unless it was am actusl obstruction +to

o

the road bed. BemimgxkeRkxxx (12)

In January 1877, the newspaper voiced whet seemed to be & commonly held

point of view. It complained that Crow Wing county needed legislative relief.

Cass and Itasca counties were attached to it for record and judieial purposes,

nd Wadena snd Aitkin counties for judieial purposes only, yet none of them
had paid anything for this service. They stated that both Cass and Itasca
counties had far greater valuations than Crow Wing county, snd they s hould

Jow s
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pro rata for county end administrative expenses. (13) A few weeks
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later, the newspaper stated that the law did pr i for collecting taxes in
unorganized counties attacbed and set the amount at ome cent per
acre, "which is not enough to pay necessa yxpenses.” (14) But the county
finencial state for the year ending March 1877, showed that Crow Wing county
hed received $1286.23 from Itasca county taxes, and $2875.43 from Cass county
taxes. By that time the county liebilites had increased to $21,210.,57, with
nssets lised at $15,121.96, over half of which consisted of delinquent taXes.
In July the commissioners gset the following

general expenses, 10 mills; poor, 5 mills

1 mill; general school, 1 mill, Cass county hed a levy of 7 mills for bonds,
1 mill for Crow Ving compensation, and 1 mill for general school purposes,

placed on an assessed valuation of $582,415. Itasca county had a levy of

10 mills for Crow lingc ounty compensation. (10)

During the summer of 1377, the army worm begen coming into the county,
suffered for years with the grasshopper plague. (17) This probably
‘he half-dozen farmers in the county, but hed no direct effect on
Brainerd, although the settlement naturally suff;red from the econonmic con-
ditions prevailing in the state. But the local residents must have been
greatly elated by the completion of the railroad to St.,Paul. After years of
postponement and delay, the road was £ ly in operation. The first train

from Breainerd to St.Paul passed over the "Bpsinerd Branch" October 20, 1877. (18)

3

In July 1877, Ches. H.Alsop an C.E.Williams launched
steamboat in Boom Lake. It was capable of holding about
of this boat is uncertain, but the following spring, Mr, Llsop

becen the construction of another bo to be put into service between Brainerd

and Fokegama Falls. (20) Anton Kahlum went into partnership with him then,
and in March the boat was launched. (21) The boat was named the "White

Swan", but owing to the fact thet the water in the river was very low during

the spring and summer of 1878, only a few trips to Fokegama falls were made.
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the fall, the boat was dismantled end taken to the ied River. (22) There

was reassembled and named the "Pluck," and ™ eptein"Alsop began making
regular trips on the Red River. (23) lir. Alsop must have remained in North
Dakota, for there was a settlement named Alsop west of Jamestown. (24) He
Wwas an early resident of Benton county and Crow “ing county. In 1870, 4t
was rumored that he would be in charge of the survey crew that were to run
the line for a railroad on the east side of the Mississippi, between aulk
Tapids and Crow Wing. (25) He served as county surveyor of Clrow Wing county
from 1876 to 1879. lr. Alsop's first partner, C.E.Williams, was auditor
and chief clerk of the machinery department of the Northern Pacific. He was
a native of Auburn, N.Y. and died in Brainerd in June 1879. He was survived
by a mother and i~ two sisters in Auburn, and his remeins were taken there
for interment. (26) He had been eleccted auditor of Crow Wing county at the
election held in November 1878, but had not entered upon his duties until

1~

March 1, 1879, just a few weeks before his death. (27)

Barly in November 1877, James iush, who had been a resident of this county
for many years, was run over by an engine mear fFond du Lac, and instantly
killed. MMr. Rush had been an early lumbermaen in this and Cass counties, and
in Xay 1871, had bought a lumber outfit from Theodore B.Spratt of Stl.Anthony. (28)
H e had been neurly killed by a blow on the head two years previous to his
death. This injury had been so severe that he suffered temporary fits of
insanity, and it was during one of these that he walked directly into the
engine that caused his death. (29) 1% may be in his honor that Ross Lake towm—

At least, as late as 1885, the present Ross Lake was named
There seems to be nobody prominently connected
district by the name of "Ross", so it might very easily have been giwen this

name as a cerruption of its original designation of "Rush Lake ,"
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During 1877, the township of Brainerd had operated on a budget of $607.40,

had $14.15 on hand at the close of the fiscal year. This prosperity induced

the supervisors to reduce the levy for 1878 to one mill. At t he llarch 1878

election, R.H.Paine became chairman of the board of supervisors, Thomas Bason

and D.5.Brb being the other members of this board; F.X.Goulet,clerk; Newton

McFadden, treasurer; H.,D.Follett, or and justice of the peace; D.K.Erb,

constable; and Georgze Whitney, overseers of highways. (31)

The election held in November 1877, had resulted in the election of the

following to county office: H.D.Follett, probate judge; George W.Whitney, sher=

iff; W.W.Hartley, clerk of court; G.Westerberg, attorney; F.B.Thompson, register

of deeds; C.H.Alsop, surveyor; H.D.Follett, superintendent of schoolss (32)

was the first time a superintendent of schools had been elected in Crow

Tl 3
this w

County finances

Wing county. Up to this time it had been an appointive office.

seemed to be in mo worse shape than they had been, yet for some reasomn, county
offices did not appeal to the successful candidates. During 1878, the office

of coroner was vacant. C.Westerberg failed to qualify at the commissioners

neeting held in January, and never did accept the office. H.D.F llett and

C.H.Alsop both failed to qualify in Jgnuary, although they did later and were
the officials to serve as register of deeds and as surveyor during 1878.
When the grand jury met in October 1878, they censured the county for having no
attorney in office, (33) and at the election held the next month, G.W.Holland
was olected To this office, onme which he had held from 1871 until 1877, and
after his election in 1878, he held this office through 1884. C.E./illiams
was elected auditor, although he died before he had served more than a few
end was succeeded by F.B.Thompson. Newton licFadden was elected treas=

urer, while Dr. A.S.Campbell was elected coroner. (34)

still some agitation in this county over the matter of getting
legislation of attach the county to some other county. During 1879, it was
the proposition of being attached to Cass county, and fixing the county seat

of the new county at Brainerd. Mass mestings were held and petitions signed
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requesting not only emnexation, but that a law should be passed making it
q ng 3

s 1 e 31338 a4 i)y P 14
obligatory on counties attached to others for judicial purposes to pay court

a

expenses pro rata. (35) ° x levy set in January 1879, was 39.5 mills

town of Brain: 305 mi T the first assessment district
d

for the
L the end of

11,1 mills ; county; and 7.4 mil for Itasca county. (36
L?%, the county reported assessts of $16,085.95, liabilites of §$17,372,65;

and an operating expense 27,44 « (37) 1In June of

that th unty was in the best financial state it ha er been in. The June
tax settlement left money : the traasury, after all current bills had been
paid, although "there are the bonds yet." (38)

Richard Relf, of Superior, visited in Brainerd in February 1879. (39) He
was & nephew of the former governor of i, L,.Gratz Brown (40) and
afterward settled in this county, where he served as county surveyor from
1883, through 1889. t was during 1879 that A.J.Clark of Little Falls wiote
a book, "Jim, Jam, Jems", which was probably the forerumner of a the mnszazine

name. (41) In the fall of this same year, the Whipple House at

was destroyed by fire. The fire was set by some ruffisns who had been
denied admittance. Mrs, ihipple, who was a former resident of old Crow Wing,
carried no insurance, but Minneapolis lumbermen promised to build her anothar

hotel, bigger and better than the one she lost (42) With no startling dis-

~
asters, nor eany great prosperity, the seventies ended=-and the first decade
of Prainerd's existence was over. In this brief span of time, it had risen

from a wilderness to a township of 1864 in habitants; it had eXperienced ¢

panic, and then years of sluw recuperation, but it entered the
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The Northern Faeific Railroad, the orig L cause of the establishment

0

of Brainerd, was the underlying caus i birth as a city The penie

ut the railrocad into the hands end the main of-
fices had been moved to 5 t.Paul. The completion of the line between St.-

Faul and Srainerd in 1877, had been a great step toward returning prosperity,

it was Excmoomdixof a business deal made in 1879 thet resulted in new
) - L re « - - 5 - 4 . " e
a new boom. In that year, Henry Villard perfected F2€ eight-million

ar blind pool bywhich he gained control of the Northern Pacific and be-

‘s g f—_— S AR £ " : 4= -1 -
came its president. His reputation as a "hustler” evidently was such that

the mere fact that he had gained control of the railroad brought new life

to the community. In January 1880, the newspaper cleimed a pojulation of

3500 for Drainerd, and stated that rifty new buildings, costing a total of

e o=

L]

i da 3 : . . 1 " [ e\
$30,000 had been erected during the previous sumuer and fall., (43) The

popular belief that Villard would bring prosperity was probably justified
for during 1881 the railroad shops in Brainerd were greatly enlarged, and
o & > v = 3
10,
by Noveuber/1880, the "8ilver Spike" was driven in Montena, marking the
tion of' the road through the mountains. The famous Yolden Spike was
the business expected from railroad activities,

was also a great boom in lumbering and the Gull River lumber Cos

stablished its mills at Gull River, while there was much hope in Brainerd
that it would become the sawmill center of the northwest. And even farming

interested new settlers, Crow VWing county had never been considered a

SECH S

farming territory, but §*~ul‘iklz;‘

o

the spring of 1880, & large number of pioneers

moved onto v what were then considered, "cut-over" lands, end begen hewing

Q<

iy

farms of the timber. As the newspaper remarked, "They might go farther

and fare worse." (44

‘here was cor lerable ag: for a bridge across the Mississippi

river at a point where the present bridge on the Merrifield road is located,

and a group of citizens orgsnized and decided to build a pile bridge with

%

&

sheer booms. C.B.Sleeper was president of this orgenization; Newbon lcPBadden,
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treasurer; G.G.Hartley, LP.Wlhite and Silas Brockwey, a committee to secure
estimates of the cost of building such a structure. (45) The co
proved to be too great, for nothing more was done about this

o

{Hartley made arrangements for a telephone exchange in

Brainerd, with the central office to be located in his post office building. (46)

This propostition also proved to be a little ahead of ils time, and passed

into history without leaving any further traces. But Wn.Ferris and H.J.

Spencer, who were doing a banking business, made a real contribution of pro-

I}

gress They completed a capacious brick vault, the hesviest and best one in
the stete, and instulled therein a burglar proof safe equipped with a time

~

lock. (47 The results of agricultural development brought a great deal of
publicity to Crow Ving county. The best samples of vegetables and grain
contributed to the collecti the "Products of the Golden Northwest,
ame from Crow Wing mty farn This exhibition was displayed in

ricultural car of the Northern Pacific railroad and sent on tour through-
out the eastern states. In announcing this triumph, the newspapers tated:
"Up to three years ago very little ras cultivated in Crow Ving county.
Messrs. Yaniel looers, D.Mcirthur and W.Bean's farms with a few small tracts

ge, and

cultivated in the immediate vicinity of Crow Wing villa
and about Brainerd, made up the sum of all the farming in the county. Then

came experimentel production, by Capt, Sleeper, C.F.Kindred, Russell, lMahan,

v

Kiebler, Vhitle: Wadhem, Stillings, Pegg ingneau, Hart, Iaichner, Beflschart

and others, and the soil was thus demonstrated to be as good as the best." (48)

Brainerd lost three prominen idents during 188( Henry Uressen, who
had been in the hotel business at old Crow liing befc moving to Brainerd in
1872, died in Septemk He had served a sergeant at Fort Ripley
for a number of years before geing back to eivilian life. (49) He had

held a number of public offices and was very highly ected in the com=

Griffin, who had been farming nearEFort HRipley for seve




The Towns of Brainerd :
A Firm Foundatiom Page 112

returned to his old profession of surveying. Eli M.Griffin, who through his

mother, was a descendant of Eli Yale, was first man known to have made a
definite and determined effort to discover iron ore in what is now Crow Ving
county. Attracted by the variations of his compass needle, he began a system=
atic survey that occupied most of his time during 1875 and 1876. During this
time, he traced the lines of magnetic attraction dwhat is now ,known as the
south Cuyuna renge. Lacking capital for further exploration, he tried to in-
terest hisfriends in the venture, but noxPof them was able to help him finan-
cially, so his dream of developing an iron range in this county never material=-
ized. But still interested in prospectingf or iron ore, he went to Duluth,
where be became associated with the llerritt borthers on the liesabi ranges

When the lerritts lost their holdingg, Mr,., Griffin suffered such a shock that
he was unable to realize that his fortune was gone. (50) ef'ore settling in
this county, lir. Griffin had spent a great deal of time doing pgovermment survey
work in Itasce county. (51) In 1878, Mr. Griffin wes Repblican cownty chair-
man of this county (52). He had moved here some time before that, from Sauk
Rapids, where his perents had settled upon their arrival f rom the east. (53)

In May, 1880, E.M.Weed sold the Headquarters Hotel to i/.M.5teel, and moved to

Brookfield, Missouri. Iir. Weed had been & resident of Brainerd at least as
early as 1874 (54) and besides operating the Headquarters Hotel, had been ex
tensively engaged in other busine [is principdl real estate investment was
probably made when he bought the Prainerd lumber & Menufacturing Compeny's old
buildings and had them moved to the Sherwood corner of Fifth and Front streets,
where he had them remodeled into store buildings. (55) He had also taken quite
an interest in politics and served as county commissicner from 1876 through

1878, the last two years of which he acted as chairman of the board.

In March 1880, the newspaper announced that by en oversight, twon .election
day passed unnoticed in Brainerd. The following day this oversight was noticed
and a number of citizens met and set Yecember 23 as the day on which to elect

town officers. (56) A month later, it coxmomma said; "Where is our energetic
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overseer of highways? Our streets are terribly littered with old barrels, boxes,

and other rubbish, our walks in a very bad condition, end all from the want of

proper attention. This matter should not longer be neglected.” (67) Township

affairs during 1879 end 1880 are rather obscure. At the town election held on
Mareh 11, 1879, D.S.Erb, James Dewar and J.M.Martin were elected supervisors;

Thos. Cantwell, clerk; Newton Melfadden, treasurer. The voters decided that
as there were "sufficient funds ImxEherckmexsmmxxkax on hand to meet all ordinary

E S

expenses,” it was unneccessary to levy taxes for the coming year. (58) The
board of supervisors ran into difficulties in June. They expected to meet on
June 24, 1879, but "not being able to effect an entrance into the Judge of
Probatets office, board held a meeting on the sidewalk and adjourned to meet
at once over Lamont & Wilson's store." (59) Mr. Brb seems to have resigned

ral

after that, although there is no record of this, and at the next meeting of the

board, held Sept. 6, 1879, J.J.Hartley was a memkt f this body. (60) During
the period from September 6 to December 17, 1879, Wm aj served as deputby
clerk. lir. Cantwell served at the December 17 meeting t resigned three days
later, and Mr. Paine was appointed to this office. (61 While the records of
the proceedings in which lMr. Pgine signed as deputy clerk covered almost four

months, the handwriting is entirely dissimilar from any of lir. Paine's records

and the form of the reports are as dissimilar as the handwriting.

There are no records on file between the meeting of December 1879 and
one held April 1, 1880. Although the newspaper stated that there was no
annual election held in March, yet the April 1 records show that J.M.Martin,
James Dewar and R.P.Wilkins served as supervisors, VWm. Pgine as clerk. And

ropinent
62

&~

at this meeting the supervisors charged a large number of the most p

/
- . . . 1 2 o . 1 . . - - / -
residents of Brainerd with the cost of having their premises cleaned up./ But

from the statement made in } newspaper, there were probably e great many more

who should have hmmem had their property brought up to & reasonsble s tandard of
proj i g I

cleanlinesse.
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group of citizens had arbitrarily set December 23, 1880 as
town election should be hel i that time arrived

been done about the mati The annual town meeting

held in March 8, 1881, resulted in the election of B.F.Hartley,

3. H.3tratton and Adam Brown as supervisors; VWm. Paine as clerk; and Newton

n2 pp 1 1
i

ligFadden as treasurer. (63) Early in January, efforts had been made to get
s 4

Brainerd residents interested in the proposition of getting a city organization

mited charter, but nething definite was accom lighédthen. (6@)

The original plat of Brainerd was filed on September 25, 187l. A plat
of the First Addition was filed Novembes 18 Joseph E.Turner surveyed

both plats for the owners, the Lake Superior & Puget Sound Companye dest

£
Brgpinerd was also platted in 1872, the plat being filed on September 14 of
that year. From that time until 1880, there were no new townsites or addi-
tions platted adjacent to, or very near, the original townsite. Dut The
advancing prosperity of the eightie to the platting of the townsite
of #mast Brainerd. his townsite w ) on the southwest of the south-
west of section 19, wnship 45, range 30, the present Uak Lawn township.
K. hiteley surveyed if f ol Edwin Y.Farrar and George Forsyth.
It was a very small townsif 1npr] r approximetely nine blocks. (65)
Bast Brainerd boasted a number of residences before the territory was
platted, but after 1880 it grew into a thriving settlement end soon had a
school, churches and business houses. School D:strict No. 5 was organized
in East Brainerd in 1881, the petition for organization being granted on
(66)
November 22 of that year./ The following year a school house was erected
on Lots 1 to 6 of Block 12 of Haines #ddition to East Brainerd, end this (67)
continued to serve the community for a number of
had been absorbed into the Brainerd system. School dis-

consolidated with the Brainerd school district March 5, 1885. (68)
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The real estate boom of the eighties started in earnest in 188l. The

first development was Schmelz's Addition to East Brainerd. This was a very
small addition, comprising only three blocks, The p vas filed May 13, 1881
by the owners of the property, Frank end Margaret 2chmels. On lay 30, Jacob
and Kate Miller filed the plat for an even smaller addition to Sast Brainerd.
Miller's Addition to East Brainerd consisted of approximately 2; blocks.

July 8, 1881, the plat to S per's Addition to Brainerd was filed. This 21

block addition was lccated on the southwest of the northwest of section 30

and on the southeast of the mortheast of section 25, both in township 45, rangedO.

The owners were C.B. and Sarah L.Sleeper. »September 19, 1881, Haines Addition
to East Brainerd, containing 15 blocks, was platted on the northeast of the

southwest of section 19, Lownship 45, renge 30. Alma and frederick Haines were
the owners. The Second Addition to Prainerd wes platted on the northwest of

¥

the southwest of section 30, township 45, range 30. It contained 24 blocks

=

and Wn.Pgine, Jr. was the owner. All of these plats had been made by R.K.White-

ley, who had served as county surveyor in 1873, 1874, 1875, 1879, and 1881,

After that he served several more terms, 1889-1894, 1896, and 1899-1903. (69)

During 1882, en even larger nunber of additions were platted, but after that
the pace slackened and there seemed to be very little land speculation until

after the discovery of iron ore on the Cuyuna reange.

lding operations kept pace or even exceeded real estate development.
In April 1881, a visitor in Brainerd counted 163 buildings in the course of
construction. (70) But it was also observed that a tremendous amount of
filth had not only accumulated on the thoroughfares, but was being added
laily. (71) The county reflected the advancing propperity of the eity and
yment had increased so much that the county commissioners established
more yoling precincts wi ; re-districted the county. Up to this time
there had been i and polling places in the old Crow Wing or rairbanks
istrict and at Deerwcod. There were also precincts in Cass county, one at

W est Brainerd, another at Gull River or Sylvan, and a thrid at Leech ‘ake.

But in 1881, polling places were established at Ingraham's or the T rading
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Post at Mille Lacs, end at Wadham's in the Long Lake precinet. (72/) And
before the end of 1881, five common school distriects had been established
in the county. Distriect 1 was at Crow VWing and had been established long
before the coming of the railroad. Brainerd had originally been District

it gave up this number and
No. 2 but after becoming an independent district,/school distiict No. 2

lished at Mille Lacs, what is now known as the Borden Lake 5choole.
trict Nos 3 was organized at South Long Lake; Vistrict No. 4 in Oak
Lawn township, now kmown as the West Oak Lawn School; while District No. &

became the East Brainerd School. (73) Settlers were moving into

country districts, but schools were the only publ 2rvice, outside of

Brainerd, althoug few amilies in the Long Lake community were meeting

at the various homes, preparatory to organizing the Bethel Lutherean Church.
The only post off'ice in the county was the one at Brainerd.

in the hands of private individuals up to 1881, %hen

Bank was incorporated with a capital stock of $50,000.

Board of Directors included: Williem Ferris, H.A.Towne, G.W.Holland,

C.B.51leepes nes Gardner, C.Abby, G.G.Hartley,

J.ADavis, C.B,.351

James Dewar. ir. Ferris, who had conducted a bank for a number

years, was chosen president of the new institution. (74) He had been

associlated which became the

First National Ban! George W.Holland was the iirst cashier and just before

168 h igned up $27,000 worth of new bank notes--the first issue

Mh S adrna
LGnIrisunas,

of the new

to re-incorporate Brainerd as ity had probably dewveloped

the new booms At any rate, on November 19, 1881, the legislature passed

p= 8

L o

an act incorporecting the west half of sections 19 and 30 of township 45,

o

30, and all of fractional twosnhip 45, range 3 .s the Munieipal Corperation
ff Brainerd. ImeoxRumak Three wards were to be established and the first

municipal election was to be held on the second Tuesda

Although there were 1300 names on the peoll lisls, only 370 voters cas




TheTowns of Brainerd

Page 117
Afirm Foundation

ballots at the election held m] B il Of these, 296 were in
the proposed incorporation, while 74 were opposed to it. (77) The fi
municipal election for the new city of Brainerd was held on January 10, 1882,
The voting place for the first ward was at the off'ice of the town elerk on
For the second ward, at the office of MeCarver on the morth
railroad tracks; and for the Third
{.R.R. on Front Street. The judges X i were: First
James Dewar and John Evans; Second lard, D.E.3lipp, Newton
‘adden and A Frate fhird Ward, C.Summers, 1.0.Phillips and A.W.delain. (78)
The fellowing officers were selected at the January election: B.F.Hartley, mayor;
clerk; John N.Nevers, . reasurer; Aldermen, long term: First
2gcond Ward, Vm. Ferris; Third Ward, Geo. Forsythe; for the
Short Term: First Ward, Wm. Stratton; Second Ward, A.P.Farrar; Third Ward, Adar
Brown. (79)
Brainerd was undoubtedly organized early in March 1871,
about eight months from the time that the final railroad survey establishe

) P o P . g ST i e AT o g, e P S e T o
The Crossing’.. cownl became & Cluy, tentatlvely on December 23,

=]

- -

and legally, on larch 6, 1873. The city was disorganized by an act of the

legislature passed February 11, 1876. OUn Lecember 6, 186 the voters ap-

proved of the legislative act of fovember 19, 188 e=incorporating Brainerd

a citye Two les of civic evolution in less than twelve years--truly a
record equalled by few other communities. The sixty years that have passed

since the fina ganization of the city have been marked by a much slower

but a far more permanent growth, and the present city bears little resemblenc

o the crude, but young and hopeful orgenization of the seventiese But the

5

restless activities of the seventies laid a firm foundation for future

progresse.
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Hotels and Tourists

While the Indian trade was the first business to be established in this
part of the country, yet caring for travelers and tourists was a part of the
1life of almost every home. In the great North woods, every tepee or cabin
was open to the infrequent traveler and every trading post took the place of
a hotels Travelers stopped with umz";ifkin when he estublished his post at
the mouth of the Crow Wing river, end Allan Morrison's home was one of the
best known "stopping plsces" in northern Minnesotas By 1866, there were three
hotels in CrOW‘n‘lng—Huheae of nenr‘ Thipple, xS, 5 arah Chapman and John
Bishope By 1870, there were two stopping places at Gull Lake and one &t
Leech Lakes The latter was operated by Edward Oliver, vii#}e the Gull Lake
places were—operatsd by George Wilson and Reuben Gray. It was at these Yest
dwo—places that the large crew of .men-surveying-thre Northern P cific iiné,

stopped during July 1870. (1)

With the esteblishment of the Crossing, the first new building to be
erected was the bo&rdlnr house built uﬁéer—vne-superv1 stomr—of- Stuart Seelyes

Other buildings sprang up rapidly and eating and slpeping places were as im-

- .Y
i O,

portentyand even more necessary, than the ders ™ number of places of amusement

that vied with them in size and number. The first building to Pe dixnliled by
the name of hotet/ was probe bly tnat built by Nercisse Gre velle. named Lhe‘
Merchants Hotel and probably lOGmCCd on the southeast cormer of Fourth and
Laurel streets, as‘}ff Gravelle owned lots there. (2) This building was either
sold or destroyed ij\ one of the frequent fires, for in 1872, when lrg. Cphapmen

buipt a hotel on the northwest cornmer of Sixth and Laurel streets, she gave it

the name; Merchants Hotel.

Frank Johnson, the young telegreph operator who lived in Brainerd during
April 1871, describeed the tent hotel of his host, €}Q>Haze1ton. There is
R

also on record the transfer of another of these hotels=-that of James D.

'
Campbells In July 1871, 4em Campbell, Bf"CrOW'wing Crossing on the N¢P."
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sold to Laughlin McLean for $450, 1 tent size 18x36F, with 7' walls; 40 pairs

L]
of common blankets; 1 heating and 1 cooking stove; chairs, bar fixtures,:a#oq:
54

The following dey, he sold his team and wagon to James Melean for $500, (3)

and probably left Brainerd.

The Falconer House was one of the very early hotels. It was a two-story
frame building located on Front Street, between Fourth and bifth‘gtreets- 1t
housed the Pine Restaurant, also operated by 4#. Felconer. (4) There is a
possibility that this building was the two-story boarding house where the
engineering corps lived at the time Frenk Johnson stayed in Brainerd. Mr.

Falconer continued to operate the hotel until 1875, when he sold out and moved

to Bismareke.

The Sicotte nouse?£ in operation very early in 1871, was located on the

southeast corner of Fifth and Laurel streets, lot 13 of block 67. In Hovember
1871, Noel Sicotte gave a mortgage on this place to William Aylmers (8) They
operated it under the firm nsme of Sicotte & Aylmer for some time. A second

mortgag i vaS K Lt by Noel and Octave ©icotte to

Eber héBly in July 1872, and a few days later Octave Sicotte of lMarquette,

\
\

Michigan, appointed Noel Sicotte her agent in charge of this property. (6)
Some pioneers of Brainerd have stated that the Northwestern Hotel was the
first one to be erected in Brasinerd, but if so, X¥this could have preceded the
others by only a very short time. This hotel was located on the southwes®
corner of Third and Front §treets. éne lots on which it stood were owned by
Josiah i:ﬁtyles. (7) When the building was destroyed by firein 1872, ‘the
newspaper st ited that 1t xas_oa ted by Coomb, Harris, Uodge and Jllvcg/ (8)

M‘f‘.‘LJ(’ -".[g[ . f "”“4»{—(;! 3:"
A ln¢ﬂndad~£°n~iﬂ£ﬂﬂﬂm@rutyle The hotel was rebuilt
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as soon as possible, but was again rozed by fire in 1875. (9) ﬁ%HiDogge
was & Breinerd resident until his death in the late eighties, exéept for about
two years pe spent at Gull lLakes He rented the 0ld Reuben Gray place (10)
and while residing there he had a post office established,with himself as post=
master. This was the Gladstone post office, established June 26, 1886 ond dis-
continued Aug. 16, 1887. (11) J\W.Reed, who operated the saloon in this
hotel, had evidently operated the hot;l for some time, for in October 1872,

'
Jane B,.fmmbx Coombs 4é£££;d suit against n1m7 ﬁhﬁ’claim@d‘%lat'{he BNl
4ﬁ+¢he-€u%plbure rn~ihe hOuel;{ p;i‘keea Obt&lnbd a continuation of the suit

on the grounds that his partner, Schuyler uﬁHarrls, had gone to the Dakotas

\
\

and could not be located. (12)

The big fire of 1872 also destroyed the Bishop House, located a few doors
west of the Northwestern Hotel. }§#% B.shop, who hed been one of the first

Crow Wing business men to move to Brainerd, was operating it early in 187le

He had it rebuilt immediately after the firéjgid continued to operutaﬁ it for

meny years, until he moved to Gull Lake, where he spent his last yearse

A

\ irickson operated the Stoekholm H tel located on the west side of
Fiftn‘street}'betmeen Front and Laurel, lot 6 of block 47. He also owned a
place on Front ftreet between Third and Fourth streets, lot 11 of block 49.
In O tober 1871;;hrﬁ Erickson sold the otockholﬁ Hotel to Andrew liorin and
James Frederickson. (14) _Jw% Frederickson probably bought out Je. lMorin's
interest, for in January 1873, he and his wife transferred the property to
Edwerd Morsee (15) Mw% Erickson, in August 1871, had sold a half interest
in the building on Front strcet waigh g probably operated as a hotel,

to Lers Fredericﬁson(ﬁplhe latber undoubtedly transferred his interest to
William Wiek, for in February 1872, E.Erickson and William and Anne Wiek

sold the property to EiBslynde. (17) The deeds for both the Stockholm

J ,' f ———

w4

F ,
Hotel and the building on Front street znaluﬂﬁiﬂihg;ahlahof the furniture

and the hogse
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William Vick remained in the hotel business in Brainerd for a number of
years. His brother=-in-law, Anton Mehlum, became assoicated with him early in
1872, and they operated under the firm name of Wiek & Mahlum. (18 In April
1872, they opened a large new hotel on the corner of Rxghkhxmma Broadway end
Laureles Idward Selander was the architect and builder and the hotel was
named the Svea. (19) Anton Mahlum remsined in Brainerd the rest of his life,
to become one of the leading politicians of the county. IHe served>as JEégister
of Peeds from 1889 until 1898, and as auditor from 1899 until 1906.

imposing

The most immmrksmEk business building in Brainerd wes the Headquarters

wo&xe/h-f‘éow o
Hotele Jhis—wes begun in 187%'al$heugh it was wet finished [arbrd=¥ofe, 1t

\‘;

was located on the west side of Sixth street, just north of the railroad

tracks. A very Inkeresting desceription of this hotel is given by l4C.

h}

Russell, who said: | "We were politely conducted, a few days since, over,
.‘-_‘\

Ehrough, around and beneath the "big hotel!, or Headquarters Hotel, as it is

| conmonly called, by mine host, Mr. Wm. Lytle, of that institution. The new

| meomoth wing is about completed in all its parts, 'and the whole establishment--

containing equivalent to three stories, and basements= with its necessary

outbuildings, occupies something over two acres of ground. ZXhs We cannok,

~

for lack of room, go into the details of the grand hotelfﬁrhich has been built

¥

by the Company for the =accommodation, strictly, of the heads of departments on
the line, their families and iriendsf-but will give only a few items, to show
its capacity and excellent management under the accomplished and thoroughly
business administration of lr. Lytle, vwho is one among the very few men who
could successfully and aceeptably hold the reins of government over so gigantic
an institution. There is room to comfortably s eat at the table in the new
dining hall, something over a hundred guests; there are between fifth and sixty
beautifully fwxrmizhed arrenged and commodious sleeping rooms, fitted up in
pich and modern style, with all needed furniture, such as spring beds, wash-

stands, mirrors, bureaus, clothes presses, ste., and all handsomely carpeted.
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Besides these and the dining=hall, are parlors, offices, promenades, an

immense kitehen, cook and pastry rooms, large basement story and cellars, wash
room, bedding presses, etc., all arranged and fitted up with every imaginary
article and appliance, for 'speed, safety and comforte' The whole building will

be supplied with water, by pipes leading from an elevated reservoir to all

rooms in the house:?%The ice=house, containing 700 tons of the congealed fluid,

is wonderfully convenient and was planned by lire Lytle himself, and for genuine
utility goes ahead of anything we ever noticed. There are several small rooms

along the side of the building

o2

entered by as meny doors. These rooms are
constructed so that a beavy body of ice surrounds them on every side and over=-
head--rendering the necessity of keeping ice in the rooms with the meats, etcs,
wholly unnecessarye. The butter and milk room is distinct, as is the meat

room and other rooms for contafning various articles, giving mno chance

whatever of one article flavoring the other; end the extraordinary con-
venience of the whole is remarkable. Notwithstending the meny fine chimmeys in
the hotel, there are now in use more than six hundred joints of stove-pipes

lr. Lytle's management of this hotel is marked for ils emonomy, courtesy and
thorough business properties, rendering him desrevedly po ular woth with

the guests under his oare snd the public at larges” (20) [ W= Lytle had

been a resident of Logansport, Indiana (21) and during the time he Tived in
Brainerd he was elected clerk of court, but served only one year of his term--
during 1872. Among the managers who succeeded him wasrnghﬂﬁoed. (Zz)quPf

Weed was county commissioners from 1876 to 1878 and had othér business interests
in Brainerd. In 1878, he bought the Brainerd Lumber & Manufacturing Company's

old building and moved it to the southwest cormer of Fifth and Front streets,

where he remodeled it into store buildings. 23) In 1880, he sold his interest
o »

\

in the H adquarters Hotel to

~
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Among th€ other hotels thef=we¥e in operation by February leTB,fmUre the
v T /
the Saint Paul House, ,thepimerican House and ,

Chicago House, the Glabe Hotel, ,
1 /T Lo w

\

the Lumbermen's Hotels «Gﬁigide-§f~i$sinume, thero,se;ms té‘be no.further feébrd
of the last-mentioned-hebels~ The Chicage House was located on Fifth Street and
operated by John Lenihan. The Globe Hotel and Oyster Saloon was leceated. at

the corner of Laurel and Fourth Street,pitd (operated by f,ﬂ{Brown. In a contest
staged a2t a Catholic Church fair held in February 1872, 1€ E1iza Dickson,
housekeeper at this hotel,was wa awarded a gold rimg-for beihgf%oted the best®
housekeeper in Breainerd. At that time? b Griffin was assisting ¥#®. Browm

\

in the management of the places The Saint Paul House, operated by PdGreene, (25)

was probably located on the Sherwood lots on tThe southwest corner of Fifth and

Fron£ streets, for in July 1872, M Greene bought a lot from Sherwood, and

sold it the following month to Nels Lofstrams (26) In the spring of 1872, he

began to construet a new building on the northeast corner of S ixth and Laurel,
|

lots 23 and 24 of block 43. LJMcDonald became his partner (27) but the name

of their hotel is not mentioned. The American House, on the northwest corner

of Fifth and Laurel, lots land 2 of block 47, was operated by H}C. and E4qUS

\
Russell. Vhen K\C.Russell esteblished the Brainerd Tribumne in February 1872,
\ | . o— .

he sold out to his brother. This was a cabher progressive hotel, GGG S

advertiééﬁathat; "lMeals ordered by telegraph will be waiting at any hour,

. 7
day or night." (28) BXU?Russell sold the place to John Kaifer soon after,

who transferred it to Katherine Homer. HiB\Tuttle dmosebaits 1eased it for
|

ashort times (29)

Three other hotels, Lhas-weme for many years te—be among the most importan
business vlaces in Brainerd, were built during the swmmer of 1872. They were
& ] (=
5 ¥ i b g A : .v ‘iﬂs - a1 H m S el e
the Merchants Hotlld, the %ﬁmmnms House and the Leland fHouse. The lerchants
Hotel was erected by Me#. Sarsh Chapman on the northwest corner of Sixth and

1 t

Laurel streots. lrs. Chapman was the widow of David Chepman, cne-ef-the

pioneer lumbermen of Minnesota, who had moved to Crow Wing in 18566. After

is death, in 1866, Mrs. Chapman had managed the Cathcart House at Crow Wing
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until 1870, when Henry Dressen leased it and operated it until 1872, when he

moved to Brainerd. In that same year, lirs. Chapmen completed the lerchants

s i o : o Yo : . 3

Hotel, which she operated for meny years. James RJStecle, whose family had

moved to Little Falls from lowa in 1854, when he was nine years old, served as

clerk of this hotel for about two years. He had worked in trading posts at
and Cprow Wing

Leech Lake/from the time, he was seventeen years olde He returned to Little

Falls about 1875, weere Tié spent the rest of his life. (30) Mrs. Chapman

mode her home in Brainerd until her death in 1925, when almost 95 years

of ages (31)

The Bivins House was opened in May 1872 (32), in a building that had been
erected by E\H\Davie on Fifth Streecte He had planned to use it for ;@ardware
| , \
and tinning shop, but € Lteek another locction. (33) _M#% Bivins had érrived in
Brainerd in 1871 to work for the railroad companye Born in New York state, he
had been a resident of Minnesote since 1854, except for Ten years hedisd spent
in the copper mines at Houghton, Michigane, For a number of years, he was timber
inspector for the Northern Facific. (34) lrs. Bivins, who.wes known as "Aunt
Jemnie" by all of Brainerd, exerted a powerful influence for good on the omxd
@

crude railroad csmp of the early dsys, and she and her husband spent the rest
- ' W 3 i

of their lives in Brainerde. (35)

The Leland housay for over twenty years one of the most prominent hotels in
Brainerd, was erected by Warren Leland in 1872 It was located on the southwest
corner of Fifth amd Laurel streets, lot 12 of block 65 (36) -die% Lelend, who
was a native of Maine, had come to Brainerd in March 1872, Besides his hotel
interests, he was interested in merchandising, lumbering and the manufacture
of tiese He owned the Leland House until 1881, when he sold it to ;ﬁ\u
Hartleye Then he first built it, he had only 18 rooms, but in 1879, ﬁe in-

creased this to 60 rooms. (37) During 1877, John Hillevers and BiFyHartley

operated the Leland Housep) both of-whem were prominent business men of Brainerd
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for many yearse (38) During 1880, the hotel was menaged by George H.

Stratton and his partner, Charles L\Heath. (39) Stratton afterward operated
\

he Stratton House.

By November, 1872, there were twenty hotels operating in Brainerd. (40)
Although some of tﬁose might be classed as mere boarding houses, ye® their
combined eapacity must have been very large, especially in cemuvalbisen-with
the resident populstion of the towmne There seem% to have been many changes
in mansgement, especially af'ter the panic of 1873, but most of those mentioned
managed to ii&e shrough the dark days of the seventiese. There-were two other
prominent hotcls;\qltheughrthese do not seem éo have been built quité as early
as the‘above. They—were: the Nicollet House and the Metropolitan Hotel:

The Nicollet House was located on the present site of the county jail, and it

was there that lirs. Jill.lartin stayed when she came from Iowa in 1875 to join

her husband in Breinerd. (41) In 1877, Henry Lelend, a native of Maine and
either a brother or cousin of Warren Leland, came from Monticello, lMinnesota,
where he had been in the lumber business, and bought the’yicpllet House. It

was then a two-end-a-helf story freme building, with twan¥§-£aur guest rooms. (42)
The lMetropolitan Hotel operated during the early seventies, but it is best

known under,théﬁﬁﬁggfof llershall Houses thn MeClary, a native of Ireland,

who had spent most of his youth in Marshall, Michigan, purchased it in 1878

and renamed it in honor of his old home tovme. (43)

\
LT £

After the panic of 1873\there‘seem éo have-been no nGW'hote%i;eraé%ed‘
until 188l. In thet year two hotels were erected in East Brainerd, One
by Anton Mahlum and the other by G.orge Forsythe. There seems to have been
some confusion in regard to the names of these botels, but the newspaper
stated that after a little difficulty, the motber of the names was finally
settled: Mahlum's waes to be known as the Northern Pacific Hotel amnd For-
sythe's as the Northern Pacific Housee. (44 ) Although Breinerd entered the

eighties still boasting of fifteen or twenty hotels (45) mnone of the hotels

A

1 3 ol
of the seventies seemd@” to have survived the boom of the/eishiiese

/
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From the establishment of the Crow Wing settlement in 1849 until/the Civil
War and the uprising of 1862 seemed—$q put a stop to the tourist business, this
industry had been one of the important activities of the settlements The Can-
adian artist, Paul Kane, with a party of wealthy Englishment, had stopped there
in 1849, as guests of William Whipple Warren. By 1855, Clement H.Beaulieu was
advertising that he could furnish guides and equipment )"to persans wishing
to visit the Pine region above, evplore'thut vast country lately ceded to the

A

United States by the Chippewn Indiuns, or make & trip up the Mississippi and
aeross to Fond du Lac, the head of Lake “uperior, by the Pavanns Fortage,
savanna and ut.Lhuis Riverse The traveler desirous of witnessing the most in-
teresting portions of the wilds of America, should by all means take this trip."
CsCiAndrews in 1856, and Henry Youle Hind in 1857, desoribe their visits to this
frontier settlements One of the last visitors to record his impressions of "old

" em it

Crow Wing" wes "Pemmen," who wrote an article entitled, "The Red River Trail,

‘ 5 38 | ot
for Harpers Mmgxkzx Magazine in 1859, This was the penname Fef Charles
/)

Hallogks (46)

During the early days of Brainerd there may have been many tourists,

But some sportsmen must have been attracted by the
most unlimited hunting and fishing to be found in the surrounding country, ¥oF
DR R R Rk Rk R A X P s B BEEF RS BN ERAN T AFEE A REREEREEHRIE shmrmmuax k£ Zot
Serpent Lake was a noted fishing lake during the early seventies, and in June
1876, a party consisting of ”;Q.ﬁells, of Wells PFargo; Hon. Alexe Ramsey, Hone

Ldmund Rice, Gen. CiW.lead and Col. DeGraff of St.Paul, stopped at "the noted
cerpent Lake near Withington, where they resolved themselves into a committee
of the whole and went fishing, not for govermors, but for the fine black bass
with which this beautiful lake abounds." (48) One distinguished visitor of
Governor Beriah Magoffin of Kentuckye. = (49) t that time he would
probably have been greatly astonished if some one had told him that thirty

years later, his son Berich, would settle in Deerwood when ore was first dis-

covered on what is now the Cuyuna range, and remain there the rest of his
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life, to become prominently identified with the discovery and development of )
I

"
many ore bodies. In 1881, CGaptain Glazier, while not exactly a tourist, stop=- 14A
ped here on his way south from his exploring trip to the souree of the Mississi-

sippi. He not onlystopped in Brainerd, but lectured during his stay here. (50)

A Sporismen's Club, one of the first service clubs kmxkexmrgsmized in Brain-
erd, wes organized in January 1874, About thirty members wae enrolled and the

officers were: president, Col. RiM4Newport; vice president, Rev. E\SdWilliams;
and treasurer, Thos. MXFantuell. ‘Tiree honorary members mo;e elected:

Rev. James Bescher of rou@hkcopsie,‘H.Y.; MAoC\Russell of Brazinerd; and Charles

Halloeck of New York. This is undoubtedly the Ch;rles Jullocﬁ/‘who in 18569 had

visited old Crow Wing. (5 It seems strange that a few far-sighted sports-

men should think of conservation in a day when the woods around Brainerd were
18l that three lumbermen, presumably experienced woodsmen, were lost for
days around South Long Lake (52); or where Robert Coffing on Serpent

had to kill a bear that walked into his pig

pen (53); or where a hunter

named George Lzner of New Jersey,—shouwkd—hewe frozsﬂ to death a few miles west
of the eity. (53) The club put some fine boats on Servent Lake and when MdCe

5

Russell invited the publishers of the newspapers along the N.l.line to come to

Broeinerd in May 1874, he says that the elub will place their boats and tackle

0

A
&

at the disposal of the editors for a day's sport, and accompany them besides. (54)

-

Brainerd men had no trouble satisfying their love of svcort, but it was 1879
before any effort was made to develop the natural rosspurcos of this part of
the state for the lourist business. Although the project failed, it was only
because it was too far ahead of its timee. In the spring of 1878, Elijah
Wright of Boston arrived in Brainerd. He owned a great deal of property
around Gull Lake and he made very ambitious plans to improve it. He intended
to erect a $15,000 gesort hotel at the lake; improve Gull River so that a
boat could go down the river to the railroad and meet the trains; and run a

aily stage to Brainerd after he had imoroved the road so that it would be

only seven miles from the ¢ity to his resort. He also decided to c hange the




Brainer

H_tels and Tourists

nameof Gull Lake to Lake Winnifred. Within a week after his arrival, he
decided that improving the Gull River would be impracticable, and before long

he gave up the whole procositions, (55) 4. _ , : BET ;
y The first man to run any resort business

@n Brainerd was Asa HMiller. At first he had a boat house at the foot of Bluff

Avenue and Fourth Street, which he advertised as possessing a most romantic view. (56)

He afterward operated a resort on Gilbert Lake, which he sold to Wilmer Holmess

Hr. Miller then moved up the lississipoi and put in a sawmill opposite what

is now Center township. (57) He lived in this county until his deathe.

The first advertisement of the boat house appeared in May, 1880, and the fol=
owing month Ed. RlﬁTonch and Peter Ort established an amusement park named

Woodland Parke It ;as located on the river just below Farnmham's & Lovejoy's

mill. They opened it on July Fourth of that year with a grand celebratione
large dance floor was one of the main attraction. (58) lir. Ort had been

one of the very early pioneers of Brainerd, and lir. French had settled in

Brainerd as earlyis 1872. He wes the oldest son of g\;iFrench, who had coms

to Minnesota in 1834 to serve as & regular soldier at ?oft Snelling. There he

had married llary Ann Henry, a direct desce dant of Patrick Henry, in what was

said to have been the first marriage performed there. Both father and son served

(59) ‘
in the Givil War./ Mr. French operated b Bon Ton until it was destroyed by fire

in Jynuary 1882. (60) He was county commissioner during 1881 and 1882 and

died in 1884. (61)

Excepting the sportsmen who stopped with Robert Archibald at Deerwcod, there

were no special pccomodations for tourists in this part of the state until 1880.

Uy B 1 |\\'-"- a i . a ) B -
Ihen Charles Fakindred, one of the most influential men ever to live in Breoin-

\

erd, opened his besutiful summer home at ylven lake to his friends, although
they were really paying guests. He was said to run this swummer home on the
European plan (62) 1mn distinguish it from the American plan on which most of

the hotels of that day were operated. This plan evidenly vroved profitable,
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for Mr. Kindred expanded his plans. He decided to connect Sylven Lake with

Tt
Gull Lake by putting in a few rods of canal. He also planned pfi buildisg three
D

hotels on Gull Lake and,pubssnf s steamboat on the lake to make a sixty mile
round trip dailye. (63) Nr. Kindred was a born mmmmmkmx promoter but he had so
many o ther and greater projects demending his attention that he seems To have
forgotten his i%ummer resort schemes, for it was ten years later, in leO)
before sn exclusive summer hotel was erected in this county. Then Cuyler

Adams promoted one at Deerwood. The decade between 1880 end 1890 saw some
slight efforts made to develop_ewr natural resources #e® CTouristS puprUSeS;

but the begimning of the modern pvhasedof this business may be said to have
= é- | = X v

been made in 1890,
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W hen the wave of settlers from Larointe, liisconsin reached Crow ling, one
of their first scts was to establish a school for their children. During the
winter of 1849-50, a school was in session with one teacher and eleven pupilse
The name of the teacher is not given, but the puyils were: Catherine and
Margaret MeDonald, Charlotte, Jane, John George and Caroline Morrison, Clemar
and Charles Beaulieu, John, Clement and Catherine Beaulieu, (1) There was
only one school in Benton county that year and it has been stated that this
was probably the mission school established at Belle Frairie by Frederick
Ayers, (2) but as all of the pupils were residents of Crow Ving, this school

o
was undoubtedly held at thi%e’settlement.

In 1852, Rev. Jemes Lloyd Breck established a mission school at ctk@olumba,

but this was practiczlly abandoned in 1862, and removed to ihite sarth in 1869.
During 1853, a mission school was established at the Chippewa Agency by Reve
Shermen Hall, but this was abandoned that seme year, owing to & misunderstand=-
ing with government authorities. Rev. Solon lianney, chaplain at Fort Ripley,

1 2 4 3 1 2 NN NN '\'1""::’": :
also taught & post school, and it would have been natural for CRPCHRTEHTRHCSE

e

Baldwin Olmstead to send his children to this school, although there is no

record of‘ﬁhis having been—done&?nln 18561, Rev. Ottomar Cloeter established a

ot

German Lutheran mission school at the mouth of Mission Creek in Center townshipe

This was abandoned in 1862, although Rews Cloeter continued his religious ae-

- - Y-

tivities at Crow Wing until 1868. He bough% bae_;néau;of section 25,ﬁ$own;£§;-f
44, rense—&f-and there is a strong probability that he conducted a school
theree. At eny rote, when JiM, Martin, for many years county commissioner of this
county, arrived at Crow Wing in 1870, he said there was a school located on

timee Father iierz, who established his mission at Crow
fing in 1852, does not seem to have conducted a school there, although he was
a firm beliwver in education. His age, and the great extent of his parish,

y

probably prevented him from devoting any time to teaching. (3)
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During the winter of 1859-60, Rev. E.Steele FPeake conducted a
perochial school at Crow Winge He was assisted for & time by ¥# C RAL:uch
A \

\

and Miss quﬁa\dlwell. (4) #% Louch also taught at StiColumba, for the census

of 1860 for Cass county enumerates a CJRupertsfaugh, ege 23, born in Irelands
'\

As his name was C.Rupert Beuch, this misteke: could easily have been madee
This same oensus, for Crow Ving county, shows that there were two schools at
Crow Ving in 1859-60. One, a select school with one teacher and twenty pu ils,
I5)
and the other a private school with one teacher and ten pu 110./ The select
sechool, which would correspond with our publie school, was undoubtedly held
at the " school house" where Bishop Whipple reports that he preached on
March 16, 1860. (6) The teachers during the 1859-60 terms of school were:
age 26, born in Lower Cgndda‘

Margaret L.Ford, mmmocorxiEnxtzmdyxgextwenky; and Miss g a“l rell, age 20,
born in Englande The former boarded at the home of Clemcnu the@ulleu and
undoubtedly taught the select school, as Miss Elwell boarded at the home of
Rev. EJ)Steele Peake and must have taught the parochial or private school.
During huu school year, the pupils in attendance included:i¥hmxmhiidrenx
Julie, Gustave and Theodore Beaulieu, Samuel, Ellen, Henry and Lucy McArthur,

largaret, Clement, Sophia and Robert Fairbanks, Ida J.Bloﬂr Willis W.Niest,
Eliza and Willieam MeGillis, Elizabeth MeCarron, LaE.Crossett, Rachel, Allen,
and Louisa Morrison, John Fairbanks, Yhilomen Roy, Robert, George and benja-
min Fairbankse ; school teacher named AR&udd, age 29, born in Conmecticut, 1is
enumerated as living in the Long Lek settlement, but there is no record of
any children having attended school there. (7) The parochial school continued
through 1862, as in that year Mr. ¥mwmiwei} Wardlaw taught there part of the

7

term, and was succeeded by lirs. AJE.{est. (8)

During the 1869-70 school year, there was only one private school in
Crow Wing county, with 15 male and 13 female children in attendance. These
children belonged to the families of Wallace Beane, Allan lorrison, Henry
Whipple, Clement H.Beaulieu, David Meirthur, George Fairbanks, John MeWillis,
Daniel Mooers, lirs., Sarah Chapman, Francis M.,Campbell, Henry ;l;eauliéu,

Mary Berry. William T.Cethcart attended, as well as Leila and liary
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Taylor, who were living in the home of lire and L Henry liixter. idf3 (9)

a

School District One was organized at a very early date. lir. ..3,‘lri."‘7§vorc:st,

\

who ceme to t’{\is county in the late seventies, says i remembers that the
78
school district records at the time his father was aneef%he directorE?V

showed entries dating from the sixties. He also says that lirs. Jessie Sibley,
=

David McArthur's daughter, told him that liss Ayers taught the Crow Wing school
for many years. ©She was either a daughter or sister of Frederick Ayers of
Belle Prairie. (10) The only other teacher of the seventies, of whom there

seems to be any record, was-MESs Annie Laurie Brockway, later Mrs. John N,
Nevers of Brainerd, who taught there in 1879, in an ell of the old Beaulieu

house. (11) This ell is still standing, having been moved to & s ot on the
4 ser~vfr— P
west side of Highway 371, just south of the entrance to Camp Ripleye , liehdell

Smith, who moved to Fort Ripley township with his parents in 1879, -seid—that
the neighbors in School Uistriet One gathered together and built a log house

near the highway, -ft—seems—thet during the seventies, school wes held in

\

—houses: at Crow Winges The log school erected late in 1879, which was located
on the same part of the forty as the log school Mr. Martin noticed in 1870,
was the building used by District One until 1888, when the present frame
structure was erected in Section 25, towmship 44, range 32, just east of the

railroad end Highway 371.

The cost of operating these pioneer schools was very low, as compared to
. PSR e “
present day standards, but the smewrt—ef instruction given was weewy limiteds
oAU panaails
In_1849-50, the cost of operating the school wasl’/f/[) s raised by athexr thes

: . -
public-funds, (12) The semi-annial state apportiomment of the school fund

made on March 7, 1870, shows shed-there were 84 children of school age in

Wik—=e o X
Crow Wing countyy, amd—smet the apportionment smewnate $31.92. (13)

11
ine

county financial statement for the fiscal year ending March 1, 1871, shows




BrLinerd

Schools Page 22 a

~<het $63.21 hed—been collected for the school fund, none of which had been
spente (14) The following year, the financial statement for District Ome
is as follows:

Amount of taxes collected 1870 $40e47
Amount of taxes collected 1871 Saol

Amount of taxes in treasurery March 1870 63021
Total [06.99
Paid Out 93415
Balsnce due Distriet treasurer 13.84 (15)

During 1871, the county commi&ssioners levied a ome mill tax for the
Brainerd school and a 3 mill tax for the "Fairbanks" district. (16) Although
this tax was levied for School Uistriet One, for several years, yet there was

i e
considerable difficulty in collecting it from the county treasurer.. M l\H.
Everest says that his father, who was district treasurer, finally had to go
to Brainerd and practicaslly force the treasurer to pay over the funds. During
the early seventies, this school district was practically defunct, as most of
families had moved away, but after 1875 new settlers moved in and

the Crow Ving

o4
o

by 1881, there were forty pupils in the Crow Wing schoole (17) From that time

on, the districet has had a very/;e;ular and active existeuceJ

The very early history of the Brainerd school district is rather incomplete.
The History of the Upper iississippi Valley says: "The first educational effort
was in the early summer of 1872, under the direction of llessrs. Beane, Prescott
and White, who as a self-constituted committee, purchased of John Hess, for
fifty dollars, a building of hewed logs near the railroad bridge, in which
Miss Hall was employed as a teacher." (18) David Stewart, a pioneer of the
new settlement, said that the first school was alhehn log structure on the

ot 757

west end of Front dtrect,;ﬂég;used as an ice housee The first teacher wes

/¥

Charles Lancaster, a graduate of S$t.Cloud Normah school., (19)

Both of these accounts, xmml contradictory as they may seem, are probably

correct, except for the fact that wmx one was first and the other secun%} The

term of school mentioned by the History of the Upper lMississippi Valley was

undoubtedly held during the summer of 1871, instead of 1872, while the
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session mention by Mr. Stewart was undobtedly that held during the winter of

1871-72. During the fall of 1671 & tax was leviecl for school purposes and
Ther clerk

*

\.1"‘
a duly elected school boerd wes eﬂeratrng 4“'? wereJ Ld ltnhl e/ PJD\Daven~-

i
pert, director, and TiFiKnappen, treasurer. (20) The log xﬂhmii building
purchased from John Hess was the first school in Brainerd. iccording to
VineDJ\Thompson, who arrived in Brainerd in 1871 and attended this school,

the building had originally been erected as an eating place for loggers

y ; : ] - 4 : P X o e
working on the liinneapolis drive. It was about 12x24 1in size and there were

eight pupils in attendances T pupils used the tables and benches that had

been part of the eating house equipment. (21)

It was expected that the tax levied in 1871 would produce a revenue of (22)
about $600, but the actual amount collected is shown in the financial state=
ment published in 1872:

Taxes for. 1871 +0Ded4
State apportiomment 29400
Total BL.34
Treasurer's fees 3433
Balance due district treasurer 81,02
The state apportiomment of $29 was the total for Crow Wing county on

the basis of 146 pupils. (24) 4And at that time, there were a number of

pupils in District Noe le

After the school term held late in 1871, there mmz seems to have been no
more public school until 1873, but there were several terms of private schools
Early in 1872, lMiss Roring taught a private school in the "lower towm." (25)
In May, Miss Fitzgerald was teaching in the Catholic Chapel, as there was no

o

public school. (26) Migtyrmsy<kuwe:hmenxaxprbiintyEwomerietaeinsdcadthongho:

e

Thexreeordsxarexrathercwegdes In A ugust ‘ the Brainerd =elect School
closed after a three-months session. Miss Ladd was in charge and there was
an enrollment of 22 male and 23 femele pupils. (27) The school was held in

the Baptist Chapel. (28)
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Early in October, the sheriff completed a census showing that there were
304 children of school age in Brainerde (29) Late that month, a mnotice for a
public meeting was posted, and on October 28, this meeting was held at the

Baptist Chapel, for the purpose of discussing school matters. L.B\Perr
& ¢ 5 Ed - o (=]

X
called the meeting to order and JgS|Campbell was elected president und J¥G-

T oad secretarye L&.lﬂhite read the records of the school board, which
stated that they had supported a school during the winter of 1871-72. Owing
to a mistake in figuring by the county suditor, there was less than $100 in
public money in the treasury, when there should have been $600s Furthermore,
the time for holding a legal meeting of the Board passed without the notice
of the members, whereby they had lost the state apportiomment. " Then Mr.
EKnappen stated that he had been unable to secure a settlement. " After that
ﬁ:pfﬂussell, a member of the school board, gave o history of the schools
during his term of office. He stated that there had never been a district

tax levied for school purposess lir. Sleeper then spoke in favor of creating
an independent school district. He explained the legal steps necessary to

such a proceeding ond advised that o committee of three be appointed to confer
with the auditor and see how much money was in the treasurye. The committee
appointed consisted of Llﬁﬁyerry, EdUaRussell and C;D;pleoper. A committee

of sim was appointed to consider the\pfopriety of organizing an independent
districts The president appointed C.Baﬁleeper;‘Pettybone, Lkr;”hite, JaGy Todd,
h:Ckgussell, and Rev. Mr. Criste Mr. Bridges moved that the trustees be in-
structed to confer with Mr. C anfield as soon as possible and ascertain from
him the most liberal proposition the Lake Superior & Puget Sound “ompany

would make for building two schools in Brainerd, at a cost of $2000, to be

paid in equal installments over ten years, interest not to exceed eight per

cent, (30)
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The committee apointed to consider the proposition of forming an inde-
pendent school district reported favorably, and Jé&S\Campbell sppointed ancther
comnittee to make the necessary arrangementse This committee consisted of
b‘ferry, Ca b.ulec er, “.C vussell Lifafthite, Rev. S, Ingraham and J.JﬂC'wphgi
bell. (31) An olvctlon wa.s set for November 30, 1872, (32) and the voters
A
iﬁlfaxﬂ¥hféL%he 1ff0 endent districte fh&/ﬁLsL?rcbmaxo to be organized
on December 20, lu?Z)(SE)A the following directors were-edeeded: First
Hard-~Warren Leland and J§B}%ynde; Second Ward--Cy\B.Sleeper and ng;ﬂussell;

\

Third Ward--LiP&hite and L\BdPerry. (34)

'he new school board met Monday, December 30, at the office of the Breinerd

i

. . . A2 8 & ; .
Tribune, with C\F;ﬁleepor ehe cualrfwﬂffﬁ;rerry was eleeted clerk and L
————— ‘-" \f_’,’»

\ A\ AA

thite, kreasurer. LiBiPerry was named to a u as ﬁauer1nbendent of ﬁchool%)&HtTI""

‘ ,A,A
»
shre—Poard—shoudd-nake other-errengenenis, ul/\reoolved to hold a three-months

term of school, beginning Jan. 1, 1873, and to tender the two teaching jobs to

the Misses Ladd and Fitzgerald, who had taught the private schools. Their
e, T .7 s
el 4
oA 3 s
salaries were te=b® $55 a month each. (35) It is doubtful if this term of
ol
ditedtdd

school really materialized, for at their May meeting, the Board &
menss to hold two terms of schools Miss Ladd was to teach one school north of
the railroad tracks and a block west of the Congregational Church, while Miss
Fitzgerald was to teach the other in the Catholic Chapel. (36) leanwhile,

Miss /iddie Simons had prepared to open a private school in the parish school

-\

building on the north side of the trackse (37)

While the Board do not seem to have been able to arrange for a spring
term of school, yet they went on with their preparations for the erection of
suitable buildingse In March, they called an election to raise $3500 for two
buildings, but the issue to vo»e bonds in this amount was defeated by a vote

"'H'.ri vy

of 214 to 213. (3 8) ihlg uefcat iﬁnlEd\Lﬂ_dlSG*wP*H}Aiuuu—fﬁﬂ rc alled

f"'\ i rr‘"\l
g mee ting for April 18, 1873, having Peanamaha that they could vote a direct

tax, not to exceed 8 mills, for building purposese. (39) They evidently suc=
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ceeded in raising the money for they prepared to receive
struection of a school building. (40) The new building we

August 15, 1873, (41) but by that time the Board had no momey with which to

so Miss Ladd wus allowed to open a private school in the new

building on Sixth Streete The school census, as completed by 4y Ferry, showed
mihat thore-were 143 male and 132 female young people between the ages of 5

and 21 in Brainerd. (42) The Sixth Street School was located on the northeast
corner of Sixth and Oak streets, on Block 128 of the Original Towne (43)

4

‘ £
[

In October 1873, the county was informed that it would:}eéive e state ap-
portionment of $238.28 on bhe basis of 322 pupils. (44) The school board ex-
pected to be able to provide a three-months terms of school, beginning December
15, 1873, with the Misses Ladd and Simons sas teachers, (45) but as the new

seats did not arrive in time, the opening was postponed until the first lionday

in Jenuary. (46) Although there was a term of public school during the 1873- )

A
2

= g
1874 se&son,!yzf the Sisters of S t.Francis opened & private school on hOV&i 5
/

é

in a building on Tenth street, near the corner of Main street. (47) They com-

pleted the term by the first of Merch and returned to Belle ‘rairie. (48)

Early in Januery 1874, lMrs. CJBloom begen teaching the Episcopal parish school, (49)
and in April she was succeeded by Miss Millspaugh, the rector's sister. (50)

In May 1874, Miss Ladd begen a summer term of private school in the publicy
school building. (51) The roll of honor for the pupils of Miss Simons!

room was published in February 1874 end the names of children belonging to many
of the early Bruinerd femilies appear: Frunk Campbell, Josie Shontelle, HEmma
Pegg, Nellie Stearns, Sophia Pegg, Katie White, Levia Davenport, Bertie Hum-
phrey, John Davidson, Williem lhite, Harlo Comstock, Christie Deane, and
Blenche “leepers (52/ Children of those days, however, seem to be myEm more
given to vandalism than those of the present time, for before the new school

house had been in use two months, the walls were so covered with obscene
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matter that it was considered "a moral poiscner to any child not iron clad." (63)

le.rerry had been appointed first su.erintendent of schools for Brainerd
end he served during 1873. In 1874, Georpe WiHollandwas appointed tothis poste (54)
J4S{Campbell had evidently served as the first county superintendent of school,

for he was paid for his services in that office during 1873 (55)a In 1874,

the county commissioners appointed Rev., E\SNElliams county superintendent,

to serve at a salary of "$4 a day when he works., " (68) The eity school board

were fortunate to find that a chenge in the laws showed that they had a balance

of $800 in the school fund, instead of nothing, (57) and they determined to

keep the schools open from September until March, and from April 15 until

July, 1875. (58) Imn September 187&, the schools opened full blast, with

GéBaDavis and o Miss Smith of SteCloud teaching in the Sixth 3_treet building,

and Miss Yannie Robinson of Brainerd, in the "school north of the tracks." (59)

T he year 1875 seems to have been a rather hard year in Bhe Brainerd s:hools

systeme. In February, iAHATull, the clerk of the school board, published a notice
N \ who did

stating that all children attending school =mkkhmmgh not reside in the dis-
triet, would have to pay $2 monthly. (60) In March, Crow Wing county re=
ceived only $64.68 from the state apportiomment, on a basis of 22¢ per pupil. (61)
In duly, GiBADavis resigned as prinecipal of the Braine® School, anticipating the
necessity of the Board, financially. They had not enough money to pay the
last quarter's saleries, and the indications were that they would have little
money in the future. (62) Both a winter end a summer session of school were
held during 1875-76 and during the swmmer of 1876, although it was said that
the puril attendance seemed very small in comparison to the large numbers of
boys lounging arcund the streets. (63) A parish school opened in January,
1875, with liiss Agnes Campbell of Nova “cotia in chappe, although the news-

paper does not specify whether it was an Episcoval or a Catholic parish school.
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By 1877, the school board hirged two teachers and had the school house
repainted and re aired, (65) and in' Se tember of that year, the public
schopl opened under these favorable auspices. /An Episcopal parish school,
an advanced private school, had been establighed in April 1877, and this con-
tinued to operate,as a sort of high school, for several yearss (66) During
1878, the school board built an addition to the Sixth Street “chool, and in
November have a grand entertainment at Bly's Hall for the purpose of raising
money with which to buy seats for the new addition. (67) The entertainment
was a great success and netted $95.62, although it was marred when the fire
alarm sounded for a chimney fire in the next block. The Hall was emptied
without disorder. (68) The winter term of school opened in January 1879, but

there were still no seats for the new room. The Board had expected to buy

seats from StaPaul Parish =chool, but at the last minute, the trustees of that

institution refused to sell them. (69) In 1878, the Board had received §1 each

from the state spportionment for 183 pupilse (70)s In 1879, they recieived
(71)

$211.46 for 194 pupils enrolled,/but in 1881, they received only 40¢ per

capita for 286 pupils, while Crow Wing county received the seme amount per

capita for 40 pupils, the number enrolled in the Pistrict Yne schoole (72)

During 1881, when Brsinerd began to boom with the construction of the new
Northern Pacific shops, the school board raised the standerd of the school by

. 8) :
grading it into four departments, with four teachers in charg 6'7 By that time,
the county, too, had developed their educational department. H\D{Follett was
chosen superintendent of schools in 1878, to succeed Rev., EiSN¥illiams, and in
1877, he was elected to that office, at the first election in which a superin-
tendent of schocls was chosen by popular ballote He served through 1879, when

Rev. R.A.Beard was elected to serve a two year term.

The school system of West Breoinerd does not seem.to begin until 1879.

In that year, the legislature incorporated townships 133 and 134, range 28,
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as a special school district under the corporate neme of "The West Brainerd

S chool Yistrict." (74) This was probably done to enable a school distridt

to be organized in Cass county, which at that time was attached to Crow Ving
county for judicial and record purposes. In April, 1881, a petition signed

by Cass county residents, praying that they be allowed to organize a school
district, was referred to the Crow Wing county attorney by the members of the
board of commissioners, and he decided that there was no law under which a
school distriet could be organized. (75) A school district mes undoubtedly
orgenized and a school house built, for a large number of pioneer residents of
iest Praoinerd and Brainerd attended a school there. In 1385, when the Brainerd

school distriect absorbed the West Brainerd distriect, the Board bought two

lots in West Brainerd and let the contraect for building a school house. (76)

n—— 1 ) ‘ T o a N o (o)
This school house was located on lots 2 and 3 of Bleok 42 (77)

small-pox epidemic in Brainerd, and Dr. Ja&ikThabes, health officer, imxx=
established a pest house in the old school buildinge The following year, he
bought the building for $100 and had it wrecked, using the material in other
buildingse (78) The building had not been in use for some time before it was
used as a pest house, and Vlest Brainerd children went to school in Brainerd

until 1919, when the Riverside school was erected, although not on the lots

on which the first school was lccated.

Us.Ss.census for Benton Co. 1850,

History of Morrison County, Historical Hecords Surveye.
0l1d Crow Ving

Journal F.HB.Diocese of dinn, 1860,

Crow ling and Cass Coe census 1860,
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Crow iing Co, census 1870
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John N.Nevers bioge, Crow liing Coe Historical luseum.
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S8uk Raepids Sentinel, larch 11, 1870
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The first religious activity in what is now Crow Wing county took place

in 1840, when Rev. Semuel Spates of the lMethodist Chmrch, endeavored to

N . - o % s (23 i s 3
establish a mission for the Rabbit Leke Chippewa?s He chose & location at the

mouth of Rabbit River, in what is now Irondale townshipe This mission lasted
only a few months, when Rev. Spates became discouraged and moved to Sandy Lakee
is assistant, Emmegahbowh, later the Rev. John Johnson of the Episcopal
church, went to the Whitefish where he established and conducted & mission for
about & yeare Then he, too, gave up the attempt and moved into what is now
Lake Edward township, where he established his home on whakxksxmmw Johnson's
Garden Lake, and affiliated himself with Hole-in=the-Day's band of Chippewa,
whose headquarters were located between Round and Long lakes. In 18408, whm
Frederick Ayers, who had come into Minnesota in 1836 to do missionary work
at Pokeguma, after having had six or seven years service in Wisconsin, mowed
to Belle Prairie, where he established a Fresbyterian mission for the Chippewa
and Winnebagose With theestablishment of Fort Ripley, a cheplain was ap=
pointeds Rev. Solon W.Manney of the Episcopal church, was the first to hold

this position and he reached the fort on Dece 7, 185les Until the post was

abandoned, all of the chaplains were Episcopalianse

The year 1852 was a very important one in the religious history of
part of the country. In April of that year, Reve James Lloyd Breck of &
Episcopal € hurch, established the mission of J:%.Columba on Gull Lakees
In July, Rev. Father Franz Pierz arrived at Crow Wing to establishgd his
mission of S t.Francise For a few months, during 1853, Rev. Sherman Hall
conducted a mission at the Chippewa #gency under the aus ices of the Americen
Board of Forkign Missions, but this was discontinued due to a misunderstanding
with the govermmente No other missions were established in this section until
1858, when Rev. Uttomar Cloeter of the German Lutheran Church, established
Gabitaweegemash at the mouth of llission Creek in what is now Center townshipe

Thet same year, Rev. HJSteele Peake, who had succeeded Rev. Breck as pastor
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at 5 t.Columba, formed a congregation at Crow Ving, and in 1860, a chapel was

erected there, Holy Cross lissione

The uprising of 1862 made a great change in condition in this par t of
Uinnesotae The buildings at St.Columba were destroyed by the Indians, although
the parish continued to function and is still the St.Columba parish, now loecat=
ed at lhite Earthe Rev. John Johnson was in charge at otLColumba, while Reve
Peake devoted himself to his Holy Cross parishe Vhen the latter was appointed
an army chaplein in active service during the Civil War, 9% Johnson added the
Holy Cross parish to his field, ond later included a mission which he establish=
ed at Mille Lacs. Jews Cloeter abandoned Gabitaweegamah and moved to Crow ‘‘ing
where he continued his missionary work until 1868 From the time of "the
Removal"™ in 1868, when the Indians were removed to White Earth, until 1870,
religion was at a very low ebb in Crow Ving and Cass counties. Father Pierz

remeined in charge of his Crow liing mission, but he was a very old men, almost

blind, and unable to travels He was assisted by younger priests from Belle
disaster
Prairie, but the church began to feel the ecinomic prmxszure which had

befeillen its parishoners. (1)

In 1870, Father Pierz was probably the only resident religious leader left
in Crow Wing or Cass countiese Then came the estoblishment of Brainerd. The
first religious services in the new settlement were those led by Dr. ;ﬂ”.

acific « He was a very devout
Episcopalian and a leader in the church all during his residence in Brainerde
These services were held in the log house by the river that was used as a

boarding house for the men working at the Bassett, Cobb & Coe sawmill. C.B.

\ L7,
Hobart end Mrs. L.PJlhite led the singing. ABuilding -committee was named
\

whose members proved very active and efficient. The members were: Dr. S\W.
Thayer, CaB\Hobart, GsF\Lee, E C\Vinnine and Thos\L\Rosser. (2) Subseriptions

were first started Nove 7, 1870, in the office of C4T\Hobart , who procured
A A

\
\

most of the subscriptions and who personally superintended every part of the
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construction of the building, which was completed in August 1871, at a cost
of nearly 35000 Thos. H.Ganfield, president the Lazke JSuperior & Puget

vound Co., headed the subscription list with onati £ $1800. (3)

During 1871, Rev, J4AiGilfillen, one of the most noted missionaries of the
northwest, began his serviéos in the field Xkamkt in which he was to labor for so
many yearse He was in charge of St.Paul's church in Duluth when he was named
as missionary priest along the Northern Pacific, with headquarters in Brainerd.
rtEhenghxhexyasxnaetoex thisx e rrceoryxax ity dexdid-omaxssmexhizaduties
wnkidchmexififxx At that time, he reported that Brainerd was the worst town
imaginables The church had 44 communicants, ineluding four at Aitkin and
three at Detroit. During the winter of 1872=-73, he reported that they were
2000 men in the woods north of Brainerd. During Lent of 1873, he traveled
2ll over his parish, which included the territory from Red River to Aitkin,
Brainerd to Little Falls, and he traveled to the lumber camps to within 80

miles of Prinee Rupert's Land. (g)

m

The first communicants of the church in Brainerd were: MlMrs. IliY\Lytle,

1la Shoaf, Mrs. L;r\ihite, japte Spalding and John Blackburne The
T
\ \

ation was probably organized early in 1872, snd the first officers
were: JSenior Warden, Gen, Cl;;ﬂead; Junior Warden, CEHgH:rvey; Vestrymen,
Dr. ..Faﬁhufnr CAT\Hobart, Jéhn Bleeckburn, Vm. Lytle, h:Q,Coykendall,
Laf&fhite, John Davis and TIFKnappene Rev. Gilfillan remained in charge
until he was transferred to Vhite Earth in 1873. -ge was succeeded by
lﬁlills;augh , who servied until 1876.. Rev. Herbert Root followed,
who served until{l880. ' I I ' Jawley wes pmE in charge f'or the next

eight yearse. (5)

The Ladies Mite voeciety was orgenized the last week in February 1872, and
at their first meeting they realized $17.25« (6) In May of that year, they
received notice that the young ladies of StdPaul's Church of Burlington, Vt.,

had ezarmed enough money to buy a silver communion set, which they presented
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to the loeal churche (7) In 1876, the ladies co-operated with Thomas Can-
field, secretary of the diocese of Vermont, in obtaining a bell for the churche
1t weighed 811 pounds and was cust by licNeeley. (8) In 1880, a very inter-
esting relic was given to the churche It was a boulder inscribed: "Corner
stone of Holy Cross lission Chapel, laid at Crow Winpg, llinnesota, Ascension
Day, 1860, by the Rev. Father Ezekiel CdGear, Chaplain U4S.Wrmy, Fort Ripley,

Reve
linn.; the WeePdent LiSdPeake, B.D., Resident Mimsionary." Rev. Mr. Gear was
the fether of the man who was governor of Iowa in 18880, and Rev., Peske,

af'ter a long residence in California, had returned &b Minnesota and was rector

at licorheade The Crow liing church had been destroyed by fire, and the corner

=]

/

stone had "been found several years later, among the ruins and eshes. (9) This

relic is now incorvorated in the new St.Paul's Church of Brainerds

ml
2

he first church building was consecreated on lMay 29, 1873« The Bishop
of Mimnesota and about twenty-five visiting clergmen were present. The main

5

address was delivered by Rev. JiliHopkins, the architect of the church, who
came all the way from Plattsburgh,\ﬂ.f., for the services. (10) It servmed
the congregation for fifty years, the last service being held during Brainerd's
Homecoming, on Sunday, July 9, 1922. " Rev. u.J{gzlenta was pastor, but the
SERYIEES sermon was preached by Rt.Rev. GaGaBennette (11) The old building

g g

was wrecked and a very imposing building of StaCloud granite erected in its

places

Brainerd was a part of the Catholie parish of Crow liing, which was, in 1870,
attached to the Belle FPrairie parishe There seem to be no records of any
religious services being held in Brainerd during 18704 but Catholic services

mey have been held in the homes. The first record of any service, seems to

be that of February 21, 1871, when Father J4J\Buh baptised the infant daughter

of kr. and lirs, John Lafonde The child had been born on December 5, 1870,
probably the first child to be born in Brainerde=\at least the first ewe whose
birth is a matter of recorde (12) A second child, born August 12, 1871,

was baptized on August 27 by Father Buh. This was the son of Mr . and lirs,
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Thomas Rielly. The sponsors were James Butler and Mary Linshene ITwo mkhmx
baptisms are recorded in January 1872, those of Maria Crescentia Stermen and

Rosalie Bourgeois, both of which were performed by Father Buh. 12)
i

Father Keller was put in charge of a parish that included the whole line
of the Northern Pacific. (13) This probably took place some time during 1871,
as he was acting by February 1872, when he sponsored a church fair in DBrainerd
that proved to be a great successe. (14)
erected and was in use. (15) A second Catholic Fair held in March 1873, ne%ted
over $500. (16) In August of that year, Father Keller was transferred to
another field (17) and Father Buh was again placed in charge of the con-
gregation. He served this territory until 1875, although his headquarters were
in Belle Prairie. During 1874, he was assisted by Father John Pavlin, and in

1875, J.BJlMJGenin and Father Schneider seemed to s.end a little time in

L |
I/

Lreinerd, although most of the baptismal rites were performed by Father Buhe

The congregation rap@dly increased in size during 1873 end records show

that children were born to lessrse. and Madames Nathaniel Braun, John MeCarthy,
Richerd Wheals, Narcisse Gravelle, Henry Bah, John Geandron, Thomas Rilley,
end Benjemin Askenss The sponsors for these children, who were probably
members of the congregation, were lMessrs. end lladames Chearles #iken, liathew
I alpen, Joseph Gravelle, Usebe lechamp, liichael Kelly. Beside these, there

\
were Blizabeth Dikson, Elizabeth Beauchemp, Elizébeth Savage, John Glpalsh,
Joseph Dugal and John Thomas O'Gara. The spelling of some of these n;mes is

incorrect, but this is a very common occurence in early recordse (18)
2 w D

The congregation grew rapidly, and by 1878, the confismation class
numbered thrity-two memberse (19) In September 1880, the congregation was
constituted o parish, with Father Schneider in chargee (20) ‘“lthough it was
not established until 1880, records are available from 1876. These UPtEy baptismal,

L

death and marriage records show that the following priests officiated:
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L\duitzenberger 1876-17, J.Jﬁﬁuh 187%-78, AJPiSequin 1878-79, JQJ%?uh 1879=T9,

CX5¥Hxﬁmrd 1879, During 1880, a large pumber of priests officiated, includ-
ing Fathers Buh, Boniface, Richord, and “chneider. From 1880 until 1882, Reve

Father C.\i)\Gunkel performed most of the ceremonies. (21)

The Catholiec Chapel, which was erected early in 1872 , was located on

lots 1,2,3% =and 4 of Block @ix& 65, the northwest corner of Fifth and leple
streetse (22) The second church bell to be installed in a Brainerd church
was blessed the first Sunday in December 1873, by Father Buh. (23) 1In 1878,
Father Buh bought the residence of Narcisse Gravelle, located on the south-
ast corner of Fourth and Laurel streets, lot 13 of Block 65 (24) and he also
bought several other lots in the same block. (25) This first Chapel served the
congregation wntil 1883, when it was moved to the back of the lots to make way
for a large frame building, size 41x106'. (26) A large brick parsonage was
erected in 1889 (27) but both church and parsonage were destroyed by fire im
October 1890. (28) ihen the parish built & new church, it was locuated north

of the tracks, on the northeast corner of Ninth end Juniper streetse

Beside the Episcopal and Catholic activities, three other denominations
prepared to enter the Brainerd field during 1871. These were the Baptist,
Methodist and Congregationale The Baptists seem to have the first of these

\

to get a worker into this territory. In 1871, they appointed Rev. John E4licod
missionary for the whole line of the Northern Yacifice He held this position

until 1874, when he was apoointed general Missionary for the Bpatist Church

in Minnesota, (29) Dyring the early part of 1872, he preached at the school

house(30), but{/ )

site of the First Baptist Church of Brainerd, the southeast corner of Sixth

(29)
& Chapel was completed before August 1872 (31), on the present

and Juniper streets, lots 14 to 18 of Block 74. The ocongregation was or-
ganized September 8, 1872 (32), and the Services of fLecognition were held

September 17, 1872. (33)
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In January 1873, RevaizD\Villiams was appointed the first resident pastor.

a1
He lived at the home of Jas.DiCampbell on s5ixth street, where he also practiced

1

homeopathic medicine. (34) Late in August he seems to have been put out of the
church after having been caught playing three-card montes (35) and retired to his
farm at Brooklyn Center. (36) RevJJohn Squire was appointed pastor in December (37)
and he remained in Brainerd until Cctober 1875, when he was transferred to Co-
katoe (38) From that time, until 1881, the Boptist Church in Brainerd was
practically defunct,

The first week in July 1881, ievajguéﬁuntlcy'bcgan holding services in the

R
Baptist Chapele (39) The congregation were organized on October 23, 1881, as the
First Baptist Churche The officers were: Rev;qivilkins, pastor; ¢evaXHi Hunt-
\ Y | I T
‘ley, organizing pastor; and Sister Carlton, clerke. The charter members were:
Aev%ﬁ%nilkins, Rev. G}Q:Huntley, Messrs. Twedale, Bulmer, Shokvlund and Johnson;
|

the Mesdames Lena Shupe, Shovlund, Fanny Carlton, CRP.gotter and Randolphe (40)

Since its re-organization in 1881, the church has grown steadily and is now one

of the leading denominations of Brsinerdes

The liethodists and Congregationalists began working in Brainerd about the same
times Both denominations had missionaries there,preaching in the school house,
as early as February 1872, (41) The lethodists began building a church in April
1872 (42) Vhile the Congregational Church was not started until July of that
year, (43) although the latter were able to dedicate their building a month
earlier than the lethodistses dMr. Gurley was the first lMethodist missionary, an d
by April, 1872, he had $750 in a building fund. (44) DBefore the end of tha
month he had raised the $1000 necessary for building purposes (45) nd a Board
of Trustees began making preparations for a building, to be lccated on the site
of the present church, the southwest corner of Sixth and Juniper streets. (46)
lMr. Gukley seems to ha: : Brainerd soon after, but in Uetober, Rev, Chaffee
held services in the new hotel on Sixth Street (47), which was probably the

lierchants Hotel operated by lirs. Chapmane
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The congregation was organized early in Ogtober 1872, for on the fifteenth
of that month, Hev. James T4Chaffee, PiE4Cheirman of the uarterly Conference,

. e L 4 Y 1
certified that the following were elected trustees of the First M|Z4{Church of
)

Brainerd: Eli RJPerry, Lyman PJNihite, John _wt\".._gegg, rEEicks me\I.\‘;hitc,
A \

A+ v | - ..\.‘ ( ; y Vrl \ . LA i B
RaSdKnapp, HAJACrist and MAC\Russell, (48) Rev. ué&qgrlst wes the pastor #8x
\ A \ A |
and sepvices were being held at the church (49) although it was not dedicated
until February 9, 1873 The dedication services were conducted

Merrill of StiPaul, assisted by ﬂev&{lF%Chufree of linnespolis,
K Y

of the N ..;uis;crict. (50) Revl)Crist servikd in Brainerd until September 1875,
when he was succeeded by Hev, nani»utton. (81, Four months later, Rev. Sutton
was declared inseane and sent to St.Peter, where he died a few days after mkik
being committed, (52) Rev. Crist evidently returned to Brainerd, for he was
transferred from Brainerd to Austin in September 1876, while the Rev. M%B.
Smith was appointed to succeed him here. (53) The church seems to have been
without a pastor during 1878 (54) but in October 1879, Rev. C{H4{Dixon of

Ohio was assigned to the combined pastorate of the Brainerd cnd Wadens churches(55).

b T : e e 4l ; \.
Revs EdNelthorpe became pastor in April 1881, (56) and in October, Rev. A
\ |

Edwards was eppointed. (5&)

The American Home lissionary Society sponsored the movement that led
the organization of the First Congregational Church of Brainerd, During
first half of 1872, mev.ﬁﬁﬁﬁgxtes held services at the school house, although
he was not a resident pastor; (68) The construction of a church building began
in July 1872. £#93% Rev. Samuel Ingraham was appointed resident pastor and the
vas to be erected at the personal expense of GovernorJ§regory Smith
of Vermont. (59) The congregation was orgenized August 13, 1872, (60) and
Qiixstzmuxry the cornerstone of the building was laid xhExfeXkewinmgxdayx during

that same week, (61)
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wes certified
e / = S YN,
A Board of frustees/as of January 20, 1873 Ihey were: RaliaNewport and

N

RAK§thiteley, trustees of the First Class; GeodGASanborn and Lih\Falconer,
\ Perry ;n %ie
trustees Second Class; L.B\iikmm and Luther Allen, Trustees Third Classe (62)

Early in Janusry, the building, which had been built from designs made by Lymen
Bridges and erected under the sujervision of Jas.5.Campbell, superintendent of
the Brainerd Lumber & Mfg. Coe, was completed eand accepted by a building com=

\

nittee appointed by Gov. Smithe This committee was composted of HﬁkathS,

i |
JaRaJackson, GaGASanborn end {yixﬁxitelcy. (63) It was dedicated January 22,

1873« Reve. Edwin S{Williams, of “lyndon, preached the sermon. During the day,

\

-

there was & meeting gf the pastors and delegates attending the ceremonies,
and they orgenized the Northern Conference of linnesota, whiech was to consist
of 21l of the evshgelical churches which chose to comnect themselves with the
movemente (64) FhexfirxixcordmyxXekemiomsxergmized knrdmmryxI8REx
church building wes completed, end it even boasted a pipe organ, the first

in Brainerd, which was a gift of Mrs. Gregory Smithe. (65) By September, a
church bell had arrived from Marietta, Ohio, and was installeds

first church bell to be hung in Brainerd. (66)

Governor on had undertaken to build the Congregeticnal Church, but he

-
|
i o 1 » Il g ! 2 £ 16 “ 1 f W
seemed to hesitate about paying fo t July 15, J‘%\ ampbell, of the
Brainerd Lumber & Mfg. Coe, put a lien on The church and on Gov. J"r& ory
i

S mith, for $642 for lumber on the building erected on lots 1 to 3, Block 108.(67)

This lien was settled, and in 1877, the Governor again came to The assistence of
the churche Then he agreed to donate $200 toward putting pews in the church,
and $100 & year for five years toward a minister's salarye lirs. Smith and her

T atamn A ‘ﬁ:, 3 o - 3 R ) e 14 el v =

sister, lirs. 3 branahan, each agreed to donate $560 a year for five years

toward the minister's salary. (68)
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eV er_uilliuus, who had dedicated the church, was appointed pastor in (69)

\

August 1873, to succeed Le¥s Ingraham, The latter left in October for Santee
Agency, Nebraska, and died there the following Decembers. (70) In 1875, the

Prainerd and Duluth parishes were united under one pastor and er\C\CEd;lter
I I U3
\

p

wes appointed to this positione This arrangement continued during the

pastorate of Hev. Chus\mRCOnant, who succeeded R€w.Salter in September 1876. (72)

Rev.Adam Simpson succeeded Rewy 'C nant in September 1878 (73) but he left,to

aceept a pastorate at Farmington, early in January 1879, (74) Rev. ;x.\iehrd
1

of Oberlin, Ohio, was tendered the appointment as pastor in Asril 1879 LBy -,

but he had not completed his studies there, so Rev. HX;iﬁObcrtson, also of

-\ \
|}

Uberlin, officiated until July 1879. He served until the summer of 1883, the

longest pastorate of any of the early ministers of this church.

On Januwary 7, 1881, the congregation suffered a loss that nearly forced them
to disbends . Their building was destroyed by fire. The loss was cstimutod et

)0, with no insurance. It seems that the building belonged %o the local
congregation, but the lots belonged to the Congrezational Building Soeciety,
who had never been interested enough to deed them to the Brainerd church so
that the latter could insure their buildinge Governor Smith again ceme to the
rescuees He bought the entire block and dedded it all to the building society,
to be deeded to the church as soon as it was completeds Almost enough money was
received through public subsecription to rebuild the edifices Work of rebuilding
began at once. It was probably constructed of brick from the Schwartz yard,
as Wy.Schwartz offered to sell them the bricks at a discount. During the time
the building wes under construction,services were held a
Beard remained as pastor until after the construction of the church, which w
not dedicated until the last Sunday in January, 1883« The
kvans, was assisted in these services by Rev. LQJEI%IZinms of Minnesapolis, who
had assisted in dedieating the first church, and by Ré¥7 Beord of Fargo. (78)

if'ter rebuilding the church, which is now the oldest church edifice in Brainerd,
the city.
growth and are one of the largest in Rrximmzxd

o

the congregation enjoyed a steedy
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Another chnrghegation was orgenized either late in 1872 or early in 1873,
but this organization was uneble to survive the panic of 1873 and was defunct
within a short time. It was the Swedish Evangelical Lutheran Churche The
members met regularly at the home of Niles Lofstrom and Reve E.M.Govlanda was
pastors Niles Lofstrom and Otto Johnson were deacons of this early con-

gregations On March 14, 1873, the church was incorporated, af'ter due notice

i m

had been given by Rev. P.iA.Cederstrom, organizing pastors The name of the
church wes decided upon and the following members were elected trustees:

John Dalquist, Williem Vieck, end ¥im¥ Niles Lofstrome (79) This was the
last congregation to be organized mm%x in Brainerd until after the townzlg of

brainerd was re-incorporated into the city of Brezinerd in 188l
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Brainerd Fage 53a

Cemeteries

During the pioneering days of any country, cemeteries are usually few and
far between. ZHarly settlers were forced to bury their dead without delay, and
many homesteads fenced in a small plot for those that passed away. Although
there are more than one hundred bodies in Crow "ing county buried in these
private plots, yet this is a very small number compared to the size of the
county and the period of time during which these interments were m
first known interment in Crow ing county was made on the
beceme a public cemeterye. This was the Cemetery 14ill at old Crow Wing, ususally

the Episcopal Cemetery. It is & beautiful spot, located on a high
lississippi river, beside the mnortheast corner of the old
tovnsite. During the course of more than ninety years the river has washed
away much of the high bank, and it is almost a certainty that e number of
graves have been washed awaye There are only two stones sk standing, all
that is left to mark the spot where most of the non-Catholic residents of the

county were buried between 1850 and 1871.

The older gravestone commemorates four of the Fairbanks familye. They
John Fairbanks, born Octe 11, 1830, shot by Indians Dec. 30, 1849,
Jane 1850; ax ks, born Septe 15y 1838, died June 18, 1865;
Fairbanks, born May 14, 1805, died July 2, 1868; James Fairbanks, born

. P f ~
and lrs.

5, 1841, died June 1870 John Fairbanks was the son of “r
John H.Fairbankse. According to the family history, he was shot at Sandy Lake
but whether he died there or at Crow Wing is not recorded. lary Fairbank

was Mrs, John H.Fairbanks, Jane and James were her children. James is the

child that was born to ¥re and lirs, Fairbanks at Crow Wing during the time

lr. Fairbanks was working there for Wm. Aitkin, at the "Crow liing Settlement,'
- 2 =

As his brother, Johm, was the first person of white or mixed blood to be

buried in Crow Wing county, James was the first child to be born in what is

>

now this countye.
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The other stone left in this cemetery is that marking the grave of "George
Gillis, died June 10, 1871, =age 30 years," This George Gillis was a lumber-
Jjeck who was taken sick on the drive while near Fort Ripleye He was taken to
C row Ving and at first he was taken to the telegragh offices. He suffered
terribly, having 7 or 8 fits every 5 or 6 hourse Frank Johnson, the telegraph
operator was unable to care for him longer, so he was moved to the Beaulieu
warehouse, where he died June 18, 1871s Johnson wrote, "Dr. Thayer plented
Geoe Gillies at two o'clock this afternoon (June 19, 1871) in the d;iscpg%l ¢

must have been
cemetery without a word being said at the grave.," (1) This Dr.Thayer xme Dr.
C.P.Thayer, coroner of the county in 1871, and not Dr. S.W.I, ayer, the medical
director of the Northern Pacifie, who was such an active and influential member

of the Episcopal churche The latter was coroner during 1872e

there were three markers stending on the hill beside the rivers
They were very near the edge of the bank and were undoubltedly carried awaye
war
111 three were the type of marker furnished by the govermment fof veteransemt
khExfiwkdtmex (2) One of these may have marked the grave of David Chaphan, a
pioneer resident of Benton and Urow VWing counties who died at Crow Wing in
1866« He was a lioutenant in the Mexican War who came to Minnesote in 1850, (3)

where he became one of the prominent lumbermen during the fifties and sixtiese

There are a number of burials at Cemestery 4ill recorded in the parish register
the St.Columbe missione After Rev. Peake moved to Crow liing in 1857, he
death
ot the/records of both the St.Columba and Holy Cross missions in the same

recorded the following burials:: Charlotte Bungo, child, 1857;
> o gt ) 3

Jeremiah Selkrig, March 18, 1858; daughter of George VanValkenburg, childx, 1864;
2 2 2 > - <

Coralea child 1864: Lucy asenewchbequa, woman, 18653 Alfred Johnson
oJ 4 3 ] £ 3

youth, 1862; Theodore Wahbunahquatonce, youth, 186 lank Knight ( e KEnight),

age 40, 18693 Joseph Tesrow or Tesreau, age 50, 1869; lirs. M.Fairbanks, age 60,

>

July 14, 1869; Julius Gramwa), infent 1869; Alfred Johnson, infant, 1869¢,
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1ibasce, on Oct.

Abram Beaulieu, 1853; larg. lMe-

twebago 1863; Liset Ketagwas Thomas Halon,
1856; Etien B.Bertien, 1856; Susanne Doucet, 1857, buried at Belle Prairie;

1857; lichel Nitamipgijig, 1855; Josephus Stuard 1855 at Swan

='|_ . . . v I Y
frencls Horiey, -

Fairbanks, 1857; Magdalene Nawigi 185

[iver; Nance rairbanks 1856; Liset

Caroline lMorrison (should have been Charlotte Morrison), 185 i dorrison,

rles Shaboyae, died Septe 1863 at Red Lzke and buried Feb.
Catherine Fa ] 1 Anton Bourjois, 18656; Laroch

1864; lagde died at Ottertail
buried at Estas Gordan, 18683 Caroline Udingan, 1865;

Fabian Lefeve, Laque Verzil, 1868; Alexi Henas, July 18--; Genevieve luenas,

Uttertail Lake, 1867; Wilan Fairbanks, Sept. $0,-=; Pegi Louise, 1867;

William Ekeny 1870, at the Agency; Joseph *oe,

Joseph liontreal was undoubtedly the Joseph “ontreuil who was at LaPointe

in 1840 and at Crow .ing in 1850. Charles Shaboyae, was Charles Chabouilleg,

the brother-in-law of Allen *orrison, who was a prominent trader for the
imerican fur Companye. His estate is the first one to be probabted in Crow

Wing county, and recordedes Amab Difort was a member of the prominent Dufort

family, who migbated to Belle Prairie from Canada and LaPointe. William Eken
ser of the Aitkin family, and probably Salem Aitkine In the archives
the Adjutant General of lMinnesota, are the names of four veterans that had
been buried in this cemetery. They are: Fabian Lefebore, Eustach Jourdain,
Salem Aitkin and E.D.Me9illise These are Gordan, Fabian Lefeve and
William Eken of Father lMierz. four of these Civil War veterans were re-
nterred at the National Cemetery, Rockford, 1llineis. The headstone marking
the grave of E.D.McGillis is still stending, although the body was removeds
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The parish record also includes an account of the burial of Rev.D.
Laurentius Leutischer, the first priest who came from Austria to help Yather
Pierz at Crow Wing. The record states that he was frozen to death while at
Red Lake and died December 3, 1858, He was buried Dece. 26, 1858 at Crow Winge
ilhen the Catholic Church was sold in 1892, the body of Father Lautischar wes
teken to the cemetery of his church in Duluthe. Myrs, Allan Morrison wes
buried in the St.Francis cemetery either in 1872 or 1873. XIhExgrxyesxsfxher
The markers on her grave and those of her two daughters are still standing,
although the inscriptions are barely discernible. There are two stones still
that merk the graves of the infant son of Mre and lirs. George Wilson,
who died in 1871, and Florence liary Whitney, who died lareh 1, 1878, at the
age of 5 yearss George Wilson was a prominent hotel keeper at Detroit Lakes
hough he had lived at Crow liing or Gull Lake for some ‘time before moving to

Detroit Lakes. His wife wes a niece of Hole-in-the-Day. Florence ihitney

was the daughter of Mr® end Mrs., George Vhitney. Nr. Whitney was sheriff of

the county from 1876 to 1879, and had lived at Crow Ving before moving to
Br.inerde There must be many more graves of the pioneers of old Crow iing,
and beside these, there are more than & dozen greves that have been made

since 1880, During the eighties, new settlers began moving into The ‘township
and the Catholic members used the old cemetery for meny yearse In fact, it ma

be said to be still in use, for the Bixson family have Taken a plot there, and

a child was buried there as late as 1936

Although St.Columba and St.Francis were established the seme et it weas
1854 before there were sny burials in the St.Columbe cemeterys The first one
recorded is that of luskrat, age 1 'year, buried Ucte 27, 1854e 1Ihe other

interments were thodfof: Henry layhall, infant, 18543 rhilip Wemittigose,

fo)

infent, 1854; Emily Hole-inpthe-Day, infant, 1855; Jene, infant, 1856;

Mayhall infant, 1857; Mary fe-ta-wsh-nik-kah-do-qua, age 38, 18867; Parker

-

Peake, infant, 1857; German Roman Catholie, 1857; Nancy Sha=ta=-qua, age 30,

1857; llaryanna Mayhall, 1858; Susan liontre, infant, 1858; Caroline Wemitigose,

o
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between 30 and 40 years of asge, 1858; Mary Manitouwep, child, 18593 son of
Vm. Superior, 1860; Lewis Roy, 1860; son of ¥rs, Mayhall, 1860; Allen—--;
Mary child of John H.Hobart, 1860; son of Vim. Superior, 1861; son of A.Roy,

1861; John Hole-in-the-Daye

Parker Peake was the child of Reve. and Mrs, E.Steele Peckees He died when
only four hours olde UMr. Mayhall was a blacksmith at Gull Lake and lived for
a time at Crow VWing. The German Roman Catholic is undoubtedly the German
peddler who was murdered by the Indians at Gull Lake in 1857. No one seems
to have known his neme, and when Rev. Peake entered the burial, he wrote in
very sma etters"(German Rom, Cath.)" No trace of this old cemelery
remains, even though J.B.Sargent of Detroit, who owned the property for many
yeers, promised to donate the site for church purposese In June 1887, he and

Rev. B.Steele Peake drove wut to 8 t,.,Columba and lir, Peake pointed out the

site of the old church and cemetery. (8)

< 1

Brainerd was established in 187U, and like most pioneering communities, its
population was composed almost exclusively of youmg people. As late as April,
nspaper boasted that Brainerd had no cemetery and didn't want
But during that year at least two deaths occurred in the settlement.
to have been the first burial in Breainerd, was that of lirs. Robert
.

She was buried in what is now a corner of the lNorthern Pgscific sho

but when a regular cemetery was established, her body was removed to (10)

the new cemetery, together with the bodies of e number of cthers who died
marked as
during 1873 There is one grave still left in the shop yards It is/%nat of
"John Bennett, died Feb. 10, 1872." Tradition has it that he was killed while
. . 4o ’ S R 2 o : Ee gy o 3 i atad hatvine +
helping erect the shop buildings, and that his finanee® 31815Ted on naving the

grave kept up forevere
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During 1873, vital statisties show that there were nine deaths in Brain-
erd. Skk(11) . of these bodies were probably buried in the shop yard, but
late in July 1873, the need for a cemetery was recognized, and & meeting was
called that resulted in the formation of a letery association. Evergreen
Cemetery Association was mxkxbiksh orgenized at the office of Sleeper & Hol-
land the last Thursday in July, 1873. The following were selected as the
Board of Trustees: W.H.Tull, E.L.Strauss, L.M.Ford. LeB.Ferry, C.B.Sleeper
and J.G.Todde (12) i Canfield had a surveyed plat made and presented it to
the Association, but the Board never functioned and the Association was prac-

tically defunct by the spring of 1874. (13)

Although the cemetery Board failed to act, many burials must have been

made in the cemetery, but by 1877 conditions there were so bad that Jir. and

lrs. HeA.Campbell were compelled to bury their little daughter in their own
yard in order to s ecure & respectable burial. (14) This event seemed to
arouse some public interest in conditions at the cemetery, and two weeks
later, a meeting was called to see if something couild not be dome to improve
conditionse As no one attended the meeting, nothing further seems to have
been donee (15) . In April 1879, the Brainerd Tribune published an article
deploring the shocking conditions to be found at Evergreen Cemetery. They
said that the fence was down and that teams driving to the brickyard drove

o

right across the gravese They suggested that if The trustees failed to act,
the public should do something. (16) By the following week, malicious boys
had burned down the remains of the f — also destroyed some
of the markers. U hwartz, operator of the brickyard, replied to the ac-
cusation that teams going to and from his yard passed across the graves, by

saying that he did not allow his teams te cross the cemetery, although others

>

did soe ((17)
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and J.R.Pegg for three yearss
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C.MeKindred,

The following week they met and orgenized, the

P.Vhite, president; VMr, A.
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filed in office.
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of re-organization, resulted in
lallace A.Page, J
a¢c Congdon, Catherine Hartley,
daughter of Mattie Lee,
Frederick
quam~ge, Betzy Hagberg, Mattia:
\ndrew

Buir, Henry P.French,

Caroline Wick, John Johnson, Emily B

o e

V.
- mary
v

wom ela, Cook, llary
ding, Mary
Ir, Hopkins, lirs,

dr, Peterson, J.M.White, Sidney Sawyer, lirs,

\rthure

They were:
TeJ.Delameee, Dr.

Rev, Herbert Root and

e ‘C{\_j’qlﬂ)@ 11 s Secret Wy

llalla

Alpert P.

eane, Paul Johnson, Peter Peterson, lax

Dr.J.C.Burns, Mr. Sutt

(™ £ 4 2
Coffee,

a meeting
secretary

W.P.Spalding, Thos. Bason

«5.Campbell andLl.P.White

(18)

W.W.Hartley for one yeare

officers selected being: Lyman

3

The new officers seem

date of thelir orean

are preserved, but it was

wae.s 1887 before a plat was

complete list of all those buried in the cemetery

the compilation of the fol=

)

e B.Vinton, *artha Peterson,

John Anderson, Martin Zimfer,

jarah L.Costello, Edward kemyxxewiz Lee Lewis,

Iaiehner, Edward Paine, Gilbert Oleson, liadeleine Aitkin, Fa=

ary Jane

Alice Tomkins,

| ry B

J.lord, Emms Wakelee, Zebulcn Holbrook, Jane Spal-

v Yewgart, Th Alfred Bason, lirs. Durgin, John Call, Mr. Ligneau,

Mrs, Fouch, ¥rs.

Shupe,

lrs. Colson, lrs.lige-
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The following Brainerd residents had children buried in the cemetery at
the time the list was made: J.W.White, J.A.Jackson, Henry Schmeltz, John
MeCarthy, Luke Flood, Penjamin MeNaught : ge omith, Mr. Llwell,

atrick Carney, L.McPherson, lir., Knowland, F.X.Goulet, John Murphy, Mrs.

Peterson and Mr. Tilguiste (20)

eleine Aitkin mentioned was Mrs. William Aitkin, wife of this
pioneer fur trader of Minnesota territorye She and her sister, Pa-quam-ge,
were killed when the railroad bridge buckled under a freight traein in 1875.
At that time, her daughter, lMrs. LaFgntaine, and her grandddughtery Hiss

Lizzie Herrimen, were both injured, the latter so badly that she died in

1879 as a result of the injuries. (21) Mrs. LaFontaine was the widow of

William Whipple Warren, the historiamne The Henry P.French named in the above
son of
list, might be thq/J.L.French who oxedxim was a prominent business man of the

sevéntiess Dr. Burns was a Cvil TWar wveteran, age thirty, who had moved to
“rainerd from New York mkxke city. He had served in the 27th New York regi-
mente (22) Mr. Sutton was probably the Rev. A.A.Sutton, who had been pastor
of the lethodist church fmrom Oc¢tober 1875 to February 1876, (23) MNMr,
Ligneau was undoubtedly one of the family of that name who settled in Long
Lake township in tk arly seventi I' the first families to settle

on a farm in thi unty, lowing the establishment of Brainerd. MNrs. Edith
HeArthur wes the wife of David lcArthur, died late in May 1879. (24) He had

been one of the traders for the Americen Fur Company and had settled on a

stead located along ti ailroad at the Crow Wing .station,

Changing economic conditions that caused great shifts in the population of this
were

county during its pioneer days, have left a teries in what #x¥ once

cent of populations The first permanent cemdtery i he county was Ever-

L4

netery of Brainerd, where more tha 5 odies have been interred.
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Orgenizations

Service or social organizations seem to have been almost tokally lack=
ing in Crow ¥Wing county before 1872. An agricultural society had been or=-
ganigzed in 1852, while this territory was still a part of Benton county,
of which Allan Morrison and SiBiOlmstead were charter memberss (1) OJi.
Kelly, afterward founder of the National Grange movement was also a charter
member. After the establishment of Brainerd, it was some months before any
societies were formed, except religious orgenizations. Early in February 1872,
a group of young men organized a debating club and drew large crowds to their
meetings, which were held in Court House Hall. (2) In August 1872, a call was
issued for the organization of an agricultural society (3) and at a meeting
held August 10, an organization was effected. LAEXWhite presided at the
meeting and W*F{Bailcy was secretary. The following membership commitiee was
appointed: Lymén Bridges, David MeArthur, Dennis Mclannay, Wallace Beane,
Ahrens Brothers, and B “\Eﬁﬁly. The organizers also decided they would hold
a Fair (4), being entirely undismayed by the fact that tnerehonly four farmers
in the countye In September they met again and elected the following officers:
L\}».‘t.nhite, president; Wl{ﬂcCa.rtjt, vice president; WanBalley, secretary; .H.
Daﬁie, treasurer; Lymsn nridges, "allace Boane, Daniel Mooer, C!mhrens, John
Bishop and Dennis McNannsy, executive committee. At this maetlng they also

decided to hold the Fair on October 5, 1872 (5)

The First Annual Fair of the Crow Ying County Manufacturing and :gricul-
tural Assoeiation, wmx promised to be & big event for a new countrye. L*W.
Powell, Esqe., of the Minneapolis Tribumne, had accepted an invitation to
eddress the assooiation. The editor of the Brainerd Tribune stated: "The
Northern Pacific country has thus fer bekten all competitors in its agricul-
tural products, at every Fair of this and last season. /e expect to see some
of our best products (ineluding the big beet, on exhibition, and a large at-

tendance from all along the line and elsewhere," The committees in charge of

the different exhibits were as follows: Horses--Truman Mooer, M{Hdgixter,
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: X.\uﬁoulet, Samuel Hamilton; Cattle, Sheep, Swine and Foultry--lr. Hollend,
My, McCarthy, Wallace Beaney Farm Implements--Demnis MeNannay, C\Ahrens,
Wn\H\Falooner, Jesse Ayer; Domestic Manufacture--Richard threns, lrs. Clark,
Mrs; ‘a’&nJ\Lytle, Mrs, Bridges, Mrs. Whipple; Furniture, 0il Paintinggs,Ambro-

types, Needge Work——iéll\l};g{oykendall, lrs, I:;_P"-."VMite, Mrs. Koykendall, Miss

Bell Halmeor, Mrs. M.\Russell Mrs. JXC\W&lters; Vegetables--MkC{Russell, Paul

Davenport, T.\F.\K.na pen, WX”.VHartley, Frank Keating; Floral Hall, including
all Fancy Articles, Flowers, otces- Lyman Bridges, Mrs. Weed, lirs. DiMeNannay,
Mrs., C.bJ.Tennls, lirs. H.\Alﬂills; ¥iscellaneous Department, Best Ba'by Under
Three Years 0ld--Rev. Gilfillam, Mrs. Lytle, Rev. S.\lngham, J;m \‘Cam pbell,
Mrs. J.'{Sa“(‘:ampbell, J.\}V.\t‘btrauss, Mrs. T4CiBivinse All entries hud to be made
the morﬁing; of the Faﬁ.r and were entered free of chargee The address of the
day was set for half past two; a "test of speed of saddle and matched horses"

at half past three; and the award of premiumss was to take place at four. (6)

The Fair was an astounding success and the list of premiums gives a very
elear picture of the Brsinerd of October 1872, The names of the winners in
each class and the artiele for which they received a prize were: Class 1--
D\McNannay, trotting horse; Johmn Bishop, stallion; J&s\b.‘xcampbell, saddle
horse; Mrs. Nellie Whipple, colt; John Reynolds, draft horse; Milt Askew,
Newfoundland doge .Glass 2==J .ﬂ?;Walters, s0w; E‘\\L&\Str&us:;, coop of chickens;
WiW.Ayer, ewes; ’f‘f\QFI\Hsrer, bucks; EMEA".!Pnterson, fighting cocks; Frank F
Keating,, beefs Paul D\?avenpor“b mileh cowe Class 3--Mixter & Noyes, snow-
ball horseshoe and cant dog; David Stewert, ax helves. Class 4--lirs. B\L
Perry, rug carpet; Mrs, Bramnen, Cranberry jelly; Miss Mary Armold, wheaﬁ:
bread; lrs. Je.s\S Campbell, brown bread; Mrs. Starcher, woolen mitts; Mrs.
JasB\S \Camp'bell bed quilt and ottoman cover; M.E.Brlg,gs, pair of bootse
Glass S-=llrs, S \\Thayer, oil painting; =-Bloom, chromas, Mrs. Lytle, rem=
brant; Mrs. Freeman, pen drawing; Brainerd Manufacturing Co., design for
cottape; Paul DiDevenport, black walnut stand; Mrs. M\::C%Russell, sewing

machine; Mrs. Koykendall, sofa mwxkimm pillows, cushion, bed spread;
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Mrs, Bivins, bed quilt, thread tidy; Mrs. BﬁLerrry, scarf; Mrs. Davenport,

box of natural hair; Mrs, JXC.Whlters, largest collection of oil paintings end
L |

chromos and embroidered slipperse Class 6==Mrs. Nellie VWhipple corn, lima

beans, canned fruit; Cilhrens, cellery; Frank F\feating, cabbage, earrots,

beets, turnips, watermelons, apples, pears, peaches, oysters, lske trout;
J3L5Starcher, peanuts; NlRlBrown, grapesy, preserved pears, honey, apples;
.C B1v1ns, potatoes; ¢McNmnnay, bush cranberries, squash, omions; WiW,ck,
hen's egge Class T--Mrs. k;ngussell box pond 1lily; Mrs. Jas %‘Cam>bell
flowers; lMiss Emmeline Davenport, artificial flowers, underslg eves and
collars; Miss Lizzie Beaupre, bearf; lrs. BiLéIerry, shawl and mat; lMrs.
E.HJBly, worsted work and tidy; Mrs. Horn, best % % doze silver teaspoons;
lrs. H\Ottenmcyer, hat and bonnetk; Mrs., Strauss, shells and specimens; Mrs.
TﬁF;Knappen, card besket; Mrs, Cantwell, best box of famey work; Mrs. E\L.
S trauss, collection of shells; Mr. Thompson, collection of photographs;
Col‘.v,‘R"-,-sm. Newport, bust; Mrs, Horn, best Bible; Prof. Jomes, hair work, oil
perfﬁm;s. Class 8--Cora S:ﬁrauss, best babye Class 9--Eugene Briggs,
boots; the balamce of this cless, consisting of carpets and rugs from Jas.
Griffin, woolen hosiery, home mede scarfs and shirts; the same kind of
exeellent work from Schwartz; a lot of boots and shoes, a very finme display,
from Rolit Kassman & Coe; a lot of merchanise from Andrew Dufner, a pretty
lay-out attracting comsiderable attention; a very excellent display of silver=
ware, tinware, cutlery, etes, from the well known hardware store of E.H.Davie;
a large display of dry goods, and furs, from Montgomery, West & Todd; ssmples
of brick from the yards of the Northern Pacific Manufacturing Co., a splendid
article, comparing favorable with brick made in any part of the state, and

exceeding in meny instences; T&Nawul had a very fine assortment of watches

\
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and jewelry on display; from the mammoth dry goods and grocery establishment
of E\Hi@ly were a large and handsome exhibition of ladies' and gents'! furnishe=
ingx goods, which attracted general attention; und from the jewelry house of
E;}.§trauss, a large, rich stock of watches, clocks, jewelry, musical instru-
ment;, and some very fine sollid gold work, on all of which no awards were

given.

The magnificence of the displays cen best be judged from the editor's
comments, He says: "The work presented by the ladies demands especial notices
It is a rare thing to see more beautiful designs or handsomer work than was
presented on exhibition. The fancy needle work wes excellent in all cases,
and in many very finee. The heavier work, rug carpet, rug, ete.,was of the
best characteres In the bread display, Miss Mary Armond, of Brainerd, carried
away the first premium, and a French gentleman afterwards secured the loaf
as a sample of Mimmesota work and floul, He pronounced the article luxuriouss
lirs, N\Whipplo's display of preserved fruits were of the finest kind, clear
and beautiful in appearance, and exceedingly agreeable to the taste. This

fruit was grown on what is known as the "Whipple Farm,” in Crow VWing county.

\
The e¢il paintings, by Mrs. LqB;Perry, Miss Nettie c\padd, and Mrs. TxF\Fnappen,
T \ \ ’

were much praised., !le cannot spare the space to notice all the excellent things
on display, else we could enumerate largely on very meny exhibitions. e ob-
served the wide-awake Keating was on hand with a handsome lay out of fruit,

fish and oysters, all A no.ly and the bivalves the finest we have ever seen
west of Chicagoe T&C;Bivin; had on display a fine sample of potatoes, the

seed of which was plénfed on the twentiethvof June--g Brainerd production.

The display of cattle, sheep; horses, etce, was limited, W&ﬁ&ﬁyer had & few
choice breeded sheep and J)g:@alters g full blood, very handsome, White Chester
sowe If more time had boen‘given, there would have been a larger display

in this classe The baby show produced a lively interest. Tpe little pets
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hed been gotten up regerdless, and were on their best behavior, looking fat,

rosy and'sweet enough to eat.! Mrs. EiLiStrauss carried proudly away the pre=-

mium, still we kmow all of the mothers of other ‘'pets' are not at all envious,
for they kmow their darlings are just the wmx sweetest, best, handsomest of
alle Milt Askew's large Newfoundland dog ocarried off the first premiq?, and
Miss Alice Richardson's $t.Bernard dog, 'Jeff,' from the Red Rivercm’, a
handsome fellow, the second. It would be hard to find two handsomer dogs than
these. A trot, best two in three, three-quarters of a mile, took place in the
afternoon, between Big Knee,pacer, entered by Dennis MeNennay, and Naney,
entered by Frank Dunn., Big Knee got away with the race. The track was very
soft and in bad condition generallye To Maj. Hubbard is much credit due for
valucble experience and assistences A 11 the gentlemen comnected with the fulir
took large interest therein, and exerted themselves very much for the general
good of this, the first fair of Crow Wing county, and the first exhibition of
the products of cereals and vegetables along the line of the Northern Pacific
Railroad. We have visited fairs in nearly evéry State in the Union, have
travelled extensively in the Mississippi Valley, on the Missouri slope, in
the velleys of all our territories, and on the Pacific slope, have seen the
famous vegetable growth of the Sacremento valley, of the San Jose, and other
celebrated valleys of California, but have not seen a larger growth of cabbages,
beets, potatoes and gardem stuff, than was on exhibition at this faire. The
wheat, corn and oats on displey equalled that of any grown in the central or
northern part of the States The success of this venture will, probably, result
in the establishment of future ennual Fairs in this county, and have created
en interest that will gpow with each year of exhibition, and create a har-
mony end pleasant gathering together of the people of the county that will add

to the general good of all citizens." (7)
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In September 1873, the Agrieultural S oeiety announced that a fair would
be held on October 7 and 8¢ 1In this same issue, the news of the failure of
Jay Cooke & Cpe, was axmmounceds (8) This bad news seemed to discourage all
efforts to hold a Fair, for on October 4 it was ennounced that none would be
held that year. (9) In January 1874, an effort was made to arouse some in-
terest in an agricultural society, (10) and in September it was ammounced that
a fair would be held (11), but nothing more was done about it, It was ten
years later bffore any further interest was taken, and then a new organisz=

ation was effected. (12)

Although the young men's debating club seems to have been the first or-
ganization to have been formed in Brainerd, yet efforts to orgunize a fire
department were made almost as early. At a meeting held the second Tuesday
in February, 1872, at Miltom Askew's Billiurd Parlor on Front Street, the

Bpuinerd Fire Company was orgenized. ‘:‘il_Mf@‘alconer was chairmen of the meet~

ing and W.WiHartley was secretarys, Mlﬁgstone was elected captin; JiWaReed,
first lieutenant; H\M\Mixter, second i ity W\'x’l‘{{:mtley, abeibiteyy i
Thomas Cantwell, tre;;ﬁrer. (13) Tunis meeting must h;va been called follow=
ing the big fire that had destroyed a mumber of business buildings eﬁgly in
February 1872. (14) On the evening of the #irst Sunday in March, 1872, another
disastrous fire ococurred in this same bluck--the third fire within three
months. This blaze originated in the Bishop Houses It spread rapidly,

east and west, and destroyed the Bishop House, Northwestern Hotel, Time

z \
Schwart# store, Morrison & Fairbanks store; the saloons of J¥WﬁReed and

--=-Chamberlain, and J;C\Whlters’ wholesale liquor house. (16)

T ne first fire compeny seems to have lost interest soon after organization,
but in August 1872, Dennis MeNannay started out to secure subseriptions for
the purchase of a fire engine. (17) November 16, a group of citizens met at
the Askew Billieard Hall to consider what measures could be taken to prevent
fires. They decided to appoint a committee to inspeet chimmeys and flues each

week, and to solicit subseriptions for a fund wkith which to buy fire fighting
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appeoatuse (17) The following week, an adjourned meeting was held for the
purpose of completing a fire fighting organization. r;H;Trudell was chairmen
and M\HiKellogg, secretary of this meetinge It was reporfed that $116,50 had
been collected for the purchase of equipment. At & meeting held the mnext night,
the motion to orgenize a Hook and Ladder Company was carried, to be named,

"Hook & ladder Compuny No. 2," The officers of this company were: Milton
Askew, foreman; Henry Dressem, first assistant; E.B%yortan, second assistant;
David Stewart, secretary; Messrs. Sleeper, Conant and Kellogg were appointed a
coumittee on Constitution and By-Laws. (18) At the time this compeny was ore
genized there seems to be no evidence of the existence of a Hook & Ladder Coe

Nos 1, although one was organized later,

When the oity of Brainerd was organized in January 1873, A%F\McKay was ap-
pointed fire ohiefe (19) This office must have been mlkig abolished a few
months later, for at the June meeting, the duties of fire warden and street
comnissioner were added to those of the chief of police. He was authorized
"to examine the condition of all stoves, stove pipes, ovens, chimneys and fire
places and order amy ochanges necessary." (20) In spite of these efforts to
secure adequate fire profection, in September, the newspaper inquired if any
one could tell them what had become of the petition sigmed by every business

man, praying that fire proteetion be furnished? (21)

In February, 1874, the matter of fire protection was taken before the city
council, They held a special session five deys later and voted to organize a
hook and ladder company&inz number of citizens met at Squire Stewart's office
on February 20, 1874, and the following week, organized Brainerd Hook & Ladder
Company No. l. Henry Dressen was elceted foreman; Frank Smith, first assistant;

JasgDewar, second assistant; W.MsFalooner, treasurer; David Stewart, secretary;

and W\RJSellew, stewards (23) Onm March 4, the oity council offioially recognized
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this new unit, and a week later appropriated $1000 to buy necessary equip=
ment and to dig the public wells necessary to insure an adequate water supply

for the new equi ment. (24)

On April 19, 1875, the ity council abolished the office of fire warden (25/,
and as though to challenge their action, the last week in April fire destroyed
five homes in northeast Brainerd, none of which was insured. The next week,
the Northwestern Hotel was destroyed by fire. The last week of May, 1875,
the city had a steel triangle put up to be used in calling out the fire de-
partment. ‘he railroad company had offered to let the eity tap the pipe con=
necting their steam pump i;th the river with the machine shops, but the city
couneil thought that there wouldn't be power emough to throw the water 30 feet
high, The editor suggested that even if the water couldn't be thrown 3U f eet
high, there still might be power enough to carry it in quantities to the end

of the hose. (26)

The first Tuesday in August, 1875, one of the most disastrous fires in the
early history of Brainerd started in Sherwood's postoffice building on the cor=-
ner of Fifth and Front streetses Among those whose places of business were

wiped outm, were: S‘V.R‘Sherwood, Mrs. W\Dav1s, &ﬂn\Ferrls, the Uasﬁbx,reSb COey

F\Punn J\ngartln, D\MaGaMur hy, ﬁxﬂknxxt David Stewart, M\Hagberg, DgMc-

Nennay, T\iqpantwell, E.HmBly, E nhlte & Son, JosxFare, ,K.Goulet, F.theake,
M\Eomahon, J\Myers. The botal loss was estaimated at $286, 45u In commenting
on the fire, tho editor had spoken of the X "miserable condition of our fire
department, if we have any." The following week, tﬁzjﬁgzbers of the fire de-
partment replied by saying that they had disbanded because the city had re-
fused to tap the water pipes offered by the Northern Pacifie, and wouldn't

even put a door on the fire house to keep the tools, etce from being stolen. ( 27)




The Towms of Brainerd
Orgenizations Page 71 a

T£e fire department was dorment for over a year, and then on May 10, 1878,
e new company was organized. Officers were: RxHQPaine, foreman; Thomas Bason,
first assistant; VWm. Wick, second assistant; N\Mcbadden, secretary; and H.A,
Campbell, treasurer. (28) There seems to be nmo record of any activity on the
part of this company, and it was 1883, two years after the re-incorporation of
the ¢ity of Brainerd, before a permanent fire fighting organization was effected.
Then the voters, at a speecial election held Dec. 29, 1883, decided in favor of
issuing $5000R in bonds for the purchase of fire fighting equijment and the

erection of & building to house this equiyment. (29)

A publie library was one of the first luxuries of the new community. By
the middle of 1872, efforts were well advanced for the esteblishment of a librarye.
Rev. Gilfillan had already collected $160, LXFJVmite had offered & free lot, and
local mechanics had agreed to furnish the labor free of charge. Dr. Cdl.
Thayer was chairman of the committee trying to orgenize the librerye The
committee of three authorized to solicit funds were: Lyman Bridges, Rev. J.A.
Gilfillan and L\HABunne&?U} The P%ﬁ;:zof 1873 seems to hﬁ;:ddiscouraged ‘the
venture, but in September of Hdxgesr, Bishop & Martin/established a free

reading room in their place on Front Street. (31)

The first fraternal society to organize was the Masons. Their first call
for orgunization was issued in August 1872, when all loecal membefs of that
lodge were asked to meet at Bly's store. (32) Aurora Lodge was orgenized on
October 14, 1872, (33) The first Thursday in December 1872, District Deputy

Grend Master Wilson opened Colfax Lodge, Odd Fellows No. 37, Officers of this

lodge were: rlﬂéﬁrudell, Vim. Falconer, JAE\Falter gsecretary, and mefylmer
e

treasurer. The first two initiates were James Dewar and E;g\Fockins. (34)
This lodge was evidently abandoned, for in 1874 another Odd Fellow lodge
was organiged--Wildey Lodge No. 37. It was incorporated by: P\PgTrudell,
W&ﬁ\Falconer, J\S\Walters, W\Mt&ylmer, J A&McCran nd Alfred Yoemans « The
offlcars were: James Dewar, M Voble Grend; T. M Trudell, vice Grand; and Axﬁ.

Henderson, secretary. (35, In February 1873, a Good Templars Lodge wes
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organized with a menmbership of nineteen. The following officers were elected:

J{S?Campbell, Mrs. D\O\Preston, n;o;freston, H,J%HMmphrey, Mrs. J\S\Camybell.

SJH\Thorne, Rev. A'D\Williams, J\H\Moon, Mr. Hannibal, Mrs. Mackey, and Mrs.
\ \ 1 N

Wakeley. (36) The last lodge to be organized in Brainerd before its re=-

incorporation as a city was the Sons of Herman Lodge, to be known as William

Tell Lodge, No. 15. (37)

A militia company and an Armory added to Bruinerd's importance. The company
was mustered in as Company E, Third Regiment, Mimnesota Natiomal Gzuards, in
October 1872, ch\walters was captain of this company and the Armory was
located on Sixth St;eet. (38) By the middle of December, Captain Walters
found it necessary to order a court martial for Mike Horen and Hl@very. He
deteiled for the court: Lieut, Henry Dressen, president; Serg. Thémas Riley,
Corpe MaHiKellogg, and privates John Reynolds and John Lgpnshan; Corp. James
Thompson, orderly. (39) By February 1873, a number of officers and men were
dropped from the role for failure to attend drills, These included: E.U.
Russell, George Kloek, M}g%ﬁellogg, CqEéSterns,lnﬁ Jl{\?&lson, Richard Avery,
James CGriffine, Three men received their discharges: Morris Nolam, John Sul-
liven and lLians Kaisere. (40) In March 1873, the company was disbanded by the
governor and Lieutenant Henry Dressen was commissioned captain of & new com=
peny, presumably with the same number es the mi@l disbanded organization. About
fifteen men re-enlisted. E\C\Russell wes appointed first lieutenant end PJH.

vy returned
Trudell, s econd lieutenant. (41) In January 1874, the company imxmsd their
crms o St.Paul, on order of the governor, although they had received no
notice to disband. "There is little use trying to keep up a citizen soldiery,"
wrote M.C.Russell, "under a state law made of dishwater to govern and provide

for them." (42) With the death of Company E, all efforts to maintain & com=

pany of militia ended for many years.
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One of the first purely social clubs was the Brainerd Dancing Clube During
the winter of 1872-73, they met every Thursday at Bly's Hall. F&Sweetman wa.s
president of the organization; John Meclane, secretary; =mmd Henryxnressen,

F\F Russell and F‘R Duffner, floor menagers; Jo Lamont and C, Fremch, recep-
tlon conmittee. They closed their season on April 14, with a grand bell,

followed by a fine supper at lMrs, Chapmen's Hoksk Merchant Hotels AT that

time, CJQQFrench was president of the organization and C;H{Beaulieu, secretary.(43)

In a community largely composed of young men, athletics took a prominent
place. The Cass Base Ball Club was organized in April 1873, and they plexned

on putting two ni nes in the fielde. The officers of this club were: Andy

Golden, Ta,,}fi;\Trudell, J.\A\Thompson and I\I.\\Trudell. (44) A year later, the
0 \

Brainerd Basé Ball Club was orgenized in the Congregational Reading Roome
Francis Mxﬁoser was president of this organization; C%Wﬂ?urling, vice president;
FS&AFmith, treasurer; and E)Expavie, treasurer. May 15, 1874, they played

. the Dakota Baseball Club of Fo}t Ripley, end were defeated by a score of

26 to 8. On Mgy 29, they played a return geme at Fort Ripleye About thirty
ladies and gentlemen accompanied them theree This time Fort Ripley won by a
score of 26 to 10s The Brainerd team were composed of: Fish, Thompson,
Pillon, Villard, Roser, Maloy, Whalon, Darling and Daviee (48) The F rest
and Stream Club was organized in January 1874 with about thirty members.

Col. R\F Newport was president; Rev. qu\Willlams, vice president} Thps\r.
Cantwell, secretary and treasureres (46) After 1874, outdoor sports seems to
have dropped out of favor for several years, but in December 1879, skating
became a popular sport. At that time, the Breainerd Skating Rink Association
we.s formed with C:Blsleeuer as president; E*F\Wbstfall was treasurer; E\¥o~
Fadden, treasurer; AsiaFarrar, \ kﬂartley and HiD%?ahn, executive committee;

and CgF&§1ndred, x8, \\apantwell and .;A\Smlth, finance committees (47)
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During the early history of Brainerd, there seems to have been no attempt
to orgenize a drametic elub, but in 1873, one was active at Crow Wing. During

i}

August 1873, they csme to Braimerd and put on "The Modoes,” a play in which they
gained a great deal of praise. Captain Scott, a one-armed Uniocn soldier who was
station agent at Crow Wing, and who also was the Democratic candidate for Regis-
of Deeds, managed the affair. John George Morrisom and Captain Charles ﬁxBeau-
lieu carried o?f the dramatic honorse The play was given at Bly's Hall, (48)

A Literary g;;;exis orgenized in the fall of 1873 in Brainerd. dJohn W.Steel
presided at the organizetion meeting and Miss Rhoda Squier was secretarye The
permenent officers were: Drs J\\c’:\Rosser, president; J\W Steel and George W,
Holland, vice presidents; Jx§\Cam§bell, treasurer; Miss Belle Lowe, recording
secretary; and Miss Addie Simoms, corresfipnding secretary. (49) It is uncertain
just how much work this organization scccmplished, or how long it was kept up,
but the last week in November 1879, ;Fggﬁziary and Dramatic Club was orgenizeds
H}P}Follett was president of this society; Wﬂ@\ﬂartlayvvas secretary; and
lethdden was treasurer. (50) If this club ever presented a play to the

public, there seems to be mo record of that facte

Music, of a fashion, must have been an art patronized by many of the early
saloons and dance halls, but the first musical organization to be mentioned was
the Fretwell, Conant & Stearms String Band, which furnished music for the more
elaborate dancese. They were operating as early as January 1873. In October
of that year, Mr, Conant was still comnected with the Brainerd String Band, but
his associates were then, Gadori, assisted by Ben Hpzen and "Louis." (58)

T ¢ first effort to organize a beass beand was made in February 1880. A
n;mber of players organized themselves into a band and appointed a committee

to solicit funds for band instruments. The committee was composed of C\F.

1

Kindred,'WgW§§artley, F}%XFhompson and C\B\Sleeyer. 'I‘“e following men
v\ oV R

were members: Walter Dlavis, A}@ahlum, H;Clark, Jﬁgacobs, John Dennis, Fred Clark,
(4] \Congdon, Frank Sehmeltz, H nry Schmeltsz, PX§chwendeman, Joseph Beckman,

“ i
E;@;pongdon, HﬁA\Bradford and AXfeterson. Interest seemed to laf, for no

records remain of any activities. (52)
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As the young men of Brainerd had organized the first elub in the new
settlement, it is only natural that they should have tried to keep up club
activities. The first organization probably passed away at the end of the
season, but in April 1874, another Young Men's Club was organized. Several
of the men got together and drew up a Comstitution for a proposed clubé They
had this constitution gublisﬁed and imvited all thouse intarested-&ﬁﬂuéi at-

tend the meeting to be held at J\WX§teel‘s law office on April 28. An or-
\ o\

ganization was effected at that time. Hﬁé\?ampbell was eleoted president;

N;McFadden, vice president; F&MRRoser, secretary; and Al@\ﬁenderson, treasurer.
Théyplanned on building a olub.hﬁuse opposite the post offioe, but nothing
more seems to have been done about the c¢lub house. (53) What seems to have
been a very badly needed organization was effected dm August 4, 1877. AU that
time, the Park Improvement Association was formed,im its object probably being
the care and improvement of Gregory Park. James B)fower was president and
C)@\Sleager was secretary of this orgenization. (54) Another service or-
gaﬁiéation was the Brainerd Reform Cjub. This was probably organized in
1880, for in March 1881, they elected officers for the second term. At that
time they chose W\WXHartley president; Téw;wakelee, vice president; Josieh
Gribble}second viece president; CXPeaberé, third vice president; Okﬁ%ﬂhbv
bard, secretary; ami Miss McBadden,‘assistant secretary; and R}gﬁBe&}a, trea-
surer. (55) From the number of officers elected it appears thﬁg the club

the record of
expected to be very active, but/fheir accomplishments disappear in the
greater activity produced by the re-imeorporation of Brainerd as a oity.
While these service and social organizations may not have left many records
of their activities, yet they undoubtedly played an importent pert in the

soeial and political life of the towmsof Brainerd.
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The Fond du Lac Department

When white adventurers first saw the "land of the sky-blue water," and its
magnificent forests, they found the Sioux in undisputed possession of this
Indian paradise. But within a few Beneration, these happy hunting grounds had
become a battle grounds The Chippewa mation, pushed westward by white immi gra=
tion, began encroaching om Sioux territory. By the time trading posts were
esteblished, the Chippewa had control of all of the territory east of the
Mississippi river and morth of Mille Lacs. The first trading posts were
established at Grand Portage and Fond du Lae, but by 1783, posts had been

located at many other points.

Competition between different traders and trading companies was very keen,

often so bitber as to lead to violences Finally, the Northwest Fur Compeny

gdned the ascendaney, and by 1783, were maintaining large posts at Grend

Portage, Fond du Bac, Sandy Lake and Leech Lakes The Amerioan Fur Campany,
the creation of John Jacob istor, bought out the Northwest Fur Company in
1819, and with this purchase secured a practical monoply of the Chippewa
trades For purpeses of administration, this company separated its territory
into four divisions, three in Wisconsin and Michigan, and one in Minnesotae
This latter was kmown as the Fond du Lac departments It extended from Lake

Superior to the Red River, snd from the Cenadiean border to the Falls of

When\the Northwest Fur Cmpany was first organized, Fond du Lac was the
prinoipléipost in northeastern Minnesota. Willism Morrison was in charge,
not only of this post, but of the whole tributary territory. In 1826, he
wes succeeded by W illiam Aitkin, who until 1830, msnaged the distriet in
partnership with Rousseau. William Aitkin moved to Sandy Lake in the

thirties and that was the nominal headquarters of the company until its

dissolution, Aitkin, himself, spent much of his time at subsidiary posts,
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especially Leech Lake, although in 1840 he established a permanent post at
Brow Wing and remained there through 1842, During his absence, the Sandy
Loke post was in charge of various assistants, including: Ashumn, Fairbenks,
William and Alfred Aitkin, end James P.Scott. Fierre Cota, George Bungo and

VWilliam Davenport were in charge of the Leech lLake posts during this period.

Duringthe very early days of the fur trade, a small post had been estab-
lished at Leaf River, and by 1824, there was also a post at Leaf Lakes A
Frenchmen nemed "The Blacksmith," was said to have been trading at Leaf
R iver as early as 1780, while Michael Cadotte, who was William Vhipple Warren's
grandfather, was there in 1790 Villiem Morrison was at Leaf River in 1793,
and that post was in use as late as 1826, when Philander Prescott was in chargee
During the winter of 1784, Alexander May led a party that spent the winter at
the mouth of Pine River, but his elerk, J.B.Perrault, who wrote a wvery detailed
account of this venbure, gives one the—impression that it was-more-im the—
nature-of+a debauch than a legitimite trading operation. There was a post
on Lower Red Cedar Lake, now Cedar Lake, Aitkin ecounty, in 1792. Charles
Bruskey was in charge at that time, ihen Pike visited this post in 1806,
Cuthbert Grant was there, while later om both Villiam Stitt and Alfred
Aitkin were in charge. In 1806, the Northwest Fur Company had two posts
on the Whitefish, one on the northeast and the other on the south side of the
lake, and later on, the American Fur Company also maintained a post on that

la.kQ.

After the organization of the American Fur cnmpany, other posts were

either established or revivede One of these was at Gull Lake. Shortly after
1820, Hole-in-the-Day the Elder and his band decided to make their headquarters
at Gull Lake and chose a spot between Round and Long lakes for their villages
The American Fur C;mkany had a licensed post there as early as 1823, and
B.F.Baker was there in 1828, trading without a license. Ambrose Davenport

was in charge of this poxst from 1833 until 1836, CHEEFESEATEBAEBAENS
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Congress licensed two posts in 1824, one at Leaf lLake and ome at Red Laokes
Two years later, the former weas known as kkm Fort Bolivar of the Columbia Fur
Company, and the latter as Fort Pike of the Americen Fur Company. During the
thirties, Louis Dufault and John H.Fairbanks were in charge of Fort Pike.
By 1830, the American Fur Compenmy had established posts at Red Cedar, now
Cass Leke, and at Lake Wimmipeg, the present Winnibigoshish. J.Ermatinger,
John H.Fairbenks and Allan Morrison all served at Red Lake, while Alfred Aitkin

i\ |
end Augustine Bellinger were in charge at Lake Winnipeg during the thrities.

The traders were shifted around from post to post and in this way became

aequainted with most of northeastern Minnesota.

While traders were the first permanent white settlers of this territory,
missionaries followed soon after. Rev.William Thurston Boutwell, a greduate
of Andover Theo}ogical Seminary, went to Leech Lake in 1833. The Indians there
were not favorably inclined to accept Christianity and that field was abandoned

That same year, Reve E.F.Ely established a mission and school at

within a few yearsﬁf In 1840, Rev. Semuel Spates of the Methodist Church, at= (8andy
tempted to establish a mission at Rabbit River, but he soon gave this up and ke
went to Sandy Lake, where he also conducted a school for the children of the
traders and voyageurse In 1843, Dr. and Mrs.William Lewis and Mr. end Mrs, 7.0e
Johnson endeavored to establish e mission at Leech Lake, but they gave up two
years later. Reve and Mrs. Alonzo Barnard and lMr, and Mrs. D.B.Spencer estab-
lished a mission at Red Lake in 1843, but three years later moved to Cass Lakees
At the stert of this venture, Lyman Ayers and Rev. Ely were associated with

the mission at Red Lakes In 1848, Mr, Ayers moved to Belle Prairie, where he

estublished 2 school and mission and spent most of his life.

It wes while Revs Barnard was at Cass Lake that he brought in a printing
press, the second one to be brought into Mimnesota territorye The press was
purchased by the American Missionery Association, in comnection with Oberlin
Coliegee It was purchased in 1849 and brought to lMinnesola either that year

or early the next, and installed at the Cags Lake mission. Mr,” Barnord wes
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not a printer, but he menaged to set the type and print a small broadside con=-
taining hymns printed in Chippewas He also printed letters and sent them to
the Sabbath Schools that had helped raise the money for the printing outfit,
He also printed a booklet of 104 pages, in Chippewa, for the bemefit of other
missionaries among the Chippewas The press was salid to have been taken to some
spot in the Dakotas, and finally to Winnipeg. The Cass lLeke mission was kept
up until 1859, by that tiﬁe the missionaries said that white men and strong
liquor had come so close to the mission-that it wes useless to try to main-

tain it any longer.

The treaties of 1825 and 1837 between the Chippewa and the United States
govermment, had very little effect upon the status of the fur trade in the
Fond du Lac department.s It was the treaty of 1847 that chenged the course of
events in northeastern Mimmesota. Rich iron and copper mines had been dis=-
covered south of Lake Superior, and the whites began encrcaching on Indian
lands. This created constant unrest and the government decided to move the
Indiens to other fields. By the treaty of 1847, the Michigen and Wisconsin
Chippews agreed to receive their payments on the Mississippi, instead of at

LaPointe.

In 1842, the American Fur Company had gone into’ the-hands—of-a receiver, aﬁd

later on had.been under the control of Chas. W.Borupe In 1848, Borup had sold
all of the American Fur Company's Northerm Outfit, to Charles H.Oskese This
deal included the esteblishments at LaPointe, Lae Du Flambeau, Fond du Lae,
Sendy Leke, Red Cedar Lake, Otter Tail Lake and Vermilion Lgke, as well as the
LaPointeo® mille 8k (1) This transaction, together with the treaty of 1847, made
a great change in the ecomomic life of the Mimmesota fur countrye. Hany of the
traders, who for so many years had looked after the company's interests in

this territory, were out of jobse William Aitkin moved to Swen River, and
Clement H.Beeulieu, who had been head of the Lac du Flambeau department,
prepared to move to the mouth of the Crow Wing river, where Donald McDonald
and £llan Morrison had been located for five years. Many ofher LaPointe

residents, employees of the American Fur Company, prepared to follow Beaulieu's
examples
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Althoughthe treaty by which the Chippewa agreed to receive their payments
on the Mississippi was signed in 1847, it was 1849 before any atlbempt was made
to put it into effects During that year, the Chippewa were under the general
supervision of J.E.Fletcher, agent for the Winndébagos, although the former
were very much dissatisfibed with this arrangemente General Fletcher reported
thot the Mississippi Chippewa numbered about 1100 persoms at that time, and
hed villages at Gull Lake, Sandy Lake, Mille Lacs and Rabbit Lake. He added
that there were Indian farms at Sendy Leke and Mille Lacs, and that in the
spring of 1849, five of the Chippewa bands had co-operated in establishing a
farm near Gull Lakee In September, he reported that they had cleared and
fenced 17 acres and were beginning to erect hewn log housese These improve-

ments were made under the supervision of Mr, Warren, farmer at Gull Lakes

The exact location of this Indiam farm at Gull Leke kmxmm has never been
definitedly determined, although it seems certain that it was not locuted

at the Gull Lake village, or near the spot that afterward beceme St,Cplumba

mission, Vhen permanent settlers first moved into the country around the
south end of Gull Lake, they found two clearings there. One was located

on the lake shore, o the present site of Frampton's Resort, and the other
wes three miles almost directly east of there, om the east side of the
- Gull River. There was & large Indian ecemetery locoted om the lake shore

and each year the Indians would camp beside it when they came blueberryinge

They kept the cemtery in excellent shape, but after the lumber comyenies had

logged off the surrounding timber, the cemetery was abendoned. The lumber-=
jecks had opened meny of the groves and destroyed most of the houses built

over the graves. The clearing was there in the early eighties, but there

secmed to be no traces of sny log housese
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The clearing on Gull River seems to fit the desceription of the Indian
farm very exactly. Although there is s clearing of only ten or twelve acres
instead of the seventeen mentioned by the Indian Agent, this is a very
slight exaggeration compared to many of the statements made in verious
government reports concerning eonditions in the Indian coyntry at that time.
And & hewn log house had been located on this forty xigihézms in used during
the ninetiess The ownership of the ladd also furnishes o clue. dJohn Bishop
purchased it from the government in 1889, Mr, Bishop had already acquired much
of the imyuroved property that the government had elaimed after the Indians
had been moved to small reservations during the late sixties. The forty on
Gull River, still lmown as the Bishop forty, was occupied for meny years by
John Bishop's som-in-law, Demnis Thireault, As the clearing and the hewn log
house were both in existence before the land was purchased by Mr. Bishop, it
is certain that he did not make these improvements. In fact, mo one who re-
members Mr. Bishop, or Demnis Thireault, would accuse either of them of going
to the exertion of clearing land or building a hewn log house. And there seems
To be neither records nor traditions concerning any occupants of this farm
previous to Mr, Thireault's, so it seems very possible that the Northwest
quarter of the Northeast quarter of section 34, township 134, range 29 , was
the original Indian farm, and the first land to be cultivated inm wh:t became

Cass county, except, of course, the garden spots at the missions. (2)

In the duys of the fur companies, their truders were virtual lords of the
country--other eivil authoritymmx wes vested in persons snd institutions so

far removed from the territory as to be practically non-existents That part

of the territory lying east of the Mississip i had passed through French and

English hands until after the Revolution, when it became part of the United
States and was oreated into the Northwest Territory. West of the Mississippi,
the country had first been under French rule, then Spanish and then French
again, until it became part of the United States through the Louisiena Purchase.
Even after being part of the United States, this territory had been under the

nominal jurisdiotion of a number of states.
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In 1849, the No Man's lund that was to become the present stute of Min-
nesota, was in the throes of a political campaisn that was to end in the
establishment of Mimnesota Territory on March 9, 1849. That fall, the
legislature was convened at St.Paul, and the territory, which extended to the
Missouri river, was roughly divided into nine counties, three of which were
declared established and organized. The counties to be organized were Benton,
Ramsey and Washingtome What is now Cass county, was at that time part of
ltasca, Wahnata and Mahkate countiese That the boundaries were fairly in-
definite may be realized when one learns that Fort Guines, later Fort Ripley,
was located in Mahkahta county in the census of 1850, instead of in Wah-

nahta county.

The govermamfih census of 1850 gives a great deal of information about
conditions in northeastern Minnesota. Mahkahta county was enumerated by
William Whipple Warren, the historian. At that time he was in charge of

the Indian farm. The county is given a population of 168, but 143 of these

residente-wore at Fort Gaines,<se the total population of the county sheuld

<havg-been 15, all residexts of the Gull Lake settlement. Mrs. Warren was
the only woman enumerated in the county. She was the pldest daughter of Vim.
Aitkine J.W.Lynde, afterward Indian Agent, was trading at Gull Lake. Daniel
Rohrer was his clerk. Sylvester Statelar was a blacksmith, and John Sloan a
lumberman. Mr. Warren's three children, and six laborers made up the rest of
the population. In 1850, Itasca county, which included pructically everything
east of the Mississippi river end north of the Mud River at Aitkin, had a total
population of 97 This included all of the residents at Grand Fortage, Fond du
Lac, Sandy Lake, Leech Lake, the mission and post at Cass Lake, Winmnibigoshish
and other points.

In 1851, the legislature made numerous changes in county bounduries. Itasca

(7s)
county retained its original boundariesibeginning at a point where ferty=six
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degrees thirbty minutes, north latitude, intersects the eastern bounary line

of the territory of Mimnesota; thenee along the bounary line of said terri-
tory to the British Fossessions; thence along the bouﬁary line of said ter-
ritory to the middle of the lake of the Woods; thence south in a direct line
to the Mississippi river; thence down said river to the mouth of Muddy Creek;
thence in a direct line to the point of Be:;inninge. Cass county was established
by this legislature. While not quite as large as Itasca, its boundaries
comprised a great extent of territory: beginning at the mouth of Xim Crow
Fkmg river; thence up the Mississippi river to Itasca lake; thence on a

direct line to km Otter Tail Lake; thence on a direct line to the source of
Long Prairie river; thence south to the northern bounary line of Dakota county;
thence along said line to the place of beginnihg. With the exeeption of the
comparatively small area lying south of the Crow Wing river, both of these
counties were strictly Indian territory, although theywere to be thrown upen
to white settlement within a few yearse The days of the fur traders were
definitely ended and a mew era was about to begin in the 0ld Fond du Lac

-~

departmente

%1) St.Croix County records, Deed A, p-185.
2) Interview with James W.Bell, Brainerd, Mimn.
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BEstablished Counties

With the most important part of the great Fond du Lac department kimiked
confined within the limits of two counties, huge though they were, civiliza-
tion began closing in upon the Indian country like a helentless fiste Ald-
though the treaty of 1847 had provided that the Chippewa must receive their
payments someWhere on the Mississippi, mothing very definite was done until
1861s During 1850, the payments had been made at Sandy Lake, but this was
Ynly a temporary expedients Finally, late that year, Governor {umsey selec-
ted a site for the permament Ageneye The location of the 4 gency was a
matter of great economic importance to the seetion of the country chosen,

and it would seem that a great deal ofpRmim political pressure was brought

to bear on the governor by different groups. Governor Ramsey chose a site

on the east benk of the Gull River, where it empties into the Crow Wing-r&vvf.
While the Agency had been located at Sendy Lske, J.S.Watrous had been named
as a deputy agent, under the supervision of J.E.Fletcher, Agent for the
Winnebagos, but when the Chippewa Agency wes definitely located at Gull River,

he was appointed Agent for the Chippewas.

With the establishment of the Agencyx at Gull River, of a settlement at
Crow Wing, and of Fort Ripley opposite the mouth of the Nokasippi river, the
territory surrounding the lower Crow Wing river and Gull Lake became quite
metropolitanvin character. Then missionaries became interested in the pos-
sibilities of reaching the Indians groupied around these centers of popu-
lation. In April of 1852, R ev. James Lloyd Breck established the mission
of St.Columba on Gull Lakes The buildings there were destroyed during the
uprising of 1862, but the organization was maintained and the parish was
moved to White Earth in 1870, where it is still an active parish of the
Episcopla dioceses That same year, Father Pierz esteblished his mission of
St.Francis at Crow Winge Barly in 1853, Rev. Sherman Hall attempted to

establish a mission school at the Chippewa Agency on Gull River. It was
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under the auspices of the American Board of Commissicners for Foreign MNis-
sions, end the Board had received permission from the government to operate

at the Agency, but owing to some misunderstanding, this order was withdrawn
after six months. Re%. Hall left for Sauk Rapids, where he skantvthe rest

of his life, In 1856, Beis Breck esteblished a second mission. b Lekeh Lake g,/
’?mhiah‘gﬁa-named Kasehgohe| The following year this mission was abandoned,
owing to the hostile attiﬁude of the Leech lake Indisnse Rev. Ottomar Cloeter,
of the German Lutheran Church, was the last persom to try to establish =
mission in early Cass countye In 1858, he founded Gabitaweegamah, located at
the mouth of Mission Creek in what is now Center township, Crow Wing county.
He continued to work there until the uprising of 1862 foreced him to fiee to
the Crow Wing settlement. He remained at Crow Wing until 1868, when he

abandoned the Indian field and moved to Aftons In spite of its great size and

lerge Indian population, every mission in Cass county hed (either been abandoned

or been removed by 1870,

The treaties of 1854 and 185656 opened most of Cass and Itasea counties to
white settlement--which at that time meant the lumbermen, Some lumbering
operations had taken place in Cass county before the treaties were signed,
but the lumbermen hed been force d to buy their stumpage from the Indians,
and their dealings with the Indians were sometimes very unsatisfactory--to
the Indians. During the early fifties there seems to have been very little
political activity in any of northeastern Minnesota, which would include
that territory lying north of a line through the mouth of the Crow Wing
river, and west of the Cass county boundary. But in that part of Cass
county lying south of the Crow Wing river, farming operations were begun
soon after the country was opened to-settlement. In 1854, the Benton
county commissioners created a voting precinet in Cass county which was to
;xtend from Clear (Creek on the Mississippi river on the‘north, to Crow

River on the souths The voting place of this new precinct was ve=be at the
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home of John MeoDonald, and thi‘judgeé of olectiog{were tesbe John McFherson
and bamuel d;}rackJ (1) This was undoubtedly in what is now Otsego township
of Wright county, for all:of the men mentioned were residents of that township
from 1850 or 1852. (2) During 1855, the state legislature ap ointed com=
missioners to locate and mark a mmber of territorial roads in Cass county.
S.B.0Olmstead, John Fairbanks and Frederick Ayer were appointed to loéato a
road from,Ff;‘Hiyley, south of the Crow Wing river in Cass counby, to strike
the Red River of the North opposite the mouth of the Pembina River, in Pembina
county. (3) Other Cass county roads ino%ﬂded onifrom St.Cloud, Cass county,
to Minneapolis, via Manhaﬁten and Monticello; another from Manhatten to
Red Cedar Island Lake; and anothér from Manhatten to Traverse de Sioux. (4)
But in that great part of Cass county lying north of the Crow Wing river,
roads wereihardly known, A magnificent system of interlocking waterways
provided unexcelled transportation for the traders and trappers. Bub there
was one Indian trail that had been used from time immemorial. This was the
trail thut came from the south and crossed the Gull River at what was known
as "Frenchman's Crossing," very close to the spot where the Northern Pacifiec
now crosses the Gull River. The trail led northward, past the Indian vil-
lage at Gull Lake, and on to Leech Lake, The present line of the Minnesota

# International Railway follows this old trail very closely.

In the late forties, a small section of the Woods Trail between Crow Wing

and Fembina, passed through Cass county. The trail crossed the Mississippi

Jjust north of the Crow Wing river, passed the Agency and then oerossed the «{j

Crow Wing river near the preéent site of Motley. An effort was made in UJLlelﬂV“Jk)

1858, to ihprove this Woods Traile. Thomas Cathecart, Peter Roy and Charl @dﬂn
o
‘hey

D. Klmball were named as commissioners to survey and loeute +&s road
were te—meet at Cathcart's house in Crow Wing on the first Monday in February
1859. (5) Traces of this old trail are still visible, and the last five miles

of the present road between Pillager and Vheelock follows this trail. (6)
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That part of the Leech Lake trail lying between the Agency and Leech Lake

was improved by money appropriated for this purpose by the treaty of 1855.
The Indians had $15,000 set aside to use in building a road in place of

the Indian footpathe The Leech Lake Trail was usually considered as start-
ing from Crow Wing, but in reality, the road followed the Toods Trall as

far as the Agencye Another important trail cpossed Cass gounty in the early
sixtiese.wdhis was the Pokegama trail. The legislature of 1858 empowered
J.D,Cruttenden, F.J,Whitlock and A,L,Smith ke survey and locate a road from
Crow Wing to Pokegama Falls. (7) This road left the Leech Lake road at

Gull Loke, passed between Round and Long lakes, and then went northeastward,
around the south end of Pelican Lake. When Walker, Allen & Putnam surveged
what are ﬁow Lake Edward and Pelican townships of Crow Wing county, they
noted the places where their lines crossed the traile This survey,was made
in 1870; £ho original govermment surveye After the location of the Pokegama
Frail, no other effort to improve tramsportation facilites seems to have been
ﬁade until 1873, Then the legislature passed an act to enable Crow vwing and
Cass counties to bond themselves for money with which to build a bridge across
the Mississippi river at Brainerds. The amount of bonds. to-be-issued was not to
exceed $10,000, 28) The following year, the legisluture named Edward licrse,
Narcisse Gravelle, both of Crow Wing county, and Vi, H.Lawrence of Hennepin
county, as a committee to located and establish a state road from Grow Ving
to Vhite Oak Point on the Mississippi riewer in the "northerm part of said
county." (9, As White Oak Point was a well knowm Indian village located

on the Mississippi river in Ttasca county, just o few miles below Phkegama

Falls, and as Crow Wing county at that time consisted of only that part of

the present county lying south and east of the Mississippi, it was=plain that

the 1egisiators}xknowﬂedga of the géagruThy of their state was rather-hazys

BUut this road was probably intended ﬁo follow the old Pokegama trail(and
provide means for improving that well-traveled route; According o the

Brainerd Tribune, "The road, when finally complsted, will be one of the grandes§
institutions imaginable for Brainerd, and will turn nearly all of the immense

pinery supply truffie into this eity." 549)
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During the fifties, settlers began coming into the new territory of Min-
nesota at a very rapid rate. Even before the boom of 1857 covered the country
with platted townsites, many sections of the territory had enough permanent
settlers to permit the organization of new counties. While most of these
newly organized counties were in the southern and central part of the ter-
ritory, several counties were established which greatly reduced the huge
areas of both Cass and Itasca counties. Steerms, Wright and Todd counties
were detached from the southerm part of Cass county in 1855, Lake and
St.lecuis counties were detached from Itasca in 1856, thus reducing this
county to about half its former size, a2s whit is now Cook county was de-
tached as part of Lake county. In 1857, the establishment of Carlton county
further reduced the size of Itasca. But even with these diminished areas,
both Cass and Itasea possessed hundreds of thousands of acres of white pine
forests--forests which had already attructed the greedy gaze and ruthless

ax of the lumbermens

One of the first signs of advancing civilization was the establishment
of govermment post offices. Before 1852, mail service of some sort must have

existed in the north country, but it was undoubtedly one of the services rend-

ered by the fur companiese In 1852, the government established post offices

at Red lLake, Cass Lake and Crow Wing. Alonzo Barnard was post master at

this office
Cass Lake until #E was discontinued in 1857, The Red Lake office was dis-
continued in June 1854, re-established in August 1855, and dis-continued agein
in 1857 Sela G.Wright was postmaster there during the entire life of this

offices Up to the year 1857, Cass Lake was the omnly post office in either

Cass or Itasca counties, for Red Lake was loecated in Pembina county and Crow
Benton
Wing in frmwotiny countye (11)
Then came the boom of 1857, Ewvery site where water power was available
seems to have been platted as a townsite; trading posts became embryo cities
and traects of wildermess were desiznated as county seats of newlyereated

countiese Otter Tail City was one of the most important of these expanding
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communitiese. While there had been trading posts on Otter Tail Lake for over
sixty years, it was sometime in 1854 before Donald MocDonald moved from Crow
Wing to become the first permanent white settler on Otter Tail Lakee. (12)

In 1853, Rev. J.Lloyd Breck, accompanied by Rev. Solon W.Manney, George Bonga,
and two voyageur, visited Otter Tail Lake, looking over the territory with &he
view of establishing a mission. (13) There was a tribe of Indians living there,
practically without govermment supervisions As late as 1855, they were still
unprovided for, as at that time the chief of the band did not go to Washington
to sign the treaty of 1855, so no provision was made for his band. (1&)

Rev. Breck reported that he had begun building a mission house, but it was

1860 before any religious services were helds Then Rev. E.Steele Peake, pastor
of Hely(ross Mission at Crow ‘‘ing, celebrated the first religious service in

the history of the settlement, when on the last Sunday in September 1860, he

held a public service of the Episcopal churche (15)

George Bungo, the trader at Leech Lake, must have been favorably impressed
by the prospeets at Ottertail lake, for he took a homestead claim there. In
1855, he announced that he would prosecttie anyone jumping his calim, on which he
hed expended the sum of $50. (16) He must have kept up his claim, for he re-
ceived a govermment patent, signed by President Lincoln, on Lots 2 and 6 of

section 10, township 134, range 39. (17)

Otter Tail City was created a town corporate by therlegislature of 1857,
At that time, it was the seat of the Gowernment Land Office for the Northwest
Distriet of Minnesota, contreolling a surveyed territory of 1,500,000 acres.
This office was established at the Chippewa fAgency in 1856, and according to
records was not moved officially to Otter Tail City untiliAugust 1, 1859, (18)
but it was actually located there in 1857, At that time, J.Clitherall was the
receiver and E.Sawyer, the register. (19) Du}ing the year ending Dec. 31, 1859,
OsTaylor was register angléiézzyer was receivems Statistics for that year

show that they sold 9006 acres of land; assigned 273 aores on land warrants;
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8680
assigned BEBR acres on Half Breed serip; and had received a total of $66425

in cashe (20) The census of 1857 lists eight houses at "Wel De Nah and Otter
Tail City," both in Cass countye Those enumerated as heads of familjesm or
households were: Donald MeDonald, merchant; John Bishop, laborer; Samuel
Domnell, farmer; J.Clitherall, receiver Land Uffice; E.Sawyer, Register Land
Office; S.Sawyer, farmer; George Bungo, trader; and Augustine Bellanger,
farmer. A ¥isitor at Otter Tail City in 1860, says that the eity consisted
of six eabins. (21) The McDonald femily of @tter Tail City emd the Wright
family of Dayton, were eredited with being the only settlers kmown to have

been in the county before 1862, who were also residents in later years. (22)

Otter Tail County was oreated in 1858 and Otter Tail City was named the county
' community

seat pro temes It retained this homor until 1868, when the Clitherall zmmmimy

established its own 'goverament.

The Wah De Nah of 1857, according to the eensus, seems to have had a very
small population as it is almost certain that most of those enumerated there
and at Otter Tail City were residents of the létter. But there was a settle-
ment soon after at Wadena. This settlement was not located om the present site
of the eity of Wadena, but at the crossing of the Red River or VWoods Trail on
the Crow Wing river. This is very near the present site of the village of
Motley. VWhen the railroad weas built throughthis territory in 1871, a new
townsite; named Wedena, was laid out several miles from the original towmsite
of that name. The orifinal townsite of 'Wa.denapf\:;:?;i{tted by Augustus
Aspinwall, who in 1857 clasimed his residence at Wadena, Todd county, although
he was listed in the census returns as a resident of the Chippewa “gency,
Cass countys He sold forty blocks of the townsite % Iseae R.Moulton of
St.Anthony. A year latée the latter sold twenty-che blocks of this property
to Alfred Makepeace of Anderson, Indiame for the sum of $8000s The deed for

this property describes it as being loca ed in Wadena, the county seat of
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Wedena countyes The legislature of 1857 granted a permit for a ferry, "at
Wadena, thirty miles above the Chippewa Agency, at the crossing of the Red
River and Pembina road." The permit was granted to Augustus Aspinwall and
Ggorge BanValkenburge MNr. Aspinwall was also appointed postmaster of the
Wadena postoffice, which was esteblished on Becember 2, 1857 and discontinued

April 26, 1860. (23)

Leaf City was asnother of the more prominent settlements of Cass countye
Treding posts had been lceated neor there from very early doys and it beccme
a stopping place oﬁ the Red River Trail. In 1857, a colony from Cambridge,
Magsschusetts séttled there and a postoffice was esgablished that years

serve :

Jemes F.Johnson was named postmaster and hexzxmkimmed in this office until

it was discontinued in April 1860, (24)

The Chippewa Agency on the Gull River was undoubtedly the largest settle=-
ment in Cass county, but it was govermment property and never platted as a
townsites But the touwnsite of Chippewa was platted in Todd county. It was
located just secross the Crow Wing river from Hole-in-the-Day's farm, which
was gbout a mile up-river from the Agencye. Vhen Chirles Hpllock of New York
City, and a party of his friends took a trip into the Red River valley, they
returned by way of Crow Wing in order that one of the party, the Doctor, could
look over his extensive holdings in the city of Chippewae. At the time of this
visit, 1869, the city of Chippewa consisted of one tumble-~down shedrocfed
log cabin, and the Doctor got the impression that he had been badly stunge. (25)

But in 1867, the Agency was a very bustling business headquarters for the

) \ r
whole north country. Davis Billerriman was the govermment agent; Paul
\

Beaulieu and Trumen Warren were trader and merchant respectively; Rev. E.

Steele Peake was listed as the clergymsmn, although he actually resided at

Crow Wing; George Ffeirbenks and S}@tatelar were blacksmiths; Joseph Burys, carpenter,
(Probebly Berry, as there was a family of this name long comnected with the

Crow Wing and White Earth settlements); William.H;ﬁorn, lawyer; John Dally,
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tailor; Tyler Chapmen, cook; ﬁ\?bafman, George Donnell and Levi Clark, lumber-

\
men; Pierre Sucier, Semuel McCullough, Isasc feglow, John Herrimen and John

Rogers, farmers; John Lxehaypell, laborer; James Tanner, border ruffian; and

EWP. Aspinwall and Augustus Aspinwall, without occupatione It was 1861
before a post office was established at'the Agency, and then Ashley Morrill,
the trader who afterward became Agent, and then moved to Little ¥alls where he
was & dominant faetor in the business and politic life of Morrison county,

was named postmaster. He held this office until it was discontinued in 1868 (26)

Next to the /gency, the Leech Lake settlement was the largest in the
countys The American Fur Company had had e very large establishment there
end their buildings had undoubtedly been put to uses According to the census
of 1857, there were three merchants there: A.p;Cush, John RiBellinger and Og-
den Monell; James Howard wes a machinist; Jos;ph Hugall a blacksmith; and
Jonathan Edwerds a farmer. There was, of course, a large tribe of Chippewa

Kasahgah

who made their headquarters at Leech Lake. The mission of Xmhzmhkgmxk, estab-
lised on Leech Lake by Rev. Jilloyd Breck, was probably located near the old
Leech Lake post, although when a post office was established at Xa Kesahgah
on April 28, 1857, it was listed as being in Itasca county. If this mission
wes really located on Leech Lake it would have beem impéssible for it to have
been in Itasca county, so this statement was amn error on the part of the pos-
tal authorities. Charles ﬂfﬁeesa was appointed postmaster end he- served umtil
the office was discontinued Eive months latere. Mr. Reese was the farmer at
the missions In July of 18568, A.D.Cash was appointed postmaster of an office

nemed, "Ieech lake." This office was discontinued Octe. 13, 1859. The Leech

Leke office is listed as being in Pembina county, although this hardly seems

possible. (27) Mr. Cash was evidently a resident of Little Falls, or at
least of Morrison eounty, for his son, Edward Frost Cash was baptized at
Little Falls by Rev. Peake in 1858. Mrs. Cash was Lydia Belden, probably a
sister of the George Hubert Belden who married Miss Susan Elizabeth Peake

at St)Cblumba in 1858, (28) And Mr. Cash was appointed postmester at
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Pike Rapids, Morrison county March 25, 1868, end served there until the office

was discontinued in 1878, (29)

Cass lake, the oldest zmkk mission in Cass county, was still a small
settlement in 1867, although the mission was abandoned in 1859 The census
of 1857 listed one trader thegﬁ Jack Bungos dJohn Dejadoﬁ was listed as a
farmer. The post office there, the oldest in the county, established Febe 20,
1852, was discontinued on August 18, 1857, Alenzo Barnard was the only post-

master to serve there. (30)

During the boom of‘1657, two other townsites were surveyed in what vwas
then Cass county. One of these was the townsite of Detroit, now the site of
Detroit Lakess Itvwas platted by hi{}@spinwall and the proprietors were:
AsP.Mspinwall, F&ﬁﬁgampbell, Donald Ecbcnald, George McDougal, and Dennis
Shoff, all of who;.were or had been residents of Crow iWing. The other
townsite was that of Elmira. There is no record »f its location, but it
wa.s probably platted by N.k;ésrinwall as he is the one who sold all of the

\

property of record. E.f,Aépinwall purchased 13 blocks of this townsite;

Robert Fairbenks, 13 blocks; arnd George Bungo 28 blockse (31)

No attempt to organize Cass. county seems to have been made during these
boom times, but a very strenuous effort seems to have been made to organize
ltasea county. The census of 1857 furnishes soﬁe very interesting informa-
tion aboubthis phase of Itasca history. In 1850, Itasca county r eported a
porulation of 97 person of white or mixed bloode In 1857, the county showed
a porulation of 630 persons, livimg in 260 dwellings. J.:}Wilson wes the
enumerator and the returns are dated October 3 to 6, 1857; vThere were more
hunters and trappers listed than men of any other classe. Iiost of them seemed
to have been French-Canedians,from their numes and places of birth--and xizozz

them had very large familiess There were 31 lumbermen listed, practically all

of them hailing from Maime or New York. Among them may be found the nemes of

Samuel Lawrence, W.Wilawrence and L;C.Luwrence, David N&Fupper, Matthew Comnor,
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0\Bradbury, J.;ibby, Peter and D\BiChapmen, Andrew and William Hendersone
JX%iLby, who is undoubtedly Joserh Libby, was actually lumbering in Itasca
coﬁnty as early as 18“., while D.a‘B‘.'-Ch-.rman, of Crow liing, mey also have been
lumbering as far north as Itasca, although most of his operations were in lower
Cass county. Itasca county boasted thirdeen traders, beside two men who don-

ducted Indian trading posts; five missionaries, John Adams, S.GgWright,

F.@Gpees, BKFépdell and Joseph Suencer; John Simysonrwas & blacksmith; Peter

'

\ \ -
and Bazille Nesquequi were guides; Jemes Simpsom,' John DlFoster and Peter
Strong were squatters; there were eight laborers; and Orrin Lafferty, E}ﬂ-
Carver and Louis Bazille were gentlemen of leisure, at least their occuptaions

were not specifieds

The legislature had passed en act in March 1857, permitting the orgeanization
of Itasea county and neming Ojibway as the county seate The governor was em=
powered to eppoint three commissioners, and the county was attached to the
Third Judieial Districte (32) Some organization seems to have been effected
for in an instrument dated July 20, 1857, Jacob Freystadt and wife, Elenora,

for a consideration of $80,

of Washington County, Mimnnesota, transfer to Issiah Elias of St.Paul,/lots
15-18 of block 54, Town of Ojibway, acecording to the plat thereof om file

in the office of Register of Ueeds in and for said county. (33) Another
deed dated #mikyx February 16, 1868, is Rikmd that from Orin w)eice of Douglas
County, Wisconsin, to Benjamin H.Commor of the same, bﬁwhieh the former trans-
fers, for a consideration of $200, lots in blocks 53 an& 12 of Town of Nor-
wood, "according to recorded plat of said Town om record in the office of the

Register of Deeds in end for seid County of Itasca." The thirty lots trans-

ferred in this deal were one-eighth o?n: share of the towmsite. (34)

According to old mups, Ojibway was located at the extreme southern tip
of Itaseca county, at the junction of Muddy Creek with the Mississippi river,
the present site of Aitkinme The towngite was just north of the creek.

fhile Ojibwey was named as the county seat, and the location of Norwood is mot

designated, the real metropolis of the ecounty was Pokegame. Fallse According
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to WAWMWinthrop, who visited the site in 1857, " The Minnesota and Dakotah
Land Company contested with Mr. Daytom of St.Paul, the possession of Fokegama
for a townsite, and each party has one or two men stationed there, whose log
houses make an agreesble nucleus for civilization in the wilderness. No lum-
ber cemp has yet been built as high up as Pokegema but Mr. Libby, of St)gnthony
was stationed lest winter only forty miles below, Below FPokegama, at conside#
able intervals, are passed the log houses of the lumbermen; end now and then
you ascertain that you are sailing by the site of some future town, such as
"Moscow, ""Maineville," "Portage City," ete. (35) The legislature ereated
Pokegems, "& town corporate," and declared that the corporate name of the

town organization should be ,"the Town Council of Pokegemon." The site was
described as being, "That one section of land on north bank of the Mississippi

at or near the Falls of Pokegamon." (36) A post office was establihed at

\

Fokagemon Falls, Cass eounty, on August 24, 1857, with George AjR&Vis as post-

master. 1t was discontinued May 15, 1860s (37) George Davis was probably one
of the watchman living on the site. The Fortage City mentioned by MNr.
Winthrop was a platted townsite, although its exact location is not desig-
nated. Samuel Wfﬁarnham sold an undivided eighth interest in the townsite to
F)L)Bibbins of S t.Paul, and the deed states that the plat was registered in

ligrrison county. (38)

River traffic was inaugurated between Crow Wing and Pokegema Falls in 1868,

but in 1858, Anson Northrup had brought his "North Star" above Sauk Rapidss
“The event was duly celebrited by re-christening her the "Anson Northrup,"

after which she proceeded upstresm to the foot of the cataract which gave

Grend Rapids its name. She was in command of Captain Young end carried a

erowd of exeursionists from Fort Ripley. The captain led a group afoot up

to the Falls, where it is recorded that they had a picnic dinner, after which

they returned to the steamer and descended the river to Fort Riplay without

incidente Thus on May 3, 1858, the same year that saw Minnesota ushered into
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the ocongress of 8tates, the great river for the first time was ascended to the
head of navigation by steam." (38) Cleveland Stafford, who came into the
pineries in the early fifties and refmined the rest of his long life, gives
another version of Northrup's venture. .He said that Northrup built the North

S tar to run between Stiinthony and Stafloude Then ke got up an exploring partye

They worked the boat over Sauk Rapids and Little Falls and got to Crow Wing,

where they took on supplies, and a barrel of whiskey was the first things on
the bill. There were about a dozen dignitaries on the boat and a man named
Bi1l Smiley was the captain, He was afterward killed at the battle of Bull
Run. "Well, the captain went along the river, naming towns and cities, and
there are some places which retain the names to this day, the Soo Fortage,
Ball Bluff and Portage City, which was as far up the river as theywente They
stopped there awhile, and there their whiskey ran out and they could go ne
further; so they came back to Crow VWing, where they fixed up & chart of their
$rip. I don't think there ever was an expedition on the Mississippi like that

one. They never lost a men and all got back safe." (40)

The ye:r 1857 was a memorable year in the history of the North Countrye
New population, & growing market and slmost inexhaustible resources, blew up
the economic life of the frontier like u great bubble. And like all bubbles,
it burste Suddenly and without warning, banks closed, business credit was
rxmkmxewn ruined and for several yeurs all hopes of propperity were erushed.
Counties, townsites, post offices all passed away and became an almost forgotten
page of historye

Benton County Commissioners Records, first volume, p-8T7.

) History of Upper Miss. Valley, pp=560 =and 561e

) Laws of Minn. 1855, p-5ls
Ibide p-68e

Laws of Mimn., 1858, p-107.
Interview withi#D.Bacon, Walker, Minn. @42475:1{ g gnﬁy\
Laws of Minn. 1858, p-116.
Laws of Minn. 1873, p-344.
LEWIS of qu.im‘ 1874, p-513.
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The Pineries

The punic of 1857 paralyzed the business interests of Minnesota. The
Indian country probably suffered the least, as tThe government continued to
mske the Indians their payments, snd the Indian traders got the cash, almosy
the only cash that came into the state for meny months. In 1857, there were
sixteen benks operating in Minnesota. By 1859, there were only six still open. (1)
It is often said that the uprising of 1862 depopulated many of the newer coun-
ties, but records seem to show that it was the financial panic and not the
uprising that was the greater blow. xByxxad®y From May 15, 1860 until
December 7, 1861, there was not a single government post office functioning
in either Cass or Ttasca countiese The census figures for these counties
show some interesting contrasts. Cass county had & poyulation of 196 in
1857, By 1860, this had dropped to 150, but the territory included in the
returns hed been considerably diminisheds Itasca county dropped from the
630 inhabitents of 1857, to & scant 51 in 186U--but the Itasca returns for
1857 seem to suffer from considerable infletion. Crow ¥ing county rose from
the 176 inhabitants of 1857 to 269 in 1860, but both Cass and Crow ling

counties benefited from the Indian trudee.

In Cass county, 62 of the 150 inhabitants were listed as white and 13 as
free colored. The largest settlement in the county was that at the Chippewa

Agency. dJoseph Wilynde was agent in 1860, and he was assisted hy bis brother,

Edward B\Lynde end John R3Bowes. E}B;Lynde remained in this country until his

death in 1874. He overated a store at Crow Wing and in 1872 moved to Brainerde
Augustus Aspinwall was a trader, assisted by his brother, Bdwarde Iruman
Werren was also listed as a trader. raul ibBeaulieu wes government interpreter;
JEV.Wren, government physicien; and Sylvester Statelar, blacksmithe DaBe
Chapman was listed as a lumberman, while Daniel Mooers and John Thom;soﬁ were
teamsters. Three whites were enumerated at Gull Lake: Thomas Cathcart,

for many years a prominent politician and business man of Crow Wing, gave his

occupation as real estate dealer; Norris Wesner, a laborer lived in the same
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The Pineries

%Hﬁfhouse with Catheart; and C.Rupert Louch, a young Irishmen who teught at
StiColumba., But a number of prominent mixed-blood or Indian familes are also
enumerated at Gull Leke. These included the familes of John Johnson Emmegahbowh,
Isaac Manidowsb, Willieam Superior, Joseph Charette, Stedman Hanks and Alexis

Roye The eight white persons enumerated at Pine River included Rev. Ottomar

Cloeter and his family; Sophia Moll, a fifteen-year old German girl; and

Fkﬁb{eake, the merchant snd trader. This settlement was located at.the mouth

\\
of Fine River, in what is now Cemter township, Crow Wing county, and is not to

be confused with the present riné River, Cass county, located near the source
of that river. The second largest settlement in the county was that at Leech
lake. IHere Peter Sutherlend was the Indian trader. He was assisted by James
ihitehead, James Howard and Adam Rutherford. lr. Vhitehead was the lMajor Vhite-
head who afterward played such an important part in Indian affairs in linne=
sota, and who was the uncle of WAW}Qartley and ﬁ,F\Hartley, who latffer joined
him and then settled in Crow Wing\oounty to bezmms iisted anong its most in=-
fluential residents. George VanValkenburg was the blacksmithj OLAgKellum, a
farmer; Sela GX&right, a teacherye Bdward Oliver, who afterward be&éme a

hotel keeper thecre, was & labrorer at that time. George Bonge. and his family

made up the free colored population of the ecounty. At that time he was

superintendent of the Indian farm at Leech Lake.

Of the 51 person enumerated in Cass county, seven Were whitess There were
three white males and two females at Wingibigoshich and two while males at

Sandy Lakee Among those living in the county at that time, were: John Bellanger

5

a trader at Winnibigoshish; R}M.Lafferty, the blacksmith there, and E.SKLufferty,
a female school teacher; Thomas sﬁorterd wes a lumberman at Sandy Lake; ﬁazil
Jour?%sn'was a trader there; while Vim. Thompsén and Joseph Tuttle were labor-
erse /Wm. Thompson afterward moved to Crow Wing, were he became the partner of

William Wakefield and F.ﬁl?eake, and in 1868, Thompson was one of the first
g Y

to move to White Earthe
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Outside of the business created by the Chippewa Agency end the Indian
trade, the first industry to be established in Cass county, was the lumber
industry. Lumbering, on a small scale, probably continued during the panie
of 1857 and it was one of the first industries in the state to revive. Lum=
bering operations were conducted along the Mississippi, the Crow Wing, the
Pine, and the Leaf Rivers in increasingly greater volume. The great central
section of Minnesota was nemed "The Pineries." Men from all offer the state
would go to "the pineries" to work during the winter and then return %o their
homesteads to grub and plant and harvest such crops as they coulds. The gineries
were usually considered as beginning at the Iine River, although there were

very large stands of white pine far below this rivers

An attempt at another form of industry wes made in 1862¢ Test pits for
the discovery of iron ore were put down at Oxbow Rapids on the upper Mis-
sisippi, a short distance below the portage into Sendy Lakees Some timber
cruiser had noticed the @@k deflection of his compass needle caused by the
presence of magnetiec irom ore of some sort, and had endeavored to find it by
sinking some test pits. The presence of ore was suspected at least as early
as 1859, when govermment surveyors noted Xk the marked variation of their
compass needle in what is now Nokay Lake township, Crow Wing ecounty, while
the 1850 census returns for Benton county also mention that there is evidence

of iron ore in that county, although this sumposition undoubtedly sarose from

the fact that there is en ore outcrop at Pike agdids near Little Fallse

It was forty-two years after this first attempt to discover ore ou what is
now the Cuyuna renge, before the first body of merchantable ore was actually

uncoverede (3)

Beonomic conditions in Mimmesota slowly improved after 1858, although the
beginning of the Civil War impeded the recovery. Then cane the uprising of
In the pineries,
1862, Fhe uprising itself caused very little damage to property and none to

life, but its after effects were very severes. The Indiens were a social,

enonomic and political problem. From the time of the uprising in 1662,
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until the signing of the treaty of 1867, conditions in the Indian country
were chaotic. No one could decide on any plans until the Indian question wes
settled, end-year after year the government pmikey vacillated from one policy
to smnothere After 1867, the fute of the Indians wend settled. The Agency was
to be moved from the Gull River to Lecech Lake, and the White Earth ifeservation
was opened to settlement. "The Removaly as it was named by the Indians, begen
in 1868, although it never suceeeded in removing &ll of the Indians from ther¥
former hauntse The Mille Lacs band msxmx refused to leave their homes, end

it was late in the nineties before all of the Gull Lake bend could be kept from

drifting back to their old camping groundse

In 1866, the gold rush to the Vermiliom range stimulated business in the
Indian country. Many prospectors went to the new gold field by way of the

upper Mississippi. The legislature recognized this travel trend, and ap-

pointed Leon Houde, Henry Beaulieu and George WaSweet z committee to survey °

\

and locate a road from Crow Wing to Vermilion Laske. The committee were to
meet in Crow Wing the first Monday of ﬁay, 1866, (4) If this committee did
anything, they probably designated the trail to Pokegama as the first part

of the new highway, but the gold fever passed away so quickly that no permement
road was ever Builte.

force
But before the gold rush was ended, o new ¥8&8 began feeling its way

across the continent. It was the Northern Bacific railroad. In 1867,

this corporation sent out a group of surveyors to make & preliminary survey

of the country through which the road proposed to pass--that from Lake Superior
to the Pacific Oceane They passed through this county, noting the. presence

of magnetic iron ore, and went on to their destinatiom, to be followed three
years later by the men who actually i;;g out the route of the railse (5)

But this ejpochal event probably failed to attraet as much attention

as the activities connected with moving the agency from Gull River to

Leech Lake. The exact date of this event is 2 matter of conjecture, but
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the post office at Chippewa was discon%inued July 22, 1868, end the office

at Leech Lake, with John Cook, Jr. as posimaster, had been established tm

February 4, 1868. JX?xBassett was Indian Agent, although his predecessor,

Edwin Clark, was given eredit for having planned the buildings at the new
Agencye (6)

reached
When the Agency wes finally smikimdxsk Leech Lake, they found that the

government had already established a school for the Indien ehildren. Sela G.
Wright had been in xcharge of a mission school there for many years, but in
1667 he was placed in charge of a government supported schoole There had been
no educational facilities at the Agency during most of the time it was located
at Gull River, but in 1867, Trumsn Warren had induced his sister, lirs. Julia
Spears, to move to Gull River and establish a schoole Mrs. Spears was & widow
with three children. Her first husband, Duncen Stewart, had, in 1852, bought
out a half-interest in Williem A itkin's store and ferry at Swan River. (7)

A Joserh Stuart was buried at Swan River in 1855 by Father Plerz jp=sowiis may (8)
hsve been the same men, Mrs. Spewart married Andrew Spears, who conducted the
post office, general store and hotel at Swan Rivere DMrs. Spears was brought

up in New York state by her grandfather, and attended the Girls' Academy at
Clarkson, N.Y. Following Mr. Spears' death, she went to Gull Hiver to teache
She went with the government employees to Leech Lake and was matron of the
sochool there until 1870, when she took her family to White Earth, where she

spent the rest of her life. (®)

Eighteen-8eventy and the final railrcad survey was & yesr almost as im-
portent in the history of Cass county as it was in the history of Crow Wing
countys "The crossing” was definitely locuted, and any hopes the residents
of upper Cass county may have had that the railroad would cross the Mississippi
farther up the river and then cross the county above Gull Leke, were soon
blosted. After determining the orcssing at the present site of Brainerd,

the surveypps did work northwerd, for in August 1870, thirty of them were

still boerding at Gull Lake. Fifteen of them, including Moses C\Fimberley,
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were boarding with George Wilsom at Gull Lake, while fifteen others were at

the stopping place of Reuben Graey. It would be difficult to say just hhen they
abandoned their efforts to go north of Gull Lake, but in August, Johm S.
Kimberley, a brother of Moses GA?imberley, was boarding at the home of Trumen
nyooersfja%o lived at the old Chippewa Agency on Gull #iver. John Si\Kimberley
ma& have been sent forward to make prelimimary arrangements for the survey of

the more southerly route, for it is certain that by September, 1870, the stakes

were set as far as Gull River on the Northern Pacific Right of way. (11)

The census of Cass county taken in 1870 by Charles AXEuffee, enumerates
a population of 380 persomns. Of these 184 were named as of white or mixed
blood, the rest being pure-blooded Indians. Tihe Bonge family, of black and
Indian blood, were listed smong the mixed bloods. Thirty-four houses contained
the 184 inhabitants. The heads of these houses included: George Wilsonj
Reuben Grays Bdwerd Oliver, all three of whom were hotel keepersy 3Sela G.
Wright, teacher; Albion Barmard, physician; George Atcheson, brevet capfiain
who was Indian Agent; Elezer A,Greenleaf, Indian farm superintendent; Frank

and George Bonga
Roy,/ﬁrygoods merchantg;Rachel LaMay, seamstress; Mary Aitkin, washing and
sewing; Charles G,Williams, lumberman; Truman H}Mooers, farmer; Llizabeth
\

Bonga, mocassin maker; Matilda Warrem, seamstress; Mary Meshe, washing and

sewing; John Wellwood, farmer; Francis Colombe, Thos. Harding, Paul BeElanger,

James B)@aylor, Williem Aitkin, Alfred Warrem, Henry Bellanger, FPeter Bonga,

Robert Desjadin, Paul Bellanger, George ligshington, Cherles Smith, John Vake-
field, William Brucette, Roger Aitkin, Machelle Comptois, laborers. DBeside
these heads of houses, James R&gohnson was employed as a saloon:keeger by George
Wilson; Walter Sﬁ@ray, afterward a prominenet lumberman, was living with his

\

father and stepmother, lr. and Mrs. Reuben Gray; Andrew Cuumings, blacksndthj
end Tyler Warren, U;s;%nterpreterjwere boarding at Edward Uliver's hotel;
Willism B)\Marston the lumberman, Williem Gilpatrick the cook( for whom Gilpat-
rick Lake was nanwdlaJohn S\Kimberley and Charles A.Ruffee were living at the

home of Trumen HiMooers, as well as Jeremish Bertr&nxﬂa laborer; and Barnie

\
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Kelly, a laborer, was living at the home of John Viellwoode Agricultural
statistioes show that Trumsn Mooers and John Wellwood were the only farmers
in the county. looers farmed 60 acres at the old Chippewa Agency, while
fiellwood farmed 14 acreé%z}The latter's farm was loceted in section 22 of
township 133, range 31l. (13) Beside those named in the census, there were
probably a number of residents that were overlooked. At least, @ithin a

short time after this census was taken, Amri C}gould was cutting his way (14)

from Brainerd to & homestead on Cross Lake, while HalLiGordon had 2uu0

scres nssessed in his neme es early as 1868, although no taxes wExm had

been paid on this land as late as 1836. (18)

Itasca county showed a slight gain in population between 1860 and 1870
By the latter year it had a total population of 96 persons; of these T8
were listed &s of white or mixed blood and they lived in 18 houses. There
were 18 Indiens living in 4 houses. Eleven of those of white or mixed an-
cestry were enumerated as sfxxurz white. The heads of houses included:

and John Randolph
James Whitehead, drmygoods merchent; Allen Hinston,/hlaoksmith';Baptiste
Desjadan, James Desjadan, Paul Desjadan, Joseph Desjadan, Robert Smith,
John Baptiste, George Flatt, Joseph Bodette, John Bodette, Henry Bodette,
Y

Basil Jourdain, Thomas Smith, John Lynde, Clement Beaulieu, laborerse (16)

In addition to the tradition that the Northern Pacific had intended to
ocross the Mississippi at French Rapids and go north around Gull Lake, there
is the story of the log store house on Gull Lake. The bottom logs of a large
building were easily discrenible until late in the nineties. These logs
were white pine, about six feet in circumference. The buildingx was approx-
imately 30x60 feet in size §17) and it was located just west of the present
highway No. 371, on the southeast quarter of the Hortheast wuarter of see-
tion three, towmship 134, range 29« Jefferson Saunders, who moved to Gull
Leke in 1869 with his uncle and aunt, Mre. and Mrs. Reuben Gray, said that
the building had been erected as a warehouse for the construction erews that

the Northern Pacific expected to send into the country to build the railroade.
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The crossing at Brainerd upset this plan and left the warehouse full of
hundreds of pounds of salt pork, flour, etc. Some enterprising trader (Mr,
Saunders could not remember his name) bought the whole stock and traded the
rancid pork and "green" flour to the Indians, who had a consequent epidemiec
of what Mr. Saunders described as "cholery." The merchant then continued to

use the place as a trading post. (18)

In August 1881, Captain Glazier, whose explorutions on the upper Mississippi
attracted a great deal of attention in this part of the county, lectured in
Brainerd. (19) During his stay in the ecity, he took a trip to Gull Lake, where
he visited Hole-in-the-Day's old headquarters. He stated themn that this spot
had been the scene of many sanguinary conflicts between the Chippewa and the
Sioux, the latter being under the leadership of Little Crow. This seems rather
insccurate, but his description of the site is probably eorrect. He said:

"The pemanents of a blockhouse, fragments of wigwams, and a few scattered graves
are all tifat is now left to tell the tale of its aboriginal conflictse A family
of four persons domiciled in a log house, constitute the entire population of
the place. Reuben Gray, the genial patriarch, who presides over this solitary
household in the wilderness, delights in the title of landlord, and his hotel
has become somewhat famous as ome of the pioneer half-way houses between Srain-

erd and Leechx Leke." This "blockhouse™" he mentions is the one Jefferson

Saunders said was the warehouse for the railroad. (20)

In 1850, JJW.lynde had a trading post at Gull Lake, snd it was undoubtedly

located very near the Chippewa village. It may have been this building which

Thomas Cathcurt offupied in 1860, when he was a real estate dmikdmx dealer at
the lake. In 1870, George VWilson was living at Gull Lake and boarding fifteen
members of the survey crew, To accomodate so many guests,wsmig even in the
fashion prevelent in the morth woods of that day, would have necessitated some
sort of a building and there seems to be no record of eny other large building

in that neighborhoode In 1875, Peter Roy, one of the pioneer residents of
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Crow Wing, conducted a treding post at Gull Leke. (21) Mr. Roy had moved %o
Morrison County in the sixties and into Little Falls in 18684 He served as &
representative in the state legisleature from this distriet during the sessions

of 1854, 1859-60, and 1862. The census of 1870 shows that he and his Rmmikyx wife
were one-third of the total population of Wadena countys. The other four inhabi=
tants being single men. There has never been any ENEEXXER confusion between the
"blockhouse" and the home of Reuben Greye The latter built his house in 1869

and lived there until the late eightiese

A person whose story may well serve to bring together some of this scattered
evidence was Mrs. Henry Selkirk of White Earth. Mrs. S elkirk, who was born in
November 1861, was the daughter of wa:¥ynde and Tay-;ggglda—kumre-go-quay.

Her home was on what is now known as SqﬁaW'Point, a, short distance from the
Chippewa villagee. She was baptized at St.Qolumba by Bishop Whipple, end is
probably the "Julia" baptized by him in éiﬁi:gnx 1862, age mEEMkxxEwWExFEREBFXXE
six monthse (22) Mrs. Selkirk had only ome memory of her fathers When she wes
six or seven years old, she vandered over to the pdgﬁt one day and stood in the
doorway. Mr. Lynde was sitting at the head of & large teble working with his
books. He recognized her end beckoned her to his side. She stood beside him,
admiring his white skin and black mustache, and thrilling with the thought,

"My fether." Iir. Lynde disappeared from Crow Wing history and even his

daughter had no idea of what had become of him, although years later, his

family sent her a picture of him. A younger brother, Edward B\%ynde, remained

in this part of the country until a few weeks before his death in 1874. He
conducted a store at Crow Wing for many years, end in 1872 moved to Brainerde
He tried to look after his brother's child and had Julia taken to the boarding
school at Belle Prairies Awey from home for the first time in her life, unable
to speak English, and among total strangers, she was so homesick that she ran
away from school and made her way om foot back to her home on Gull Lakee Later

she went to White Earth to live. (23)
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From the foregoing feets, it would be logical to assume that the large log
house was the one built for Jlﬁ;%ynde, probably in 1849, In 1860, lir. Lynde
was Chippewe Agent end lived at Gull River, while a friend of his, Thomas Cath-
cart, occuvied his buildings lir. Lynde must have returned to his own post
when his term as agent ended, for he was there in the late sixties, according
to his doughtere George Wilson, who was married to Hole-in-the-Day's niece,
was ot Gull Lake in 1870, whide he was succeeded by Feter Roys lNr. Lynde may
have put in a large stock of provisions in the expectation that the railroad
crews would follow the preliminary smrvey, because he wes a prominent business
man in the state and had been one of the incorporators of Lake Superior &

Crow Ying R\R\Co. (24) and would naturally have been interested in railroad
develo,ment.\ ‘During the winter of 1873, the Indiens vere in dire need of
food. The severe weather and deep snow prevented their hunting or trappigg,

so it may be they would have been glad to eat rencid meat and "green" flour.
01d Chief George Washington offered to put on a genuine wur dance at a hall

in Brainerd, if people would bring either momey or provisions for the price of
admission, so they were probably suffering for foods (25) although it would
seem incredible that either George Wilson or Peter Roy, oo £ xR st

¥ndtixmxwkyesy would have deliberately sold them this spoiled foode

While the erew of thirty men were located at Gull Lake in August 1870,
the ares on either side of the river at "The Crossing," was beginning fo
bustle with activitye By September, buildings were being rushed to com=
pletion on the exst side of the river, and it may be that there was some
activity on the west side of the river at this time, although thers is mno
evidence to rpove it. When the railroad company, through Ira Spaulding, Chief

Engineer of the Mimnesota Division, bought out the cizdim of Henry Wanderwater,

Paseal Lachappelle, RiGiSehryver, Dlﬁ,Burgess end Charles RiWood to all lands

within two and & half miles of the center of section 25, township 45, range 31,
they agreed to give them one black in a townsite to be platted west of the

river. (26) There is a tr:udition that when the final survey was made, one
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of the Ahrens brothers was camped near the spot, with a horse all ready to
seddle and bridle, so that when the exact site was determined, he could ride
post-haste to 5t3€1uud and enter a calim for the land on the river bank at the
west side of the ;iver, opposite the ecrcssinge One of the Ahrens may have put
in a claim in 1870, but it was July 5, 1872 before either of them got a receiver's
certificates Then Charles Ahrens, for $210.19 got certificate Noe 5690 from the
St.Cloud Lend Uffice for lots 2, o and 6 and thevNorthwest half of the Southwest
quarter of section 4, township 133, range 28; while Certificate No. 5691 wus
issued to Richard Ahrens, for $217.19, for lots 7 and the Southwest of the
Southwest of secfion 4, and lot 1 and the northwest of the northwest of section 9,
both in township 133, range 28+ (27) But there had evidently been another
claimant to the property aecquired by Charles shrens, for on June 8, 1872, he
hed gotten a quit elaoim deed from Thos. GiHolmes for this same property. As
Holmes, who was described as "formerly of Cass county, now of Bruinerd,héot only
$12.50 for his interest in the 168.75 scres, his title was probably very tenuouse ko83
At the same time, lMr, Holmes made out a quit e¢laim deed to the property claimed
by Richard shrens. (28) Later, Charles Ahrens took a homestead on what is now
known as Ahrens Hill, and he received his patent on this--the northeast of the
southwest of section 26, township 134, range 28, in September 1888. (29) The
Ahrens brothers were the real founders of West Brainerd, although William Je.
Farsons of St;{aul was associcted with theme On Sept. 14, 1872, they filed a

\

plat of the townsite of West Bruinerds. It was accepted by Albion Barnard, regis-

3 \ \
ter of deeds for Cass county, by his deputy, F\M%Camgbell. RyKiWhiteley made
\ \

the plat, on which the owners of the property reserved the river bank. (30)

There were three Ahrens brothers, Charles, Richard and Johne. Charles was

born in Maryland in 1842, of German parentse Richard was born there in 1846, (31)

while John was born in Virginia in 1847. (32) Charles was badly burned in a
fire which originated in a brooder house afi his homestead on Ahrens Hill,
and was taken to St}{oseph's hospital, Brainerd, where he died. (33) John was

aceidentally drowned Auge 3, 1912, His occupation was given as ga.rdJ:;er. (34) His
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name does not appear in the 1875 census returns, so he was either away from

Brainerd at that time, or had not yet joined his older brothers.

One other family is known toc have resided in West Bruinerd as early as
1871, although their home was north of the platted portion of the townsite.
This was the family of Seth CA\lennis. Mr, Tennis, an employee of the Northern

Pacifiec railroad company, made his home west of the river until the late

seventies, when he moved to Brainerd, where he spent the rest of his life. (35)

A large plat of the West Braimerd townsite hangs in the Brainerd rublic Librayy.
It shows a sketch of the Tennis homestead to the norths The plat also has two
other interesting pictures on it--one of the Cass County Court House and the

other of the Northern Facifie Reception House.
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West Brainerd, County Seat

The bustle and excitement connected with the rapid development of a
setllement on the east side of the Mississippi river, completely overshadowed
the activities taking plece on the west side of the rivers During 1871, there
are practically no records of anything that took place in what is now West
Brainerd, But behind the scense, there must have been much activity in Cass
county, for early in March 1872, the legielature passed an act permitting the
organization of the county. It empowered the governor to name three com-

missioners for this purpose, who were to decide on the leccation of a county

seat within six months. (1) On July 3, 1872, George Axyorrison, George N.

Bardwell and Charles Ahrens met on the banks of the Mississippi opposite

Bruinerd and proceeded to organize the county. They named West Breainerd as

the county seat and appointed the following officers: Dr. Albion Barnard, reg-

ister of deeds; Charles A}ﬁuffee, auditor; Richard Ahrens, treasurer; Frank F,

Keating, coroner; C:Tkyooers, sheriff; and TXFiKnu,;en of Brainerd, attorney. (2)
\ Ly

WoW.Haertley of Brainerd, was to act as judge of probate, while Dr. Barnard was

to act as county surveyor in additien te his duties as register of deeds. (3)

The first building whose erection attracted any attention, was the Reception
House or Imimigrant House, which the Northern Facifiec erected Just morth of the
tracks on the kixkx top of the hill west of the rivere A sketch of this build-
ing is shown on the plat of West Brainerd hung in the Brainerd Fublie Library.
As early as Agmgm August 1872, it was announced that this building would be
conyerted into a railroad hospital, although it was not converted to this use
;iiliore than a year latere. Another important building was the Cass county
courthouses. this building was doncted to the use of the county by the Ahrens
brethers, but it was destroyed by fire in the fall of 1872, and its size and
location have not been determined. Following this fire, the Northern Pacific

reilroad tendered the county the use of the Reception House as a courthouses
. E

Late in January, 1873, about 150 people gathered in Brainerd and then went
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across to West Brainerd, to surprise the Ahrens brothers. A big supper was
served, followed by dancing, the musie for which was furnished by Fretwell,

Conant and Stearn String Bank . (4)

In March 1873, the legielature empowered the county commissioners of Cass
and Crow Ving counties to issue bonds, not exceeding $10,000 in amount, for the
construction of a bridge across the Mississippi river, (5) but the commissioners
did not take advantage of this opportunity. The legislature also empowered
Cass county to issue bonds to take care of their floating indebtedness. (6)
C%A%Fuffee, who had been appointed auditor, failed to qualify, and Fred Stauff
w#s appointed to this officee Mr, Stauff had served as auditor of Wahasha
county for several terms. He and his family arrived in Brainerd the middle
of Msreh 1873, and planned on moving to West Brainerd as soon as they could -
erect a house, (7) Several other changes of officers hupixksem were made
before the middle of that year. Francis M;Cmngbell was appointed register of

deeds in April 1873; while Charles H. Elliott was appointed sheriff in place

of Ckg;Mooers. (8) The county officials seemed to be & very progressive group
\

of men, for in Muxmk April 1873 they published some very comprehensive game

and fish laws; (9) and during the summer of that year, Mr. Stauff, assisted
by Tkﬁfﬁernald, traveled all over Cass county to see that it was properly

assesseds They were foreed to do much of this work on foot, so their devotion
to duty may be judged when one realizes the termendous extent of the territory

they covered. (10)

The new Cass county court house must have been built Before December, 1873,

for at that time, the railroad company allowed about twenty-five"Finlander

"

immigrants” to spend the winter in the Reception House, which had been in use

as a court house. The new court house was located on Bloek D of Vest Brainerd,
a hill overlcoking
on xhmxkzmkzxaf the Mississippi river, about two blocks north of the present

highway No. 210. In consideration for the sum of $100, this bloek was deeded

to the people of Cass county by William J&Parson and wife, liealtha, Churles
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end Richard Ahrens, with the provision that it be used for the site of county
buildings, "and that ::iin and at such time as the said county of Cass shall
discontinue an d cease to occupy said block of land for such purpose, then
and thereupon the same shall revert to and become the sole and exclusive
property of the grantors herein." (11) This deed was dated Septe 8, 1873,
The courthouse was & buillling 38x40' in size, with two fmlixxkmxmiz stories
and a full basement used for jail purposese A hall ran through the middle of
the first floor, with two offices on each side. Thex top floor contained a
¢ommodivus court room with two jury roomses Only two of the first floor of-
fices had been completed by Mareh, 1874, but the material to complete the
building was on hand, and the entire cost, up to that time, had been only

publlc
$4008, (12) a very conservative figure for g/bulldlng of that sizee

Francis M. gamobel’ had resigned soon after his appointment as register of

deeds, and Thomas C\Fernold had been appointed to the office. He ackndhledged
lezal instruments as early as April 22, 1873, in his capacity as register. (13)
But the officials of Cass county seemed to be too active, for the sixteenth
annual session of the Minnesota Legislature received a petition signed by
‘;BLBwssett mJ\m jashburn, G.-*.Camn, uB\Wal}cer, H.\l‘ \VWielles, Q.‘;"iorrison,
C‘@1611NMn, and L Pﬂflarve, tshlné that the Cass coun y orgenization be an-
nulled. They steted that they were taxdﬂayer of Cass county; that the county
had a voting pojulation not exceeding thiity; that on March 11, 1873, the
Legislature had passed a bill enabling the county to bond itself for $4000
to pay outstanding debts, and that it had issued $13000 in bonds; nothing had
been spent for roads or bridges; $2800 had been paid for blank books; that while
it had been attached to Crow Wing county for judieial pur oses, and while the
county attorney of that county had always been ready and willing to attend to
all business of a legal character for Cass county, yet they had paid out
$1200 to outside attorneys; ¥That the personal property assessment in 1873 was

$300, real estute something over $100,000, and a tex levy had been made for

Z

the yéar on such valuation ©f about $12,00U, rate of tax 3 cents, two mills
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of which is a sinking fund to psy interest on bonds inssued, and the balance
to be used by the four officers of the. county and exclusively for their sup=
port; that the auditor had drawm over twice his legal salarye For these and
other flagrent abuses, the petitioners asked an investigation. The petition
created quite a stir in the legislature, and after considerable argument, it

was adopteds, (14)

As may be imagined, this petition created a great deal of excitement in
both Cass and Crow Ying counties. Several of the Cass county officials were
swmmoned to Sté4Paul to appear before a senate investigating commitiee, ond
local opinion seemed to be that the ease looked pretty blue for(iﬁim./ In
March, CAB&?leepcr, of Breinerd, who represented this district in the legis-
lature, telegraphed Brainerd friends that both houses had not only passed the
Yass County Disorgenization Bill, but had also passed a bill attaching Cass
county to Crow Wing county. (18) Although the disorganization seemed to be
greatly desired by Crow lWing county politicians, as well as Cass county lumber-
men, they were all hmekuky greatly disappointed when Governor Pavis vetoed the
bille Xn vetoing the bill, he wrote an opinion, stating that if Cass county
couldbe disorganized in this fashion, eny other county might suffer the same
fates (17) rsi‘:d\ausse11, editor and publisher of the Brainerd Iribune, and &
man whose editorials were not only fearless, but of a very high standar&,
praised the governor for not letting the "pine land swindlers" get him to
disorganize Cass countye (18) Perhaps his stand on this controversial ques-
tion had something to do with an advertisement which appeared in the Tribume
on May 2, 1874 In this adveritsement, Mr. Russell offers the Tribume for sale
as his presence Wwas required in a'"distant locality, through circumstences over

which he has no control,"

The election held in November 1874, brought in some new county officialse

A ‘A
FaE\ Stauff was reelected auditor; HJG%Mooers became register of deeds; SKS.
\ '\

) \
Tennis, treasurer; B:{@Hurtley, judge of probate; N4Falconer and A{Eﬂ?artlett,

county commissioners. (18) Dr. Albion Barnard was serving both as coromer
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and surveyor as early as February 4, 1874, so he may have been appointed to the

former office. (20)

The Cass county census for 1875 wes compiled by Fred Stauff, the auditor,
He enumerated a total of 239 persons, living in 63 houses. From the census
lists, themselves, it is impossible to determin the exact location of these
homes, but being able to prove where some of the persons named had their resi-
dence, it is possible to get some idea of where others lived, by comparing the
location of the names om the list. The first family enumerated wes that of

Norman Faulkener. His home was probably located north of VWest Brainerd, for

A}

R ; i
the next person nemed is Reuben Graye In his home, beside his wife, there were

living Anne Holterhoff and child, Thomas McGuire, Hiram end Jefferson Saunders.
Hirem Saunders wes a brother of lrs. Gray¥y and was sheriff of the county in
1875-76. His son, Jefferson, married and lived at Backus uwntil his death a few
years ago, having served as geame warden in southern Cass county for meny yearss (21)
Peter Roy and his family were next on the liste It was undoubtedly at this time
that Mr, Roy was operating the Gull Lake trading poste For many years, no one
lived between the Gray home on Gull Lake and what is now the village of rine
River. George Barclay settled at Fine River, squatting on govermment land,sm&
trading with the Indians, and later going into the draying and logging businesse
Lumbering operations in that part of the county were started about 1879« The
logs would be floated dovm the Pine River, across the Whitefish to Cross Lake
and then down the Migsissippi. Homesteaders for the lumber compenies began
moving into the country then, but steyed only long enough to Prove up and

move one (22) Mr, Barclay lived at Pine River umtil his death in the nineties.
He wes mardered by an unknown assailant, who shot him through the window as

Mr. Barelay was reading his newspaper while sitting beside his living room

tables

After enumerating the residents of the country north of West Brainerd as
far as Pine River, Mr., Stauff seems to have gone to Gull River, for John

Clayton was living in the ninth houses lr. Clayton owned lend in sectiom 11,
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township 133, range 29. (23) Mr, Clayton was also an inventor, for he perfected
& new type of grub plow. In 1880, he prepared to establish a factory in Breinerd
for the manufacture of gangplows, rolling coulters, wheel attachments, and so
forth. (24) The railroad station that afterward beceme known as Gull River,
wes at one time nemed Clayton.(25) Then came the home of Henry thooers. Be~-
side his family, and a young girl named Mary Childs, three men were staying at
his home: John Goose, George Venderberry and John Knighte. Mr. lMeeers occupied
the o0ld Chippewa Ageney buildings at that time end eontinued to live there
until they were destpoyed by fire the last of December, 1890s (26) K&xwxs
FEAGLTE )y XN OXORE 365 ok b ouon e e ook o focaat s syt i acy xR X RS
gaxzux, Two single men were enumerated next, Jemes Taylor, who served as county
commissioner in 18763 and William Holmes.

The houses numbered thirteen to twenty~three must have been locuated in
Wiest Broinerd itself, for TiCdiFernald, with whom Charles and Richard Ahrens
were living, was house Nos 1;?),‘while Seth CiTemnis, his femily, Joseph Mersaw
and Mre* and Mrs. Orville Ford were living in house Noe 23« DBetween these
houses, the heads of the families were: Christian Jemson, Mres and Mrs, George
Booth, Mr. and Mrs, C%Miller, Mr, and Mrs. Henson Owl, Mr. and Mrs. Henry A.
Lumpp, Mre. and Mrs. F ﬁkdtauff, Mr. and Mrs. William Charra, James O'Brien
and Mr. end Mrs. Martin Tuheys Three Finnish women occupied houses No. 24 and
25: Mary and Lizzie Kefrowl and Catharine Keborde Beginning with house No. 26,
the residence of James Whitehead, and continuing to house Noe 63, the residence
of Benjamin Fairbanks, probably all of those enumerated lived at or near
Lecch Lakes Meny of those living there included former residents of the
Crow Wing settlement, bming: William Wade, Simeon Weaver, Ch:irles H&?eaulieu,
Geroge, William and Benjemin Fairbenks, and Villiam Aitkine Rev. r.ﬁ}Howe we.s

a missionary there and in his home were two young Hew Yorkers, Augusta and

Cleas Parke. E&g;Hartley, judge of probate 1874-76; George A.Morrison, county
A\

commissioner 1872-75; George Niﬁurdwell, county commissioner 1872-75; James

Bassett, the lumbermen; a large number of Bungos; beside others unlmown to

historye
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B.F.Hartley had been operating the Leech Lake s age line, but in May 1875,
he sold the outfit to Morrison & Fairbanks of Leech Laﬁéf/ This firm suffered
a very heavy loss the following month. One of their wagons, loaded with about
#6000 worth of furs, was bkﬁned while in transit from Red Lake to Audubon. The

driver left it standing in the track while he went to chase & rabbite During his

absence, a prairie fire crept up and completey destroyed the wagon and its loafts (28)

Early in November 1£75, an election must have been held in Cass county that
provided considerable excitement, although records seem to be lackinge Somn
after the election, Major VWhitehead and CXAQRuffee returned from Leech Lake to
Brainerd end reported that Fagﬁstauff had beén re-slected auditor, and that lir.
Ruffee was register of deeds. (29) Henry Géﬁooers must have resigned as reg-
ister, for on Nove 3, 1874, he had been elec%ed for a twe-year term, ﬁﬁﬂﬁx
but in February , 1875, Mr. Ruffee filed his bond as register. X&®3 Charles
H\?eaulieu was elected surveyor in place of Dr. Barnard. (30) But the
greatest interest was created by the new board of county commissioners. The
commissioners originally appointed by the governor had served from 1872 mmkii¥ through
1874, They were: Charles ghrens, chairmen, George N\?urdWell and Georsge Ae
Morrison. In November 1874, it appears thst Reuben érny and George Bareclay

were elected commissioners, while James Taylor claimed a seat on the board, and

C%A;Ruffee was also named a s ;commissioner. (31)
] {
1\ \

The new commissioners met January 4, 187‘1 in the auditor's office. Reuben

Gray was elected temporary chairmen. Those present were Bray, Barclay and
Taylor. Ur, fxxyxwx Barclay moved that Mr. Gray be appointed Chairman for

the ensuing year. He and Gray voted in favor of this motion, with Taylor
opposed to ite "The chairman of the Board then requested the county auditor,

'whu was present, Uo record the foregoing action of the Board, which the

said county auditor declined to do, and declined to recognize commissioners
Gray and Barclay as a majority of the Board." Thereupon the majority nemed
Thomas CE@ernuld as clekk, pro tem, after whioh they adjouyfed to the office

of the register of deeds. Mr. Taylor accompanied them, but he was persistently
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vited against every motion made. The auditor, meanwhile, refused to present
any business to the boarde Finally Gray and Barclay moved and seconded that

all minutes of the meeting of November, 1875, except that the Board adjourned

sine die, be disapproved and disallowed as null and void. This motion carriede.

They carried another motion to have the clerk of the board ask the auditor for
the Commissioners' book of records. This request was refused, so the Board

adjourned, to meet the following day in 'the register's offices

The meeting of Januury 5 must have been very harmonious, for beside the
clerk of the board, Mr, Fernald, only Commissioners Gray and Barclay were
presents They decided to have the clerk pro tem notify the auditor and the
treasurer that the Board was in session and that each of them was demanded
to produce this agecounts and wouchers. The clerk read the notice to Mr,
Stauff, the auditor, but could not reach Mr. Temnis, the treasurer, who was
absent. The notice declared that as the county officials had failed to
answer the demand that their books be presented to the Board, the latter
moved that the county attorney of Crow Wing county be requested to bring suit
ageinst the auditor and his suretiese In addition, they intended to cause
charges to be made to the Governor that the county auditor was guilty of
malfeasance and non-feasance in offices The Board then decided to adjourn
until January 26. (32)

The fodlowing week, the Brainerd Tribune reported: "The Cass county muddle
kxxgmitx 1is becoming more complicated and waxing hotter and hotter every day
until now it would puzzle a Philadelphia lawyer to predict how it will ter-
minate. In addition to the suit brought against Auditor Stauff for nonfeasance
in office, charges have been preferred against him to Governmor Pillsbury. The

election of commissioners Wade and Taylor will be contested, and CQA\Ruffee has

\

obtained an alternative writ of mandamus against Thos. CXFernald, for the

\
office of Register of Deeds, returnable at Duluth on the 25th inst. Fun for
the lawyers." (33) Upon the return of the alternative writ of mandamus, a

peremptory writ was ordered, from which order notice of an appeal to the

Supreme Court ims kmmm served. (34)
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On Mareh 3, 1876, the legislature repealed the act of 1872 by whioh Cass
county was organized, snd proceeded to attach it to Crow “ing county for record
and judicial purpose, for the levy and collection of taxes. No taxes were to
be levied except for state purposes, to pay outstanding indebtedness, and to
allow a reasonzble sum a&s compensation for Crow Wing county, the latter not to
exceed ten mills per acre. It stipulated that all records were to be trans-
ferred to Crow Wing county, which was to continue to keep Cass county records
in their original books, and separate from the Crow “ing county recordse The
guditor of Crow iing county was to make a detailed scheduléfof all known in-
debfdness of Cass county, and have this list published for four weekse In
return for their extra labors, the auditor of Crow Ving county was tor e€eive
5% of all the monies collected in Cass county, while the Crow Ving county
treasurer was to receive 3% of thems (35) Asuit to contest this act was

didorgzanizing Cass county
probably started immediately, for late in May, 1876, the act/ﬁas declared

to be comstitutionals (36)

" About the middle of March, a Board of Audit met and reported defalcation
on the part of S4CiTemnis, treasurer, in the sum of $1,184,70, This Board wes
composed of F.fxstaﬁff, auditor of Cass ecounty; James Taylor, chairmen of the
Bouard of County Commissiomers of Cass county; and W.W.Hartley, Clerk of Court

of Crow Wing, Cass and other countiese Bondsmen for Mr. Tennis were: Doril-

\ \ \
lus Morrison, Deniel Bassett, Edgar HNash, Charles I\s"i.",\'l_foring and F-‘:,G%Shillock,
\

all of Mimmeapolise Richard Ahrens, who had been treasurer from 1872 through
1874, was exonerated by the Board, although his accounts showed a deficit of
$192.49. He had deposited county orders to the sum of $212.16 with the county
commissioners, who had failed to act on thems Nr. Tennis acknowledged that

he had used the money but that he had expected to put it back before the

Board of Audit met, and he asserted that it would be replaced within a few

days. At this same time, the county commissioners removed Mr. Temnis from

office and appointed Dlﬁfﬁlipp of Leech Lgke, treusurer of Cass countye (87)
|
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Newton
A few days later, ¥mx/lcFadden, treasurer of Crow 'ing county, sent a

team over to West Braimerd to bring back the Cass county safe and the rest
of the treasurer's books, as lir, Tennis had turned part of his books directly
to Mr. MeFadden, instead of to Mr. Sljpp. But the Cass county officials
refused to let them go until after the six months period allowed by law. (38)

leanwhile, C4AdRuffee had been in Vashingtone. When he returned, he said that
L |

he was going fo take Cass county matters in hand and thought that the organi-
zation of the county was "not busted as much as it might be." (39) Whatever
action Mr. Ruffee intended to take, or did take, had very little effect on
stopring the disorganization of the county, but a writ was issued to compel

Mr, Mcfadden to deliver the books and other property of the former Cass county

treasurer, to DiE{Slipp, the newly appointed official of that county. (40)

In Jily, an itemized list of Cass county bills was published, and they
amounted to the sum of $23,770.63 (41) Two months later, a list of the
bills to which exceptions had been filed, was also publishede (42) Among
the other lawsuits in which Cass county was involved at this time, was one

against the bondsmen of SiCiTennise D\OiPreston, one of the attorneys who
T Yo

\ !

commenced the xkik suit on(behalf of Cassicounty, reported that the suit

could not be sustained because theye were no county commissioners of Cass

county, and the county commissioners of Crow iing county had no authority

to bring suit, (43) But this did not deter the Crow Wing county commissioners,
for they imnstructed their attorney to go on with x;x sult against Mr. Tennis
psersonally, and the latter offered to compromise By paying $400s (44) This
seems to have ended the casex against Mr. Temnis, but it was late in October,

1877, before all objections that had been raised &gainst paying certain Cass

county orders, was withdrawn, and the finanecial affairs of the county settled, (45)
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After being attached to Crow Wing county, Cass county still presented
difficulties in edministration. The state law provided that 1¢ per acre

counties

be allowed for collecting taxes in unorganized kmxmx attached to otherse.
C row iing county officials complained that this was not enough to pay
expensess (46) The Crow Wing county financial statement shows that this
county received the sum of $2,875.43 as compensation from Cass county. (47)
In July 1877, the county commissione?s set the following levy for Cass county:
Bonds, 7 mills; Crow Wing County Compensation, 1 mill; general school, 1 millj;
this levy being made on a total assessed vakilation of $582,415. (48) In Ne-
vember 1877, the commissioners established three voting precincts in Cass
county and named the following judges of election: West Brainerd: SQC.

-S A %\
Tennis, Reuben Gray and Robert lcKees Chippewa Agenecys: T}H’\Mooers, Ck‘f‘h‘.Rufi‘ee

and John Claytons. Leech ILeke: C%?\Beuulieu, J&niNichols and Geo. AJgforrisons $49)
L | v

These were the only three precincts to be organized in Cass county until after
1881, although in 1879, the Chippewa Agency precinet was named the Clayton
precinet (50), and in 1880 its name was changed to the Sylvan Leke precinct. (51)
The agitation in Crow iing county to inerease the compensation received from

Cass county, in 1879, led the legislature to amend the act of March d, 1876,

and allow Crow “ing county to levy a 12 mills per acre tax in Cass county. (52)
Ihe legislature also immm legalized the incorporation of townships 133 and

134, range 28, as a special school district under the coporate name, "The West
Brainerd School Districte™ (53) It was probably at this time that = log

school house was erected in Vest Brainerd, mear the present site of Wheeler

Inn, on Highwey 210.

Late in 1879, an event took placex which was to have a great influence on
the history of Cass county--Chase, Pillsbury & Coe decided to build a large
mill near the spot where the Northernm Paoifie Railroad crossed Gull Rivers
They began work in the fall of 1879 and whthin a year a town of 300 hed spring
up around the mill, Twenty-two dwelling houses had been built, heside the

company boarding housee Col. Call\Burgoyhe had broken ground for the mill
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on August 22, 1879. The mill, which was a large one for its time, had an
output of 00,000 board feedk a daye By September 1880, there was a school

at Gull River, attended by 42 scholars. (54) This was probably an km
unorganized school, as it was March 1881 before the legislature passed an

act establishing two school districts in Cass county, beside the West Brainerd
district established in 1879. The east half of the county was organized as
District Noe 1, while the west half became District No. 2e (55) Although
this act was passed in March, the following month, the petition to orgenize

a sbhool district in Cass county was referred to the Crow liing county attorney.(56)
The attorney decided that there was no law permitting a district to be or-
ganized in Cass county, (57) and the law may have been unconstitutaional, for

a few years later the legislature divided Cass county inté® two school districts

with slightly different boundaries than those of 188l. The 1881 legislature

appropriated $1000 for the construction of two bridges in Cass county, one across
the Gull River and the other across Cullen Creeks Jonathan Chase, R.C.Leavitt
and A.E.Horr were named by the state to view therse structures before they were
acceptede (58) During this same year, the Crow Ving county Commissioners re-
ceived a petition from Cass county residents praying that a township, to be
nemed, "Liberty," be organized. This petition was also referred to the county
attorney. (569) It is possible that this péetition came from the Gull River
settlement, which already had far more inhebitants than wes legally required

to organize a townshipe

ass county remsined unorgehmized and attached to Crow Ming county until
1897, During that time it slowly increased in population, but its former
county seat never regained its ascendancy. West Brainerd remained part of en
unorganized township until 1885, when it was incorporated into the city of
Broinerde It had been a county seat, but it was never located on a state or
county road; it never boasted a post office, a depot, or a telegraph office;
a church, or a cemeterys;
and its courthouse returned to private ownership, and was destroyed by fire

in 1892, The Reception House, which became the first Northern Pacific Hos-
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pital wes also destroyed by fire, about 1885. (60) Although a new hospital
was constructed on the site of the first structure, this too has been taken

away, so a school house remains the only public structure in the former county
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